
 
North Bristol NHS Trust 

Trust Board Meeting in Public 
Thursday 2 June 2016 

12.30pm, Seminar Room 5, Learning and Research Centre, 
Southmead Hospital 

Agenda  
1.  Apologies and Declarations of Interest: Andrea Young, Liz Redfern, 

and John Everitt 
 

2.  Questions from Members of the Public – letter from Jill Shepherd Enc 
3.  Minutes of the Trust Board meeting held on 31 March 2016 Enc 

4.  Action Log PR/Enc 

5.  Chairman’s Business PR/Verbal 
6.  Chief Executive’s Report CP/Enc  

Quality & Performance  

7.  Patient Story SJ/Verbal 
8.  Monthly Integrated Performance Report CB/Execs/Enc 

9.  *Safe Staffing Report SJ/Enc 

Strategy and Development  

10.  *Consultation Plan for Trust Strategy CB/Enc 
11.  Capital Planning Report SW/Enc 

Governance & Regulation  

12.  Audit Committee Report JMD/Verbal 
13.  Annual Accounts 2015/16 and Letter of Representation DS/Enc 
14.  Charitable Funds Committee Report JMD/Verbal 
15.  Charitable Funds Accounts 2015/16 and Letter of Representation DS/Enc 
16.  Quality Account 2015/16 SJ/Enc 
17.  Committee Membership PR/Enc 
18.  Trust Management Team Report AY/Enc 
19.  Finance & Performance Committee Report AW/Enc 
20.  Quality & Risk Management Committee Report RM/Verbal 
21.  Remuneration and Nominations Committee Report JE/Enc 
22.  Workforce Committee Report RM/Enc 
23.  Any Other Business  
24.  Date of Next Meeting 

Thursday 28 July 2016, 12.30pm, Learning and Research Centre, 
Southmead Hospital. 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 Date: 21 April 2016 
 Ref: JS/RL/tb 
Dear Kate, 
 
NBT Trust Board Report January 2016 
 
At the Trust Board for January 2016 the following was stated with regard to discharge to assess 
in the NBT system: 
 
“Liz Redfern questioned whether there had been progress on the Discharge to Assess (D2A) 
project and Kate Hannam reported that for South Gloucestershire patients Sirona was 
delivering the Pathway 1 target but a 75% increase in productivity for Pathway 2 patients was 
required. Bristol had supplied ten extra beds but was significantly short of its plans. Overall 
CCGs had only hit 25% of their plans and Bristol had difficulty in evidencing any resource 
increase. In addition the numbers of delays for North Somerset patients was a growing 
problem. Andrea Young said it was clear that D2A had been optimistic in its planning. Those 
needing the greatest care were using the service heavily and there were queues forming and it 
appeared that acuity was increasing”. 
 
As I am sure you will agree, it is very important that all partners in our system are aware of the 
efforts being made to improve Trust performance and help them to achieve constitutional 
standards. I am therefore disappointed that your statement is not an accurate reflection of what 
is happening in the Bristol CCG area to help to support your organisation, and would like to put 
the record straight. 
 
1) Bristol CCG had not agreed to the levels of activity committed to by NBT, and this was made 

clear through the Enabling Discharge and System Flow Partnership forums. We are working 
with Janine Bentley on the revised model of demand and capacity mapping, which will 
incorporate data from the revised set of delay coding now in use across Bristol and South 
Gloucestershire. As you are aware there have been ongoing issues with the quality of data 
recorded and reported by NBT which have made this work difficult to date. Running 
concurrently to this is the renegotiation of the rehab tariff paid by CCGs for medically fit for 
discharge patients in NBT. The positive conclusion to this piece of work will enable further 
investment in community / discharge to assess services. 
 
 
 

 
 

Kate Hannam 
Director of Operations 
Trust Headquarters 
North Bristol Trust 
Southmead Hospital 
Westbury on Trym 
Bristol 
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2) Bristol has in fact supplied additional capacity in line with our reported plans: 

• 30 (not 10) additional block beds for Pathway 3 patients with dementia care needs 
opened in mid-January 2016 at Quarry House. As these were in a brand new home 
they came online in a staggered fashion, but from mid-February all 30 were in use.  

• Through Better Care investment in Pathway 1, an additional 20 packages of 
reablement care per month were been delivered in 2015/16, split between NBT and 
UHB catchment areas. 

 
It may also be helpful to outline our next step actions in relation to discharge to assess: 
 
1) A pilot will commence in May for Pathway 1 using dedicated capacity in reablement to 

take patients out of hospital on the day they become medically optimised. This is 
dependent on the Single Referral Form being available for use. A revised structure within 
CDCC will facilitate a single point of access for all referrals to ensure the system is as 
easy as possible for the wards to use. 

2) In Pathway 2 we are working with Bristol City Council on a review of the Bristol bedstock 
to ensure our capacity and planning is fit for future use. Bristol will also roll out trusted 
handover from acute to community beds once the Single Referral Form is launched, 
again using CDCC as the single referral point.  

3) The Pathway 3 block of beds at Quarry House has increased to 45 beds from mid-April. 
Bristol CCG and Bristol City Council are now in negotiation with a new provider in north 
Bristol with the aim of securing a further block of circa 10-20 beds for people with 
dementia and other complex mental health presentations. This block will commence 
upon the home opening in June 2016. If the block is successful we would aim to increase 
the capacity incrementally as we have done with Quarry House. 

4) Further joint work between the CCG and Council continues regarding the block booking 
of Bristol care home beds for Bristol people. This will continue alongside the 
reprocurement of care home services by the Council, a feature of which will be greatly 
increased block capacity. From the Pathway 3 work we know that the vast majority of 
patients can be discharged to a block booked care home vacancy within 72 hours (or 
less where telephone assessment is possible), whereas spot purchased placements take 
considerably longer than this, even where Care Home Selection are involved and can 
discharge to meet their five day KPI. 

5) As a system we are also working to clear delays in the back end of all of our pathways 
(including Rapid Response) through a more robust reporting and escalation system. 
 

If you have any other queries you may have about our discharge to assess and other 
community based developments, please contact Richard Lyle. 

 
I would be grateful if you could attach this statement to the minutes of the meeting, and ensure 
that the contents of this letter are brought to the Board’s attention at the next open Board 
Meeting. Please can you confirm for me when this has been done?  
 
With best wishes 

 
 

Yours sincerely 

 
Jill Shepherd 
Chief Officer 
NHS Bristol CCG 



 

 
 
Tel:  0117 900 2397 
Email: Jill.Shepherd@bristolccg.nhs.uk 
 
Cc Martin Jones, Bristol CCG Chair 

Judith Brown, Operations Director 
Richard Lyle, Programme Director, Community & Partnerships/Deputy Operations Director 

 



 

North Bristol NHS Trust 
 
 

Minutes of the Trust Board Meeting held in public on  
31 March 2016 in Seminar Room 5, Learning and Research Building, 

Southmead Hospital 
 
 

Present:    
Mr P Rilett 
Prof N 
Canagarajah 
Mr J Everitt 
Mr K Guy 
Mr R Mould 
 
 
Mr A Willis 

Chairman 
 
Non-Executive Director 
Non-Executive Director 
Non-Executive Director 
Non-Executive Director  
 
 
Non-Executive Director 

Ms A Young 
Dr C Burton 
 
Mr N Darvill 
Ms K Hannam 
Mr P Jones 
 
 
Mrs S Jones 
Mr S Wood 

Chief Executive 
Medical Director 
 
Director of Informatics 
Director of Operations 
Interim Director of 
People and Organisation 
Health 
Director of Nursing 
Director of Facilities 

    
In Attendance:    
Mrs C Lang 
 
 
 
 

Acting Head of 
Marketing and 
Communications 
 

Mr D Shannon 
 
Mr N Stibbs 
 
 

Director of Operational 
Finance 
Corporate Services 
Manager 
 

Observers: Mr Colin Puckett, Staffside Chairman, three members of clinical staff, Ms A 
Crossman and one other member of the public 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  Action 

TB/16/03/01 Apologies and Declarations of Interest  

 Apologies were received from Mr Harry Hayer, Director of People and 
Organisation Health, Ms Elizabeth Redfern, Non-Executive Director 
and Mrs Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance 

No interests were declared in the papers presented. 

 

TB/16/03/02 Questions from Members of the Public  

 Ms Crossman questioned the Trust’s position regarding NHS 
Foundation Trust status. Andrea Young, Chief Executive, said that to 
become an NHS Foundation Trust (FT) an organisation was required to 
have a five year financial plan, a strong performance record and strong 
governance. North Bristol’s financial plan still included a deficit for 
2016/17, it had yet to achieve the four hour Accident and Emergency 
time to treatment or discharge and some specialty referral to treatment 
times but it did have strong governance. It would, therefore, be at least 
two years before the Trust could fulfil its target to become an FT and 
although NHS Trusts and FTs would share the same regulator from 1 
April 2016 there were still good reasons such as the ability to borrow 
capital that made the action desirable. 
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TB/16/03/03 Minutes of the Trust Board meeting held on 28 January 2016 
The minutes were approved as a true and correct record of the 
meeting. 

 

TB/16/03/04 Action Log  

 The Trust Board approved the closure of actions as noted on the action 
log and noted progress as follows: 

Action 23 – Paul Jones, Interim Director of People and Organisation 
Health, reported that the request for appointment of a number of 
directorate staff as advocates to support colleagues would be taken 
forward to the Trust Management Team and these would be appointed 
and trained between April and the end of June. 

Action 28 – Andrea Young said that development and definition of an 
improvement methodology would be carried forward to a Board 
workshop session. 

Action 4 – Effectiveness survey results of the Finance and Performance 
Committee to be carried forward to June 

 

TB/16/03/05 Chairman’s Report  

 Peter Rilett, Chairman, reported that he had no issues to discuss other 
than those on the agenda. 

 

TB/16/03/06 Chief Executive’s Report  

 Andrea Young, Chief Executive, presented her report on the external 
environment impacting on the Trust. She highlighted the impact of the 
national action by junior doctors earlier in March and in answer to a 
question, David Shannon, Director of Operational Finance, noted that 
the accumulated cost was up to £500k per day in lost income. Andrea 
Young said that she had held two meetings with the junior doctors in 
North Bristol since the action to understand their position and to offer 
support. 

Lord Prior, Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for NHS 
Productivity had visited the Trust on 16 March 2016 to view the work of 
the orthopaedic surgeons and the new hospital and he had 
subsequently sent a positive letter. 

Other issues that had arisen over the last two months included the 
difficulties that Weston Area Health NHS Trust was having in staffing its 
Emergency Department over the next three months and with University 
Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust help had been offered on some 
shifts. Long term plans were being developed by NHS Improvement for 
implementation after the end of May 2016. The Princess Royal had 
visited Cossham Hospital in her role as patron of the Royal College of 
Midwives and had been impressed by the outstanding work of the 
maternity led birthing unit. Four nominations had been accepted for 
national awards on sustainability and North Bristol had won a 
sustainable food award. 

John Everitt, Non-Executive Director, questioned what implications 
there were regarding negotiations with the clinical commissioning 
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groups (CCGs) on the Trust’s financial outturn for 2015/16 and Andrea 
Young said that the CCGs were in a difficult financial situation 
themselves and both sides would have to compromise. 

Andrea Young referred to the West of England Devolution agreement 
attached to the report and highlighted that it had yet to be finally signed 
off by the four local councils. 

The Board noted the report and the appointment of four new 
consultants. 

TB/16/03/07 Patient Story  

 Sue Jones, Director of Nursing, presented the story of the experiences 
of a patient who had had a professional career in health and in 
improvement. He had been a urology patient attending for a ‘One Stop 
Shop’ assessment and his observations about the care being given 
were a powerful tool for improvement and staff would continue to work 
with him as part of the national programme ‘Patients as Leaders’. 

At the cystoscopy service he reported that he had received a lovely 
greeting from the nurse who noticed his latex allergy and gave him 
clear instructions but in a personal manner. She ensured his dignity at 
all times possible, gave him choices about anaesthetic gels and was 
very supportive. He had praise for an efficient urology registrar fellow 
and the ultrasonographer and also for a radiography assistant who 
engaged well with patients. At Gate 18 the receptionists greeted him 
well.  

There were issues, however, that required improvement and these 
included the experience he had on approaching reception staff at three 
outpatient appointments. On each occasion they had chatted away to 
colleagues sometimes about non-work matters without acknowledging 
his presence before turning to him and making a greeting. Whilst ‘sub-
waiting’ he had experienced groups of staff also chatting about non-
work issues and sometimes about other staff or the organisation. It 
would also have been useful if there had been an explanation of what 
was about to happen from staff acting like the cystoscopy nurse. The 
sub-waiting area he had most recently used meant that patients sat 
looking at an unmanned reception desk, boxes, well-thumbed 
magazines, messages and poorly produced posters that had been 
stuck to the front of the desk. Two were not straight and there was a 
cancer poster that reminded patients of the possibility that they might 
have cancer. There was acknowledgement of the need to have access 
to a drink of water but only provided at room temperature in jugs.  

There was one issue he had considered inadequate and that was the 
use of the cystoscope which had been inserted immediately after the 
application of the anaesthetic gel and was, therefore, painful. 

The patient had very much wanted to engage with the Trust and not to 
complain and he had agreed to attend the next Back to Floor day. 

 

TB/16/03/08 Board Member Walkround Programme  

 The Trust Board received a report on the Board member walkrounds 
accomplished since June 2015, the key learning points from those held 
since November 2015 and the schedule for the rest of 2016. Andrew 
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Willis, Non-Executive Director, stated that it was important for the 
actions identified at visits to be followed through and communicated 
back to the Board. 

 

SJ 

TB/16/03/09 Integrated Performance Report  

 Andrea Young, Chief Executive, presented the Integrated Performance 
Report (IPR) with data to the end of February 2016. She highlighted the 
failure in February 2016 to achieve the Emergency Department (ED) 
four hour target with bed pressures remaining the main source of 
breaches and some continuing impact from the switch of patient 
administration system. The latter may have resulted in a temporary 
10% reduction in performance but the introduction of the Proactive 
Hospital project had resulted in some days when the 95% target had 
been achieved. The Trust’s performance to reduce over 18 week 
waiters had continued to be better than projected but the overall 
diagnostic target had just failed to be met because of staff vacancies in 
Endoscopy. December 2015 had been a disappointing month for 
achieving the cancer targets with only three of the eight being delivered 
but January 2016 was likely to improve to five out of the eight. 
Recruitment of 152 whole time equivalent (wte) staff who had started in 
February 2016 meant that vacancy levels had been reduced by over 40 
wte staff and overall mandatory training levels had slightly increased. 
To date the Trust had spent more than £23m over its planned budget in 
2015/16 largely due to lower than planned contract income and pay 
and non-pay overspends. Additional workforce controls had been 
introduced to assist the recovery plan actions to reduce agency 
expenditure and increase elective activity. 

Kate Hannam, Director of Operations, said that February 2016’s A&E 
performance had reduced to only 69% of patients treated or discharged 
within four hours. March 2016 was proving better and looked to end at 
about 76%. Bed occupancy in the hospital overall was very high at 
close to 100% and at 100% in Medicine. The Proactive Hospital project 
led by Emergency Consultant, James Cameron, had begun three 
weeks previously and was designed to ensure discharges happened 
earlier in the day, that every patient had a plan and questioning a 
patient’s progress happened every two hours. At the moment 
performance depended on how a working day started and it ranged 
from 15 patients waiting for admission from ED to none. Discharge 
delays had caused the loss of 481 bed days in February 2016 and 
whilst the South Gloucestershire Discharge to Assess scheme had 
worked with reasonable success Bristol’s and North Somerset’s had 
not delivered the same level. The main cause of delayed discharges 
remained a wait for assessment. Proactive briefings were carried out at 
08:00 every morning and debriefing at 16:30. 

Andrew Willis, Non-Executive Director, noted that there was a twelve 
week programme before the release of the extra staff validating data 
from the Lorenzo system and questioned how well information was 
being collected. Kate Hannam said that the Proactive Hospital 
programme was developing some key performance indicators which 
would be automatically collated in two weeks’ time. Meanwhile manual 
recording was being undertaken.   

Regarding the ED performance, Robert Mould, Non-Executive Director, 
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questioned how much confidence ED staff had in the Brisdoc contract. 
Kate Hannam replied that the partnership with Brisdoc was important 
for the treatment of minor injuries but the organisation was struggling to 
fill its shifts and Sue Jones, Director of Nursing, said that the slots it 
reserved for urgent appointments from the ED tended to be used up 
early in the day. 

Kate Hannam reported that the Trust’s overall referral to treatment 
(RTT) performance was within the trajectory agreed with the NHS Trust 
Development Authority to achieve national standards. The impact of 
data quality issues and operational difficulties, however, had inflated 
the under 18 week incomplete pathway figures and reduced the 
booking efficiency. It appeared that there were now over 45,000 
patients waiting on a list which was 23% higher than the figure in 
February 2015. The diagnostic performance for RTT had just failed to 
meet the national standard due to consultant level vacancies in surgery 
and gastroenterology and growth in demand. Three attempts to recruit 
staff to provide endoscopy had failed and an agency was now being 
used to find appropriate staff. There were no available local 
independent sector options. 

The Trust Board noted the failure of the two week urgent GP referral 
cancer target in January 2016 which was due to patients choosing not 
to have an appointment around Christmas. Due to continuing problems 
in the Urology pathway the 31 day first treatment within diagnosis and 
62 day first treatment within referral were unlikely to be met in January 
or February 2016 but a sustainable position was planned to be in place 
by the Summer 2016. 

Sue Jones reported that three areas had triggered the threshold for the 
provision of extra support, through the early warning trigger tool. Gate 
8a had a high number of vacancies and of sickness with appraisals not 
completed and a matron had been based on the ward to provide 
additional leadership. The Acute Medical Unit had also had high levels 
of vacancies and sickness along with complaints and unfilled shifts. A 
practice development nurse had provided support to all new starters 
and a further 20 starters were about to commence. Responses had 
been made to all complaints. The South Bristol Dialysis Unit had 
recorded high sickness rates, no evidence of resolution of recurring 
themes and unusual demand on its service and was now being 
monitored closely by the Head of Nursing and support provided to 
resolve environmental and building issues.   

The Director of Nursing also reported that whilst the fill rates for 
registered nursing staff had reduced very slightly over the year the fill 
rates for care staff had risen. The latter had reversed a little in February 
2016 but still reflected the number of patients requiring ‘Enhanced 
Care’ and the scale of the 90 day innovation programme had been 
increased by 17 wards. One to One care on the labour ward in 
February 2016 was nearly 96%, a big improvement on February 2015. 
The overall harm free rate had decreased to less than 91% which 
primarily reflected an increase in venous thromboembolism (VTE) 
harms. Work was focussing on extending the range of staff engaged 
with VTE risk assessments and the completion of root cause analyses 
for each case of hospital acquired thrombosis. Pressure ulcer 
incidences had reduced and the Trust was on target to achieve its Sign 
up to Safety plan of a 15% reduction in all grades of pressure ulcers in 
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2015/16. 

Chris Burton, Medical Director, noted that the Trust had agreed a 
remedial action plan with commissioners regarding the increase in 
MRSA bacteraemia and the policy audit had identified that the 
management of indwelling devices could be improved. 51 cases of 
Clostridium Difficile had been reported to the NHS Trust Development 
Authority so far this year against the target of a maximum of 43 for 
2015/16. The contract with the commissioners, however, related to 
where there was evidence of a lapse in care in the Trust and to the end 
of December these had been agreed at a total of 26. The target for 
2016/17 would remain at 43. 

The Trust Board noted the continued improvement in the mortality 
ratios which were well below the national averages. Chris Burton 
agreed to include trauma cases as part of the breakdown of diagnoses 
of hospital death and he reported that the Neurosciences Directorate 
was investigating an apparent small rise in neurosurgical deaths in 
2015/16. 

Sue Jones reported that the Friends and Family Test (FFT) response 
rate had improved with Gate 34A, Colorectal Surgery, achieving 70% 
with all responders recommending that the care their family member 
had received to any friend or other member of the family. She said that 
this would be included in the report to the next Quality and Risk 
Management Committee on the national patients survey which had also 
shown improvements in patient experience. More than 7% of inpatient 
responders in Maternity, however, would not recommend the service 
and two comments would be responded to regarding poor experiences 
of facilities and the workload of staff. Robert Mould, Non-Executive 
Director, questioned what evidence could be shown that the Trust was 
using FFT results and Sue Jones said theses were reported to the 
Patient Experience groups and the figures recorded on ward boards. 
One ward also recorded feedback comments. 

Sue Jones noted that the number of overdue complaints had reduced 
marginally in February 2016 and the most overdue cases had seen the 
biggest reduction. Andrew Willis, Non-Executive Director, asked that 
the Board receive assurance that the trust learned from complaints. 

Paul Jones, Interim Director of People and Organisation Health, 
reported that February 2016 had seen the recruitment of 152 new wte 
starters with another 190 in the pipeline. Twelve Spanish nurses had 
started in January 2016 and another eleven were due to start in March 
2016. The retention rate of Spanish nurses was very good. He agreed 
to record the gap between recruitment and leavers by occupational 
group in future IPRs. A new sickness absence policy had been agreed 
and published and videos were being developed to support managers. 
The Workforce Committee would undertake a deep dive into the 
subject at a meeting later in the year. The level of sickness in January 
2016 was nearly 5% and the year to date was 4.5%, well above the 
target of 3.8%.  

David Shannon reported that the Trust had a deficit of £49.1m to date 
which was £23.1m adverse to plan. The primary reasons were: 

• Lower than planned contract income of £12.4m because of 
lower than planned activity and contractual penalties 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CB 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

SJ 
 
 
 
 

PR 
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• Pay overspends of £7.4m driven by high with bank and agency 
staff usage  

• Non-pay overspends of £3.1m due to the high cost of drugs and 
the failure of savings programmes to achieve their target 

The Trust had borrowed £43.1m drawn down from the Department of 
Health of which £27.8m was a revenue loan and £15.3m the revolving 
working capital facility. He said that elective activity was running at a 
higher level than in 2014/15 but below planned levels. Non elective 
activity had run above planned levels but both were in line with the plan 
during the last quarter. Ken Guy, Non-Executive Director noted that 
general surgery had seen a 9% increase in non-elective activity. David 
Shannon agreed but said that in the last quarter the number of long 
stay patients in hospital had fallen whilst the number of short stay 
patients had risen. The Board also noted that a greater number of 
escalation beds had been put into use compared to 2014/15. 

The Trust Board discussed the monthly Board Compliance statements 
concentrating on 8 and 10. Statement 8 was felt to be about plans 
rather than outcomes and the continued performance against cancer 
and ED targets meant that the answers should remain as they had 
been in February. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TB/16/03/10 Equality Annual Report 2014/15 
Paul Jones, Interim Director of People and Organisational Health, 
introduced the Equality Annual Report for 2014/15 and noted that Prof 
Roger Klein, who had written the national report pointing out the lack of 
career progress for ethnic minority staff in the NHS (Snowy White 
Peaks) had spoken to a Board seminar earlier in the year and 
comments from Board member would be welcomed. 

The Trust Board received the annual report. 

 

TB/16/03/11 National Staff Survey  

 Paul Jones, Interim Director of People and Organisational Health, 
presented the results from the national NHS staff survey in the Autumn 
of 2015 which the Trust had extended to all North Bristol staff. There 
had been a response rate of 30% which was comparable with other 
large teaching hospitals and an improvement on 2014/15. Three 
improvement themes had been recommended for corporate action: 

• Communication with senior managers through a visibility 
programme and engagement events 

• Feeling valued by managers and the organisation with specific 
focus on reducing or eradicating bullying and improving 
coherence in staff recognition schemes 

• Improving the reporting of errors, near misses and incidents 
combined with promoting the work of the Trust’s Speak Up 
Guardian 

Paul Jones noted that the survey provider had sent the wrong 
comparative information and he agreed to circulate the correct data. 
For the 2015/16 survey preparations would be made earlier in the year 
and other surveys would be carried out locally. The first round of the 
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staff recognition scheme had elicited 40 nominations of which 20 had 
been selected for awards. 

The Trust Board noted the report and endorsed the three improvement 
themes. 

TB/16/03/12 Trust Strategy 2016/17 – 2020/21  

 Chris Burton, Medical Director, presented the draft Trust strategy for 
the period 2016 to 2021. He noted that the Trust Board had discussed 
the strategy at a workshop session on 25 February 2016 and had 
agreed the vision for 2020/21 and had chosen eight themes of work to 
realise that vision. Feedback from the workshop had been incorporated 
and the results were changes of wording to the vision for the future. A 
consultation plan for the strategy would be brought to the next meeting. 

John Everitt asked how the predictions for the future compared with 
other organisations and the sensitivity of those predictions. He felt that 
the document was a little light on working in partnership particularly as 
the Trust’s business was about working with people and making 
changes in others’ functions. The objectives were aspirational and 
would be better presented with a priority order. 

Given these comments the Board approved the strategy for a period of 
consultation. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CB/CL 

TB/16/03/13 Cellular Pathology Service Transfer 
Chris Burton, Medical Director, presented a report outlining the final 
stages of the transfer of the cellular pathology service from University 
Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust (UHB) to North Bristol NHS 
Trust and the execution and completion of legal documentation to effect 
the transfer. This had been a long programme with UHB as a 
consequence of the national drive to enhance quality and reduce costs 
of pathology services and of the local need to reduce the problems 
between the two departments as recommended by the Bristol 
Histopathology Enquiry. Still outstanding was the question of what 
would happen if TUPE did not apply should the contract be terminated 
or on expiry of the contract. This was being resolved and was the 
reason for the delay in the start date. Ken Guy, Non-Executive Director, 
queried whether the Trust had the right people to manage the 
supplier/customer interaction and whether the right information could 
be produced. Chris Burton said that the relationship was managed by 
the normal commissioner contract with performance clauses and the 
Severn Pathology management would have to find a means of 
providing the appropriate information. The Board of UH Bristol had 
approved the transfer subject to the above conditions being resolved at 
its meeting the day before. 

The Board approved the  

• Transfer of the cellular pathology services from UH Bristol to 
NBT 

• The execution and completion of the agreement relating to 
transfer of cellular pathology service, the supply of cellular 
pathology services and the lease of part of the paediatric 
mortuary at St Michael’s hospital and of part of the Queen’s 
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Building in the BRI 

• Request to the Partnership Programme Board to seek a report 
from UHB on how well the contract progresses. 

CB 

AY 

TB/16/03/14 Capital Planning Update 
Simon Wood, Director of Facilities, presented the update report on 
capital planning and he noted that Carillion had confirmed that the 
forecast completion of Phase 2 of the Brunel building was July 2016 
with a specific date under joint review. The company was not 
responding as well recently as it had done on compliance issues 
identified during joint assurance visits. In answer to Robert Mould, Non-
Executive Director, Simon Wood noted that there were monthly 
meetings of three groups backed up by a quarterly meeting with the 
company to resolve these issues.  

The largest delay to Phase 2 was due to the vacation of the Limewalk 
Building now intended to start on 11 April 2016. Works to start on the 
road infrastructure for the new Southmead Way could not begin until 
the building had been demolished. The delay costs were being 
assessed by the project team. 

The Chairman reported that the lenders were reassessing a clause in 
the proposed refinancing of the PFI project and the proposal had not 
been progressed in the last two months 

The Trust Board noted the report. 

 

TB/16/03/15 Partnership Programme Board and Agreement  

 Andrea Young presented a proposed partnership agreement with UH 
Bristol and revised terms of reference for the Partnership Programme 
Board. She said that the NBT Executives and the Partnership Board 
had approved the new arrangements. 

The Trust Board approved the: 

• Partnership agreement document and 

• Revised terms of reference for the Partnership Programme 
Board 

 

TB/16/03/16 Workforce Committee  

 Paul Jones, Interim Director of People and Organisational Health, 
presented draft terms of reference for a Workforce Committee as a 
sub-committee of the Board. An operational group would continue to 
meet in the months between the bi-monthly (every two months) 
committee meetings. Membership would be flexible so that, for 
example, the Director of Operations could be co-opted.  

The Board approved the setting up and terms of reference for a 
Workforce Committee chaired by Dr Liz Redfern and with three non-
executive members. 

 

 

TB/16/03/17 Declarations of Interest  

 The Trust Board noted the declaration of interests of all the members of  
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 the Board in 2015/16. 

TB/16/03/18 Annual Cycle of Business  

 The Trust Board received a proposed annual cycle of business for 
2016/17 and Andrea Young, Chief Executive, noted that it represented 
the minimum workload and did not reflect the workshop programme. 
Robert Mould, Non-Executive Director, suggested that the five year 
plan needed to be reviewed at least annually and it was agreed this be 
done at a Board Development session to review the strategic 
objectives. With this provision and with consideration to be given to non 
NHS organisation issues being included, the annual cycle was 
approved.  

 
 
 
 
 

ES 

TB/16/03/19 Trust Management Team Report  

 
 

Andrea Young, Chief Executive, presented the report from the 
meetings of the Trust Management Team held on 19 January, 16 
February and 22 March 2016.  

 

TB/16/03/20 Finance and Performance Committee Report  

 
 

Andrew Willis, chairman of the Finance and Performance Committee 
presented the report from the meeting held on 24 March 2016. He 
highlighted the Committee’s discussions on demand and capacity plans 
and the committee’s request that if the first quarter plans for 2016/17 
were for greater activity than in 2015/16 it would need to see evidence 
that this was achievable. The Committee had agreed that reports on 
the 52 week waiting position should only be made by exception in 
future and it had critically reviewed the RTT position.  

Given that the cost improvement plans for 2015/16 had deteriorated by 
£1.6m in the last three months the Committee had sought assurance 
from executives that all actions to progress the CRES programme for 
2016/17 were being taken especially as it appeared to be at an earlier 
stage of planning than in 2015/16. 

 

TB/16/03/21 Charitable Funds Committee Report  

 
 

Ken Guy, chairman of the Charitable Funds Committee, presented the 
report from the meeting held on 9 March 2016 and he highlighted the 
high level scrutiny it operated. The meeting had concentrated on long 
term planning. 

 

TB/16/03/22 Quality and Risk Management Committee Report  

 
 

Robert Mould, chairman of the Quality and Risk Management 
Committee presented the report from the meeting held on 21 March 
2016. He highlighted the deep dive into the Trust’s work on falls 
prevention and the risks that the resignation of the current clinical lead 
presented. Falls would become part of a broader remit on ward safety. 

The relationship of the domestic function and nursing had been 
explored and it was clear that work was ongoing and that there was an 
impact on patient flow when deep cleans were requested. 
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TB/16/03/23 Remuneration and Nominations Committee Report  

 
 

Andrew Willis, chairman of the Remuneration and Numerations 
Committee presented the report from the meetings held on 28 January 
and 7 March 2016. 

 

TB/16/03/24 Community and Child Health Partnership  

 
 

Kate Hannam noted that this was the last day on which the Child and 
Community Health Partnership came under the Trust’s responsibility. It 
was being handed over in a better state than when the Trust Board had 
made its decision not to continue the contract and was a service it 
could be proud of and staff who had delivered quality despite the 
changes they were experiencing. 

 

TB/16/03/25 Ken Guy, Non-Executive Director  

 
 

Peter Rilett reminded the Trust Board also that this was Ken Guy’s last 
day as a non-executive of the Trust and thanked him for the six years 
he had served. He had chaired both the Audit and Charitable funds 
Committees with great skill and been a vital member of the Board.  

 

TB/16/03/26 Date of Next Meeting  

 
 

The next meeting was to be held on Thursday 2 June 2016 at 12.30 pm 
in Seminar Room 5, Learning and Research Centre, Southmead 
Hospital. 
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North Bristol NHS Trust Trust Board (Public Session) 
Action Log 2014

Meeting 
Date

Minute Ref Action 
No. 

Action Owner Review Date 
(s)

Status Info.

28-Jan-16 TB/16/01/11 4 Effectiveness appendix on F&PC report to be 
remodelled

AW 02-Jun-16 O

31-Mar-16 TB/16/03/11 8 Appropriate staff survey benchmarking to be 
circulated to Board 

JF 28-Apr-16
O

26-Nov-15 TB/15/11/13 23 Directorates to nominate a number of staff as 
advocates in supporting staff in raising concerns 

JF 31-Mar-16, 2-
Jun-16 & 28-

Jul-16
O

Postponed to discuss at TMT in April and 
then for new interim director

26-Nov-15 TB/15/11/19 28 Executives to consider an overall improvement 
methodology

AY 31-Mar-16 & 
28-Jul-16

O Carry forward to a workshop session

26-Nov-15 TB/15/11/21 29 Charitable Funds Committee to regularly review 
ethical values of the investment portfolio 

JMD/CP 28-Jul-16 O

28-Jan-16 TB/16/01/05 1 Board to discuss closer links with CCGs in a 
development session

AY 28-Jul-16 O

28-Jan-16 TB/16/01/09 3 Report to Q&RMC on evaluation of deaths in NBT CB 02-Jun-16 C Mortality review considered on 26 May 2016.

28-Jan-16 TB/16/01/15 6 Board papers to explicitly report on budget impacts ES 28-Apr-16 C Guidance issued to report authors.
31-Mar-16 TB/16/03/09 7 Difference between staff commencing work and 

those leaving by occupational group to be shown in 
IPR

JF 28-Apr-16
A

Item 8

31-Mar-16 TB/16/03/13 9 Partnership Programme Board to review Cellular 
Pathology contract performance 

CB 29-Sep-16 O

31-Mar-16 TB/16/03/18 10 A board development session to consider strategic 
objectives to be included in Annual Cycle of Business 

ES 28-Jul-16
O

ACTION LOG Status
A Agenda - this meeting
O Open
C Closed



North Bristol NHS Trust Trust Board (Public Session) 
Decision Log 2015

Meeting 
Date

Minute 
Ref No. Decision

28/1/16 TB/16/01/09 1 Board compliance statements 8 and 10 to continue to be positive and negative respectively
28/1/16 TB/16/01/13 2 Audit Committee appointed as auditor panel to choose external auditors
28/1/16 TB/16/01/13 3 Changes to Annual Report format approved
31/3/16 TB/16/03/08 4 Actions from walkrounds to be communicated back to ward staff
31/3/16 TB/16/03/09 5 Board compliance statements 8 and 10 to remain as previous month
31/3/16 TB/16/03/12 6 Draft Trust Strategy approved with minor amendments for consultation

31/3/16 TB/16/03/13 7
Transfer of Cellular Pathology service from UH Bristol to NBT on 1 May 2016 approved subject to agreement by directors 
of finance of potential redundancy costs.

31/3/16 TB/16/03/15 8 Renewed partnership agreement with UH Bristol and terms of reference for Partnership Programme Board approved 
31/3/16 TB/16/03/16 9 Terms of reference of Workforce Committee with Dr Liz Redfern as chairman approved
31/3/16 TB/16/03/18 10 Annual cycle of business approved subject to additions of strategic objectives and consideration of relationship with other a

DECISION LOG
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

1. Purpose 
1.1. To present an update on local and national issues 

impacting on the Trust, and to provide an update on 
consultant appointments and documents which have 
been signed or sealed. 

2. Background 

2.1. The Trust Board should receive a report from the 
Chief Executive to each meeting detailing important 
changes or issues in the external environment (e.g. 
policy changes, quality and financial risks in the 
health economy, PBR new tariffs etc.). 

2.2. Following the implementation of a revised approach 
to Flash Reporting, the Chief Executive report is now 
more focused on the external environment. 

3. CQC – New Approach to Inspections 
3.1. The Care Quality Commission will move to a new 

approach of “smaller and more frequent” hospital 
inspections. While every trust will be inspected 
annually, smaller inspection teams will look at an 
organisation’s leadership and one core service “as a 
minimum”, with core services already rated good or 
outstanding being scrutinised less frequently. 

3.2. The CQC will take a more risk based approach to 
regulation, using data to decide when to take a 
closer look at providers. 

3.3. Inspection teams are likely to be in the range of 10-
20 inspectors, compared to the previous number of 
between 40-50. 

3.4. The changes to CQC inspection, which will also 
include increased use of unannounced inspections 
and “shorter reports” produced “more quickly”, are 
due to come into effect from next April. 

3.5. The changes were announced within the CQC’s 
revised Strategy, published on 24 May 2016, which 
also includes references to the CQC carrying out 
“joint inspections” of trusts with NHS Improvement. 

3.6. The Strategy can be found on the CQC website at 
http://www.cqc.org.uk/public/about-us/our-
performance-and-plans/our-strategy-and-business-
plan  

3.7. The strategy for 2016 to 21 sets out a vision for a 
more targeted, responsive and collaborative 
approach to regulation so more people receive high-
quality care. It describes the four priorities the CQC 
will focus on to deliver their ambition: 

1. Encourage improvement, innovation and 
sustainability in care – the CQC will work 
with others to support improvement, adapt 
their approach as new care models develop, 
and publish new ratings of NHS trusts’ and 
foundation trusts’ use of resources. 

2. Deliver an intelligence-driven approach to 
regulation – the CQC will use information 
more effectively to target resources where the 
risk to the quality of care provided is greatest 
and to check where quality is improving, and 
they will introduce a more proportionate 
approach to registration. 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 

2 
 
 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/public/about-us/our-performance-and-plans/our-strategy-and-business-plan
http://www.cqc.org.uk/public/about-us/our-performance-and-plans/our-strategy-and-business-plan
http://www.cqc.org.uk/public/about-us/our-performance-and-plans/our-strategy-and-business-plan


North Bristol NHS Trust 

3. Promote a single shared view of quality – 
the CQC will work with others to agree a 
consistent approach to defining and 
measuring quality, collecting information from 
providers, and working together towards a 
single vision of high-quality care. 

4. Improve our efficiency and effectiveness – 
the CQC will work more efficiently, achieving 
savings each year, and improving how they 
work with the public and providers. 

4. Sustainability & Transformation Plan (STP) 
4.1. Work has been continuing to develop the Bristol, 

North Somerset and South Gloucestershire STP, 
with a third workshop held on 26 May 2016. 

4.2. The STP submissions are required to respond to 
three strategic areas: 
1. Prevention, early intervention & self-care 
2. Integrated out of hospital care model 
3. Acute care collaboration 

1. These three priorities are supported by three 
enabling work streams; workforce, estates, digital 

4.3. Following recent guidance being issued, the next 
draft of the STP is due to be submitted to NHS 
England by the end of June 2016. Then during July 
2016, there will be discussions between NHS 
England and the STP to clarify the plan, prior to 
public consultation and engagement after the 
Summer. 

4.4. The Trust Board will be asked to consider the plan 
later in the year, expected to be in July 2016. 

4.5. BNSSG has received feedback on its first 
submission which has confirmed the need to identify 
4-5 big changes across the system with a particular 
focus on financial improvement in 2016/17. 

4.6. The STP will also oversee the future work 
programme to support  Weston. 

5. Devolution Deal – West of England 
5.1. It was reported in the last Chief Executive’s Report 

that councils in the West of England were 
considering a devolution deal. It is understood that 
the priorities under the deal would relate to 
developing the region’s transport infrastructure, 
housing delivery and skills development. 

5.2. A decision is likely to be taken by the Councils on 
the 9 June 2016. 

6. Junior Doctors – Impact of Industrial Action 
6.1.  The British Medical Association Junior Doctors 

Committee (JDC), NHS Employers and the 
Secretary of State for Health have reached an 
agreement on the new junior doctors’ contract. 

6.2. A new draft contract has now been produced and 
was published at the end of May. The BMA will be 
holding a referendum of its members on whether to 
accept the contract.  

6.3. The appointment process for the Guardians of Safe 
Working will continue in recognition of the fact that 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

all parties have confirmed their strong commitment 
to this jointly appointed role and in order that this 
process – intended to be complete by 26 July – is 
not delayed. 

6.4. The Deputy Medical Director and Head of Medical 
Staffing are working on the implementation of the 
new contract with the Clinical Directors. 

7. Bristol Mayoral Appointment 
7.1. Marvin Rees was elected as the Mayor of Bristol 

following the election held on 5 May 2016. Marvin 
Rees takes over the role from George Fergusson. 

7.2. Marvin Rees has confirmed that, subject to formal 
ratification at the Council’s AGM on 31 May 2016, 
the Bristol cabinet will be constituted as follows: 

• Cllr Estella Tincknell (Lab) – Deputy Mayor 
(with special responsibility for Democracy, 
Culture, Policy, Strategy & Communications, 
International) 

• Cllr Mark Bradshaw (Lab) – Cabinet Member 
for Transport 

• Cllr Clare Campion-Smith (Lib Dem) – 
Cabinet Member for People 

• Cllr Craig Cheney (Lab) – Cabinet Member 
for Finance, Governance and Performance 

• Cllr Fi Hance (Green) – Cabinet Member for 
City Health and Wellbeing 

• Cllr Marg Hickman (Lab) – Cabinet Member 
for Neighbourhoods 

• Cllr Claire Hiscott (Con) – Cabinet Member 
for Education and Skills 

• Cllr Helen Holland (Lab) – Cabinet Member 
for Place 

• Cllr Paul Smith (Lab) – Cabinet Member for 
Homes 

8. Recent Consultant Appointments 
8.1. The following consultant appointments have been 

made since 23 February 2016: 
Interview Date Name Role 

15 March 2016 Sankhya Sen Burns 

15 March 2016 Ghassan El Sayed Gastroenterology 
22 March 2016 Feras Naaisa Gynaecology 
29 March 2016 Ifeoma Ameke C&A Psyc- South 

Bristol 
5 April 2016 Devan Thavarajan & 

Tim Beckitt 
Vascular 

19 April 2016 Annabel Crossman Biru 

3 May 2016 Neil Barua Neuro Oncology 

10 May 2016 Fran Smith, Kate 
O'Connor, Janine 
Talbot, John Church 

Anaesthetics 
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9. Recommendations 
9.1. The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of the 

report. 
 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 

5 
 
 



 
 

Report to: Trust Board Committee Agenda item:  8 

Date of Meeting: 2 June 2016 

 
Report Title: Integrated Performance Report (IPR) 

Status: Information Discussion Assurance Approval 

X X X X 

Prepared by: James Beard, Performance and Sustainability Support Officer 

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Executive Team 

Appendices (list if applicable): IPR 

 
Executive Summary 
Access – The Trust failed to meet the 4 hour standard for A&E, April's performance was at 77% (an improvement from March at 75%) against a 
target of 95%. Whilst bed pressures continue to be the main source of breaches, awaiting assessments in the Emergency Department are also impacting. 

The Trust narrowly missed its trajectory for Referral To Treatment incomplete performance agreed for march 2016 at an overall percentage level 
(87.3% vs target of 87.9%). The Trust did meet its backlog reduction target (i.e. number of patients waiting over 18 weeks) and the overall percentage 
performance will be dependent on the pace of the Lorenzo stabilisation project. 

The Trust has narrowly failed to meet the overall diagnostic target in April (98.65%) due to poor performance in Endoscopy. This continues to be a hard 
to recruit specialty.  

The final position of Cancer targets in March showed the Trust had delivered on 7 of the 8 Cancer waiting targets. The ‘unvalidated’ position currently has 
the Trust passing 7 of the 8 key targets in April 

Safety – Malnutrition screening continues to show an upward trend,  although the Trust still missed the target. Pressure Ulcer reduction has been in 
line with plans during 2015/16, with no grade 3 or 4 pressures reported in April and a continued reduction in the rate of grade 2 pressure ulcers. The Trust 
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reported 6 gender breaches in April in the Emergency Department Observational Unit.  

Patient experience – The overall number of new complaints received in month has continued to decline, although overdue complaints has remained at 
previously reported levels (47). There were no reported cases for C. Difficile or MRSA in April. 

Workforce – Sickness absence levels remain above the target at 4.5% against a target of 3.8%. Voluntary turnover remains fairly static. 

Finance – For the year to date the Trust has a deficit of £6.9m which is £1.6m adverse to plan. The primary drivers for the adverse to plan were lower than 
planned income of £1.4m together with a non-pay overspend of £0.9m offset by pay underspend of £0.8m.  
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Executive Summary 
April 2016 
 

 Access – The Trust failed to meet the 4 hour standard for A&E, April's performance was at 77% (an improvement from March at 
75%) against a target of 95%. Whilst bed pressures continue to be the main source of breaches, awaiting assessments in the 
Emergency Department are also impacting. 
 
The Trust narrowly missed its trajectory for Referral To Treatment incomplete performance agreed for march 2016 at an overall 
percentage level (87.3% vs target of 87.9%). The Trust did meet its backlog reduction target (i.e. number of patients waiting over 18 
weeks) and the overall percentage performance will be dependent on the pace of the Lorenzo stabilisation project. 
 
The Trust has narrowly failed to meet the overall diagnostic target in April (98.65%) due to poor performance in Endoscopy. This 
continues to be a hard to recruit specialty.  
 
The final position of Cancer targets in March showed the Trust had delivered on 7 of the 8 Cancer waiting targets. The ‘unvalidated’ 
position currently has the Trust passing 7 of the 8 key targets in April 
 
Safety – Malnutrition screening continues to show an upward trend,  although the Trust still missed the target. Pressure Ulcer 
reduction has been in line with plans during 2015/16, with no grade 3 or 4 pressures reported in April and a continued reduction in 
the rate of grade 2 pressure ulcers. The Trust reported 6 gender breaches in April in the Emergency Department Observational Unit.  
 
Patient experience – The overall number of new complaints received in month has continued to decline, although overdue 
complaints has remained at previously reported levels (47). There were no reported cases for C. Difficile or MRSA in April. 
 
Workforce – Sickness absence levels remain above the target at 4.5% against a target of 3.8%. Voluntary turnover remains fairly 
static. 
 
Finance – For the year to date the Trust has a deficit of £6.9m which is £1.6m adverse to plan. The primary drivers for the adverse to 
plan were lower than planned income of £1.4m together with a non-pay overspend of £0.9m offset by pay underspend of £0.8m.  
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Key / Notes 
 
Unless noted on each graph, all 
data shown is for period up to, 
and including, 31st April 2016. 
   
 
All data included is correct at the 
time of publication. Please note 
that subsequent validation by 
clinical teams can alter scores 
retrospectively.  
 
All target lines: 
All improvement trajectories: 
 
DASHBOARD KEY: 
 
Perf  worsened & below  target  
 
Perf worsened, but above target  
 
Perf worsened, no target  
 
Perf improved but below target  
 
Perf improved & above target  
 
Perf improved, no target  
 
Perf stayed same, below target  
 
Perf stayed same , above target  
 
Perf stayed same , no target  
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CCS -Core Clinical Services 
CEO- Chief Executive  
Clin Gov -Clinical Governance 
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Med- Medicine  
MSK- Musculoskeletal 
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Ops- Operations  
Renal-  Renal Transplant & Outpatients 
ASCC / Surg- Surgery  
W&Ch -Women’s & Children’s 
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SRO   Kate Hannam Director of Operations   

Overview 

Urgent Care 
April’s 4 hour A&E performance was 77.1% against an improvement trajectory of 76.2%. Whilst bed pressures continue to be the main source of 
breaches, the impact of the switch from Cerner to Lorenzo in mid November continues to impact waiting times in ED and wait for assessment and 
minors ED breaches remain high. Before the Trust can confirm its 2016/17 trajectory capacity, refresh of community plans, agreement on NEL growth, 
and completion of our own in house bed modelling is required. The Proactive Hospital programme launched in mid March has started to have some 
impact in terms of facilitating patient flow earlier in the day,  but has yet to impact significantly on the number of breaches experienced in ED. The 
programme will be extended across the Trust in the coming months. 
RTT 
Draft Trust RTT performance trajectories for 2016/17 have been updated and presently generate an improvement in Trust performance from 87% in 
April 2016 to 90.7% by year end; T&O, General Surgery and Gastroenterology will remain non-compliant with the 92% standard based on current 
plans. As part of the planned quarter one activity re-fresh, the performance trajectories will also be refreshed with input from the NHS I Intensive 
Support Team.  
 
The RTT position for the Trust is also subject to the on-going Lorenzo Stabilisation plan and therefore prone to fluctuation in pathways under and over 
18 weeks in quarter one. Stabilisation is on track to conclude in time for the May UNIFY submission. As of April the Trust narrowly failed the 87.9% 
trajectory, with actual performance at 87.3%. Had the junior doctor industrial action not taken place over 4 days in April, the Trust would have met the 
April target. Directorates are currently working through plans to recover the lost activity from the industrial action. The on-day cancellation rate which 
remains high due to poor bed availability, remains around 2% vs. national target of 0.8%. 
 
The Trust remains on trajectory for clearance of the 52 week breaches in Orthopaedic Spines, Neurosurgery and Adult Epilepsy (94 actual vs. target of 
164) – the main differential is within Epilepsy due to removal for reasons other than treatment. 
 
Areas of Concern 
The system continues to monitor the effectiveness of all actions being undertaken, with weekly and daily reviews. The main risks identified to the 
Urgent Care Recovery Plan are as follows: 
UCRP Risk 4: Lack of community capacity and/ or scope to provide Discharge to Assess pathways to reduce the size of the LHPD. As part of the Q1 
re-fresh the system will remodel the D2A capacity for 2016/17 winter North Somerset delays have grown in recent months (15% of overall delays) 
UCRP Risk 5: Appropriate nursing and therapies staffing within NBT to enable flow  
UCRP Risk 6: LoS reductions and bed occupancy targets in the bed model are not met leading to performance issues 
UCRP New Risk: Weston ED shuts due to staffing problems related to sustainability issues. Risk of 10-15 extra medical admissions to NBT overnight. 
Director level system mitigation in discussion at present. 
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Access Standard 

April 2016  Most recent 
quarter’s 

performance  
(Quarter 3 Oct – 

Dec ) 
against national 

target 

Quarterly Trend (Q1 vs Q2) 
 

Against 
national 
target  

Against 
trajectory 

of: 

Trend from 
last month 

 

Performance 
to be 

achieved 
by… (as per 
trajectory) 

Emergency Attendances – waits 
under 4 hour standard vs total 
attendances  (95% target) 

Not met in 
15-16 

           
            91.1% (Q1) to 93.4% (Q2) 

Referral to Treatment - % 
incomplete pathways <18 
weeks (92% target) 

n/a            86.1% (Q1) to 86.4% (Q2) 

Referral to Treatment - % within 
18 weeks of GP referral for non-
admitted  patients (95% target) 

n/a n/a             93.3% (Q1) to 93.8% (Q2) 

Referral to Treatment - % within 
18 weeks of GP referral for 
admitted patients (90% target) 

n/a Not met in 
15-16 

            80.3% (Q1) to 81.0% (Q2) 

Trust wide Referral to 
Treatment  Backlog  

Not met in 
15-16 

              3874(Q1) to  3922 (Q2) 

Cancelled Operations – same 
day - non-clinical reasons (0.8% 
target) 

n/a Not met in 
15-16 

            1.33% (Q1) to 1.33% (Q2) 

Cancelled Operations – 28 day 
re-booking breach (0 target) n/a Not met in 

15-16 
             21 (Q1) to 12 (Q2) 

Responsiveness  
Summary Dashboard 
Board Sponsors   Director of Operations 

Please note: Subsequent validation by clinical teams can alter scores retrospectively. Data is correct at time of publication.  

72.4% 

5 

4591 

2.0% 

77.1% 

87.3% 

91.8% 

76.2% 

87.9% 

4975 
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Complaints

		

		Complaints by Dir		Dec

		Cap Projects		0

		Clin Gov		0

		CCS		3

		Facilities		1

		Finance		0

		IM&T		2

		Medicine		15

		MSK		14

		Neuro		2

		OPS		2

		Renal		0

		SGCHS		3

		Surgery		12

		W&CH		7

		Other		0

		Total		61

		Concerns By Directorate		Dec

		Cap Projects		0

		Clin Gov		0

		CCS		1

		Facilities		1

		Finance		0

		IM&T		0

		Medicine		3

		MSK		6
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		Renal		1

		SGCHS		0
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		Other		1

		Total		27
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		All Aspects Of Clinical Treatment		38		25		29
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		Codes of openness Complaints		0		0		0

		Comms / Information		20		14		8

		Delay / Cancellation Inpatient		4		5		4

		Other		8		3		9

		Total		78		58		61

		ADD NOTE TO COMMENTARY SECTION - "What do these complaints tell us?"

				Apr-13		May-13		Jun-13		Jul-13		Aug-13		Sep-13		Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Jan-14		Feb-14		Mar-14

		Complaints		76		65		68		66		46		58		78		58		61

		Concerns		28		36		35		44		56		30		50		50		27

		Returned Complaints		6		10		11		4		8		9		11		12		7
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Number  of concerns

Concerns by Directorate - Dec 13
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Number  of complaints

Complaints by Directorate - Dec 13
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Number  of returned complaints

Returned Complaints by Directorate
 - Dec 13
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Number  of overdue complaints

Overdue Complaints by Directorate
 - Dec 13



R&I

		



DON07
999

Oct

Nov

Dec

Top 5 Complaint Types - Oct 13 to Dec 13

Comms / Information
21%



#NOF

		



DON03
999

Complaints

Concerns

Returned Complaints

Number recieved / returned

Trustwide Complaints, Concerns & Returned Complaints



Stroke

		Friends and Family Test response rate - delivery against CQUIN target 15% response rate (all contributing areas)		Yes - keep in - decide whether in CQIN section or F&F		Change to % measurement to chart progress - plus, top 4 and bottom 4 wards

		Friends and Family Test net promoter score - proportion of patients that would recommend the Trust, by directorate		Show as % of surveys - split out in to Maternity/ ED / Wards / ED&Wards. Top 4 and bottom 4 wards flagged.								Inpatient & Emergency Department: The Friends and Family Test score for November for North Bristol NHS Trust is 67.7.  This is based on 11.06% responses.

		Friends and Family Test net promoter score - Flash report ranking against acute trusts in the South West		Yes, include. But may need to include in future 'development pack'

		Friends and Family Test response rate - flash report against NHS Trusts in southwest		Yes, include. But may need to include in future 'development pack'

		Net promoter score IP & ED Oct-Dec																						NOTE: January IPR will include full Oct-Dec data

				Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		BNSSG Average

		Med		65.0717703349		64.5		59.5406360424		71

		MSK		75.6097560976		68.9655172414		70.3296703297		71

		Neuro		70.1030927835		64.2105263158		71.0843373494		71

		Surgery		63.4146341463		78.6206896552		63.1818181818		71														(i)           Top and low achieving wards

		W&Ch		85		0		71.4285714286		71

		Renal		78.2608695652		71.4285714286		69.2307692308		71														Top achiever ward for response rate/net promoter score - Elgar 2 [Medicine] 

		NBT Total		68.1		67.7		62.2		71														Other top achievers were Ward 13, FCH Ward 1, Ward 103, Ward 104,

		BNSSSG

																								b)   Low performing wards

		Oct to Dec - F&F Test Response rates IP & ED																						0% response Wards: Ward 13, FCH Ward 1, Ward 103, Ward 104,

		Response rate %																						Low scoring wards: Burden, FCH ICU, Macmillan, Ward 105, Ward 106, Ward 12, Ward 15, Ward 201, Carrington, T Ward

				Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Target

		Med		14.1%		13.5%		12.8%		15.0%

		MSK		30.9%		22.6%		24.7%		15.0%

		Neuro		23.5%		24.9%		23.7%		15.0%

		Surgery		14.0%		17.8%		27.0%		15.0%

		W&Ch		32.0%		0.0%		13.5%		15.0%

		Renal		34.3%		5.6%		19.4%		15.0%

		NBT Total		16.6%		11.1%		11.8%		15.0%

		November

		Response rate - against BNSSSG breakdown - Oct		% Response Rate		Target

		*North Bristol Trust		11.1%		15%

		South Devon Healthcare NHS FT		13.6%		15%

		*Weston Area Health NHS Trust		16.3%		15%

		Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS FT		17.6%		15%

		*Yeovil District Hospital NHS FT		18.2%		15%

		*BNSSSG [LAT Cluster]		18.4%		15%

		England (without Independent Sector Providers)		20.6%		15%

		England (inc. Independent Sector Providers)		20.9%		15%

		*Taunton And Somerset NHS FT		21.2%		15%

		Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust		21.5%		15%

		Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust		23.9%		15%

		Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust		25.2%		15%

		*University Hospitals Bristol NHS FT		25.2%		15%

		Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust		26.7%		15%

		Salisbury NHS FT		32.7%		15%

		Royal Devon And Exeter NHS FT		34.6%		15%

		Net Promoter Scores - against BNSSSG breakdown - for October

		Royal Devon And Exeter NHS FT		55

		Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust		57

		England (without Independent Sector Providers)		64

		*Weston Area Health NHS Trust		64

		Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust		64

		England (inc. Independent Sector Providers)		65

		*North Bristol Trust		68

		Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust		69

		*BNSSSG [LAT Cluster]		71

		Salisbury NHS FT		71

		South Devon Healthcare NHS FT		71

		*Yeovil District Hospital NHS FT		72

		*University Hospitals Bristol NHS FT		73

		Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS FT		73

		*Taunton And Somerset NHS FT		77

		Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust		78

		Net Promoter Score - Maternity				Maternity: The Friends and Family Test score for November for North Bristol NHS Trust is 74.5.  This is based on 14.90% responses.

				Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13

		Antenatal		68.5		63		67.4

		Delivery		89.3		94.3		79.7

		Post Inpatient		74.2		75		44.3

		Post Community		66.2		74.5		78.7

		Overall		75.1		74.5		69.9

		Response Rate - Maternity

				Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Target

		Antenatal		17.61%		21.30%		0.1763		15%

		Delivery		17.28%		10.62%		0.2394		15%

		Post Inpatient		8.12%		3.13%		0.1562		15%

		Post Community		11.40%		24.06%		0.1399		15%

		Overall		13.85%		14.90%		0.1781		15%
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Friends & Family Test - Inpatients & ED
Net Promoter Score - Oct to Dec 13
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Friends & Family Test - Inpatients & ED
 Response Rates - Oct to Dec 13
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Friends & Family Test - Regional Response Rates
- November 2013
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card cr

		

		Medicine		0.140506892		0.1347358997		0.1276785714		0.15

		Musculo-Skeletal		0.3090452261		0.2264631043		0.2466124661		0.15

		Neurosciences		0.2348668281		0.2486910995		0.2366197183		0.15

		Renal and Transplant		0.3432835821		0.056		0.1940298507		0.15

		Surgery		0.1396140749		0.1780487805		0.2703030303		0.15

		Womens and Childrens Health		0.32		0		0.1351351351		0.15

		NBT Total		0.1658		0.1106		0.1184		0.15

		Medicine		65.0717703349		64.5		59.5406360424		71

		Musculo-Skeletal		75.6097560976		68.9655172414		70.3296703297		71

		Neurosciences		70.1030927835		64.2105263158		71.0843373494		71

		Renal and Transplant		78.2608695652		71.4285714286		69.2307692308		71

		Surgery		63.4146341463		78.6206896552		63.1818181818		71

		Womens and Childrens Health		85		0		71.4285714286		71

		NBT Total		68.1		67.7		62.2		71

				Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		target

		Antenatal		0.1761		0.213		0.1763		0.15

		Delivery		0.1728		0.1062		0.2394		0.15

		Post Inpatient		0.0812		0.0313		0.1562		0.15

		Post community		0.114		0.2406		0.1399		0.15

		Sum of Total		0.1385		0.149		0.1781		0.15

		Antenatal		68.5		63		67.4

		Delivery		89.3		94.3		79.7

		Post Inpatient		74.2		75		44.3

		Post community		66.2		74.5		78.7

		Sum of Total		75.1		74.5		69.9





card cr

		Medicine		Medicine		Medicine		Medicine

		Musculo-Skeletal		Musculo-Skeletal		Musculo-Skeletal		Musculo-Skeletal

		Neurosciences		Neurosciences		Neurosciences		Neurosciences

		Renal and Transplant		Renal and Transplant		Renal and Transplant		Renal and Transplant

		Surgery		Surgery		Surgery		Surgery

		Womens and Childrens Health		Womens and Childrens Health		Womens and Childrens Health		Womens and Childrens Health

		NBT Total		NBT Total		NBT Total		NBT Total
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01/10/2013

01/11/2013

01/12/2013

Target

Response Rate

Friends & Family (Inpatients & Emergency Dept) Response Rate

0.140506892

0.1347358997

0.1276785714

0.15

0.3090452261

0.2264631043

0.2466124661

0.15

0.2348668281

0.2486910995

0.2366197183

0.15

0.3432835821

0.056

0.1940298507

0.15

0.1396140749

0.1780487805

0.2703030303

0.15

0.32

0

0.1351351351

0.15

0.1658

0.1106

0.1184

0.15



ulcers

		Medicine		Medicine		Medicine		Medicine

		Musculo-Skeletal		Musculo-Skeletal		Musculo-Skeletal		Musculo-Skeletal

		Neurosciences		Neurosciences		Neurosciences		Neurosciences

		Renal and Transplant		Renal and Transplant		Renal and Transplant		Renal and Transplant

		Surgery		Surgery		Surgery		Surgery

		Womens and Childrens Health		Womens and Childrens Health		Womens and Childrens Health		Womens and Childrens Health

		NBT Total		NBT Total		NBT Total		NBT Total
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Net Promoter Score

Friends & family (Inpatients & Emergency Dept) Net Promoter Score

65.0717703349

64.5

59.5406360424

71

75.6097560976

68.9655172414

70.3296703297

71

70.1030927835

64.2105263158

71.0843373494

71

78.2608695652

71.4285714286

69.2307692308

71

63.4146341463

78.6206896552

63.1818181818

71

85

0

71.4285714286

71

68.1

67.7

62.2

71



Sheet1

		Antenatal		Antenatal		Antenatal		Antenatal

		Delivery		Delivery		Delivery		Delivery

		Post Inpatient		Post Inpatient		Post Inpatient		Post Inpatient

		Post community		Post community		Post community		Post community

		Sum of Total		Sum of Total		Sum of Total		Sum of Total



01/10/2013

01/11/2013

01/12/2013

Target

Response Rate

Friends & Family Test - Maternity Response Rates

0.1761

0.213

0.1763

0.15

0.1728

0.1062

0.2394

0.15

0.0812

0.0313

0.1562

0.15

0.114

0.2406

0.1399

0.15

0.1385

0.149

0.1781

0.15



Sheet2

		Antenatal		Antenatal		Antenatal

		Delivery		Delivery		Delivery

		Post Inpatient		Post Inpatient		Post Inpatient

		Post community		Post community		Post community

		Sum of Total		Sum of Total		Sum of Total



Oct-13

Nov-13

Dec-13

Net Promoter Score %

Friends & Family Test - Maternity Net Promoter Score

68.5

63

67.4

89.3

94.3

79.7

74.2

75

44.3

66.2

74.5

78.7

75.1

74.5

69.9



		Hospital attributable MRSA never event incidence - Spot chart of incidence against target of zero occurrances.

		Clostridium difficile incidence 2013/14 - Cumulative record of hospital attributable incidents against improvement target.

		Clostridium difficile trends against improvement targets -  historical record of trend in incidence.

		MSSA trends against improvement targets -  historical record of trend in incidence.																How much of the historic info does Chris want to show??

		E. coli trends against improvement targets -  historical record of trend in incidence.																C-Diff - SHA Target - show this or do cumulative graph against 42 trajectory? See examples

		MRSA - compared to national and regional targets (per 100k bed days)		NEED TO ADD - Quarterly - next updated in Jan report to show July-Sept

		C-diff - compared to national and regional targets (per 100k bed days)		NEED TO ADD - Quarterly - next updated in Jan report to show July-Sept

		Ward closures due to Norovirus -  historical record of trend in incidence.

		Hand hygiene compliance - record of positive audit results

		Date		MRSA Cases		Monthly SHA Target

		Apr-11		2		0.66666667

		May-11		4		0.66666667

		Jun-11		2		0.66666667

		Jul-11		0		0.66666667

		Aug-11		1		0.66666667

		Sep-11		0		0.66666667

		Oct-11		0		0.66666667

		Nov-11		0		0.66666667

		Dec-11		1		0.66666667

		Jan-12		1		0.66666667

		Feb-12		0		0.66666667

		Mar-12		0		0.66666667

		Apr-12		1		0.5

		May-12		0		0.5

		Jun-12		0		0.5

		Jul-12		0		0.5

		Aug-12		0		0.5

		Sep-12		0		0.5

		Oct-12		1		0.5

		Nov-12		0		0.5

		Dec-12		1		0.5

		Jan-13		2		0.5

		Feb-13		0		0.5

		Mar-13		0		0.5

		Apr-13		0		0

		May-13		0		0

		Jun-13		0		0

		Jul-13		0		0

		Aug-13		0		0

		Sep-13		1		0

		Oct-13		0		0

		Nov-13		0		0

		Dec-13		0		0

		Date		C-Difficile Cases		Monthly SHA Target

		Apr-11		8		9.4166666667

		May-11		10		9.4166666667

		Jun-11		11		9.4166666667

		Jul-11		9		9.4166666667

		Aug-11		8		9.4166666667

		Sep-11		6		9.4166666667

		Oct-11		4		9.4166666667

		Nov-11		10		9.4166666667

		Dec-11		2		9.4166666667

		Jan-12		3		9.4166666667

		Feb-12		4		9.4166666667

		Mar-12		4		9.4166666667

		Apr-12		3		5.08333333

		May-12		3		5.08333333

		Jun-12		5		5.08333333

		Jul-12		8		5.08333333

		Aug-12		7		5.08333333

		Sep-12		4		5.08333333

		Oct-12		6		5.08333333

		Nov-12		5		5.08333333

		Dec-12		7		5.08333333				ADD IN ADDITIONAL LINES FOR DIFFERENT YEARS

		Jan-13		14		5.08333333

		Feb-13		5		5.08333333

		Mar-13		17		5.08333333				Date		2013-14		2013-14 Trajectory		2011-12		2012-13

		Apr-13		5		3.5				Apr		5		3.5		8		3

		May-13		7		3.5				May		12		7		18		6

		Jun-13		4		3.5				June		16		10.5		29		11

		Jul-13		7		3.5				July		23		14		38		19

		Aug-13		2		3.5				Aug		25		17.5		46		26

		Sep-13		5		3.5				Sept		30		21		52		30

		Oct-13		10		3.5				Oct		40		24.5		56		36

		Nov-13		7		3.5				Nov		47		28		66		41

		Dec-13		5		3.5				Dec		52		31.5		68		48

										Jan				35		71		62

										Feb				38.5		75		67

										Mar				42		79		84

		Date		MSSA Cases		Monthly SHA Target

		Apr-11		2		3.083333333

		May-11		3		3.083333333

		Jun-11		2		3.083333333

		Jul-11		5		3.083333333

		Aug-11		5		3.083333333

		Sep-11		2		3.083333333

		Oct-11		2		3.083333333

		Nov-11		2		3.083333333

		Dec-11		3		3.083333333

		Jan-12		4		3.083333333

		Feb-12		2		3.083333333

		Mar-12		1		3.083333333

		Apr-12		5		2.1666666667

		May-12		1		2.1666666667

		Jun-12		1		2.1666666667

		Jul-12		2		2.1666666667

		Aug-12		0		2.1666666667

		Sep-12		4		2.1666666667

		Oct-12		2		2.1666666667

		Nov-12		3		2.1666666667

		Dec-12		3		2.1666666667

		Jan-13		2		2.1666666667

		Feb-13		1		2.1666666667

		Mar-13		2		2.1666666667				Date		2013-14		2013-14 Trajectory		2011-12		2012-13

		Apr-13		2		1.75				Apr		2		1.75		2		5

		May-13		0		1.75				May		2		3.5		5		6

		Jun-13		2		1.75				June		4		5.25		7		7

		Jul-13		1		1.75				July		5		7		12		9

		Aug-13		2		1.75				Aug		7		8.75		17		9

		Sep-13		2		1.75				Sept		9		10.5		19		13

		Oct-13		3		1.75				Oct		12		12.25		21		15

		Nov-13		1		1.75				Nov		13		14		23		18

		Dec-13		1		1.75				Dec		14		15.75		26		21

										Jan				17.5		30		23

										Feb				19.25		32		24

										Mar				21		33		26

		Date		E-Coli Cases		Monthly SHA Target

		Apr-11		9

		May-11		3

		Jun-11		7						Date		2013-14		2013-14 Trajectory		2012-13

		Jul-11		6						Apr		5		5.8333333333		2

		Aug-11		6						May		15		11.6666666667		6

		Sep-11		3						June		23		17.49999999		19

		Oct-11		7						July		30		23.33333333		24

		Nov-11		4						Aug		38		29.16666667		33

		Dec-11		7						Sept		50		35.00000000		37

		Jan-12		5						Oct		57		40.83333333		44

		Feb-12		4						Nov		61		46.66666667		49

		Mar-12		7						Dec		62		52.50000000		58

		Apr-12		2		4.666666667				Jan				58.33333333		65

		May-12		4		4.666666667				Feb				64.16666667		70

		Jun-12		13		4.666666667				Mar				70.00000000		80

		Jul-12		5		4.666666667

		Aug-12		9		4.666666667												2011-12

		Sep-12		4		4.666666667								5.8333333333				9

		Oct-12		7		4.666666667								11.6666666667				12

		Nov-12		5		4.666666667								17.49999999				19

		Dec-12		9		4.666666667								23.33333333				25

		Jan-13		7		4.666666667								29.16666667				31

		Feb-13		5		4.666666667								35.00000000				34

		Mar-13		10		4.666666667								40.83333333				41

		Apr-13		5		5.8333333								46.66666667				45

		May-13		10		5.8333333								52.50000000				52

		Jun-13		8		5.8333333								58.33333333				57

		Jul-13		7		5.8333333								64.16666667				61

		Aug-13		8		5.8333333								70.00000000				68

		Sep-13		12		5.8333333

		Oct-13		7		5.8333333

		Nov-13		4		5.8333333

		Dec-13		1		5.8333333

		hand hygiene

		Date		Hand Hygiene Compliance		Target

		Apr-11		0.937		0.9

		May-11		0.926		0.9

		Jun-11		0.929		0.9

		Jul-11		0.922		0.9

		Aug-11		0.934		0.9

		Sep-11		0.95		0.9

		Oct-11		0.942		0.9

		Nov-11		0.939		0.95

		Dec-11		0.938		0.95

		Jan-12		0.956		0.95

		Feb-12		0.953		0.95

		Mar-12		0.951		0.95

		Apr-12		0.943		0.95

		May-12		0.944		0.95

		Jun-12		0.94		0.95

		Jul-12		0.945		0.95

		Aug-12		0.956		0.95

		Sep-12		0.945		0.95

		Oct-12		0.938		0.95				Date		2011-12		2012-13		2013-14		2013-14 Target

		Nov-12		0.951		0.95				Apr		0.937		0.943		0.951		0.95

		Dec-12		0.95		0.95				May		0.926		0.944		0.96		0.95

		Jan-13		0.959		0.95				June		0.929		0.94		0.952		0.95

		Feb-13		0.954		0.95				July		0.922		0.945		0.958		0.95

		Mar-13		0.95		0.95				Aug		0.934		0.956		0.948		0.95

		Apr-13		0.951		0.95				Sept		0.95		0.945		0.95		0.95

		May-13		0.96		0.95				Oct		0.942		0.938		0.962		0.95

		Jun-13		0.952		0.95				Nov		0.939		0.951		0.944		0.95

		Jul-13		0.958		0.95				Dec		0.938		0.95		0.926		0.95

		Aug-13		0.948		0.95				Jan		0.956		0.959				0.95

		Sep-13		0.95		0.95				Feb		0.953		0.954				0.95

		Oct-13		0.962		0.95				Mar		0.951		0.95				0.95

		Nov-13		0.944		0.95

		Dec-13		0.926		0.95

		MRSA per 100k bed days

				NBT		Regional		National

		Apr-Jun 09		7.47		2.94		2.68

		Jul-Sep 09		7.39		2.37		2.50

		Oct-Dec 09		6.34		2.15		2.49

		Jan-Mar 10		4.32		2.20		2.98

		Apr-Jun 10		1.12		1.04		2.22

		Jul-Sep 10		2.41		1.69		2.05

		Oct-Dec 10		0.00		0.59		1.74

		Jan-Mar 11		2.33		1.07		1.68

		Apr-Jun 11		10.64		2.60		1.68

		Jul-Sep 11		1.19		0.38		1.15

		Oct-Dec 11		1.16		0.74		1.16

		Jan-Mar 12		1.12		1.31		1.32

		Apr-Jun 12		1.16		0.86		0.87

		Jul-Sep 12		0.00		0.99		0.90

		Oct-Dec 12		2.36		1.23		0.85

		Jan-Mar 13		2.33		1.17		1.04

		Apr-Jun 13		0.00		0.99		0.99

		Jul-Sep 13		1.24		0.88		0.89

		Oct-Dec 13

		Jan-Mar 14

				NBT		Regional		National

		Apr-Jun 09		48.5		33.4		40.1

		Jul-Sep 09		37.0		31.4		34.1

		Oct-Dec 09		46.8		27.1		33.4

		Jan-Mar 10		67.9		35.2		39.3

		Apr-Jun 10		40.3		29.1		34.2

		Jul-Sep 10		33.0		28.6		29.7

		Oct-Dec 10		13.7		23.8		27.4

		Jan-Mar 11		17.5		26.1		27.2

		Apr-Jun 11		34.1		23.1		25.1

		Jul-Sep 11		26.7		26.2		23.1

		Oct-Dec 11		18.6		19.1		20.6

		Jan-Mar 12		12.9		18.6		18.4

		Apr-Jun 12		12.9		16.6		17.2

		Jul-Sep 12		22.1		15.4		16.2

		Oct-Dec 12		20.9		16.9		17.2

		Jan-Mar 13		42.8		18.2		17.3

		Apr-Jun 13		19.1		15.7		12.5

		Jul-Sep 13		17.4		15.8		12.0

		Oct-Dec 13

		Jan-Mar 14

		Norovirus - ward closures

		Date		Apr-13		May-13		Jun-13		Jul-13		Aug-13		Sep-13		Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Jan-13		Feb-13		Mar-13

		Ward Closures		0		1		0		3		0		0		0		0		4

		Bay Closures		0		2		4		0		0		0		0		1		2
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MRSA Cases

Monthly SHA Target

Number of MRSA Cases

MRSA Cases - Trust Attributable
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C-Difficile Cases

Monthly SHA Target

Number of C-Diff Cases

C-Difficile Cases - Trust Attributable - historic cases 2011-13
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2013-14

2013-14 Trajectory

2011-12

2012-13

Cumulative number of C-Diff Cases

C-Difficile Cases - Trust Attributable
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MSSA Cases

Monthly SHA Target

Number of MSSA Cases

MSSA Cases - Trust Attributable - Historic Occurances (April 11 - Nov 13)
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2013-14

2013-14 Trajectory

2011-12

2012-13

Cumulative number of MSSA Cases

MSSA Cases - Trust Attributable - Cumulative Cases
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E-Coli Cases

Monthly SHA Target

Number of E-Coli Cases

E-Coli Cases - Trust Attributable - Historic Occurances (April 11 - Nov 13)
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2013-14

2013-14 Trajectory

2012-13

Cumulative number of E-Coli Cases

E-Coli Cases - Trust Attributable - Cumulative Cases
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Hand Hygiene Compliance

Target

% Hand Hygiene Compliance

Hand Hygiene Compliance Rates                         (Apr 11 - Dec 13)
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2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2013-14 Target

% Hand Hygiene Compliance

Hand Hygiene Compliance Rates - monthly
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NBT

Regional

National

Quarterly MRSA case rates per 100k bed days
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NBT

Regional

National

Quarterly C-Difficile case rates per 100k bed days
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Ward Closures

Bay Closures

No of ward closures

No. of monthly Diarrhoea & Vomiting / Norovirus ward or bay closures across NBT



		NBT Monthly weighted recruitment numbers for 2013 and total for 2012

				2013		2013 Target

		Jan-13		1983		22278

		Feb-13		3748		22278																				Put in explanation re 'weighted recruitment'

		Mar-13		5589		22278

		Apr-13		6793		22278																				Mention that this section will appear quarterly (April, July, Oct)

		May-13		8624		22278

		Jun-13		10158		22278

		Jul-13		11603		22278

		Aug-13		18459		22278																						Patient Recruitment (NIHR Portfolio Studies only)

		Sep-13		20183		22278

		Oct-13		21785		22278

		Nov-13		22300		22278

		2012 Total		19721

																		Recruitment Time to Target – delivery of target number of patients recruited to commercial studies n=31

		Recruitment time to target - delivery of target numbers for commercial studies. 

		Met Target		19		%

		Missed Target		3		%

		Withdrawn		13		%

		Open		65		%

		First Patient First Visit (FPFV) - Studies recruiting first patient in 70 day target. 

		Met Target		27		%

		Not Yet Met Target But Could Still Meet Target		9		%

		Not Met Target		64
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2013

2013 Target

No of Patients Recruited (weighted)

Patient Recruitment 
(NIHR Portfolio Studies only)
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Delivering Research 2 – Recruitment to Time and Target (Commercial only)

Open 53%
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Nationally NBT is ranked 41st out of 55 reporting Trusts

Delivering Research 1 – First Patient First Visit (Trials only)

Open 53%



		Fragility Hip Fracture Standards

				2012-13		Apr-13		May-13		Jun-13		Jul-13		Aug-13		Sep-13		Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Jan-14		Feb-14		Mar-14

		All Patients Admitted to an Acute Orthopaedic Ward within 4 hours		25.4%		4.7%		47.4%		58.1%		42.5%		24.1%		23.3%		11.5%		13.6%		0.0%

		All Patients medically fit to have Surgery within 36 hours		82.0%		87.0%		89.5%		88.9%		69.8%		80.6%		76.5%		80.0%		71.4%		100.0%

				100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%

		All Patients assessed by an Orthogeriatrician within 72 hours		96.7%		100.0%		94.7%		100.0%		100.0%		100.0%		97.1%		93.3%		85.7%		100.0%

		All Patients assessed for antiresorptive therapy need		88.1%		89.1%		92.1%		91.7%		83.7%		83.3%		94.1%		90.0%		74.1%		66.7%

		All Patients offered a multidisciplinary falls assessment		99.5%		100.0%		100.0%		100.0%		100.0%		100.0%		100.0%		100.0%		100.0%		100.0%

				100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%		100%



Nationally 43%.  
NBT ranked 2nd out of 39 reporting Trusts.

Recruitment Time to Target - delivery of target numbers of patients recruited to commercial studies n=31

Glossary: 

Patient recruitment (weighted): The target (red line) equates to the total predicted number of patients to be recruited to each study as agreed by the Principal Investigator. The NIHR portfolio of studies comprises three bands; 1,2 and 3, relating to increasing complexity. These are weighted in the ratio of 1:3:14 respectively. Weighted recruitment informs the funding allocation from the regional research network. 

First patient first visit (FPFV): A NIHR target of 70 days from receipt of a valid application for R&D approval to the first patient being recruited. It applies to trials only that were open to recruitment in the preceding 12 months. This target has been introduced to improve efficiency in setting up and recruiting patients to studies. Data is reported quarterly to the Department of Health. 

Recruitment to time and target (RTT): The recruitment target for a study is determined by the Principle Investigator as the total number of patients they will recruit to the study for the specified time that the study is open to recruitment. It applies to commercial studies only that were open to recruitment for the preceding 12 months. Data is reported to the Department of Health quarterly. 

NIHR: National Institute of Health Research

R&D approval: This is a process to confirm a study can be delivered safely and successfully and must be issued by the NHS organisation  before patient recruitment can commence.
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All Patients Admitted to an Acute Orthopaedic Ward within 4 hours

All Patients medically fit to have Surgery within 36 hours

Fractured Neck of Femur Standards
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All Patients assessed by an Orthogeriatrician within 72 hours

All Patients assessed for antiresorptive therapy need

All Patients offered a multidisciplinary falls assessment

Fractured Neck of Femur Standards
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1b

All patients assessed by an Orthogeriatrician within 72 hours

All patients assessed for antiresorptive therapy need

All patients offered a multidisciplinary falls assessment

Fractured Neck of Femur Standards

Dec 2013                             Last quarter                           Last Year  
                                                    (Oct-Dec 13)                       (Jan  - Dec 13)

Fractured Neck of Femur Standards



				Jan		Feb		Mar		Apr		May		Jun		Jul		Aug		Sep		Oct		Nov		Dec

		2013		89.7%		93.8%		81.4%		83.6%		80.3%		86.8%		88.0%		78.7%		95.7%		81.8%		85.1%

		2012								74.2%		75.0%		69.6%		85.1%		79.2%		90.9%		81.7%		91.3%		94.4%

				80.0%		80.0%		80.0%		80.0%		80.0%		80.0%		80.0%		80.0%		80.0%		80.0%		80.0%		80.0%

																										Add note re is this the right measure?
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2013

2012

Stroke Indicator - average % of patient's length of stay spent on Stroke Unit



		Cost per bed day

				Apr-13		May-13		Jun-13		Jul-13		Aug-13		Sep-13		Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Jan-14		Feb-14		Mar-14

		Actual		$123		$124		$121		$127		$124		$123		$129		$128

		Target		$124		$124		$124		$124		$124		$124		$124		$124		$124		$124		$124		$124

		WTE per bed

				Apr-13		May-13		Jun-13		Jul-13		Aug-13		Sep-13		Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Jan-14		Feb-14		Mar-14

		Actual		1.29		1.29		1.29		1.29		1.31		1.30		1.31		1.34

		Target		1.28		1.28		1.28		1.28		1.28		1.28		1.28		1.28		1.28		1.28		1.28		1.28
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Actual

Target

Cost (£) per bed day

Cost of Ward Nursing per bed day
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Actual

Target

WTE per bed

Ward Nursing WTE per bed



		In Year Surplus (before impairment) plan vs actual

				Apr-13		May-13		Jun-13		Jul-13		Aug-13		Sep-13		Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Jan-14		Feb-14		Mar-14

		Plan		0.466		0.935		1.377		1.997		2.537		3.111		4.022		4.423		4.471		5.082		5.002		5.6

		Actual		0.0045		0.009		0.16		0.573		0.893		1.585

				Apr-13		May-13		Jun-13		Jul-13		Aug-13		Sep-13		Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Jan-14		Feb-14		Mar-14

		Plan		0.613569851		0.83500001		0.999090176		1.265987904		1.306934673		1.505270166		1.661060999		1.661060999		1.733410999		1.757815166		1.760780591		1.763863924

		Gap		0.313482566		0.344666657		0.45557649		0.548111213		0.601731993		0.616539358		0.709748524		0.709748524		0.783898524		0.731494358		0.763528933		0.804278933

		Forecast														1.698425662		1.872280379		1.933324606		1.96594822		1.999986745		2.030645079

		Actual		0.613569851		0.745422091		1.006995391		1.265987904		1.394066652		1.581399528

				Dec-13		Jan-14		Feb-14		Mar-14		Apr-14		May-14		Jun-14		Jul-14		Aug-14		Sep-14		Oct-14		Nov-14

		Forecast		36		40		45		43		35		32		27		24		25		26		29		33

		Plan		49		45		42		43

				Apr-13		May-13		Jun-13		Jul-13		Aug-13		Sep-13		Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Jan-14		Feb-14		Mar-14

		Plan		0.177		1.153		2.33044		3.98154		5.91064		8.90518		12.27238		15.76958		20.18678		25.49598		33.4495		43.743

		Actual		0.349		2.721		4.077		5.456		7.261		8.562
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Plan

Actual

In Year Surplus - £m

In Year Surplus (before impairment) - plan vs actual



		



DOF02
999

Plan

Gap

Forecast

Actual

£m

CRES - Total Phased. Plan vs Actual
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Forecast

Plan

£m

Rolling Cash Flow Forecast - forecast vs plan
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Plan

Actual

£m

Capital Programme - cumulative expenditure trend and projection against budget



		Stroke Indicators - need to be further developed

		RACPC

		Theatres

		Outpatients

		Surveillance Lists

		Facilities - cleaning scores; catering metrics

		e-rostering





		Med Rec

				Med Rec		SPI target 95%		Jul - Dec 07 (55.8%)		Jan - Jun 08 (67%)		Jul - Dec 08 (76.7%)		Jan - Jun 09 (79.7%)		Jul - Dec 09 (80%)		Jan - Jun 10 (86.2%)		Jul - Dec 10 (92.2%)		Jan - Jun 11 (96.4%)		Jul - Dec 11 (95.3%)		Jan - Jun 12 (95.2%)		Jul - Dec 12 (98%)		Jan - Jun 13 (98.8%)

		May-07		0.6		0.95

		Jun-07		0.44		0.95

		Jul-07		0.55		0.95		0.558

		Aug-07		0.457		0.95		0.558

		Sep-07		0.525		0.95		0.558

		Oct-07		0.724		0.95		0.558

		Nov-07		0.566		0.95		0.558

		Dec-07		0.63		0.95		0.558

		Jan-08		0.66		0.95				0.67

		Feb-08		0.55		0.95				0.67

		Mar-08		0.594		0.95				0.67

		Apr-08		0.68		0.95				0.67

		May-08		0.898		0.95				0.67

		Jun-08		0.76		0.95				0.67

		Jul-08		0.797		0.95						0.767

		Aug-08		0.762		0.95						0.767

		Sep-08		0.74		0.95						0.767

		Oct-08		0.772		0.95						0.767

		Nov-08		0.795		0.95						0.767

		Dec-08		0.693		0.95						0.767

		Jan-09		0.754		0.95								0.797

		Feb-09		0.794		0.95								0.797

		Mar-09		0.803		0.95								0.797

		Apr-09		0.789		0.95								0.797

		May-09		0.84		0.95								0.797

		Jun-09		0.8		0.95								0.797

		Jul-09		0.863		0.95										0.8005

		Aug-09		0.765		0.95										0.8005

		Sep-09		0.864		0.95										0.8005

		Oct-09		0.648		0.95										0.8005

		Nov-09		0.766		0.95										0.8005

		Dec-09		0.835		0.95										0.8005

		Jan-10		0.829		0.95												0.8625

		Feb-10		0.901		0.95												0.8625

		Mar-10		0.859		0.95												0.8625

		Apr-10		0.849		0.95												0.8625

		May-10		0.879		0.95												0.8625

		Jun-10		0.866		0.95												0.8625

		Jul-10		0.88		0.95														0.922

		Aug-10		0.909		0.95														0.922

		Sep-10		0.908		0.95														0.922

		Oct-10		0.937		0.95														0.922

		Nov-10		0.935		0.95														0.922

		Dec-10		0.975		0.95														0.922

		Jan-11		0.939		0.95																0.9645

		Feb-11		0.966		0.95																0.9645

		Mar-11		0.967		0.95																0.9645

		Apr-11		0.968		0.95																0.9645

		May-11		0.963		0.95																0.9645

		Jun-11		0.953		0.95																0.9645

		Jul-11		0.969		0.95																		0.953

		Aug-11		0.955		0.95																		0.953

		Sep-11		0.94		0.95																		0.953

		Oct-11		0.963		0.95																		0.953

		Nov-11		0.936		0.95																		0.953

		Dec-11		0.951		0.95																		0.953

		Jan-12		0.953		0.95																				0.9515

		Feb-12		0.95		0.95																				0.9515

		Mar-12		0.945		0.95																				0.9515

		Apr-12		0.95		0.95																				0.9515

		May-12		0.962		0.95																				0.9515

		Jun-12		0.956		0.95																				0.9515

		Jul-12		0.97		0.95																						0.98

		Aug-12		0.952		0.95																						0.98

		Sep-12		0.985		0.95																						0.98

		Oct-12		0.978		0.95																						0.98

		Nov-12		0.982		0.95																						0.98

		Dec-12		0.989		0.95																						0.98

		Jan-13		0.982		0.95																								0.9885

		Feb-13		0.987		0.95																								0.9885

		Mar-13		0.995		0.95																								0.9885

		Apr-13		0.988		0.95																								0.9885

		May-13		0.994		0.95																								0.9885

		Jun-13		0.989		0.95																								0.9885

		Jul-13		0.969		0.95

		Aug-13		0.974		0.95

		Sep-13		0.98		0.95

		Oct-13		0.99		0.95

		Nov-13		0.994		0.95

		Dec-13		0.97		0.95

		Month				Target				Missed Doses

		Sep-10		3.28%		1.95%

		Oct-10		2.60%		1.95%

		Nov-10		3.03%		1.95%

		Dec-10		2.98%		1.95%

		Jan-11		2.34%		1.95%

		Feb-11		2.55%		1.95%

		Mar-11		2.20%		1.95%

		Apr-11		2.03%		1.95%

		May-11		1.61%		1.95%

		Jun-11		2.27%		1.95%

		Jul-11		2.51%		1.95%

		Aug-11		1.92%		1.95%

		Sep-11		2.12%		1.95%

		Oct-11		1.95%		1.95%

		Nov-11		2.36%		1.95%

		Dec-11		2.35%		1.95%

		Jan-12		1.87%		1.95%

		Feb-12		1.46%		1.95%

		Mar-12		1.05%		1.95%

		Apr-12		1.28%		1.95%

		May-12		1.42%		1.95%

		Jun-12		1.22%		1.95%

		Jul-12		1.16%		1.95%

		Aug-12		1.45%		1.95%

		Sep-12		1.22%		1.95%

		Oct-12		1.34%		1.95%

		Nov-12		1.26%		1.95%

		Dec-12		1.62%		1.95%

		Jan-13		1.58%		1.95%

		Feb-13		1.35%		1.95%

		Mar-13		1.07%		1.95%

		Apr-13		1.09%		1.95%

		May-13		1.10%		1.95%

		Jun-13		1.21%		1.95%

		Jul-13		1.46%		1.95%

		Aug-13		1.17%		1.95%

		Sep-13		1.10%		1.95%

		Oct-13		0.70%		1.95%

		Nov-13		0.80%		1.95%

		Dec-13		0.80%		1.95%

		Jan-14				1.95%

		Feb-14				1.95%

		Mar-14				1.95%





		



MD11
999

Med Rec

SPI target 95%

Medicine Reconcilliation: Percentage of patients with reconciliation



		



SPI 2 Programme started

SPI 2 Programme ends

South West Programme 
started

MD12
999

Target

Missed Doses: Percentage of patients with one or more missed doses

MD12
999

Target

Missed Doses: Percentage of patients with one or more missed doses



		



September 2010: Pharmacists & MMT check for code ‘6’. Pharmacists reporting via KPI

MD11
999

Medicine Reconcilliation: Percentage of patients with reconcilliation
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Med Rec

SPI target 95%

Jul - Dec 07 (55.8%)

Jan - Jun 08 (67%)

Jul - Dec 08 (76.7%)

Jan - Jun 09 (79.7%)

Jul - Dec 09 (80%)

Jan - Jun 10 (86.2%)

Jul - Dec 10 (92.2%)

Jan - Jun 11 (96.4%)

Jul - Dec 11 (95.3%)

Jan - Jun 12 (95.2%)

Jul - Dec 12 (98%)

Jan - Jun 13 (98.8%)

Medicine Reconcilliation: Percentage of patients with reconcilliation (6 month medians)



		

														2013/14 pay expenditure by month £000's

				Apr-13		May-13		Jun-13		Jul-13		Aug-13		Sep-13		Oct-13		Nov-13		Dec-13		Jan-14		Feb-14		Mar-14		Total

		Substantive & FTA		25,926		25,854		25,761		26,193		25,820		25,170		26,030		25,905		26,148								232,808

		Bank		1,496		1,694		1,698		1,732		1,843		1,673		1,642		1,698		1,574								15,050

		Agency		647		642		884		766		902		928		921		951		970								7,611

		Total		28,069		28,190		28,342		28,691		28,566		27,771		28,594		28,555		28,691								255,469

		Forecast		27,700		27,821		28,320		27,901		27,553		27,374		28,096		27,844		28,298

																						Staff in post - substantive & FTA
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Substantive & FTA

Bank

Agency

Total

£000's

2013/14 Pay Expenditure by month



		

		Apr-13		1.0875823684

		May-13		0.9420335364

		Jun-13		0.5923390812

		Jul-13		1.0235414534

		Aug-13		0.5624648459

		Sep-13		0.5309969468

		Oct-13		0.5551785824

		Nov-13		1.0859150431

		Dec-13		0.7246376812





		



MD02
999

Crash Calls / 1000 Discharges

Cardiac Crash Calls per Thousand Discharges



				Grade 3		Grade 4

		Apr-13		2		1

		May-13		6		0

		Jun-13		2		0

		Jul-13		5		0

		Aug-13		1		0

		Sep-13		2		0

		Oct-13		6		0

		Nov-13		6		0
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Grade 3

Grade 4

Number of Pressure Ulcers

Pressure Ulcers  Grade3 (Blue) & 4 (Green) YTD



		Apr-13		0.5471918877		0.95

		May-13		0.5811577753		0.95

		Jun-13		0.5611916264		0.95

		Jul-13		0.5527192009		0.95

		Aug-13		0.5713169207		0.95

		Sep-13		0.5487262434		0.95

		Oct-13		0.5560571859		0.95

		Nov-13		0.5618892508		0.95

		Dec-13		0.5286713287		0.95
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Screening

Screening for Malnutrition (within 24 hours of admission) for patients admitted for 24 hours or more



		

				Death or Stillbirth		4.6

				Home		-0.3

				Other place		20.1

				Transfer (Acute)		7.6

				Transfer (Non-acute)		12.9

				Transfer (Unknown)		11.1





		Death or Stillbirth

		Home

		Other place

		Transfer (Acute)

		Transfer (Non-acute)

		Transfer (Unknown)



Total

Average difference between actual and expected Length of Stay when exiting the Trust in different ways (Rolling Year)

4.6

-0.3

20.1

7.6

12.9

11.1



		Death or Stillbirth

		Home

		Other place

		Transfer (Acute)

		Transfer (Non-acute)

		Transfer (Unknown)



Total

LOS Difference

Average difference between actual and expected Length of Stay when exiting the Trust in different ways (Rolling Year)

4.6

-0.3

20.1

7.6

12.9

11.1
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6 Responsiveness     
Urgent Care 
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations 

Commentary 
Overall April’s performance against 
the 4 hour target was 77.1%, with 
waiting for a bed being the main 
cause of breaches, followed by 
awaiting ED assessment. During 
April, the Trust has predominately 
been in red or black escalation 
levels with all escalation capacity 
open (IR and Cotswold) reflecting 
the known bed deficit overall.  
The internal actions in the Urgent 
Care RAP aim to improve flow 
through better discharge planning 
and reduce bed occupancy overall. 
Medically fit for discharge bed 
days were above plan and spot 
purchasing by commissioners 
remains limited. C&D modelling 
indicates a system shortfall in long 
term placements and as yet an 
unclear picture on interim 
placements (D2A 2 pathway beds) 
The switch to Lorenzo continues to 
cause ED delays resulting in 
breaches (esp. within minors).  
The “Proactive Hospital” 
commenced on 15th March, initially 
focused on supporting the medical 
wards, but will expand in ED and 
surgical bed bases. 
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7 Responsiveness   
Elective Operations 
Board Sponsor  Director of Operations 

Commentary 
 
Same day non-clinical  
cancellation rates remained 
high at 1.98% vs. 0.8% the 
national target – in the main 
related to the wider flow and 
bed issues. Despite being 
below target in January, the 
2016/17 trajectory for 28 day 
re-booking has yet to be 
agreed with commissioners. 
The junior doctor industrial 
action in particular prevented 
all case being booked within 
expected timeframes. 
However, the elective teams 
have maintained urgent 
subsequent cancelled 
operations at 2 in month from 
the previous rate of 6. 
 
Individual mini-RCAs are 
completed each time there is a 
28 day re-book and lessons 
are shared across 
directorates. 
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8 Responsiveness    
Patient Flow Work stream 
Board Sponsor Director of Operations 

Commentary 
The Trust has made sustainable 
progress against a number of ECIST 
recommendations but has not benefitted 
overall over the winter period due to the 
high level of bed occupancy and the 
inability to date to shift discharges to 
earlier in the day 
• % of weekend emergency 

admissions  to discharges has been 
above the ECIST recommended 85%  

• The AMU / ambulatory care changes 
have resulted in us being above the 
50% target for new admissions being 
discharged within 2 midnights 

 
Alongside initiatives to decrease bed 
occupancy the Proactive Hospital 
Programme will focus on: 
• Achieving earlier movement out of 

assessment areas and ED to ensure 
earlier intervention by senior decision 
makers and appropriate specialists/ 
MDT team, thereby ensuring  
speciality patients move to the right 
ward  

• Value added days pilot to review at 
an MDT level whether all in-patients 
require an acute bed, or an 
alternative arrangement could be 
made (i.e. community support/ OPD 
follow up) 

• Integrated Discharge Service –
standardise support across all wards 
as well as reducing the levels of D2A 
cancellation rates  

• More effective use of Trust resources 
i.e. Discharge lounge / Pharmacy etc 

• Weekend discharge planning  
• Training staff and agreeing the 

governance framework to deliver 
criteria led discharge 

TO BE COMPLETED 
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9 Responsiveness     
Length of Stay and Discharge 
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations  

Commentary 
 
Capacity and demand modelling of 
complex discharges has been 
undertaken to inform URCP plans 
to reduce overall leaving hospital 
patient database numbers, in light 
of the disproportionate impact this 
patient cohort has on occupied 
bed days. The main cause of 
MFFD delayed days remains wait 
for assessment despite the formal 
introduction of Discharge to 
Assess pathways – although 
percentage levels across localities 
differs. 
 
In April the total number of 
medically fit for discharge days 
was 5446 with the majority of the 
reduction in South 
Gloucestershire. Overall MFFD 
bed occupancy is lower than April 
2015 – even when Elgar 2 is 
included in MFFD numbers.  
 
The DTOC level remains above 
the national target of 3.5% at 
6.87%. As yet we are not assured 
community and social care plans 
will meet this target across 
2016/17, contributing to our 
performance trajectory remaining 
under the 95% standard. 
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10 Responsiveness      
Referral to Treatment   All Specialties  
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations 

Commentary 
 
As of April the Trust narrowly 
failed the 87.9% target, with 
actual performance at 87.3%. 
Had the junior doctor industrial 
action not taken place over 4 
days in April, the Trust would 
have met the April target.  
 
Operational issues i.e. the same 
day cancellation rate of 1.98% vs 
0.8% in April due to bed 
pressures, as well as the junior 
doctor strike action – 4 days in 
April) resulted in the Trust 
missing the overall activity plan. 
 
At the invitation of the Trust the 
Elective Intensive Support team 
are completing a 6 week 
diagnostic of Trust RTT 
processes and will then provide 
senior independent support for 
the T&O recovery plan. 
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11 Responsiveness   
Referral to Treatment 52 week waits & Diagnostics  
Board Sponsor  Director of Operations 

Commentary 
The Trust remains on trajectory 
for clearance of the 52 week 
breaches in Orthopaedic Spines, 
Neurosurgery and Adult Epilepsy 
(94 actual vs. target of 164) – the 
main differential is within 
Epilepsy due to removal for 
reasons other than treatment. 
Orthopaedic Spinal clearance is 
planned for Q4 of 2016/17, 
Neurosurgery is Q3 2017/18 and 
epilepsy is Q3 2017/18. 
 
In April, the Trust overall 
continued to fail the diagnostic 
target (98.65%) due primarily to 
Endoscopy. The main issues are 
consultant level vacancies in 
surgery and gastro, alongside 
growth in demand due to early 
adoption of the NICE cancer 
standards by GPs. A remedial 
action plan has been agreed with 
commissioners, that does not see 
the trust return to compliance 
until end of Q3 of 2016/17. 
 
The Trust will discuss options 
with commissioners for above 
tariff independent sector options 
to recover the endoscopy 
position quicker. 
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Standard 

Mar 16 April 2016 Q4 
Performance 

(Jan – Mar 16) 
against 

National Target 

Quarterly Average Trend – Q3 vs Q4  
(un-validated position) 

 
Final Feb 

16 position 
Against 
National 
Target 
Mar 16 

Trend 
from last 
month 

Patients seen within 2 weeks of an urgent GP 
referral (93% target)       94.8% (Q3) to 93.7% (in Q4 to date) 

Patients with breast symptoms seen by 
specialist within 2 weeks (93% target)       93.4%(Q3) to 94.1% (in Q4 to date) 

Patients receiving first treatment within 31 
days of cancer diagnosis (96% target)        92.8% (Q3) to 94.1% (in Q4 to date) 

Patients waiting less than 31 days for 
subsequent surgery (94% target)       95.4% (Q3) to 94.6% (in Q4 to date)  

Patients waiting less than 31 days for 
subsequent drug treatment (98% target) 

             
        100% (Q3) to 100% (in Q4 to date) 

Patients receiving first treatment within 62 
days of urgent GP referral (85% target)        86.4%(Q3) to 78.7% (in Q4 to date) 

Patients treated 62 days of screening (90% 
target) 

  
 

       92.4%(Q3) to 90.0% (in Q4 to date) 

Patients treated within 62 days of consultant 
upgrades (90% target) 

          
      98.8% (Q3) to 93.6% (in Q4 to date) 

Responsiveness 
Cancer Summary Dashboard 
Board Sponsor  Director of Operations 

 

Please note: Validation is still on-going for latest figures.   

95.5% 

93.3% 

85.5% 

100% 

95.5% 

94.7% 

96.6% 

95.3% 

94.5% 

83.5% 

100% 

95.6% 

97.0% 

90.7% 

93.2% 

95.2% 
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13 Responsiveness 
Cancer   
Board Sponsor  Director of Operations 

 Commentary 
The final position of cancer 
targets in March showed the Trust 
had delivered on 7 of the 8 cancer 
waiting targets. Over Quarter 4 
we were compliant with six of the 
eight targets, only failing 31 day 
and 62 day performance. 
 
Performance on the 62 day 
pathway in March exceeded the 
recovery trajectory following 
changes on the pathway to 
remove 21 days of diagnostics/ 
out-patient waits. The sustainable 
recovery plan does not  
 
Performance in 31 day was below 
plan and national target for 
March. The 2016/17 trajectories 
plan for the Trust to deliver 
sustainable compliance with 31 
day standards in Q3 and 62 day 
by Q2.  
 
In May and June the Trust is 
anticipating increased 31 day and 
62 day breaches in a number of 
tumour sites due to delays with 
pathology reporting associated 
with the UHB/NBT merger. A 
recovery plan for Pathology to 
reduce waiting times is in place. 
As yet the overall impact on the 
trajectory has not been 
completed. 



XXXX 
XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

Commentary  
XXXX 
XXXXX 
XXXX 

14 Responsiveness  
Cancer  
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations 

 Commentary 
 
The Trust has passed the 31 
subsequent drug treatment target 
every month in the past year. 
 
The actual number of patients 
treated against the screening and 
consultant upgrade targets is 
relatively small and can be seen 
to fluctuate due to a small 
number of breaches in this 
pathway.   
 
The Trust will conclude the timed 
pathway work for all disease sites 
by the end of Q2. Work is now 
underway to move from 
development to consistent 
delivery of these timed pathways. 
 
By Q2 the Trust will report 
against the new cancer 62 day 
breach standards to ensure we 
are shadow reporting before 
formal implementation in October 
2016. 
. 
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QUALITY   PATIENT SAFETY & EFFECTIVENESS 
SRO  Chris Burton  Medical Director & Sue Jones  Director of Nursing  
 

Section Summary  
Improvements & Actions 
Action continues in accordance with the commissioners Remedial Action Plan for VTE, the final 2-3% is 
expected to be achieved by further scrutiny of cases not coded and incomplete assessments. Progress has 
been made with regard to nutrition assessment now at 81.7% and much greater confidence of achieving 90%.    
 
Trends 
There is now a trend reduction in the rate of Clostridium difficile.  
Standardised mortality ratios continue to show lower risk of mortality for care in NBT than national benchmarks 

Areas of Concern 
We reported a never event to STEIS in May.  It was a wrong site Anaesthetic block (a new never event added 
to the never event list in 2015).  This incident was noticed at the time and the correct block also given.  There 
was minimal harm for the patient.  An initial review using a SWARM approach was conducted, and the RCA is 
in progress. 
 
The number of falls causing serious harm has remained high this month..  The rate of falls per 1,000 bed days 
is 6.74, the rate per 1,000 bed days has also increased to 7.17. The new SWARM approach of a rapid review 
and debrief with the clinical team within 72 hours is proving beneficial.  Falls improvement work is owned multi 
professionally with falls sensors in use, and new documentation coming in August. 
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Patient Safety Dashboard  

Safety   
Summary Dashboard  
Board Sponsors   Director of Nursing & Medical Director  

 

Please note: Subsequent validation by clinical teams can alter scores retrospectively. Data correct at time of publication.  

 

Standard 
(target) 

April 2016 Most recent 
quarter’s 

performance 
(quarter 2 Jul - 

Sept  15  against 
national target 

 
 

Quarterly Trend (Q1 vs Q2) 
Performance 

against 
national 
target / 
contract 

Against NBT 
Trajectory 

Trend from 
last month 

Performance to 
be achieved by..  

(as per trajectory) 

Never Event Occurrence by 
month (0 target) n/a 

Managed via 
Quality 

Committee 
           1 event (in Q1) to 1 event (in Q2) 

Safety Thermometer – overall 
compliance (94% internal 
target, 92% external target) 

n/a Achieving            93.8% (in Q1) to 94.5% (in Q2) 

Malnutrition Screening (90%) 
n/a TBC             86.9% (in Q1) to 83.9% (in Q2) 

Hand Hygiene Compliance 
(95%) (one month lag) n/a 

Managed via  
Infection 
Control 

            95% (in Q1) to 96.9% (in Q2) 

MRSA (0 per month trajectory) n/a Achieving             0 cases in 2014/15 to 2 cases (in Q2) 

C-Difficile (<5 per month) n/a  Achieving              21 cases (in Q1) 16 cases (in Q2) 

MSSA (<1.5 per month) 
n/a 

Managed via  
Infection 
Control 

           5 cases (in Q1) to 9 cases (in Q2) 

Venous Thromboembolism 
Screening (95%) reported n/a 

Managed via 
Thrombosis 
Committee  

              95.1% (in Q1) to 94.4% (in Q2 to date) 

Dementia (find/assess/refer 
CQUIN) (90%) (October) n/a Achieving               91.8%(in Q1) to 91.9% (in Q2) 

76.5% 

96.5% 

89.7% 

0 

0 

0 

93.1% 

0 

91.5% 
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17 Safe Staffing 
Ward Early Warning Trigger Tool (QUESTT) & Acuity & Dependency 
Board Sponsor  Director of Nursing 

Commentary 
QUESTT 
 
The QUESTT tool is triangulated and 
used  by the  Director of Nursing and 
Heads of Nursing to ensure early support 
is given to wards and departments when 
required. Of 93% of wards submitted in 
April, the 3 areas who did not submit 
have been reviewed by their heads of 
nursing to ensure any concerns are 
reviewed. QUESTT is RAG rated with 
wards scoring 12 and above recorded as 
Red. The submission includes narrative 
from the ward sister to escalate any 
concerns which they have. These are 
reviewed by the Deputy Director of 
Nursing , Heads of Nursing and Matrons. 
In April 2016 no wards triggered above 
12. The 3 areas above 10 are all being 
closely monitored and supported to 
ensure  that there is resolution of the 
concern which has caused an increase 
in the trigger. 
   
SafeCare 
All inpatient wards excluding Midwifery 
record patient Acuity and Dependency 
twice a day. Compliance as a trend 
continues to improve as it becomes more 
embedded  and used as a daily measure 
for the requesting of or movement of 
staff. Action has been taken with the 
Head of Nursing in MSK in order to 
ensure that this improves within the 
Directorate.  The patient types and 
percentages Trust wide this month 
include the changes undertaken for 
neuro patient recording  which should 
see an improvement in the accuracy of 
reporting. 
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18 Safe Staffing 
Nursing Workforce 
Board Sponsor  Director of Nursing  

Commentary 
Nursing spend on the 
inpatient wards has remained 
much the same this month, 
however the ward nursing 
WTE per bed has reduced, 
which reflects the reduction in 
the use of additional staff  
which were used to supported 
areas requiring staffing of  
increased acuity of patients. 
The increased ratio of 
unregistered to registered 
nurses reflects the numbers of 
unregistered nurses required  
above the funded 
establishment to provide 
Enhanced Care.  
 
Agency expenditure in April 
reduced to a total of 5.5% of 
the nursing pay cost.  
Heads of Nursing, Finance, 
and HR continue to meet 
fortnightly to accelerate 
progress in reducing agency 
spend, improving rostering 
practice and reviewing other 
opportunities for safe staffing 
efficiencies. 
 

Ratio of Registered : Unregistered Ward Nurses  (Target 60:40) 
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19 Safe Staffing   
Nursing Workforce  
Board Sponsor  Director of Nursing 
 

From April 2016 Riverside Unit  has 
transferred from North Bristol Trust(NBT) 
to  Avon and Wiltshire Partnership Trust 
and therefore will cease to be reported 
by NBT. April saw an improved fill rate in 
Registered Nurses for both the day and 
night shifts. 
The areas which flagged this month 
below 80% fill rate are: 
Central Delivery Suite  
The fill rate for Maternity Care Assistants 
(MCA) on day shift  dropped to 78% due 
to increased sickness levels. The day 
shift was balanced with an increased fill 
rate of registered midwives. Safe staffing 
during the day was also maintained with 
the MCA’s moved from theatre to provide 
assistance when required.  
Intensive Care Unit The fill rate for Care 
Assistants(CA) on days was 66.7% and 
on Nights was 74.2%. The dependency 
of the patients being cared for during 
part of April reflected a reduced 
dependency and this shortfall was not 
required to be filled. Recruitment for CA 
has gone well and the fill rates should 
improve further as staff complete 
supernumerary periods. The staffing on 
the unit is reviewed twice daily to ensure 
safe staffing is in place in line with the 
dependency of patient requirements. 
Gate 9A 
The fill rate for Registered Nurses on day 
shifts saw a slight decrease for the third 
month at 77%. In order to maintain 
safety there was an increased use of 
care assistants, particularly assistant 
practitioners who have an increased 
level of knowledge and skill. Staff are 
also moved from within the Directorate to 
provide support if required. There is an 
ongoing recruitment plan for the ward 
being monitored by the Head of Nursing. 

The numbers of hours Registered Nurses (RN) and Care Assistants (CA), planned and actual, on both day 
and night shifts are collated manually by each gate/ department  every month. This data is uploaded on 
UNIFY for NHS Choices and also on our Website showing overall trust position and each individual gate 
level. The breakdown for each of the ward areas are available on the external webpage.  

April  2016 Day shift Night Shift 
  RN/Midwife Fill rate CA Fill rate RN/Midwife Fill rate CA Fill rate 
Cossham 92.2% 90.0% 96.7% 100.0% 
Southmead  94.9% 114.6% 98.4% 124.1% 
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20 Safe Staffing      
Maternity  
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 Commentary 
This report  provides information about 
midwifery staffing and will track for the 
board, the occasions when Central 
Delivery Suite is unable to take 
admissions and why. 
The CQC report published in April 
showed maternity  and gynaecology 
services rated as Good in all domains. 
Mendip birth centred was awarded ‘ 
Team of the year’ this month for their 
commitment following a year of change 
and upheaval. 
The Midwife to birth ratio was at 1:30 in 
April which benchmarks favourably 
within the south west.  
1:1 care in labour in April is 97%, this is 
an improvement of  4.2% from year 
15/16 when it was  93.8%, another 
incremental  increase  since 14/15 
The total number of births in year 15/16 
was 6,570 an increase of 135 births. 
 
81.5 % of women gave birth on the 
delivery suite,  9.5%  gave birth in the 
co-located birth centre and 6.9 % births 
occurred at Cossham birth centre. We 
also had 103 home births in year 15/16, 
which compares to 104 in 14/15 
 
5 day Caesarean section lists have been 
piloted since Sept 1st 2015, and have 
been successfully approved to continue 
in 2016/17 through business planning. 
 
Acuity and number of midwives required 
is monitored for delivery suite 4 hourly 
during the 24 hour period (The Birth-rate 
plus acuity tool). 
April 2016 has seen  no closures of the 
unit. With no transfers to other maternity 
providers. 
  

DON51 
999 DON53 

999 

Midwife to Birth Ratio 

May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 

1:32 1:32 1:32 1:32 1:32 1:32 

Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 

1:33 1:30 1:29 1:30 1:30 1:30 
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21 Quality & Patient Safety 
Additional Safety Measures 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 Serious Incidents 
8 Serious incidents were reported to 
STEIS in April 2016:: 
1 x 12 Hour Trolley Breach  
1x Mental Health Admission 12 Hour 
Breach 
1 x Unintended damage to organ 
1 x Surgical Complication 
4 x Falls 
Summary of SIs:  
The 12 hour trolley breach involved two 
patients. An RCA is underway for each 
patient to review any possible harm.  
From this month Mental Heath 12 hour 
breaches will be reported by NBT for 
investigation by AWP. 
The unintended organ damage was a 
patient was lost to follow up who required 
renal stent removal.  
The surgical complication was a 
suprapubic catheter inserted into the 
bowel identified 6 weeks post procedure. 
There has been a high number of serious 
falls in the last two months. The quality 
improvement team are working with ward 
staff to identify preventative actions using 
a SWARM approach within 72 hours. 
Serious Incident Rate 
The general trend for Directorates 
remains generally unchanged. SI’s have 
generally increased for the new 
directorate ASCC. The SI rate remains 
above NBT average this month. 
Incident Reporting 
The latest NRLS report shows NBT is 
comparable with other Trusts on the level 
of SI’s however, reporting of incidents at 
low level harm is below the National 
average. Indicators show the trust to be 
operationally driven to report rather than 
proactive in terms of patient care issues.  
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22 Quality & Patient Safety  
Additional Safety Measures 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 Incident reporting deadlines 
The trust has had 2 months of no 
breaches for RCA submissions. 
 
Top SI Types in past 12 months 
In the rolling 12 month period falls 
remain the most prevalent at 31 in 
twelve months. Unexpected deaths 
are now the second most prevalent 
Serious Incident types. Pressure 
ulcer incidents feature less in the  
re-occurring serious incidents rates 
and continue on a downward 
trend.  
 
Other categories: 
Missed Diagnosis 
Incorrect Test Results 
Unintended Damage to Organ 
Delayed diagnosis 
Unexpected Admission to NICU 
Lost to Follow Up 
Wrong Site Surgery 
Maternal Death 
Information Governance 
Wrong Route Medication 
12 Hour Trolley Breach 
 
CAS Alerts 
No safety notices breached the 
target dates.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Data Reporting basis 
The data is based on the date a serious incident is 
reported to STEIS. Serious incidents are open to being 
downgraded if the resulting investigation concludes the 
incident did not directly harm the patient i.e. Trolley 
breaches. This may mean changes are seen when 
compared to data contained within prior months’ reports. 
 

  Patient 
Safety Facilities Medical 

Devices 
New Alerts 1 0 0 
Closed Alerts 0 0 0 
Open alerts (within 
target date) 1 0 0 

Breaches of Alert 
target 0 0 0 
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23 Safety 
Harm Free Care    
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing 

Harm Free Care 
The trusts reportable ‘harm free’ rate 
remained below the national target of 94%  
for the 4th consecutive month. In April there 
has been an increase in both community and 
hospital acquired Catheter Associated Urinary 
tract infections, with an increase in falls. Due 
to the ongoing drop in performance for the 
safety thermometer a ‘deep dive’ is underway 
for presentation at QRMC in July 2016. 
   
Overall Falls  
The Falls rate was 7.17 per 1000 bed days in 
April. There were 4 Serious Incident falls 
(inpatient falls resulting in hip fracture). The 
SWARM approach continues to be used for 
Falls SIs to ensure early learning from these 
incidents. Senior Nursing teams are being 
reminded to use the falls  sensors now that 
they have had training to ensure this 
becomes more routine practice where 
appropriate. By August there will be new 
documentation in place to support falls 
prevention on the wards including: 
A new falls care plan 
A new medication review tool for doctors 
A new post falls form  
Falls maps on all wards 
Multi professional safety briefings on all 
wards. 
We are awaiting completion of the works in 
the en-suites to install shelving and in the bay 
bathrooms to replace toilet roll dispensers to 
enable safe use of mobility equipment. 
 
Gender breaches 
The Trust reported 6 gender breaches on one 
occasion in April in the Emergency 
Department Observational Unit (EDOU) . 
These occurred  when there were insufficient 
cubicles within  the EDOU to prevent gender 
breaches.  All approval for gender breaching 
is via an Executive, and all breaches are 
validated against the Service level Agreement 
conditions for Mixed Sex accommodation  
and CQC guidance 
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24 Safety          
Harm Free Care  
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 Pressure Ulcers  
Pressure ulcer incidence for April  has  
reduced to 6.1 per 10,000 bed days. 
Incidence by grade: 
Grade 4:  No reported incidence this 
month  maintaining the internal  Trust 
target of  of zero cases. 
Grade 3:  No reported cases for April 
maintaining the internal  Trust target of  
of zero cases 
Grade 2:  22 reported cases  for April  
occurring on 18 patients.  Each 
Directorate have been informed of their 
pressure ulcer  occurring within their 
clinical areas by grade and  anatomical 
location.  
Programmes of training and prevention 
awareness continue across the Trust 
with link practitioner meetings and  
education days held in March and April 
respectively supported by a Trust wide 
newsletter and pressure ulcer steering 
group. Continuing the drive to reduce 
incidence and embed practices during 
2016/17. 
 
VTE Risk Assessment 
The Trust continues to work through a  
Remedial Action Plan agreed with 
commissioners in respect of the 95% 
target. This is overseen through the CCG 
Quality group. The primary issue relates 
to the timeliness of coding rather than 
the clinical completion of risk 
assessments. To achieve the final 2-3% 
cases not coded, and incomplete 
assessments will now be reviewed.   

TO BE 
COMPLETED 
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25 Safety   
Additional Safety Measures  
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 WHO Checklist 
Completion and recording locally of 
WHO compliance has continued 
throughout the Lorenzo 
implementation and stabilisation 
period. Data has now been pulled 
into trust level reporting for the first 
time since Lorenzo implementation. 
The data validity for the intervening 
months is questionable and needs 
further review to ensure it does not 
reflect a drop off in clinical practice. 
There is no reason to believe this to 
be the case.  
 
Nutrition 
Nutrition screening has improved to 
81.7% (March figures 76.5%). The 
Improvement action plan and 
nutritional driver diagram have been 
shared with all the ward sisters in 
order to seek improvement in 
nutritional assessment of patients. A 
baseline audit of both nutritional and 
hydration care and documentation 
was undertaken in January 2016 
which showed where improvement 
was required. This was re-audited on 
18th May. Significant training for all 
senior nurses on wards in completion 
of nursing assessments on Lorenzo 
has taken place over the past 2 
months, and it is hoped that this will 
have an impact on improvement in 
line with the planned trajectory as 
shown. The Trust multi professional 
working group on nutrition are 
leading the  work to ensure the focus 
on malnutrition continues.  
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26 Safety  
Medicines Management:   Medicines Related Incidents 
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

Missed Doses  
Missed Doses data is available in 
arrears. Results are still under the 
target but improvement work is still 
being undertaken in Admissions. 
 
Incidents  
NBT has a multidisciplinary 
“Medication Safety Subgroup” to 
review all drug related incidents from 
eAIMS. There is feed back to 
reporters and managers to improve 
accuracy of reports. Data is shared 
via a dashboard through the 
Medicines Governance Group. 
 
Incidents involving high risk drugs 
appear to have risen during 2015 
and this is being investigated to 
determine if this relates to increased 
reporting or genuine increase in 
incidents. There is generally 
increased reporting nationally, but 
data does  change in August linked 
with the change in medical staff. 
Reporting in November increased 
dramatically as many more reports 
were being generated pre CQC visit. 
  
Major incidents 
No “major” incidents have been 
reported in February.     
  
Themes/ Types / High risk drugs 
The most common causes of 
incidents are shown and reflect the 
past year.    
 

Actual Impact 
Ma
r 15 

Apr 
15 

May-
15 

Jun-
15 

Jul-
15 

Aug-
15 

Sep-
15 

Oct-
15 

Nov-
15 

Dec-
15 

Jan-
16 

Feb-
16 Total 

Near 
Miss/Insignificant 

93 111 107 84 74 82 89 95 135 105 102 86 1163 

Minor/Moderate 16 13 11 17 41 36 19 33 35 37 34 37 329 
Major/Catastrophic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 109 124 118 101 115 118 108 128 170 142 136 123 1492 
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27 Safety   
Infection Control  
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

 Commentary 
MRSA 
There were zero reported cases 
of MRSA Bacteraemia in April  
2016.  
 
C. Difficile 
For the second consecutive 
month the Trust reports zero 
cases of C.difficile. The annual 
target is 43 cases. 
To maintain Trust focus on the 
reduction of C.difficile a thematic 
review of lapse in care cases for 
2015/16 has been carried out.  
Identified themes include the 
cleanliness of  the 
environment/point of care 
equipment and prompt patient 
sampling. 
 
MSSA 
There were no Trust responsible 
cases for April. There have been 
2 cases year to date. The 
internally set trajectory by the 
Trust for 2016/17 is 20. The Trust 
continues its involvement in the 
IPC National collaborative 
improvement programme in 
association with NHS 
Improvement. 
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28 Safety 
Infection Control  
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

 Commentary 
Public Health England (PHE) 
Benchmarks 
Data published by PHE 
demonstrates that NBT has 
established a positive position for 
MRSA and C. difficile being 
below both the National and 
Regional rates.  
 
Hand Hygiene 
The Trust Hand Hygiene 
compliance is meeting the Trust 
standard. 
 
 
Norovirus 
During March there were 4 
clinical areas placed under 
restricted access due to 
norovirus. This included 2 wards 
and 3 bay areas and resulted in 
135 bed days lost. 
 
Collaborative working with both 
the clinical and facilities teams 
allowed for prompt resolution to 
those areas under restricted 
access with the wards becoming 
operational on the cessation of 
clinical symptoms and incubation 
period. 
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29 Facilities Management  
Cleaning performance against the 49 Elements of The National Specifications for Cleanliness in the 
NHS  
Board Sponsor: Director of Facilities 

Commentary  
 
Cleaning performance has shown 
an improvement during April with 
low and significant areas reaching 
well above target. Very high risk 
areas have also improved while 
audit scores in high risk areas 
have remained stable.  
 
Activities to enable further 
improvement: 
 
• Recruitment to existing 

vacancies for FM Duty 
Managers and Team Leaders 
is complete, and successful 
applicants are due to start in 
June.  

 
• Recurring themes in poor 

audits are being identified and 
rectified 

 
• A full review of the audit 

package (C4C) is underway. 
 

• Regular performance review 
meetings between Senior team 
and frontline managers have 
been instigated. 

 
• Full review of Cleaning Policy 

and procedure is ongoing.  

Very High Risk Areas Includes: Wards, ICU, Theatres, NICU, AAU, ED, RDU etc. 

High Risk Areas Includes: Wards, Inpatient & Outpatient Therapies, Neuro OPD, 
Cardiac/respiratory OPD, Imaging Services etc. 

Significant Areas Includes: Audiology, Plaster rooms, Cotswold OPD etc. 

Low Risk Areas Includes: Christopher Hancock, Data Centre, Seminar Rooms, Office 
Areas, L&R (non-lab areas) etc. 

• North Bristol Trust have increased the NHS 49 elements to 52 
• 36 of these elements are managed by Soft FM i.e. Domestics Services and Estates 
• 13 of the elements are managed by Nursing only and 3 are jointly managed by Nursing & Domestic Services 



 
 
 
 
 

30 XXXX 
XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

Commentary  
XXXX 
XXXXX 
XXXX 

30 Effectiveness     
Mortality  
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

 
Commentary  
Activity and coding data 
continues to be validated for 
the post Lorenzo 
implementation period and has 
impacted the mortality data 
within Dr Foster. 
 
Data has consistently 
demonstrated that mortality at 
North Bristol Trust is below the 
expected level. 
 
Four areas are shown with the 
most common causes of death 
in the Trust. None are 
statistically outlying. The 
neuroscience directorate is 
reviewing the data relating to 
intracranial injury and reporting 
outcome to the Quality 
Surveillance Group. 
 
The process of individual 
patient mortality review 
continues to be developed. 
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QUALITY   PATIENT EXPERIENCE 
SRO   Sue Jones   Director of Nursing 
 

Section Summary  

Improvements & Actions 
In May we changed provider for FFT to Healthcare Communications.  This change allows us to now use SMS 
and voice recording as well as cards, the system provides real-time reporting and will ensure patient experience 
is used for improvement. 
  
The Emergency Department has delivered a significant improvement in their response rate for April at 27%, they 
were also to FFT achiever for the month, with 94.64% of patients who would recommend. 
 
 
Trends 
Overdue complaints were much the same for April (47 in month).  The the number of days overdue is 
decreasing and systems and processes are improving such that single figures are expected for the clinical 
directorates in June and Medicine are close to zero overdue.  Work continues with Directorates to make this 
sustainable.  Further work is planned with the Patients Association implement a quarterly lay review of 5 or 6 
complaints particularly those where the complainant has not been happy with the initial response.   
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32 Caring 
Friends & Family Test   Trustwide Position 
Board Sponsor  Director of Nursing   

The Net Promoter Score (NPS) whilst  no 
longer a national requirement is still 
measured to provide greater granularity of 
patient  experience.  
April 2016 data  
Inpatients 
•96.95% respondents would recommend 
1018/1050  
•1.05% would not recommend 11/1050  
•The Net Promoter Score of 81.9 an increase 
from March of 78.8 
 Response rate overall has increased from  
16.7% in March to 21.32% (1050/4925 
attendances) Required rate=30%. Gates with 
a response rate below 10% will be asked to 
provide an exception report. 
 
Emergency Department 
Response rate of  27% a significant increase 
from the March rate of 13.69% (1361 
responses from 4633 attendances) 
•94.64% of respondents would recommend 
1288/1361 responses 
• 1.54% would not recommend 21/1361 
Waiting times continue to be cited as the 
main reason for  this. 
•The Net Promoter Score is 69.94, an 
increase from March 68.78 
 
Outpatients 
Response rate of 3.67% an improvement 
from March 0.96% 1188/33447 attendances.  
•91% respondents would recommend 
•3% would not recommend (this was 9% in 
March) 
•The Net Promoter Score has decreased to 
66.31 from 71.02 in March 
 
Maternity – Overall 
•97% of respondents would recommend 
improved from 93% in March 251/258 
responses 
•0.4%would not recommend, 1/258 
responses (was  2.8% in March) 
•The Net Promoter Score is 70.65 up from 
65.8 in March 
• Response rates dropped again to 12.78% 
Healthcare Communications implemented in 
May with Text reply facility will improve this. 

           NBT % Patients would recommend                National % Patients would recommend                NBT % patients would not  rec                  
………  National Response Rate            NBT Response Rate            National % Patients would not recommend               Response Rate Target 
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33 Caring  
Friends & Family Test Maternity Pathways 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing   

Maternity – Ante Natal 
Response rate is 13.23% an 
improvement from 4.44% in March 
• 98.67% respondents would 
recommend, improved from 95.56% in 
March 
• 0% would not recommend, this was 9% 
in March  
• Net promoter 75.7 was 66.7 in March 
 
Maternity – Delivery 
Response rate 10.25% down from 
22.08% in March  
•98.28 respondents would recommend 
an increase from March of 94% 
•0% would not recommend  was 1.6% for 
March 
•Net promoter 77.6  
 
Maternity – Post Natal – Inpatient 
Response rate 12.53% a decease from 
18% in March 
• 92.59% would recommend was 88.89% 
in March  
•0% would not recommend (was 3.70% 
in March) 
•Net promoter  51.95  
 

Maternity – Post Natal – Community 
Response rate 15.64% Improvement 
from 7.05% in March  
•98.59% would recommend improved 
from 93.75% in March  
• 1.41% would not recommend (was 
2.8% in March). 
•Net promoter 71.8  
 

NBT Top Achiever for April was the 
Emergency Department with a Response 
Rate of 27%, 94.64% respondents likely 
to recommend, only 1.54% would not 
and NPS of 69.94. 

        RR Antenatal   RR Delivery  % Recommend Antenatal 
 % Recommend Delivery             %  Not Recommend  Antenatal %  Not Recommend  Delivery 
 NPS Antenatal  NPS Delivery  RR Target  

Comment of the Month: Gate 33A –’Wouldn’t recommend an inpatient stay to 
anyone but at a push I’d be most happy if they came here. The team are 
exceptional’  

FFT Update : seeking improvement In response rates and use of data 
In May 2016 Healthcare Communications became our provider for FFT solutions with SMS and Interactive voice messaging for 
patients in ED, Outpatients, Day case and Maternity. This is yielding good responses, with response rates in Outpatients already 
at 19%.  One of the benefits is real-time reporting on response rates and qualitative feedback immediately accessible at ward 
and department level to all who have requested login. Action can be taken and information used daily, for example at hand 
overs. We have the ability to provide Quarterly reports at directorate level, reporting on to the Patient Experience Group.  
 
Inpatient remains with Cards for feedback . There will be trial using Tablets and also SMS/IVM in wards that wish to trial these 
methods in September. Where cards work they will remain. The ownership will be with the ward teams.  
 
There has been a few Information governance challenges in ensuring that patients who wish to opt out of there contact number 
being used in this way. This is being address with the support of Director of IM&T. 
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34 Caring       
Complaints & Concerns 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 Commentary 
52 complaints and 48 concerns 
were received in April continuing 
the decrease from February. The 
swing towards concerns was 
maintained  reflecting the move 
toward lower level issues such as 
parking, infrastructure and  
appointment waiting times. 
The NHS 3 day acknowledgement 
target was maintained by ACT. No 
complaints opened since April 2015 
have exceeded the 6 month target. 
Overdue cases are much the same 
at 47.  Further use of devolved 
responsibility to directorates to set 
and manage deadlines will assist  
ACT in reducing the overdue figure. 
As was the case last month a 
number of cleared cases just 
missed the response deadline. 
Of the cases closed in March (to 
account for late responses) those 
completed within agreed timescale 
climbed to 118 cases or 80.27%. 
The exceptions were: 
• 5.44% (8) were 1-10 days 

overdue, 
• 40.8% (4) were 10–20 days 

overdue 
• 10.20% (15) were greater than 

20 days overdue (this compares 
to 8.7% at end of March). 

Clearing all backlogs remains an 
priority. 
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35 Caring        
Complaints & Concerns 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Commentary 
The top 3 categories of complaint 
for April continue to reflect the 
ongoing trend; Clinical care, 
Communication (including Staff 
Attitude), and Delays and 
Cancellations. However, the 
situation in respect of tracking 
patient medical notes has definitely 
improved. 
All written responses continue to 
be fed back to the directorates to 
inform on style and good practice 
in responding to complainants.  
The recent NHS Choices web-
posts continue to reflect more 
positive comments.  In April the 
star ratings given were: 
4 x 5 Stars 
3 x 2 Stars 
1 x 1 Star 
2 new cases were reported for 
investigation by the PHSO in April 
and 2 investigations were 
concluded neither of which was 
partially upheld. 4 more cases 
were reported as received and 
being considered before any 
investigation is confirmed.  

QRMC have reviewed a deep dive 
of cases referred to the 
ombudsman. 

N.B. If all avenues for 
complaint resolution 
have been exhausted 
and the complainant is 
still dissatisfied with the 
Trust’s response, the 
complaint has the right 
to take their complaint to 
the PHSO. Cases can 
take many months from 
‘new’ to ‘decision’ which 
means the volumes 
shown represent 
differing time periods 
and will not therefore 
‘add up’ within any given 
period. 

Parliamentary Health Service Ombudsman (PHSO) Cases 
  Q2 15/16 Q3 15/16 Q4 15/16 Apr-16 

New Cases referred to PHSO 3 5 9 2 

No. of cases fully upheld 0 0 2 0 

No. of cases partially upheld 0 0 4 0 

No. of cases not upheld 2 4 2 2 

Fines levied Nil Nil 2 Nil 

Corrective Actions Compliant 
within timescales 2 2 5 N/A 

Non- compliant N/A N/A 2 N/A 
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Well Led 
SRO Jacolyn Fergusson: Interim Director of Workforce & OD 

Section Summary  

Improvements & Actions 
 
 The Quarter 1 Staff Friends and Family Test has been launched to staff in ASCC, MSK, Neurosciences and Renal & 

Outpatients.  All staff will get the opportunity to respond to the survey over the course of the year.  In a change to previous 
surveys, 5 additional questions have been asked to measure and track progress against the target corporate improvement 
areas identified in the last national staff attitude survey. 

 There were 111 wte new starters in April, offset against leavers there was a net gain for the Trust of 30 WTE which continues the 
recent trend 

 Implementation of an applicant tracking system could provide a transformation of the recruitment processes  and scoping of  a 
system called TRAC which is recognised by the NHS which links to ESR and NHSJobs2 is taking place. 

 
Temporary Staffing Summary: 
• Plans to transfer agency locums to Bank, FTC or substantive posts and a move to a direct engagement model going through the 

procurement process 
• NBT Extra continue to grow the bank with external advertising and recruitment campaigns and streamlining the process to enrol 

people onto the Bank 
 
Trends 
 Sickness absence levels remain above trust set target of 3.8%. In March the absence rate was 4.56% (4.57% year to date). The 

new financial year target is 4.2% (annual average) and we predict the absence rate for April will be 4.51%. 
 The Trust vacancy factor has maintained the same level in April as in March at 6.5%. 
 Turnover has also been maintained at the same level in April as March at 9.8% 
Areas of Concern 
• There is still a high demand for temporary staffing which is well above the Trust’s trajectory.  Many new staff in the pipeline will 

not join until September/October. 
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Standard 
(target) 

March 2016  
Most recent 

quarter’s average 
performance  

(Q3 Sept – Dec 15) 

 
 

Quarterly Trend (Q1 vs Q2) Performance 
against national 
target / contract 

Trend from last 
month 

Turnover 
(voluntary/perm staff) 

 
9.8% 

 
 
 

 
9.2%             10.5%(in Q1) to 9.6% (in Q2) 

Trustwide Sickness 
Absence (target 3.8% - 
in Arrears) 
  

 
4.6%             4.4% (in Q1) to 4.4% (in Q2) 

                     

WTE Bank (usage) 
 
 

 
590.03 

 
612.9                677.3 (in Q1) to 665.8 (in Q2) 

WTE Agency (usage) 
 
 

 
146.31 

 
255.7               274.5 (in Q1)  to 306.2 (in Q2) 

Mandatory Training 
Compliance (Target 
85%) (one month in 
arrears) 

 
 

83.6%              88.0% (in Q1) to 87.4% (in Q2) 

Well Led 
Summary Dashboard 
Board Sponsor Director of  Workforce & OD 

83.6% 

4.5%  
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38 Well Led        
Turnover  
Board Sponsor   Director of Workforce & OD 

Turnover  
Included: permanent staff who have 
resigned voluntarily & fixed term staff 
who left before the end of their 
contract. 
 
Excluded: bank workers, locums, 
junior doctors, service transfers, 
expected end of fixed term contracts, 
retirements, dismissals, 
redundancies, and internal 
movements/transfers. 
 
Trust voluntary turnover levels 
remain largely unchanged since 
August 2015.  
 
There were 306 leavers (244 wte) 
leavers in April, predominantly 
reflected the transfer of the final 
CHHP staff which account for 207 
staff (163 wte). 
 Period % Turnover Period % Turnover

May 15 - Apr 16 9.9% May 14 – Apr 15 10.6%

Apr 15 – Mar 16 9.9% Apr 14 – Mar 15 10.9%

Mar 15 – Feb 16 10.2% Mar 14 – Feb 15 10.6%

Feb 15 – Jan 16 10.1% Feb 14 – Jan 15 10.3%

Jan-15 - Dec-15 10.0% Jan 14 – Dec 14 10.0%

Dec-14 – Nov 15 10.3% Dec-13 – Nov 14 9.6%

Nov-14 – Oct 15 10.3% Nov-13 – Oct 14 9.5%

Oct-14 – Sept -15 10.3% Oct-13 – Sept -14 9.2%

Sept 14 – Aug -15 10.3% Sept 13 – Aug -14 9.2%

Aug 14 – July 15 10.5% Aug 13 – July 14 8.9%

July  14 – June 15 10.2% July  13 – June 14 8.7%

June 14 – May 15 10.7% June 13 – May 14 8.1%

Turnover from Voluntary Resignations
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39 Well Led  
Recruitment 
Board Sponsor   Director of Workforce & OD 

Recruitment  
 
April saw an improvement  in recruitment 
performance  with an increase in starters from 
82 wte for March to 111 wte new starters for 
April. This was in part due to running two 
inductions in April. 
 
In April the net gain of staff for the Trust was 
30 wte (as 81 wte left the Trust excluding 
CCHP leavers). 
 
Registered Nurses 
 
• 41 Registered Nurses and 39 non-

registered nurses started during April.  
• We have organised our next Recruitment 

Open Day to take place on the 7th June, 
this is being advertised via NHS Jobs, 
RCN and Social Media platforms. 

• We have a current pipeline of 144 
Registered Nurses and 55 Non-
Registered Nurses. 100 of the 144 are 
Newly Qualified Nurses that are due to 
start in August/September 2016. The next 
Newly Qualified advert will go live in July 
to interview in October for students that 
qualify in January 2017.  

• The RN pipeline is currently being 
reviewed together with NQ numbers and 
increased establishments to make a 
decision on whether more overseas 
recruitment is required.  

• There is a rolling campaign to recruit to 
Theatre Practitioners (a hotspot area) 
along with a Medicine Directorate 
recruitment campaign. 

 
 
Vacancies 
 
The Trust vacancy factor has remained the 
same from 6.55% in March to 6.5% in April.  
Note this does not include the nursing 
establishment increases currently under 
review that  if approved will increase the 
vacancy factor for Nursing and Midwifery 
Registered and Unregistered Nursing. 
 
 

Staff Group
Funded 

Establishment 
April

Vacancy WTE 
March (Exc. 

CCHP)

Vacancy WTE 
April

Vacancy 
Factor March 
(Exc. CCHP)

Vacancy 
Factor April

Add Prof Scientific and Technic 145.0 9.2 6.4 6.2 4.4
Additional Clinical Services 410.9 22.3 25.0 5.4 6.1
Administrative and Clerical 1468.6 84.2 83.1 5.7 5.7
Allied Health Professionals 358.2 28.0 20.3 7.6 5.7
Estates and Ancillary 704.3 70.4 63.8 9.9 0.1
Healthcare Scientists 359.9 25.4 18.9 6.8 5.2
Medical and Dental 931.6 68.9 71.1 7.4 7.6
Nursing and Midwifery Registered 2085.7 114.3 109.7 5.5 5.3
Unreg. Nursing 985.9 66.2 85.8 6.9 8.7
Trust 7449.96 488.945126 484.107276 6.55 6.5
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40 Well Led 
Sickness Absence 
Board Sponsor   Director of Workforce & OD  

 
Sickness Absence 
 
Sickness Absence 
 
Sickness absence levels remain above 
trust set target of 3.8%. In March the 
absence rate was 4.56% (4.57% year to 
date). Target for 16/17 now 4.2%  
 
In April, there were 150 long term 
sickness cases logged with Ask HR and 
34 short term sickness cases.  As can be 
seen from the chart, the number of cases 
being managed through Ask HR is 
gradually increasing. 
 
In addition to the work that is being 
undertaken to manage staff who are 
absent due to sickness in accordance 
with the sickness policy, a plan is being 
formulated to achieve the new Health & 
Wellbeing CQUIN.  This involves: 
Introducing a range of physical activity 
schemes for staff 
Improving access to physiotherapy 
services for staff 
Introducing a range of mental health 
initiatives for staff 
 
It is anticipated that these initiatives will 
support the plan to improve attendance 
as well as achieve the CQUIN.  Plans 
must be submitted by July 2016. 
 
Note : sickness absence trajectory has 
been calculated using seasonal adjusted 
averages over the last 3 years aiming for 
target of 3.8% by March 16.  
 

 

DOHR09 
056 
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41 Well Led      
Pay & Agency Usage  
Board Sponsor   Director of Workforce & OD  

 Bank and Agency 
 
April has seen a reduction in the use of 
agencies  both Framework and  Non 
Framework  not only within nursing but all of 
our other staffing groups including FM, Admin 
and Clerical.  
 
With the demand on temporary staffing 
decreasing due to the substantive posts now 
being filled  means that the bank no longer 
covering a large numbers  of  vacancies so 
has also seen an increase on bank fill rates. 
 
Work is still being carried out for Medical 
Locums Tenders are being released through 
the Crown Commercial Service  Framework in 
the next few weeks along with a Direct 
Engagement  Model which will bring the Trust 
savings when using self employed  locums 
staff.   
 
The retendering process continues  with 
Procurement  for all staffing groups to ensure 
the Trust receives the best value for money  
and fill rate. 
 
Internal projects are also taking place to 
review rates, WLI and  processes. And 
bookings. .  
 
On-going actions include: 
Plans to transfer agency locums to Bank, FTC 
or substantive posts 
NBT Extra continue to grow the bank with 
external advertising and recruitment 
campaigns 
Streamlining the process to enrol people onto 
the Bank. 
 
Pay Expenditure 
There was a significant decrease in April 
compared to March in the overall pay 
spend – this is predominantly due to the 
transfer out of CCHP.  Agency expenditure 
was a significant factor contributing to this. 
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42 Well Led     
Mandatory Training  
Board Sponsor   Director of People & Organisation Health  

Mandatory Training  
 
Appraisal completion data for 16/17 
contains some data from the 15/16 
appraisal year that cannot be 
disaggregated from the current year.  
The effect is to show a more positive 
compliance position. 
 
Compliance in March saw a slight 
increase in compliance overall with 
some areas remaining stable and 
others increasing. 
 
This trend is expected to increase 
over the summer months as we 
enter a period of stability and with 
the beginning of the next appraisal 
round which see’s compliance linked 
to incremental pay. 
 
Communications to staff will be 
launched alongside the appraisal 
information outlining again the 
importance of compliance for patient 
and staff safety as well as pay 
progression linkage 
 
Appraisal Completion – non 
medical staff  
 
The year-end completion which 
covers the appraisal year 1st April 
2015 – 31st March 2016 = 58.6% . 
 
A review of the appraisal process 
and the criteria required in order to 
be awarded an increment is currently 
underway.  
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Compliance with menu of mandatory training DOHR13 
194 

Health & Safety 88.50%

Infection Control 86.00%

Waste 85.80%

Information Governance 84.80%

Fire 81.90%

Child Protection 81.60%

Equality & Diversity 80.10%

Manual Handling 79.90%

Mandatory 
Training
(Target 85%)

Compliance
March-16
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43 Well Led   
Medical Workforce  
Board Sponsor  Medical Director  

The appraisal year ended on 
the 31st March 2016. It is 
expected that 100% of the 
appraisals that were due will 
have been completed by the 
end of June 2016 which meets 
the NHS England requirement 
that appraisals occur within a 
maximum of 15 months of the 
last appraisal. 
 
16/17 will be the start of 
appraisal year 4 since 
revalidation was introduced for 
doctors. All doctors who had a 
license to practice with the 
GMC at commencement of the 
process have now been 
through their first revalidation. 
 
The revalidation team continue 
to work with appraisal leads on 
improving quality of appraisal 
as well as ensuring timeline. 
 
An annual report on the 
revalidation process will be 
presented to the board in July 
2016. 
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44 FINANCE   
SRO   Catherine Phillips   Director of Finance  

Section Summary  
Summary 
For the year to date the Trust has a deficit of £6.9m which is £1.6m adverse to plan 
• The primary drivers for the adverse to plan were lower than planned income of £1.4m together with a non-

pay overspend of £0.9m offset by pay underspend of £0.8m.   
• The cash balance is £1.0m 
• The Trust drew down £6.0m of working capital facility in April, bringing the total to £25.3m. 
• Capital expenditure is £0.8m for the year to date.  
• The Trust is rated red by NHS Improvement(NHSI) as a result of the planned year end deficit of £48m  

Areas of concern  
• Contract income continues to be lower than plan. Contract Income is £0.6m below plan primarily due to 

elective activity. 
• Total pay expenditure  reduced in April compared with March (£28m compared with £28.3m) driven by 

reduced agency costs.  The reduction in agency expenditure offset an increase in pay  costs due to the 
impact of the pay award and increases in national insurance contributions in April 2016. 

• Non Pay expenditure was £0.9m overspent in month. This reflects the shortfall in the savings programme 
and also overspends on drugs and other supplies. 
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Commentary 
Assurances 
The financial position for April 
shows a deficit of £6.9m 
compared with a planned budget 
deficit of £5.3m. This represents 
an adverse position to plan of 
£1.6m for the year to date. 

Key Issues 
Contract income is £0.6m 
adverse to plan driven by under 
delivery from elective specialties.  

Pay was favourable to plan, 
primarily due to reduced agency 
spend.  

Non pay was £0.9m adverse to 
plan – mainly due to  lower than 
planned savings delivery coupled 
with additional expenditure on 
drugs and other supplies. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Finance 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 
 

 

Budget £m Actual £m
Variation from 
budget (Adv) / 

Fav £m
Income 

Contract Income 36.9 36.3 (0.6)

Other operating income 6.3 5.5 (0.8)

Donations income for capital acquisitions 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Income 43.2 41.8 (1.4)

Expenditure

Pay (28.9) (28.1) 0.8

Non-Pay (14.9) (15.8) (0.9)

Total Expenditure (43.8) (43.9) (0.1)

Earnings before Interest & depreciation (0.6) (2.1) (1.5)

-5.02%

Depreciation & Amortisation (1.9) (2.0) (0.1)

Non PFI Interest receivable 0.0 0.0 0.0

Non PFI Interest payable (0.1) (0.2) (0.1)

PFI Interest (2.7) (2.7) 0.0

PDC Dividend 0.0 0.0 0.0

Impairment 0.0 0.0 0.0

Retained Surplus / (Deficit) for accounting 
purposes (5.3) (7.0) (1.7)

Add back items excluded for NHS 
accountabil ity

IFRIC 12 Adjustment 0.0 0.0 0.0

Donations income for capital acquisitions 0.0 0.0 0.0

Depreciation of donated assets 0.0 0.1 0.1

Impairment 0.0 0.0 0.0

Adjusted Surplus / (Deficit) for NHS 
accountability (5.3) (6.9) (1.6)

Position as at 30 April 2016
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Commentary 
 
Assurances  
 
The Trust drew down £6.0m of 
working capital facility in April. 
 
Non Current assets are above 
the plan for the year but in line 
with the March position due to the 
revaluation of the estate 
undertaken in March 2016. 
  
Concerns & Gaps  
 
The level of payables is reflected 
in the Better Payment Practice 
Code (BPPC) is below the 
required 95% with 51% of 
payments made within 30 days.   
 
 
Actions Planned 
 
The Trust continues to focus on 
cash management, including 
ensuring recovery of outstanding 
debts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Finance 
Statement of Financial Position 
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 
 

 
31 March 2016    

Actual £m
30 April 2016     

Plan £m
30 April 2016    

Actual £m

Variance above 
/ (below) plan 

£m

Non current assets
516.1 Property, Plant  and Equipment 500.5 515.0 14.5
12.0 Intangible Assets 4.1 12.0 8.0

528.1 Total non-current  assets 504.6 527.0 22.4
Current  Assets 

9.7 Inventories 9.1 9.8 0.7
20.2 Trade & other Receivables NHS 27.5 26.8 (0.7)
25.7 Trade & other non-receivables Non-NHS 14.2 26.7 12.5
1.0 Cash and Cash equivalents 3.1 0.9 (2.3)

56.7 Total Current Assets 53.9 64.2 10.3
27.8 Non-current assets held for sale 27.5 27.8 0.3

612.6 Total Assets 586.0 619.0 33.1
Current liabilities  (< 1 year)

9.3 Trade & other payables – NHS 15.8 10.8 (5.0)
91.4 Trade & other payables – Non-NHS 86.8 98.9 12.1
1.4 Borrowings 1.4 2.2 0.8

10.0 PFI l iabil ity (current) 10.5 10.0 (0.4)
112.1 Total current liabilities 114.4 122.0 7.5
(55.5) Net current assets / (liabilities) (60.6) (57.8) 2.8
500.5 Total Assets less current liabilities 471.5 497.1 25.6
14.6 Trade payables and deferred income 7.2 7.8 0.6

406.3 PFI l iabil ity 405.7 405.5 (0.1)
65.2 Borrowings 71.2 76.3 5.1
14.4 Total Net Assets (12.5) 7.5 20.0

Capital and Reserves
241.4 Public dividend capital 241.4 241.4 0.0

(272.9) Income & Expenditure reserve (324.5) (314.2) 10.2
(41.4) Income & Expenditure account – current year (5.3) (7.0) (1.7)
87.3 Revaluation reserve 75.9 87.3 11.5
14.4 Total Capital and Reserves (12.5) 7.5 20.0
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Commentary 
 
Assurances 
Sufficient cash  for our planned 
deficit has been made available 
to the Trust via the interim 
working capital facility and DH 
loan.   
 
Concerns & Gaps  
 
The Trust has a red rating on the 
NHSI (NHS Improvement) risk 
assessment criteria as a result of 
the deficit for 2015/16.  
 
NHSI also measures the Trust 
against the risk ratings used by 
Monitor.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Finance 
Financial Risk Ratings  
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 
 

 

1.  NHSI Overall Risk Assessment Criteria Rating:

Year to date

Red

2.  Financial Sustainability Risk Ratings:

Indicator Year to date
Overall rating 1

Trust Overall Rating
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Commentary 
 
The Trust £1.6m adverse against 
the planned deficit in April. 
 
Capital expenditure is £0.8m for 
the year to date, which is below 
the plan for the year to date due 
to delay in start on a number of 
PHI phase II related projects. 
 
 
 
Assurances and Actions 
Planned  
  
Monthly review of capital plans 
and actions to ensure the overall 
capital resource limit is achieved.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Finance   
Rolling Cash Flow Forecast, In Year Surplus, & Capital Programme Expenditure 
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 
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Commentary 
 
Assurances  
 
Sustainability delivery group 
reviews in year savings and 
development of workstreams for 
future year schemes. 
 
Concerns & Gaps  
 
The graph shows in-year delivery 
which totals £17m which is below 
the required level for the year  
 
 
 
Actions Planned  
Focus on savings Programme 
delivery and identification of 
schemes for 2016/17 including the 
impact of Carter 
recommendations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Finance   
Savings 
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 
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50 REGULATORY VIEW 
Overall Commentary 
Board Sponsor   Chief Executive Officer 
 

  
 

 

Regulatory Area May  
15 

Jun 
15 

Jul  
15 

Aug 
15 

Sep 
15 

Oct 
15 

Nov 
15 

Dec 
15 

Jan 
16 

Feb 
16 

Mar 
16 

Apr 
16 

Finance Risk Rating 
(FRR) 

Red Red Red Red Red Red Red Red Red Red Red Red 

Board non-compliance 
statements 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 

Prov. Licence non-
compliance statements 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CQC Inspections RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI 

CQC reports history (all sites) 

Summary 
The Governance Risk Rating (GRR) for ED 4 hour performance continued to be a challenge through 2015/16 and into 2016/17, actions to improve and sustain this standard 
are set out earlier in this report. A recovery plan is in place for RTT  incompletes and long waiters (please see Key Operational Standards section for commentary). Cancer 
figures are undergoing final validation therefore, whilst indicative, the figures presented are not necessarily reflective of the Trust’s finalised position.  
 
We are scoring ourselves against the NTDA Accountability Framework (AF). This requires that we use the performance indicator methodologies & thresholds provided and a 
Finance Risk Assessment based upon  in year financial delivery & Monitor’s Risk Assessment Framework. 
 
Board compliance statements – number 4 (going concern) and number 10 (ongoing plans to comply with targets) warrant continued board consideration in light of the in year 
financial position (as detail within the Finance commentary) and ongoing performance challenges as outlined within this IPR. The Trust is committed to tackling these 
challenges and revised recovery trajectories have been submitted to the TDA as outlined elsewhere in this report and are scrutinised on an ongoing basis through the monthly 
Integrated Delivery Meetings. 

Location Standards 
Met 

Report 
date 

Overall Requires 
Improvement 

Apr-16 

Child and adolescent 
mental 
health wards (Riverside)  

Good Feb-15 

Specialist community 
mental 
health services for children 
and young people 

Requires 
Improvement 

Apr-16 

Community health services 
for children, young people 
and families 

Outstanding  Feb-15 

Southmead Hospital Requires 
Improvement 

Apr-16 

Cossham Hospital Good Feb-15 

Frenchay Hospital Requires 
Improvement 

Feb-15 
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51 Regulatory View  
Monitor Provider Licence Compliance Statements at March 2016 
Board Sponsor   Chief Executive Officer 

  

Ref Criteria Comp 
(Y/N) 

Comments where non compliant or at risk of non-compliance 

G4 

Fit and proper persons as 
Governors and Directors (also 
applicable to those performing 
equivalent or similar functions) 

Yes Existing processes sufficient.  New requirements have been discussed and processes are being put in place 
to ensure compliance with the new regulations. 

 

G7 
Registration with the Care 
Quality Commission 

Yes CQC registration is in place. No outstanding non-compliance actions with CQC. The Trust is scheduled for 
inspection by the CQC in early November 2014. 

G8 
Patient eligibility and 
selection criteria 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

P1 
 
Recording of information 

Yes A range of measures and controls are in place to provide internal assurance on data quality. Further 
developments to pull this together into an overall assurance framework are planned through strengthened 

Information Governance Assurance Group. 

P2 
 
Provision of information 

Yes Information provision to Monitor not yet required as an aspirant FT. However in preparation for this the Trust 
undertakes to comply with future Monitor requirements. 

P3 
Assurance report on 
submissions to Monitor 

Yes Assurance reports not as yet required by Monitor since NBT is not yet a Foundation Trust. However, once 
applicable this will be ensured. Scrutiny & oversight of assurance reports will be provided by Trust's Audit 

Committee as currently for reports of this nature. 

P4 
 
Compliance with the National Tariff 

Yes NBT complies with national tariff prices. Scrutiny by CCGs, LAT and NTDA provides external assurance  
that tariff is being applied correctly. 

P5 
Constructive engagement 
concerning local tariff 
modifications 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

C1 
The right of patients to make 
choices 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

C2 
 
Competition oversight 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

IC1 
 
Provision of integrated care 

Yes Range of engagement internally and externally. No indication of any actions being taken detrimental to care 
integration for the delivery of Licence objectives. 

 Self-assessed, for submission to NHS I 
Ref Criteria Comp 

(Y/N) 
Comments where non compliant or at risk of non-compliance 

G4 

Fit and proper persons as 
Governors and Directors (also 
applicable to those performing 
equivalent or similar functions) 

Yes Existing processes sufficient.  All Executive and Non-Executive Directors have completed a self assessment  
and no issues have been identified. A Fit and Proper Person Policy is being developed for approval in 

September 2015. 
 

G5 
Having regard to monitor 
Guidance 

Yes The Trust Board has regard to Monitor guidance where this is applicable 

G7 
Registration with the Care 
Quality Commission 

Yes CQC registration is in place. The Trust received a rating of Requires Improvement from its inspection in 
November 2014. A number of compliance actions were identified which are being addressed through an 

action Plan. The Trust Board receives regular updates on the progress of the  action plan through the IPR. 

G8 
Patient eligibility and 
selection criteria 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

P1 
 
Recording of information 

Yes A range of measures and controls are in place to provide internal assurance on data quality. Further 
developments to pull this together into an overall assurance framework are planned through strengthened 

Information Governance Assurance Group. 

P2 
 
Provision of information 

Yes Information provision to Monitor not yet required as an aspirant FT. However in preparation for this the Trust 
undertakes to comply with future Monitor requirements. 

P3 
Assurance report on 
submissions to Monitor 

Yes Assurance reports not as yet required by Monitor since NBT is not yet a Foundation Trust. However, once 
applicable this will be ensured. Scrutiny & oversight of assurance reports will be provided by Trust's Audit 

Committee as currently for reports of this nature. 

P4 
 
Compliance with the National Tariff 

Yes NBT complies with national tariff prices. Scrutiny by CCGs, LAT and NTDA provides external assurance  
that tariff is being applied correctly. 

P5 
Constructive engagement 
concerning local tariff 
modifications 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

C1 
The right of patients to make 
choices 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

C2 
 
Competition oversight 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

IC1 
 
Provision of integrated care 

Yes Range of engagement internally and externally. No indication of any actions being taken detrimental to care 
integration for the delivery of Licence objectives. 



XXXX 
XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

52 

No. Criteria Comp 
(Y/N) 

No. Criteria 
 

Comp 
(Y/N) 

1 

The Board is satisfied that, to the best of its knowledge and using its 
own processes and having had regard to the TDA’s oversight model 

(supported by Care Quality Commission information, its own 
information on serious incidents, patterns of complaints, and 

including any further metrics it chooses to adopt), the trust has, and 
will keep in place, effective arrangements for the purpose of 

monitoring and continually improving the quality of healthcare 
provided to its patients. 

Yes 8 

The necessary planning, performance management and corporate and 
clinical risk management processes and mitigation plans are in place to 

deliver the annual operating plan, including that all audit committee 
recommendations accepted by the board are implemented satisfactorily. 

Yes 

2 
The board is satisfied that plans in place are sufficient to ensure on 
going compliance with the Care Quality Commission’s registration 

requirements. 
Yes 9 

An Annual Governance Statement is in place, and the trust is compliant 
with the risk management and assurance framework requirements that 

support the Statement pursuant to the most up to date guidance from HM 
Treasury  (www.hm-treasury.gov.uk). 

Yes 

3 
The board is satisfied that processes and procedures are in place to 
ensure all medical practitioners providing care on behalf of the trust 

have met the relevant registration and revalidation requirements. 
Yes 10 

The board is satisfied that plans in place are sufficient to ensure ongoing 
compliance with all existing targets (after the application of thresholds) as 
set out in the relevant GRR; and a commitment to comply with all known 

targets going forwards. 

No 

4 
The board is satisfied that the trust shall at all times remain a going 
concern, as defined by the most up to date accounting standards in 

force from time to time. 
Yes 11 

The trust has achieved a minimum of Level 2 performance against the 
requirements of the Information Governance Toolkit. No 

5 
The board will ensure that the trust remains at all times compliant 

with regard to the NHS Constitution. 
 

Yes 12 

The board will ensure that the trust will at all times operate effectively. 
This includes maintaining its register of interests, ensuring that there are 

no material conflicts of interest in the board of directors; and that all board 
positions are filled, or plans are in place to fill any vacancies. 

Yes 

6 
All current key risks have been identified (raised either internally or 
by external audit and assessment bodies) and addressed – or there 

are appropriate action plans in place to address the issues – in a 
timely manner 

Yes 13 

The board is satisfied that all executive and non-executive directors have 
the appropriate qualifications, experience and skills to discharge their 

functions effectively, including setting strategy, monitoring and managing 
performance and risks, and ensuring management capacity and 

capability. 

Yes 

7 
The board has considered all likely future risks and has reviewed 

appropriate evidence regarding the level of severity, likelihood of it 
occurring and the plans for mitigation of these risks. 

Yes 14 

The board is satisfied that: the management team has the capacity, 
capability and experience necessary to deliver the annual operating plan; 
and the management structure in place is adequate to deliver the annual 

operating plan. 
Yes 

Regulatory View 
Board Compliance Statements at March 2016 
Board Sponsor    Chief Executive Officer 
 

 Self-assessed, for submission to NHS I 
  

Comment where non-
compliant or at risk of 
non-compliance 

As the Trust has not yet achieved a sustainable position in relation to delivery of the 4 
Hour A&E and RTT due to a reliance on external system changes/factors, the Trust is 
unable to confirm compliance with this statement 

Timescale for 
compliance: 

To be determined and agreed by the Board  



 
 

Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  9 

Date of Meeting: 2 June 2016 

 
Report Title: Safe Nurse Staffing – 6 Monthly Assurance Report 

Status: Information Discussion Assurance Approval 

X  x x 

Prepared by: Sarah Dodds, Deputy Director of Nursing  (Part A)  
Lisa Marshall, Interim Director of Midwifery (Part B) 

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Sue Jones, Director of Nursing and Quality 

Appendices (list if applicable): Appendix 1 
  Achievements against National Quality Board Expectations 

 
Recommendation:  

Part A 
The Trust Board is asked to note this report; 

• The assurance regarding actions already underway and actions planned to ensure staffing levels are safe, effectively monitored 
and published openly in line with the 10 NQB expectations and NICE guidance. 

• The outcome of the Safe staffing reviews undertaken in April/ May 2016  
• Approve the recommendations for changes to establishments.  
• Note planned changes nationally in reporting staffing from May 2016  

Part B 
 The Trust Board is asked to note this report; 

•     The assurance that a 6 monthly review of staffing across all maternity areas has taken place to ensure safe staffing in line with NICE 
guidance. 

The outcome of the establishment and budget review has enabled: 
• 1.4 wte midwife to provide a 7 day triage service for Maternity assessment. 
• 3 wte clerical band 2 staff to support centralised booking. 
• Sonography increase of 0.85 wte. 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

Executive Summary:  

            Following the Francis report, the National Quality Board (NQB) published guidance1 that set out the expectations of commissioners and 
providers for safe nursing and midwifery staffing,  in  order  to  deliver  high  quality  care  and  the  best possible outcomes for patients. This 
was followed by the NICE guidance Safe staffing for nursing in adult inpatient wards in acute hospital2

 (July 2014) and Safe midwifery 
staffing for maternity settings3 (Feb 2015). NICE recommended that their guidance is read alongside that of the NQB guidance. 

 
In June 2015 the Chief Nursing Officer for England confirmed that there would be changes to the safe staffing agenda for all care settings 
going forward. She emphasised the importance of the NQB expectations and NICE guidance but explained that safe staffing would now be 
led by NHS Improvement w ho would work closely with NICE, CQC and Sir Robert Francis, to ensure that there is no compromise on 
staffing and its impact on patient safety.        
 
The Lord Carter Review (2016)4 highlights the importance of ensuring that workforce and financial plans are consistent in order to optimise 
delivery of clinical quality and use of resources. The review described a new nursing workforce metric to be used (Care Hours per Patient Day 
(CHPPD) along with a model hospital dashboard. 
   
NBT continues to report the following  in line with  the NQB recommendations:  
 

• 6 monthly Trust Board report re: Safe staffing 

• Board level report detailing planned and actual staffing for the previous month. 

• Monthly report published on the Trust’s website, and uploaded onto NHS Choices website 

• Nursing/Midwifery staffing levels each shift (planned and actual) displayed at ward level 

A full panel review of safe staffing took place of all in patient areas in May 2016 and the methodology and results of this are highlighted within 
the report and split into 3 components; approved changes to establishment, further review/data required and winter capacity. The Total 
financial impact of these changes totals £4.2m. 

North Bristol Trust (NBT) was one of 12 Trusts who commenced the 90 Day Innovation programme for Enhanced care in September 2015,  
both the patient experience and financial outcomes are described with the next steps underway in Trust wide roll out to achieve 20% cost 

1 How to ensure the right people with the right skills are in the right place at the right time, NQB November 2013 
2 https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/sg1 
3 https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng4 
4 https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/499229/Operational_productivity_A.pdf 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

avoidance  in Enhanced care by September 2016.  

The recruitment initiatives, challenges and risks are described, with some planned mitigation to support and ensure safe staffing is in place. 
With the implementation of the agency rules and pay cap and the tight controls enacted, reduction in agency has been achieved in April 2016.   

The Maternity report shows the workforce changes and innovations which have occurred within Community, Assessment Units, Birth centres 
and the acute unit.  Maternity acute unit staffing has previously struggled to provide consistent 1:1 care in labour for the increased acuity of the 
women using the service. Methodology for reviewing staffing and capacity is based on the Birth rate plus calculating tool, NICE guidance and 
professional judgment, in conjunction with length of stay and bed modelling. 

An evidence based tool is used to measure acuity and appropriate staffing requirements and following panel review and a review of budgets 
have  invested in  the following; 
 

• 1.4 wte midwife to provide a 7 day triage service for Maternity assessment. 

• 3 wte clerical band 2 staff to support centralized booking. 

• Sonography increase of 0.85 wte. 

 
 Midwifery are fully recruited and achieving a midwife to birth ratio of 1:30. 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 
1. Purpose 
 The purpose of this paper is to provide the Board with a 6 

monthly report on Nursing and Midwifery staffing and to provide 
assurance that the Trust has a clear validated process for 
monitoring and ensuring safe staffing and that a formal 6 month 
review has been undertaken. 

 
2. Background 

Following the Francis report, the National Quality Board 
(NQB) published guidance that set out the expectations of 
commissioners and providers for safe nursing and midwifery 
staffing,  in  order  to  deliver  high  quality  care  and  the  best 
possible outcomes for patients. This was followed by the NICE 
guidance Safe staffing for nursing in adult inpatient wards in 
acute hospital

 (July 2014) and Safe midwifery staffing for 
maternity settings (Feb 2015). NICE recommended that their 
guidance is read alongside that of the NQB guidance. 
 
In June 2015 the Chief Nursing Officer for England confirmed 
changes to the safe staffing agenda for all care settings going 
forward. She emphasised the importance of the NQB 
expectations and NICE guidance but explained that safe 
staffing would now be led by NHS Improvement who would 
work closely with NICE, CQC and Sir Robert Francis, to ensure 
that there is no compromise on staffing and its impact on 
patient safety.  
 

           The Lord Carter Review (2016) highlights the importance of 
ensuring that workforce and financial plans are consistent in 
order to optimise delivery of clinical quality and use of 
resources. The review recommended use of a new metric , 
Care Hours per Patient Day (CHPPD)  to be collected monthly 
(beginning in April 2016) and for this to be collected daily from 

April 2017, along with improved efficiency in the use of E-
Rostering and implementation of the concepts of Enhanced 
Care. CHPPD is one part of the nursing workforce component 
of the model hospital which is being developed with the Carter 
Trusts and other volunteer trusts. NBT was one of the test sites 
for monitoring CHPPD and for implementation of the 90 day 
innovation Enhanced Care Programme.  

 
CHPPD is used to describe both the staff required and staff 
available in relation to the number of patients. It is calculated 
by adding the hours of registered nurses to the hours of 
healthcare support workers and dividing the total by every 24 
hours of in-patient admissions (or approximating 24 patient 
hours by counts of patients at midnight). It can be broken down 
by grade – initially registered nurses and healthcare support 
staff, but ultimately bands/grades within these groups and all 
other staff groups contributing to ward-based care, including 
Allied Health Professionals.  While total CHPPD will be 
reported, it will be split into registered nurses and healthcare 
support workers to ensure skill mix and care needs are met. 
 
Demonstrating sufficient staffing is one of the essential 
standards that all health care providers must meet in order to 
be compliant with CQC requirements and we have been 
required to publish staffing data since April 2014. The data 
which we have been providing has been: 

 
• 6 monthly Trust Board report re: Safe staffing 

• Board level report detailing planned and actual staffing for 
the previous month. 

• Monthly report published on the Trust’s website, and 
uploaded onto NHS Choices website. 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 
• Nursing/Midwifery staffing levels each shift (planned and 

actual) displayed at ward level. 
 

Boards must, at any point in time, be able to demonstrate 
to their commissioners that robust systems and processes 
are in place to assure themselves that the nursing, 
midwifery and care staffing capacity and capability in their 
organisation is sufficient to provide safe care. All NHS Trusts 
are accountable to NHS Improvement and will be expected 
to provide assurance that they are implementing the NQB 
staffing guidance and that, where there are risks to quality of 
care due to staffing, actions are taken to minimise the risk.  
 
See Appendix 1 which demonstrates where NBT benchmarks 
against the NQB expectations.  

 
3.  Approach taken to review safe staffing at North Bristol  
 The Nursing establishment review undertaken in April 2015 

enabled an additional 60 Registered Nurses(RN), 21 
Registered Midwives(RM)  and 60 Health Care 
Assistants(HCA)to be recruited, the recruitment process for this 
has been on going  with 304 RN’s recruited and 344 HCA’s 
from April 2015- March 2016. 

 
 When there is a shortfall in staffing until vacancies have been 

filled there has been a requirement to utilise agency nurses to 
ensure patient safety. With the  implementation of the agency 
rules and paycap in October 2015 a significant reduction in 
cost in Q3 was achieved, however due to significant winter 
pressures this was not sustainable in Q4. 

 
 The nursing and midwifery fill rates for Southmead Hospital for 

the past 6 months can be viewed in Table 1. 
 

 
  Oct  Nov  Dec Jan Feb Mar 
RN Day 94.7% 94.7% 94.5% 95.3% 93.3% 93.5% 
HCA Day 122.8% 117.2% 118.9% 120.8% 116.7% 114.4% 
RN Night 95.0% 96.7% 96.8% 99.5% 96.3% 95.6% 
HCA Night 134.6% 130.1% 132.5% 131.9% 130.9% 126.7% 

(Table 1) 
 
 There has been a noticeable increase in fill rates for January 

2016 when there was a significant increase in acuity of patients 
and additional capacity opened. All wards cont inue to reach 
a funded ratio of 1:8 or  less for  a day shif t , exclusive of 
the supervisory ward sister, and all inpatient wards are 
working to a minimum skill mix of an average RN/HCA ratio of 
60/40. 

 
 When there is a shortfall of registered nurses, on occasions 

unregistered staff are being utilised to ensure safe staffing. In 
addition the greater than 100% fill rates in HCA numbers 
are due to the high volume of ‘specials’ utilised to provide 
enhanced care. There has been a corresponding drop in the 
RN to HCA ratio which is predominantly due to the use of 
HCA’s used for enhanced care.  
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 Graph 1 shows the number of safe staffing incidents 
reported by month, these are all escalated to Heads of 
Nursing to review with alerts to the Director/ Deputy 
Director of Nursing when an incident occurs.  
 

  
 
              Graph 1 - Total number of staffing levels incidents 

 
6 monthly review – May 2016  
  
A full nursing establishment review was undertaken of all 
inpatient areas in April/ May 2016. This took the form of a 
panel review consisting of the Director of Nursing, Deputy 
Director of Nursing, Director of Finance/Director of 
Operational Finance and the Finance Business Partner 
for Nursing. Each Head of Nursing was accompanied by 
the General Manager, Finance Business Partner and HR 
Business Partner. They used a triangulation of data to 
support their reviews, these included: 
 

 
• a template demonstrating amounts and reasons for 

staffing  over establishment  in March 2016 

• Knowledge of pressures on wards for the past 6     
months and safe staffing incidents 

• Safe care data for each ward 

• Nursing and Midwifery  shift fill rates  

• Professional Judgment of Ward Sisters, Matrons, 
Head of Nursing  

The current vacancies for Registered Nurses are 109 wte 
and Non Registered Nurses are 85 wte as at April 2016. 

. 
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Changes in nurse staffing approved by the panel review as 
part of this 6 monthly review 
 
DIRECTORATE GATE/WARD CHANGES 

Women and 
Children 

NICU Increase in 1 registered nurse 
per shift , 7 days per week 

 Cotswold No change to current funded 
establishment for 19 beds 

Anaesthetics, 
Surgery and 
Critical Care 

33a No change 
 
 
 

 34a No change. Monitor high 
acuity and review in line with 
any changes in ITU capacity 

 34b No change 
Medicine 28a Increase in 10.4 wte Health 

Care Assistants to support 
enhanced care  

 28b Increase in 10.4 wte Health 
Care Assistants to support 
enhanced care 

 9b Increase in 10.4 wte Health 
Care Assistants to support 
enhanced care 

 32a Increase in 10.4 wte Health 
Care Assistants to support 
enhanced care 

 Elgar 2 No  change required to current 
establishment 

 8a No change required to current 
establishment 

DIRECTORATE GATE/WARD CHANGES 
 27b Increase in Respiratory HDU 

beds from 4 to 6 beds, 
required increase in 5.2 wte 
Registered Nurses  

 27b Isolation 
Suite 

Increase in 5.2 wte Registered 
Nurses  and reduction of 5.2 
wte Unregistered Nurses  

Renal 8b Increase in enhanced care 
budget required of 2 wte 
Health Care Assistants. To be 
closely monitored using Safe 
Care 

 
 Outpatients No additional funding required 
 Acute Dialysis No additional funding required 

Neurosciences 25a Increase in enhanced care  
budget required of 11 wte 
Health Care Assistants 

 6b Increase in enhanced care 
budget required of 1.4 wte 
Health Care Assistants. 
Monitor high acuity and review 
in line with any changes in ITU 
capacity 

 7a Increase in enhanced care 
budget required of 1.4 w.t.e 
Health Care Assistants and 
increase of 4.2 w.t.e Health 
Care Assistants for Video 
Telemetry beds 

 9a Increase in enhanced care 
budget of 5.2 wte Health Care 
Assistants. 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
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DIRECTORATE GATE/WARD CHANGES 
Musculoskeletal 26b Increase in 0.8 wte Health 

Care Assistant. Increase in 2 
wte Housekeepers as 
previously unfunded due to 
speciality change 

 7b Replace previously removed 
Health Care assistant 1.4 wte 

 25b Internal funding released has 
funded increase in  1.32 wte 
Health Care assistant on an 
early shift 7 days per week 

 26a Increase in 0.64 wte health 
care assistant  

 
 
Changes reviewed at Panel – requiring further review  
 
DIRECTORATE GATE/WARD CHANGES 
Anaesthetics , 
Surgery and 
Critical Care  

33b Increase in 2.8 wte Health 
Care Assistant subject to  
business case  

 ICU This will be subject to a 
business case for additional 
bed capacity when required 

 Theatres Any increases in Theatre 
staffing will be subject to a 
business case in line with 
increased capacity 

 
Medicine 

Elgar 1 Increase in 5.2 wte Health 
Care Assistant proposed, will 
be reviewed once safe care 
data completed. 
 

DIRECTORATE GATE/WARD CHANGES 
 27a Requires further review of 

CCU funding and proposal for 
increase in 5.2 wte Registered 
Nurses, once safe care data 
received  

 32b No current increase in staffing 
, keep under review the 
requirement for Registered 
Mental Health Nurse 5.2 wte 
funding for 1:1 care 

Medicine Acute Medical 
Unit ,ED, 
Additional 

Capacity on 
Elgar 1 and 2 

Additional requirements for 
these areas to be considered 
as part of the winter plans by 
the Directorate. 
4.2 wte Registered Nurses  
3.5 wte Health Care Assistant  

Core Clinical Interventional 
Radiology 

This requires further review for 
staffing procedures for 
Interventional Radiology 
Additional Capacity for 
Monday – Friday nights 3.62 
wte RN  

Women and 
Children  

Cotswold  Additional Capacity for winter 
planning ( 6 months)  
1.3 wte RN,2.6 wte HCA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 

8 
 
 



North Bristol NHS Trust 
 
Financial Implications of staff changes 
 

• Total staffing change equate to: 
 

    wte 
TOTAL RN 38 wte 
  HCA 82 wte 
      
Approved RN 18.7 wte 

  HCA 
64.44 
wte 

      
Further 
review RN 10.4 wte 
  HCA 8 wte 
      
Winter RN 9.1 wte 
  HCA 8.7 wte 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

• Approved changes will cost £2.4m, with further reviews 
underway not yet approved of £0.8m and winter plans of 
£1.0m 

 
• This brings the proposed total funding requirement to: 

£4.2m 
 
 
4.  Enhanced Care ‘Specialling’ Programme at NBT  
 

Over the past year the use of additional staff over and 
above both the funded and specialling establishments 
has led to a significant Trust financial and staffing 
concern. NBT was one of 12 Trusts nationally who was 
asked to join the 90 Day innovation Programme for 
Enhanced Care in September 2015. This programme was 
based on learning from work at Salford Royal NHS 
Foundation Trust where different approaches to delivering 
specialling care for vulnerable patients were undertaken. 
This was referenced as an example of good practice within 
the Lord Carter Review (2016). 
 

            There has been a significant reliance on temporary staff to 
provide this care in the past and through the training and 
testing of new assessment tools and concepts (firstly on 
4 wards) of one to one care this reliance on initially 
temporary staff and subsequently cost has reduced.  

 
 Prior to commencement of the project within NBT the decision 

to book a ‘special’ was based on staff intuition and concern that 
the patient may be at risk of harm. There was no systematic 
assessment of patients prior to commencing specialling and 

  £ 
TOTAL £4.2m 
Approved £2.4m 
Further review £0.8m 
Winter £1.0m 
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patients often continued to be specialled for the duration of 
their spell in hospital without formal review of whether this was 
still required. Staff providing the ‘special’ were often bank or 
agency staff, who received a limited handover of the patient’s 
needs and expectations of what staff were required to do was 
also often unclear. 

 
In September 2015, NBT was spending 21% above the funded 
nursing establishment on specialling, for the first 6 months April 
to August 2015 Trust wide, this equated to £2.3 Million. When 
this figure was compared with other Trusts in the innovation 
project NBT expenditure was 11% higher than any other Trust. 
Of all the Trust’s NBT was unique in the number of side rooms 
which each ward had. 
 

 The Enhanced Care Project Team was led by the Director of 
Nursing with representatives from each of the pilot wards, 
Neuroscience Education Lead, Dementia Care Matron, and 
Finance Partner and there was investment in a Project 
manager post for 8 months. Staff enthusiastically engaged with 
the project and attended 4 National workshops from September 
to January to learn the change methodology, generate new 
ideas, share NBT experience and bring back the learning to be 
implemented in their wards. Each ward was required to have 
the knowledge of, and undertake PDSA cycles, review and 
undertake assessments on patients receiving enhanced care at 
least every 24 hours and submit electronic data over the 3 
month period on the number of patients receiving enhanced 
care, the number and type (substantive/agency/bank) of 
additional staff used to deliver that care and the number of 
hours of enhanced care used. 

 
 
 

 Quality Outcomes of Enhanced Care programme  
 

 Each wards safety thermometer and friends and family test 
results were used as quality measures to monitor the 
impact of implementing the project to ensure that care had 
not been adversely affected. These measures remained 
largely unchanged in the pilot wards suggesting no adverse 
impact on the quality or safety of patient care. 

  
 As a result of the project, all patients are now risk assessed 

prior to initiating Enhanced Care, a care plan is in place, 
and a senior nurse review is undertaken at least every 24 
hours to ensure that they still require the same level of 
care. Staff complete a 24-hour activity chart detailing any 
triggers for the patient’s behaviour, how the challenging 
behaviour is exhibited, the interventions used to manage 
that behaviour and how the patient responded to that 
intervention. 

 
 This approach to enhanced care has increased the 

confidence of unregistered staff to understand and respond 
to the patient’s need, and enabled registered staff to make 
a decision to discontinue the use of Enhanced Care based 
on evidence gathered from the activity charts. 

 
      Financial Outcomes of the Enhanced Care programme  
 

 For the 4 pilot wards there has been a 13% reduction in 
expenditure on Enhanced Care from October 2015 to 
March 2016 when compared to their average Month 1 to 
Month 6.   The second group of wards commenced in 
January and achieved an 8% reduction in the first month.  
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           The target for each ward is to achieve a 20% reduction in 

cost by September 2016; this will result in £1m cost 
avoidance. 

  
 The graph below demonstrates how this can be achieved 

with a reduction in spend on Enhanced Care on one of the 
pilot wards, Gate 25b (Musculoskeletal), from £34k in 
November 2015 to £2k in March. 

   
 

 
 

Graph 2 – Enhanced Care expenditure Gate 25B 
 
 

5.   Behaviour and practice changes 
 
• The pilot wards have reduced the number of hours per 

day that patients receive one-to-one care and 

introduced cohorting (more than one) patients where 
appropriate. 

• Patients receiving Enhanced Care are reviewed by a 
Senior Nurse every 24 hours and discussed at every 
safety briefing  

• Activity Boxes have been introduced to ensure that 
patients are engaged in meaningful activity when 
receiving Enhanced Care  

• Activity charts and care plans have been developed to 
assist ward staff to monitor Enhanced Care  activity  

• Staff undertaking Enhanced Care are easily identifiable 
to all team members by wearing a yellow lanyard  

• Staff participation in the project has contributed to and 
shaped the Trust policy for Enhanced Care. 

The roll out programme for all wards throughout the Trust 
took place between January and April 2016; this mirrored 
the process that pilot wards experienced, with the 
implementation process accelerated as the tools had been 
rigorously tested and were ready for use.  
 
Learning from the pilot wards demonstrated that it was 
important to have early involvement of the Ward Sister to 
ensure all staff engagement. The strength of ward 
leadership was particularly evident by the Ward Sister on 
Gate 25b (Musculoskeletal) as demonstrated above, where 
significant change in practice and culture achieved a 
reduction with no change in patient group or quality 
indicators.   
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NBT was recognised at the end of the national project as 
being the Trust all the other Trusts on the Programme had 
learned most from. 
 
 

6.  Nursing workforce requirements and recruitment  
 
 The Heads of Nursing have been working closely with 

the Workforce planning and recruitment teams to 
formulate the nursing workforce plan to fill current 
vacancies, to manage turnover, and to retain staff 
recruited. 

 
 The Recruitment Plan includes as follows: 

• Nurse Recruitment and Retention Manager for one 
year fixed term post, this finished in April 2016. 

• Three Recruitment Consultants were appointed, who 
developed high quality recruitment plans for all 
recruitment across the directorates. Their roles also 
support a fast and responsive service and supported 
the Nurse Recruitment Manager with assessment 
centres and facilitating open days. 

• An annual schedule of recruitment is in place, with   
quarterly Recruitment Open Days for Registered 
Nurses and Healthcare Support workers. These have 
been held in November, March and a further one 
planned for June 2016.The Trust also has Job Fair 
stands at recruitment events. 

• Overseas recruitment to Spain in the past year has 
yielded 48 new recruits with excellent retention rates 
and their recruitment has encouraged further migration 
of Spanish Nurses within the United Kingdom to come 

to NBT. 

• Theatres have been actively recruiting using a variety 
of methods and whilst still using agency nurses to 
replace a short fall in anaesthetics they have seen a 
marked reduction in agency use. 

• Adult Intensive Care Unit has been very actively 
recruiting and currently there are 42 beds open, a 
further business case will come as part of the 
intensive care expansion. 

• There are shortages of experienced renal dialysis 
nurses and recent national adverts have yielded little 
response, in addition a recent review of age profiles 
within renal nursing indicate there will be further 
shortages within the next few years. The directorate 
is proactively recruiting Registered Nurses and utilise 
the directorate’s inpatient ward areas as a training 
area for all newly qualified nurses commencing their 
employment in the area. There is however a need to 
attract experienced renal nursing staff, this is now 
going to be part of a Non EU recruitment plan which 
will be progressed with the lifting of the visa status 
for nurses which has now occurred. The plan is to 
recruit 50 Non EU Nurses who will be able to 
commence work in several areas within the Trust in 
the next year. 

 
7. Supernumary status  

 
 The implementation of the supernumary policy for all new 

starters has ensured that there is a consistent approach 
utilised across the Trust. Each new starters previous 
experience is now reviewed against the recommended 
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supernumerary period to ensure optimum efficiency of the 
induction period. 

 
 
 
8.       Risks 
 

• Whilst both registered and unregistered nurse 
recruitment has been substantial over the past 6 
months, with the increase in the number of vacancies 
following approval of the increased staffing levels 
and current turnover rate the volume of vacancies 
may prove difficult to fill with the current applicants. 
There is very close working between the nursing, 
workforce planning, finance and recruitment teams to 
ensure that data is readily available and risks are 
regularly reviewed. 
 

• The recruitment team will require support with the 
entire recruitment process once the additional posts 
are approved to ensure staff commence in a timely 
way. 

 
• There is a high use of agency and temporary staff 

on some wards and at times agencies are unable to 
fill shifts and therefore a risk assessment has to be 
made in order to manage staffing safely. 

 
• There is a risk for the Trust as the staff being recruited 

generally have less experience and  some  are  from  
overseas  and  will  require prolonged period of  
induction and on-going  supervision which in addition 
will have a training and financial impact. This is being 
mitigated within individual directorates who are 

utilising experienced nurses to work alongside newly 
registered nurses in a clinical tutor role. Support 
has also been provided from the Learning and 
Research clinical training teams. 

 

 
9. Agency Reduction  

 
• In October 2015 the Agency Rules5 were 

implemented and this was followed in November, 
February and April with the associated introduction of 
the pay cap. For the first 3 months NBT did well 
against the national recommendations in reducing the 
use of non-framework agencies, through collaborative 
working with staff. The implementation of these rules 
was within the context of providing safe patient care. 
Approval for all non-framework agency use has been 
and continues to be made by the Director/ Deputy 
Director of Nursing to ensure a robust and safe risk 
assessment is undertaken. A fortnightly nursing 
controls and e rostering meeting attended by Heads 
of Nursing, HR and finance has been instrumental in 
delivering this reduction.  
 

•  April 2016 has seen a reduction in both the use of 
overall agency use and significant reduction in Non-
framework agency use; with the current spend for 
nurse agency costs at 5.5% of overall nurse staff 
costs.  

 

5 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nursing-agency-rules 
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Graph 3 – Nursing agency % use  
 
 

NHS Improvement has set ceilings on the total amount 
individual trusts can spend on agency staff in 2016/17. 
From 1 April 2016 expenditure ceilings for agency 
nursing will be replaced with expenditure ceilings that 
apply to all agency staff groups.  
 

10 Conclusion 
             
         This paper has reviewed the past 6 months staffing fill   

rates, demonstrated the outcomes of the actions which 
have progressed over the past 6 months regarding 
recruitment and future plans in place to manage vacancies 
to ensure safe staffing. There has also been a more robust 
plan of staffing for additional capacity over the winter. There 
are 3 elements to the safe staffing review – approved 

changes, changes pending additional data / business cases 
and changes for winter capacity. 

 
           This report has highlighted the quality, patient experience 

and financial benefits gained as being part of the National 
Enhanced Care 90 day Innovation Programme. It also has 
explained the approach taken to manage the 
supernumerary status of new starters and the controls in 
place to manage the reduction in agency nursing required. 
It has described the recruitment and workforce plans in 
place and the risks with the number of new starters over the 
next few months.  

 
11 Recommendations 
 
 This report has demonstrated to the Board that a robust 6 

monthly safe staffing review of the inpatient areas listed 
has taken place.  

 
The Trust Board is asked to note this report: 
 
• Assurance regarding actions already underway and 

actions planned to ensure staffing levels are safe, 
effectively monitored and published openly in line 
with the 10 NQB expectations and NICE guidance. 

• The outcome of the safe staffing reviews undertaken 
in   April/ May 2016  

• Approve the recommendations for changes to 
establishments and investment of up to £4.2 M.  

• Note planned changes nationally in reporting staffing 
from May 2016.  
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Midwifery Safe Staffing Report   
 

1. Purpose: 
 

To provide an update to the Trust Board, of the 6 monthly safe 
staffing for the maternity service. 
 
2. Background: 
 
2014-2015 
 
Midwifery staffing, April 2013-March 2014, and March 2014- 
September 2014 was funded for 187 whole time equivalent (wte) 
midwives providing clinical care, In October 2014 an additional 10  
wte midwives were added into  the  establishment and appointed 
bringing the total in March 2015 to 197 wte. 
 
2015-2016 
 
In June 2015 there was Trust Board agreement to further increase 
Midwifery staffing by 11wte to bring the total wte to 210.67 
 
Staffing has been reviewed using Birth Rate Plus and is set at a 
skill mix ratio of 80:20 Registered Midwife to maternity support 
worker, the Registered Midwife staffing has improved the midwife 
to birth ratio to 1:30, against the SLA with commissioners of 1:32. 
 
1:1 care in labour has improved, the year to date average being 
93.9% from an average of 88.2% in 2014/15. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Total Births: 
 
2015/16 showed an increase in births to 6449, an increase of 146 
births from 2014/15 and a total increase of 362 births since 
2013/14. There is a trajectory of increasing intrapartum activity 
within the unit following increased bookings for NBT.  
(Table 1 and 2) 
 

Midwife to Birth Ratio 

Apr-
15 

May-
15 

Jun-
15 

Jul-15 Aug-
15 

Sep-
15 

1:34 1:32 1:32 1:32 1:32 1:32 

Oct-
15 

Nov-
15 

Dec-
15 

Jan-16 Feb-
16 

Mar-
16 

1:32 1:33 1:30 1:29 1:30 1:30 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

 
 
Table 1 
 

  
Table 2 
 

Unit closures April 14-March 15 were 33 in total (table 3) 
Unit closures April 15- March 16 were also 38 in total (table 4) 
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There has been an increase in closures due to the increased 
number of bookings and intrapartum activity, in conjunction with 
current bed capacity.  If the bookings continue to increase the 
current staffing would need to be reviewed to prevent closure due 
to staffing, although bed numbers do have an impact on closure 
with the increasing birth rate. 
 
Place of Birth 
 
Current Birthplace statistics show 81.5% of births take place in the 
high risk delivery suite and 16.4% in the Birth centres and home 
(Table 5). In line with the Place of Birth Study6, and the Maternity 
Review ‘ Better Births’ 7the aim is to change this to 70% in the 
Delivery Suite and 30% in the Birth centres and home locations; 
this is to promote normality and to reduce interventions. This will 
be achieved by telephone triage of all women entering the 
maternity service and signposting them to the correct place of birth 
(see below). 
 
Quantock Assessment Unit 
 
Quantock assessment unit is an area used to see women 
presenting with acute issues related to pregnancy, there are 
multiple patient episodes per day, and waiting times are often 
prolonged. A pilot offering telephone triage by an experienced 
midwife was undertaken to see if attendances could be reduced. 
Following the audit of piloting telephone triage, it was shown that 
there was a reduction in unnecessary admissions, staffing has 
now been allocated within budget, following a staffing and 
workload review to fulfil this role at Band 6 midwife level. This will 
commence in June 2016 and will be a 7 day service, 8.30-18.30. 

6 https://www.npeu.ox.ac.uk/birthplace 
7 https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/futurenhs/mat-review/ 

This will undergo evaluation and if continues to be successful will 
be increased to a 24hour service. Also all community staff screen 
women for place of birth and sign post to the low risk settings if 
appropriate. 
 
7 day flow Midwives 
 
The Maternity Department has also implemented 7 day flow 
midwives to enable patient flow to be managed efficiently, this 
commenced in October 2015, and the pilot has been successful 
and has reduced bed issues. 
 

 
 
Table 5  
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Community midwifery  
 
Community staffing is set at a skill mix ratio of 80:20, Registered 
Midwife to maternity support worker. 
 
The community midwives work to a midwife to caseload average 
ratio of 1:100 women and work with Maternity support workers to 
provide care. The Community service has completed a pilot for 
centralised booking to address some of the clerical requirements; 
the pilot has been evaluated and there are now 3 booking clerks in 
post providing support to the whole community team. To support 
increased activity within the community setting 2.5 wte midwives 
have been added to the community setting from adjusting budgets 
and amending the 21% leave entitlement to 19% which is aligned 
to a Monday to Friday service with limited weekend working. This 
allows caseloads to be maintained at 1:100. 
 
3.  Safe staffing  
 
In order to validate the closure data and to ensure safe staffing 
the Directorate purchased the Birthrate Intrapartum Acuity® 
System (BRIPAS) 
 
Data has been collated consistently since the 14th July 2014. This 
tool is for Intra- partum care only. The ward areas are staffed in 
line with NICE, who published Safe midwifery staffing for 
maternity settings in 2015.8 All staffing is monitored through the 
monthly safe staffing returns. 
 
Due to increased activity the acuity tool within the Delivery Suite, 
continues to show deficits in staffing, h o w e v e r  t h e  increase 
i n  wte in November 2015 has allowed for more flexibility and 
movement of staff to be responsive to service needs and to 

8 https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng4 

ensure safety and maintain our midwife to birth ratio at 1:30, 
benchmarking favorably within the south west region.  
 
Using the birthrate plus tool to model staffing capacity for future 
growth shows that a further increase of 300 births using current 
staffing numbers would change the ratios to 1:32. The ratio of 1:32 
although in line with the SLA with commissioners does not reflect 
the 1:29.5 as advocated by NICE; and the Trust achievement of 
achieving 1:30 in 2016. 
 
To maintain the ratios achieved currently of 1:30, any further 
booking and birth increases will need 6 monthly monitoring, should 
there be growth of a further 300 births there would need to be 
consideration of an increase of 10 wte to maintain the ratios 
supported by NICE. Each increase in annual bookings and births 
will need close monitoring and use of the Birthrate plus modelling 
to ensure capacity and staffing are reflecting each other. 
 
The CQC report in March 2016 rated Maternity Services as Good; 
an improvement from the previous 2014 rating of requires 
improvement. This was in direct result of improved investment in 
staffing and improved ratios from December 2015. Therefore 
careful monitoring of growth using the Birthrate plus tool will 
support the model of staffing required going forward. 
 
Although the staffing model allows for consistent growth over the 
next 6 months the actual bed model and building capacity will 
impact on the Directorates ability to continue to grow the market 
share of activity within Bristol. It should also be acknowledged that 
the growth in bookings and intrapartum care has been absorbed 
into the current estate and adjusted staffing model, but areas of 
pressure has been identified within the antenatal clinic and 
ultrasound service. Sonography has been identified within 
business planning as an area requiring growth due to forthcoming 
planned retirements therefore training places, to provide 
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sonographers for the future have been funded for 2016/17. 
Following panel review approval for an additional 0.85 wte 
sonographer was approved 4th May 2016. 
 
Consultant presence on delivery suite is recommended by NICE 
as 168 hours (hrs) per week with >5000 deliveries. NBT currently 
has 74hrs of consultant presence. 9 
 
Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts (CNST) requires Trusts to 
be working towards this standard; it has been difficult to achieve 
nationally due to funding and availability of senior obstetricians. 
Benchmarking nationally against units with >6000 deliveries 
demonstrates that our number of consultant hours on delivery 
suite is lower than other comparable units (University Hospitals 
Bristol 80hrs) However there is only one unit achieving 168hrs 
cover (St Mary’s, Manchester), and we consistently demonstrate 
that we deliver a safe service as shown in NBT maternity 
dashboard outcome data and the South West Strategic Clinical 
Network Maternity Dashboard data. 10 
 
All midwives have personal development opportunities, having an 
annual appraisal and open access to a Supervisor of Midwives 
(SOM), who also meets with them annually. Each SOM currently 
has a caseload of 1:18; the NMC recommendation is 1:15. In 
order to improve this ratio there are currently 2 supervisors in 
training.  This ratio supports development of midwives and will still 
be required when the NMC expectations regarding supervision 
change. 
 
 

9 Safer Childbirth standards (Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists et al 2007) 
and Standards for Maternity Care (RCOG 2008). 
 
10 http://maternitydashboard.swscn.org.uk/ 
 

Staff Development 
 
There is a formal development programme for transition from 
Band 6 to 7. This programme is in place on the delivery suite, in 
the community setting, and within the ward areas. There is also a 
band 7 to 8a development programme which launched in 
September 2015. 
 
All band 5 midwives have a named preceptor and follow a 
preceptorship package, on completion of the first year they 
transition to Band 6, and then proceed through the first Agenda for 
Change gateway on completion of competencies outlined in the 
Band 6 job description. 
 
The Maternity Department train in a multi-professional model, 
using PROMPT training, developed at Southmead Hospital. The 
training has supported safe emergency care despite increased 
acuity in the caseload. There is a robust clinical governance 
process and the maternity dashboard looking at outcomes is 
reviewed monthly in the Directorate Clinical Governance meeting 
and detailed Audits and case review is implemented using 
dashboard data, to ensure quality and safety of service. 
 
4. Summary 

 
Maternity acute unit staffing has previously struggled to provide 
consistent 1:1 care in labour for the increased acuity of the women 
using the service. 
 
An evidence based tool is used to measure acuity and appropriate 
staffing requirements and there has been an investment in staffing 
with an initial increase of 10 wte midwives to support the service 
delivery in October 2014. A further 11 wte were approved by the 
Trust Board in June 2015. The midwives were fully recruited by 
November 2015, ensuring a midwife to birth ratio of 1:30. 
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The new starters were predominately newly qualified band 5 
midwives and required a period of 4-6 weeks supernumery status 
this impacted on the requirement to continue using bank staff in 
some areas.  
 
A Strategic review of working models and skill mix is currently 
underway, this review includes medical staffing in obstetrics and 
gynaecology, and also advanced nursing and midwifery roles. This 
review will enable a full analysis of working models, to achieve 
100% 1:1 care in labour and to work within the current midwife to 
birth ratio of 1:30. 
 
The previous review of community midwifery services has 
Community work to a caseload ratio of 1:100 with an 80:20 ratio of 
trained to support staff is in line with recommendations. Clerical 
support was an identified area needing review. As previously 
described the pilot for centralised booking has now been made a 
permanent model with three clerks in post.  
 
Staff at all grades are provided with emergency skills and drills 
training, and have personal development discussed at annual 
appraisals, and for midwives also an annual review with their 
Supervisor of Midwives. Personal development Programmes are 
agreed between staff and their appraiser, and preceptorship 
packages are embedded within the Directorate. 
 
Methodology for reviewing staffing and capacity is based on the 
Birth rate plus calculating tool, NICE guidance and professional 
judgement, in conjunction with length of stay and bed modelling. 

 
5. Next Steps: 
 

• Full implementation of strategic staffing review is ongoing 
with the next phase of ‘shaping the future’ to be 

implemented by November 1st 2016, providing integrated 
working between the Birth Centre’s and the community 
setting. This will allow operational growth within the current 
staffing numbers through improved efficiency. 

• Ongoing audit of 1:1 care in labour. 

• Ongoing use of Birthrate Intrapartum Acuity® System 
(BRIPAS) to inform staffing requirements in relation to 
acuity. 

• Promote low risk setting as default birth place for all low 
risk. 

• Review of estates strategy to support further growth of bed 
capacity would support more activity within current staffing 
model. 

• Audit triage midwife role and increase hours dependent on 
audit results. 

6. Recommendations 
 

• Trust Board to note there has been a 6 monthly review of 
staffing across all maternity areas to ensure safe staffing in 
line with NICE guidance. 

• Establishment and budget review has enabled: 

o 1.4 wte midwife to provide a 7 day triage service for 
Maternity assessment. 

o 3 wte clerical band 2 staff to support centralized 
booking. 

o Sonography increase of 0.85 wte. 
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Appendix 1  
Achievements against National Quality Board Expectations 

 

Expectation What does this mean in 
practice? 

 NBT Position –May  2016 

1.Boards take full 
responsibility for the 
quality of care provided to 
patients, and as a key 
determinant to quality, take 
full collective 
responsibility for nursing, 
midwifery and care staffing 
capacity and capability. 

Includes all aspects of board 
reporting and monitoring of 
establishments, actual and 
day to day staffing levels 
Emphasis on hours 
monitoring included as part 
of the NICE guidance and 
the requirements for 
uploading information to 
NHS Choices 

In place – Monthly Board report presented since June 2014 which includes NHS Choices 
monthly submission. Visible on Trust Website and 6 monthly staffing establishment reports 
presented to Trust Board each year. 

2. Processes are in place 
to enable staffing 
establishments to be met 
on a Shift to Shift basis. 

Executive team should 
ensure that policies and 
systems are in place, such 
as eRostering and escalation 
policies. 

In place – daily monitoring through staffing meetings within Directorates and Trust wide. 
eRostering in place for all in patient areas includes ‘safe care’ module. We do not have Safe 
Care live Module yet, this would enable real time knowledge of acuity and dependency.  
Escalation policies in place for use of temporary staffing solutions with Head of Nursing sign 
off for Framework agency and Executive or Deputy Director of Nursing sign off for non -
framework agency. 

3. Evidence based tools 
are used to inform nursing, 
midwifery and care staffing 
capacity and capability. 

Use of proven methodologies 
and triangulation with 
professional judgement for 
setting staff levels 

In place – Benchmarking, Safer Nursing Care Tool, NICE guidance and professional 
judgement utilised as part of the 6 monthly staffing reviews. 

4. Clinical and managerial 
leaders foster a culture of 
professionalism and 
responsiveness where 
staff 
feel able to raise concerns 

Encourages working in well-
functioning teams supported 
by appropriate infrastructure 
and support model. Requires 
an open culture to report 
shortfall.  Staff side 
organisations have a role. 

In place – incidents received, monitored and themed monthly. 
Staff side review staffing fill rates and ratios monthly and escalate if concerned. Developing 
real time reporting system to capture safe staffing ‘red flag’ incidents, staff encouraged to 
ensure that when incident reporting clear red flags e.g.’Medication given late’ are included.  
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Expectation What does this mean in 
practice? 

 NBT Position –May  2016 

5. A multi-professional 
approach is taken when 
setting nursing, midwifery 
and care staffing 
establishments 

Directors of Nursing lead the 
process of reviewing staffing 
requirements and ensure 
that: 
There is a process in place 
actively involves sisters, 
charge nurses, or team 
leaders. 
They work closely with 
Medical Directors, Directors 
of Finance, Workforce (HR) 
and Operations.  
Recognising 
interdependencies between 
staffing and other aspects of 
the organisation’s functions. 

In place – Deputy Director of Nursing monitors safe staffing and Director of Nursing and 
Finance undertake staffing review panel. Heads of Nursing present to panel, along with 
General Manager, HR and Finance Business Partners and are key attendees at Monthly 
Nursing and Midwifery Workforce group. 
 

6. Nurses, midwives and 
care staff have sufficient 
time to fulfil 
responsibilities that are 
additional to their direct 
caring duties 

Recommendation on 
adequate Headroom (no 
percentages stipulated) 
Recommendations on 
supervisory time for ward 
leaders (no time stipulated) 

In place – headroom included in all budgeted staffing levels for wards at 21% exclusive of 
Maternity Leave. 
 
Supervisory ward leader model is in place trust wide for 100% of time, however due to winter 
pressures and current vacancies this is not achieved at 100%. 

7. Boards receive monthly 
updates on workforce 
information, staffing 
capacity and capability is 
discussed at Public Board 
meeting at least every 6 
months on the basis of full 
nursing and midwifery 
establishment review. 

Monthly workforce reports go 
to board detailing actual 
staffing levels against 
establishment for the 
Previous month – 
highlighting hotspot areas. 6 
monthly establishment 
reviews to go to 
open board for discussion 
and debate 
 

In place – Board report presented monthly since June 2014.  Hotspot areas listed with actions 
when fill rates less than 80% and when triggering on QUESTT. 
6 monthly review discussed in Public Board Meetings.  
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Expectation What does this mean in 
practice? 

 NBT Position –May  2016 

8. NHS providers clearly 
display 
information about the 
nurses, 
midwives and care staff 
present on each ward, 
clinical setting, 
department or service on 
each shift. 

Display information of staff 
present by shifts clearly and 
visibly for patients. 

In place – Every ward displays staffing, trial of new boards in place in Neurosciences.  

9. Providers of NHS 
services take an active role 
in securing staff in line 
with their workforce 
requirements 

Robust recruitment and 
retention plans need to be in 
place within the organisation 
Organisations to work with 
LETB and others to inform 
commissioning intensions 
and future workforce 
planning. 

In place – NBT fully engaged with workforce planning cycle at both local and regional level. 
Increased commissions for undergraduate training agreed for the region, NBT preparing for 
increased placement of students.  

10. Commissioners should 
seek assurance that 
providers have 
sufficient nursing and 
care staffing capacity 
and capability to 
deliver the outcomes 
and quality standards. 

Transparent 
communication and review 
with Commissioners about 
any issues relating to 
safety and staffing levels. 
Impact Assessments. 
 
 

In place- NBT maintain constant assessment and review with Commissioners about any 
issues relating to safety and staffing levels. Processes are in place to ensure the Medical / 
Nurse Director review of any Cost Improvement Programmes, ensuring that they are 
robustly assessed for impact on quality via Quality Impact Assessments. 
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Purpose 
1.1. To update the Trust Board on progress with 

Communications and Engagement Plan for launch of 
the draft Trust Strategy 2016 - 21.  

2. Background 

2.1. The Trust’s draft Five Year Strategy 2016 – 2021 
has been developed following detailed analysis of 
the organisation and taking into account the future 
needs of the population and the changing 
environment.   

2.2. The Communications and Engagement Plan was 
developed to support the launch of the draft strategy 
and describes how the Trust will engage with staff, 
patients and stakeholders to understand their 
opinions and views on the future direction of travel 
the organisation.  

2.3. It does not consider how the strategy will be 
communicated over the five year period.  

 
3. Main Report Content 

3.1. The Communications and Engagement Plan for the 
Trust was approved by the Trust Management Team 
in April.  

3.2. The strategic goal is to ensure that staff, patients and 
key stakeholders have an opportunity to be informed 
about and involved in shaping the Trust’s Five Year 
Strategy to enable implementation at individual and 
team level.  

3.3. The campaign was launched on 9 May and will run 
until 15 July 2016. 

3.4.  A two phase approach has been adopted. The first 
phase involved testing the strategy with senior 
members of staff from all Directorates to gauge initial 
reactions and understand how they would engage 
their staff in the strategy and what support they 
would need to talk to their staff. The second stage 
involves a full roll out of the strategy to staff, patients 
and external stakeholders. 

3.5. 45 senior members of staff attended the eight focus 
groups at the start of May and feedback showed that 
there was considerable appetite for the strategy and 
they agreed with the overall direction of travel and 
strategic themes.  

3.6. However, the word strategy meant different things to 
people and in all communication there needs to be 
clarity on the differentiation between strategy and 
operational plan.  

3.7. During the focus groups staff were able to give 
tangible examples of what they were already doing 
to deliver the eight strategic themes, although  

3.8. Feedback from the focus groups has meant some 
changes have been made to the format of the 
strategy – predominately moving sections and 
tightening up some of the language to improve the 
flow of the document.  

3.9. This has meant a minor delay to the second phase. 
Full roll-out to staff, patients and external 
stakeholders will begin on 3 June.   
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3.10. During this phase a number of centrally 
organised open staff meetings have been planned 
which will be facilitated by the Medical Director. 

3.11. There will also be a number of external 
meetings for GPs, Trust members and patients.  

3.12. Key stakeholders e.g. CCG’s, other health 
providers, universities and MPs are being sent the 
strategy and to provide feedback with the offer to 
meet with either the Medical Director or Chief 
Executive.  

3.13. Directorate Leadership Teams will take 
responsibility for communicating the strategy at 
Directorate level. They will be provided with a toolkit 
which includes the strategy on a page, feedback 
forms and guidance on how to manage their 
meeting. 

3.14. A detailed internal and external 
communications plan will support the engagement 
phase using the Trust’s internal communications 
channels. 

3.15. The strategy will be available for comment on 
the Trust website. Forms will be used to capture 
public feedback and feedback from staff will be 
collated at Directorate level.  

3.16. A short film is being produced for us on social 
media.  
  

 

4. Recommendations 
4.1. The Trust Board is asked to note the 

communications and engagement exercise 
underway to consult staff and stakeholders on the 
draft Trust Strategy 2016 – 21.      
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We will realise the great potential of our organisation  
by our skilled and caring staff delivering innovative,  
high-quality services in state-of-the-art facilities.  
     This will ensure excellent clinical 

outcomes and an outstanding 
    experience for our patients.

Our values

Providing local hospital services & complex specialist care

Strategic themes

Our strategy for 2016-2021

Maximise 
the use of 
technology

Empower  
clinicians  
to lead

Increase  
our research 
contribution

Putting 
patients  
first

Play our part 
in delivering 
a successful 
health & 
care system

Working  
well  
together

Recognising  
the person

Striving  
for excellence

Change how  
we deliver  
services

Be one of  
the safest  
trusts in  
the UK

Treat patients  
as partners  
in their care

Create a 
workforce  
for the future

Our Vision
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1. Purpose & background 
1.1 The attached report updates on progress and issues in relation 

to the PFI Phases 1 & 2 and as well as Capital Projects. 
 

2. PFI Phase 1   

2.1 The key risks and challenges are set out on the attached report 
under Phase 1 Compliance Issues which are reviewed and 
managed at regular meetings with Carillion  

3. PFI Phase 2 

3.1 Carillion have confirmed that the completion of Phase 2 of the 
Brunel building will be 29 July 2016. 

3.2 Carillion are responding better to many compliance issues 
identified during the joint assurance visits to the Phase 2 
construction areas. 

3.3 A separate paper is being submitted to Trust Board in relation to 
the proposed settlement of the Phase 2 delay costs.  

4. Capital Projects 

4.1 The largest delay to the PFI Phase 2 Works Area relates to the 
Limewalk Building. This was vacated by Pathology teams by the 
end of April 2016 and decommissioning is now under way. 

4.2 The consequence of this is that works will be unable to start for 
the road infrastructure works for the new Southmead Way 
before the completion of the rest of PFI Phase 2.  

  

5. Recommendations 
5.1 The Trust Board is asked to note the current position and 

actions. 
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Capital Planning Report 
25 May 2016 

 

Top 10 tasks from helpdesk April 2016
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PFI Phase 2 Progress On 
track

Handover of Works Areas: The Trust has 
handed over all works areas with the exception 
of Limewalk area. The Limewalk Building was  
vacated at the end of April 2016 and is 
currently being decommissioned

R

Front of Brunel: Part of the square, new bus 
stops and drop off areas outside the front 
entrance were opened on 23 May. The front 
entrance is now much less congested and also 
gives a much better perception of how the 
development will look when complete.

G

Construction Progress: Carillion have 
confirmed that completion of Phase 2 will be 29 
July 

R

Construction Quality: The Trust and its 
advisers continue to make visits within the 
Brunel building extension. Carillion are 
attending to some compliance items raised with 
them, but others are not obviously being 
resolved yet, although we are advised they 
have been added to the schedule of snags

ACapital Projects On 
Track

Pathology 1.. Ground Floor works completed. Work commenced in 
vacated Genetics Labs on First Floor on 18th April following relocation to 
Phase 2. Current programme shows full practical completion date of 21st 

Oct 2016, which would facilitate relocation of Myrtle Rd services late 
Oct/early Nov

R

Pathology 2:  All moves completed on time by 29th April with no impact 
on clinical services. Lime Walk empty and lab decommissioning 
activities complete. UHB Histology moved on 28th April without any 
issues. CAT 3 Labs are due to be completed and validated by July. Due 
to this, LIMS delays and interim moves that have had to be put in place, 
the final move and commissioning activities will not complete until later in 
2016. South Gloucestershire HOSC visited on 12th May, which was very 
successful.  ‘ it was fascinating, incredibly impressive and we thoroughly 
enjoyed it’

R

Thornbury: OBC for disposal approved at February Trust Board for 
HSCC development. Awaiting response from 3rd parties on financial 
viability

G

Bath Renal Satellite Unit: 20 station option OBC approved. FBC due 
October 2016. Internal review of tender documentation included in 
programme following lessons learnt from Pathology 2

G

PFI Phase 2 Key Issues

Delay to Phase 2:

Carillion have confirmed that the actual completion of Phase 2 
of the Brunel building and externals will be 29 July 2016.

Delay to Pathology 
Limewalk Building is now vacant and decommissioning is under 
way. Demolition and site clearance will run into the 3rd quarter.  
The works to build the new Southmead Way will take place after 
the completion of the rest of PFI Phase 2

Frenchay Projects On Track

Decommissioning: Complete, apart from incomimg 
utilities G

Residential Land: Conditional exchange of contracts 
with Redrow achieved. NBT to satisfy final outstanding 
conditions precedent which is closure of the Inquiry.

A

Public Open Space: Registration as Village Green 
has been completed and Transfer to Winterbourne 
Parish Council is being progressed.

G

Frenchay Park House Contracts exchanged on 28th 
November 2015, completion due within 18 months. G

HSCC Land Frenchay: OBC for disposal approved at 
March Trust Board G

Beckspool House Car Park -Car Park is being re-
provided to a base specification which is underway. G

PFI Phase 1 Compliance Issues
Issue Next 

Action
Action Required R.A.G 

Status

Compliance CSL

Joint Working group established task and 
finish groups to review the Trust and 
Carillion polices, roles and responsibilities 
of each compliance service package

Amber

Fire Integrity CSL Joint working group reviewing 
correspondence Amber

Critical Care & Theatre 
Ventilation CCL

Working group have identified preferred 
options to increase the ventilation rates in 
the sterile preparation room. Detail is being 
worked through.

Amber

Door Review CSL

Outpatients Level 1 remedial work haven’t 
improved the doors to the appropriate 
standards and awaiting proposal from 
Carillion to resolve. The main revolving door 
full review following phase 2 handover.

Green

Planned Preventative 
Maintenance (PPM) CSL

The working group set up to coordinate 
periodic PPM tasks needs greater 
momentum. Visibility of Statutory remedials 
and assigned timescales for resolution 
require greater transparency

Amber

Flexible Duct Replacement CCL

Work started in ED prior to Christmas.  
High patient numbers in ED causing 
difficulties with access to complete work.  
Further access being negotiated. 
Compliance inspections have identified 
further incomplete remedials.

Red

Replacement taps 
programme in augmented 
care areas

CCL

The remedial flushing regimes are 
deployed until taps are replaced. Taps are 
being replaced in ICU only. Sample tap 
approved by WSG. Programmed agreed 
with ICU. Still awaiting costs from CSL 
before variation confirmation

Green

Bathrooms Pod Floor CCL

Access to resolve is difficult due to bed 
capacity issues and 3 day requirement to 
remedy. Target completion end of August 
across all wards.

Amber

key: Red No plan to resolve

Amber Solution agreed but not started

Green On programme
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Recommendation:  

Following the Audit Committee meeting on the 31st May, the Board are asked to approve the accounts and representation  
letter. 
 
Executive Summary:  
The accounts and the audit work were discussed in detail at the Audit Committee on the 31st May 2016. 
 
The key issues are that there are no changes to the Trusts performance against its financial targets from the draft accounts and the 
External Auditors – Grant Thornton – intend to issue an unqualified audit opinion. 
 
The Audit Committee recommended that the Board approve the accounts for 2015/16. 
 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

Once the Board has approved the accounts the auditors will sign their audit opinion and the accounts will be submitted to the DH 
before the deadline on the 2nd June.  

  

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended

31 March 2016 Group

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

NOTE £000s £000s £000s £000s

Gross employee benefits 9.1 (359,298) (346,110) (359,298) (346,110)

Other operating costs 7 (190,925) (201,280) (193,693) (202,934)

Revenue from patient care activities 4 468,262 457,645 468,262 457,645

Other operating revenue 5 75,376 95,266 76,958 96,581

Operating surplus/(deficit) (6,585) 5,521 (7,771) 5,182

Investment revenue 11 53 76 342 403

Other gains and (losses) 12 0 0 (283) 516

Finance costs 13 (34,713) (32,893) (34,713) (32,893)

(Deficit) for the financial year (41,245) (27,296) (42,425) (26,792)

Public dividend capital dividends payable (160) (81) (160) (81)

Retained (deficit) for the year (41,405) (27,377) (42,585) (26,873)

Other Comprehensive Income 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 5,069 24,492 5,069 24,492

Total Other Comprehensive Income 5,069 24,492 5,069 24,492

Total comprehensive income for the year (36,336) (2,885) (37,516) (2,381)

Financial performance for the year
Retained (deficit) for the year (41,405) (27,377)

IFRIC 12 adjustment (including IFRIC 12 impairments) 0 (9,382)

Impairments / (impairment write-backs) (8,819) 17,286

Adjustments in respect of donated assets (1,337) (267)

Adjusted retained (deficit) (51,561) (19,740)

The Trust's retained deficit is adjusted for the following:

The notes on pages 6 to 39 form part of this account.

Trust

(a) Impairments to non-current assets are not considered part of the Trust's financial performance for the year.

(b) The incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to the accounting for PFI assets.  The revenue cost of bringing 

PFI assets onto the Statement of Financial Position needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury for measuring departmental 

expenditure.  Therefore any cost which does not have a cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting purposes, is reported as a 

technical adjustment. Any such net cost is not considered part of the Trust's overall financial performance. This is represented by the IFRIC 12 

adjustment above.

(c) When donated assets are received, income will be recognised equivalent to their value in the Trust's entity accounts. The value of the asset 

will then be depreciated over its useful economic life by means of a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (SoCI). Over the life of 

the asset, the net effect on the Trust's SOCI will be nil, but in any particular year there may be a financial impact. This impact on the SoCI is not 

considered part of the Trust's performance for the year.
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2016 Trust Group

31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

NOTE £000s £000s £000s £000s

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 14 516,086 508,331 516,086 508,331

Intangible assets 15 12,039 433 12,039 433

Other Investments - Charitable 17 9,313 10,245

Total non-current assets 528,125 508,764 537,438 519,009

Current assets:

Inventories 19 9,695 7,919 9,695 7,919

Trade and other receivables 20.1 48,734 41,055 48,566 41,067

Cash and cash equivalents 21 1,013 1,041 2,130 2,122

Sub-total current assets 59,442 50,015 60,391 51,108

Non-current assets held for sale 22 27,800 31,705 27,800 31,705

Total current assets 87,242 81,720 88,191 82,813

Total assets 615,367 590,484 625,629 601,822

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 (99,881) (78,820) (100,144) (78,991)

Other liabilities 24 (77) (77) (77) (77)

Provisions 28 (2,566) (5,459) (2,566) (5,459)

Borrowings 25 (10,868) (10,486) (10,868) (10,486)

DH revenue support loan 25 (900) (900) (900) (900)

DH capital loan 25 (520) (520) (520) (520)

Total current liabilities (114,812) (96,262) (115,075) (96,433)

Net current assets/(liabilities) (27,570) (14,542) (26,884) (13,620)

Total assets less current liablilities 500,555 494,222 510,554 505,389

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 (6,106) (3,701) (6,106) (3,701)

Other liabilities 24 (2,205) (2,281) (2,205) (2,281)

Provisions 28 (1,163) (1,412) (1,163) (1,412)

Borrowings 25 (411,446) (416,082) (411,446) (416,082)

DH revenue support loan 25 (56,062) (9,890) (56,062) (9,890)

DH capital loan 25 (9,100) (9,620) (9,100) (9,620)

Total non-current liabilities (486,082) (442,986) (486,082) (442,986)

Total assets employed: 14,473 51,236 24,472 62,403

FINANCED BY:

 

Public Dividend Capital 241,380 241,305 241,380 241,305

Retained earnings (314,229) (269,562) (314,229) (269,562)

Revaluation reserve 87,322 79,493 87,322 79,493

Charitable Funds Reserve 9,999 11,167

Total Taxpayers' Equity: 14,473 51,236 24,472 62,403

            

The notes on pages 6 to 39 form part of this account.

The financial statements on pages 2 to 39 were approved by the Board on 2nd June 2016 and signed on its behalf by

Chief Executive: Date:
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity

For the year ending 31 March 2016 Trust

Public 

Dividend 

capital

Retained 

earnings

Revaluation 

reserve

Total 

reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2015 241,305 (269,562) 79,493 51,236

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (41,405) (41,405)
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 5,069 5,069

Transfers between reserves (2,426) 2,426 0

Reclassification Adjustments

Permanent PDC received - cash 75 75

Other movements 0 (836) 334 (502)

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 75 (44,667) 7,829 (36,763)

Balance at 31 March 2016 241,380 (314,229) 87,322 14,473

Balance at 1 April 2014 213,810 (242,871) 55,687 26,626

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31 

March 2015
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (27,377) (27,377)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 24,492 24,492

Transfers between reserves 686 (686) 0

Reclassification Adjustments

New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash 35,995 35,995

New temporary and permanent PDC repaid in year (8,500) (8,500)

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 27,495 (26,691) 23,806 24,610

Balance at 31 March 2015 241,305 (269,562) 79,493 51,236

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity Group

For the year ending 31 March 2016
Public 

Dividend 

capital

Retained 

earnings

Revaluation 

reserve

Charitable 

Funds 

Reserve

Total 

reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2015 241,305 (269,562) 79,493 11,167 62,403

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (41,405) 0 (41,405)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 5,069 0 5,069

Transfers between reserves (2,426) 2,426 0

Reclassification Adjustments

Permanent PDC received - cash 75 75

Other movements 0 (836) 334 (1,168) (1,670)

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 75 (44,667) 7,829 (1,168) (37,931)

Balance at 31 March 2016 241,380 (314,229) 87,322 9,999 24,472

Balance at 1 April 2014 213,810 (242,871) 55,687 10,663 37,289

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31 

March 2015

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (27,377) 592 (26,785)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment
24,492

0 24,492

Transfers between reserves 686 (686) 0

Fund balances transferred to other NHS charities (88) (88)

Reclassification Adjustments

New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash 35,995 35,995

New temporary and permanent PDC repaid in year (8,500) (8,500)

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 27,495 (26,691) 23,806 504 25,114

Balance at 31 March 2015 241,305 (269,562) 79,493 11,167 62,403
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2016
Trust Group

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

NOTE £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating surplus/(deficit) (6,585) 5,521 (7,771) 5,182

Depreciation and amortisation 7 21,245 17,341 21,245 17,341

Impairments and reversals 16 (8,819) 7,486 (8,819) 7,486

Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 5 (455) 0 (455) 0

Interest paid (32,635) (29,851) (32,635) (29,851)

PDC Dividend (paid)/refunded (435) (303) (435) (303)

Release of PFI/deferred credit (76) 0 (76) 0

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (1,776) (1,646) (1,776) (1,646)

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (7,675) (5,628) (7,675) (5,628)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 26,093 (3,407) 26,093 (3,407)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Liabilities (76) (77) (76) (77)

Provisions utilised (689) (2,116) (689) (2,116)

Increase/(Decrease) in movement in non cash provisions (2,467) 1,570 (2,467) 1,570

NHS Charitable Funds - net adjustments for working capital movements 302 339

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities (14,350) (11,110) (15,234) (11,110)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest Received 53 76 53 76

(Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment (22,255) (53,552) (22,255) (53,552)

(Payments) for Intangible Assets (1,469) 0 (1,469) 0

Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE) 822 0 822 0

NHS Charitable Funds - net cash flows relating to investing activities 920 273

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (22,849) (53,476) (21,929) (53,203)

Net Cash Inform / (outflow) before Financing (37,199) (64,586) (37,163) (64,313)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Gross Temporary (2014/15 only) and Permanent PDC Received 75 35,995 75 35,995

Gross Temporary (2014/15 only) and Permanent PDC Repaid 0 (8,500) 0 (8,500)

Loans received from DH - New Revenue Support Loans 74,862 0 74,862 0

Loans repaid to DH - Capital Investment Loans Repayment of Principal (520) (520) (520) (520)

Loans repaid to DH - Working Capital Loans/Revenue Support Loans (28,690) (900) (28,690) (900)

Capital Element of Payments in Respect of Finance Leases and On-

SoFP PFI and LIFT

(8,556) (4,406) (8,556) (4,406)

NHS Charitable Funds - net cash flows relating to Financing activities

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities 37,171 21,669 37,171 21,669

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (28) (42,917) 8 (42,644)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of 

the Period

1,041 43,958 2,122 44,766

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end 21 1,013 1,041 2,130 2,122
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2015-16

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting Policies

The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of the 

Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial 

statements have been prepared in accordance with the DH Group Manual for Accounts 2015-16 issued by the Department of Health.  The 

accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and 

appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Manual 

for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular 

circumstances of the trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.  The particular policies adopted by the trust are 

described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.  

1.1 Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

IAS 1 requires the Trust to assess, as part of the accounts preparation process, its ability to continue as a going concern. In the context of 

non-trading entities in the public sector the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future is normally sufficient 

evidence of going concern. The financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless there are plans for, or no 

realistic alternative other than, the dissolution of the Trust without the transfer of its services to another entity within the public sector.

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. For further details please see note 36.1.

1.2 Charitable Funds

Under the provisions of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, those Charitable Funds that fall under common control with NHS 

bodies are consolidated within the entity's financial statements.  In accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, restated 

prior period accounts are presented where the adoption of the new policy has a material impact.

1.3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the NHS trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about 

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated assumptions 

are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from those estimates 

and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period 

in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision 

affects both current and future periods.

1.3.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of 

applying the NHS trust’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements.

An assessment of the Trust's Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme has been made and it has been determined that the PFI scheme in 

respect of the main hospital building should be accounted for as an on Statement of Financial Position asset under IFRIC 12. 

VAT on professional costs included in District Valuers valuations on preperty assets based on Market Equivalent Valuations are 

recoverable on a modern equivalent build.

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. For further details please see note 36.1.

1.3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Modern equivalent asset valuation of property - as detailed in note 1.7 items of property are periodically revalued to ensure that their book 

values are not materially different from their fair values. During the year the District Valuation Service provided the Trust with a valuation 

of its land and building assets and an assessment of their remaining useful economic lives.  Specialised assets are valued on a 

depreciated replacement cost basis using hypothetical modern equivalent assets.  Future revaluations may result in further material 

changes to the carrying values of non-current assets. 

Provisions - provisions have been made for probable legal and constructive obligations of uncertain timing or amount as at the reporting 

date.  These are based on estimates using information available at the reporting date.  They are estimates of future cash flows which are 

dependent on future events. Any difference between these estimates and the actual future liability will be accounted for in the period in 

which such determination is made.  Details of the Trust's provisions are set out in note 28.
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2015-16

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.4 Revenue  

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value 

of the consideration receivable.  The main source of revenue for the trust is from commissioners for healthcare services.  Revenue 

relating to patient care spells that are part-completed at the year end are apportioned across the financial years on the basis of length of 

stay at the end of the reporting period compared to expected total length of stay.

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.

The NHS trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured individuals 

to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an insurer.  The NHS trust recognises the income when it 

receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a 

compensation claim. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for 

unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.

Legacy income is accounted for once the receipt of the legacy becomes reasonably certain and it can be quantified. This will be once 

confirmation has been received from the representatives of the estate that payment of the legacy will be made or property transferred and 

once any conditions attached to the legacy have been fulfilled.

1.5 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost 

of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees 

are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

Retirement benefit costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit 

scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England 

and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme 

assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of 

participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of 

the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the North Bristol NHS Trust commits itself to the retirement, 

regardless of the method of payment.

1.6 Other expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at 

the fair value of the consideration payable.

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to North Bristol NHS Trust;

● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and

● the item has cost of at least £5,000; or

● Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are 

functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are 

under single managerial control; or

● Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective 

cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are 

treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the 

asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.  All 

assets are measured subsequently at fair value.

Land and buildings used for the Trust's  services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at their 

revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any impairment.  In use assets are carried at current value in 

existing use.
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2015-16

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be 

determined at the end of the reporting period.  Fair values are determined as follows:

● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use

● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost

HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, 

where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.  

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss.  Cost includes 

professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair 

value.  Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset previously 

recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there.  A revaluation 

decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation 

reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment losses that arise from 

a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are 

reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised.  Where 

subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the 

item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.

1.8 Intangible assets

Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the trust’s 

business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.  They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefits 

will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is at 

least £5,000.  

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.  Software that is integral to the operating of hardware, for 

example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not integral to 

the operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.  Expenditure on research is not 

capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred.  Internally-generated assets are recognised if, 

and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

● the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use

● the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it

● the ability to sell or use the intangible asset

● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential

● the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it

● the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Measurement

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the 

criteria above are initially met.  Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the 

period in which it is incurred.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or, where no active market exists, 

at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis), indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value.  Internally-

developed software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs and technological advances.

1.9 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments

Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible 

non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic 

benefits or service potential of the assets.  The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the  NHS trust expects to obtain 

economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the  NHS trust and may be shorter than the physical life of the 

asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a 

prospective basis.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2015-16

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

At each reporting period end, the NHS trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible non-current assets 

have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to 

determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment 

annually.  

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to 

the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment 

losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure.  Where an impairment loss subsequently 

reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that 

would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss.  The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to 

the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed Expenditure (AME).  This is necessary 

to comply with Treasury's budgeting guidance.  DEL limits are set in the Spending Review and Departments may not exceed the limits that 

they have been set.

AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be reviewed with departments in the run-up to the Budget. Departments need to monitor 

AME closely and inform Treasury if they expect AME spending to rise above forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that in some areas of AME 

inherent volatility may mean departments do not have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in that financial year, any 

expected increases in AME require Treasury approval.

1.10 Donated assets

Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to income. They are valued, depreciated 

and impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are as described above 

for purchased assets.  Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the donation preclude immediate recognition of 

the gain.

1.11 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 

than through continuing use.  This condition is regarded as met when the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale 

in its present condition and management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within 

one year from the date of classification.  Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and 

fair value less costs to sell.  Fair value is open market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount and is recognised in 

the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  On disposal, the balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained 

earnings.

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held for sale.  Instead, it is retained 

as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted.  The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

1.12 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee.  All other 

leases are classified as operating leases.

The trust as lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at 

the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease payments are 

apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining 

balance of the liability.  Finance charges are recognised in calculating the trust’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Lease incentives are recognised 

initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are 

operating or finance leases. 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

The NHS trust as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the  NHS trust’s net investment in the 

leases.  Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust’s net 

investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Initial direct costs incurred in 

negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis 

over the lease term.

1.13 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions

HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes where the government body controls 

the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement as service concession 

arrangements, following the principles of the requirements of IFRIC 12. The Trust therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of 

property, plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the contract are recorded as operating 

expenses.

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation techniques where necessary:

a)      Payment for the fair value of services received;

b)      Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and

c)      Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.

Services received

The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within ‘operating expenses’.

PFI Asset

The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are measured initially at fair value 

in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets are measured at fair value, which is kept up to date in accordance 

with the Trust’s approach for each relevant class of asset in accordance with the principles of IAS 16.

PFI liability

A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the same amount as the fair 

value of the PFI assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with IAS 17. 

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease liability for the period, and is 

charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual finance cost and to 

repay the lease liability over the contract term. 

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease. In accordance with IAS 

17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. In 

substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Lifecycle replacement

Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they meet the Trust’s 

criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the operator and are measured initially at their fair 

value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of the contract from the 

operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than expected, a short-

term finance lease liability or prepayment is recognised respectively. 

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is recognised as an 

expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is treated 

as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to the operating income over the shorter 

of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

Assets contributed by the NHS trust to the operator for use in the scheme

Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in the NHS trust’s 

Statement of Financial Position.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Other assets contributed by the NHS trust to the operator

On initial recognition of the asset, the difference between the fair value of the asset and the initial liability is recognised as deferred 

income, representing the future service potential to be received by the Trust through the asset being made available to third party users.

1.14 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula.  This is considered to be a 

reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.  

1.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash 

equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts 

of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.  

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form 

an integral part of the NHS trust’s cash management.

1.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the 

Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  The amount recognised 

as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account 

the risks and uncertainties.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is 

the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate of  1.37% in real terms.  

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid 

expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to 

those affected by it.  The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, 

which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity.

1.17 Clinical negligence costs

The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA 

which in return settles all clinical negligence claims.  The contribution is charged to expenditure.  Although the NHSLA is administratively 

responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the NHS trust.  The total value of clinical negligence provisions 

carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the trust is disclosed at Note 28. 

1.18 Non-clinical risk pooling

The NHS trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme.  Both are risk pooling schemes 

under which the NHS trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of 

claims arising.  The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating 

expenses as and when they become due.

1.19 Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the NHS trust, or a present obligation that is not 

recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 

measured sufficiently reliably.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the NHS trust.  A contingent asset is disclosed where an 

inflow of economic benefits is probable.  

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.20 Financial assets 

Financial assets are recognised when the NHS trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 

receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered.  Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have 

expired or the asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit and loss; held to maturity 

investments; available for sale financial assets, and loans and receivables.  The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the 

financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. the Trust holds only the following two types of financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Equity investments are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating the surplus or deficit for the year.  The 

net gain or loss incorporates any interest earned on the financial asset. Fair value is determind by reference to the market price for each 

equity instrument.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market.  

After initial recognition, they are measured at cost less any impairment.  

1.21 Financial liabilities  

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the NHS trust becomes party to the contractual provisions of 

the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received.  Financial liabilities are de-

recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost.  Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

1.22 Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not 

recoverable.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed 

assets.  Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.23 Foreign currencies

The Trust's functional currency and presentational currency is sterling.  Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into 

sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions.  At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in 

foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March.  Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are 

recognised in the trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.

1.24 Third party assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the trust has no 

beneficial interest in them.  Details of third party assets are given in Note 37 to the accounts.

1.25 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend

Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the NHS trust.  At any time the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and 

require repayments of PDC from, the trust.  PDC is recorded at the value received.  As PDC is issued under legislation rather than under 

contract, it is not treated as an equity financial instrument.

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as public dividend capital 

dividend.  The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets less 

liabilities (except for donated assets and cash balances with the Government Banking Service).  The average carrying amount of assets is 

calculated as a simple average of opening and closing relevant net assets.

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated 

on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not 

revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.

1.26 Losses and Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or 

passed legislation.  By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise.  They are therefore subject to special control procedures 

compared with the generality of payments.  They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are 

handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which 

would have been made good through insurance cover had North Bristol NHS Trust not been bearing its own risks (with insurance 

premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.27 Subsidiaries

Material entities over which the NHS trust has the power to exercise control are classified as subsidiaries and are consolidated. The NHS 

trust has control when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns through its power over another entity. The income and expenses; 

gains and losses; assets, liabilities and reserves; and cash flows of the subsidiary are consolidated in full into the appropriate financial 

statement lines.  Appropriate adjustments are made on consolidation where the subsidiary’s accounting policies are not aligned with the 

NHS trust or where the subsidiary’s accounting date is not co-terminus.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’.

From 31 March 2014, the Trust has consolidated the results of North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds over which it considers it has the 

power to exercise control in accordance with IFRS10 requirements.

1.28 Research and Development

Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred, except insofar as development 

expenditure relates to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured.  Expenditure so deferred is 

limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the SOCI on a systematic basis over the period expected to 

benefit from the project. It should be revalued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as 

depreciation, on a quarterly basis.

1.29 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The HM Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2015-16. These standards are still 

subject to HM Treasury FReM interpretation, with IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 being for implementation in 2018-19, and the government 

implementation date for IFRS 16 still subject to HM Treasury consideration.

● IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but not yet adopted by 

the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted

● IFRS 15 Revenue for Contracts with Customers  - Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, but 

not yet adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted

● IFRS 16 Leases – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but not yet adopted by the FReM: 

early adoption is not therefore permitted.
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2. Operating segments

2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s

Income 2,135 1,826

Expenditure 3,033 1,839

Net assets 9,999 11,180

2015-16

3. Income generation activities

2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s

Income 3,078      3,225

Full cost 2,559      2,291

Surplus/(deficit) 519         934

The income is generated from the provision of fertility services under the trading name 'Bristol Centre for Reproductive Medicine'

The financial objective of the service is to generate surpluses to support NHS activity.

4. Revenue from patient care activities Trust and Group

2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s

NHS England 149,799 144,146

Clinical Commissioning Groups 303,094 287,874

Additional income for delivery of healthcare services 0 14,000

Non-NHS: 

      Local Authorities 6,541 1,463

      Private patients 4,060 4,427

      Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 1,003 505

      Injury costs recovery 1,920 2,600

      Other 1,845 2,630

Total Revenue from patient care activities 468,262 457,645 

The Trust undertakes income generation activities with the aim of achieving profit, which is used in patient care.  The following provides 

details of income generation activity whose full cost exceeded £1m or was otherwise material. This disclosure is required for the Trust only.

The Trust is managed by the Board of Directors, which is made up of executive and non-executive Directors. The non-executive Directors 

bring expertise to the Trust and provide advice and challenge to the executive directors.  The executive Directors have responsibility for the 

day to day running of the Trust.  The Board is therefore considered to be the chief operating decision maker of the Trust.

The Board receives regular reports of the financial performance and financial position of the Trust. These include a Statement of 

Comprehensive Income and a Statement of Financial Position, which are provided on a ‘whole Trust’ basis.  It is therefore considered that 

the Trust has just one reportable segment, a healthcare segment. There are no other segments that constitute 10% or more of the Trust's 

operations. The Trust receives income from a number of healthcare commissioners, which are under the common control of the Department 

of Health. The bodies involved and the respective income levels are disclosed in note 4 to these accounts and the Trust's total income from 

patient care and other operating activities is disclosed in notes 4 and 5.

The Group also includes a subsidiary charity which undertakes a number of charitable activities which are healthcare related. The results and 

net assets of the Trust are separately reported throughout these accounts.  For the Charity the transactions and balances included in the 

Group's results and Statement of Financial Position are summarised as follows:
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5. Other operating revenue Trust Group

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 11,759 10,150 11,759 10,150

Education, training and research 30,792 31,257 30,792 31,257

Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure -non- NHS 265 183 0 0

Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions - Charity 2,003 950 2,003 950

Non-patient care services to other bodies 10,672 8,909 10,672 8,909

Income generation 3,327 3,074 3,327 3,074

Charitable income 1,847 1,498

Other revenue 16,558 40,743 16,558 40,743

Total Other Operating Revenue 75,376 95,266 76,958 96,581

Total operating revenue 543,638 552,911 545,220 554,226

6. Overseas Visitors Disclosure 2015-16 2014-15

£000 £000s

Income recognised during 2015-16 (invoiced amounts and accruals) 1,003 505

Cash payments received in-year (re receivables at 31 March 2015) 10 37

Cash payments received in-year (iro invoices issued 2014-15) 444 233

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (re receivables at 31 March 2014) 300 0

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (iro invoices issued 2014-15) 1 235

Amounts written off in-year (irrespective of year of recognition) 24 0

7. Operating expenses Trust Group

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Services from other NHS Trusts 0 995 0 995

Services from other NHS bodies 0 128 0 128

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts 0 6,767 0 6,767

Total Services from NHS bodies* 0 7,890 0 7,890

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 12,717 9,765 12,717 9,765

Trust Chair and Non-executive Directors 60 59 60 59

Supplies and services - clinical 105,230 92,886 105,230 92,886

Supplies and services - general 7,651 9,057 7,651 9,057

Consultancy services 233 1,089 233 1,089

Establishment 5,299 6,054 5,299 6,054

Transport 1,575 1,075 1,575 1,075

Service charges - ON-SOFP PFIs and other service concession arrangements 5,566 2,107 5,566 2,107

Total charges - Off-SOFP PFIs and other service concession arrangements 147 149 147 149

Business rates paid to local authorities 4,758 4,311 4,758 4,311

Premises 18,371 24,990 18,371 24,990

Hospitality 0 5 0 5

Insurance 560 823 560 823

Legal Fees 323 53 323 53

Impairments and Reversals of Receivables 569 1,479 569 1,479

Inventories write down 151 0 151 0

Depreciation 20,455 16,941 20,455 16,941

Amortisation 790 400 790 400

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment (10,708) 7,486 (10,708) 7,486

Impairments and reversals of intangible assets 54 0 54 0

Impairments and reversals of non current assets held for sale 1,835 0 1,835 0

Internal Audit Fees 112 112 0

Audit fees 93 104 97 118

Other auditor's remuneration 12 10 12 10

Clinical negligence 8,098 8,135 8,098 8,135

Research and development (excluding staff costs) 3,307 2,488 3,307 2,488

Education and Training 1,510 2,597 1,510 2,597

Change in Discount Rate (5) 97 (5) 97

Charitable expenditure 2,764 1,640

Other 2,162 1,230 2,162 1,230

Total Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits) 190,925 201,280 193,693 202,934

Other revenue in 2014/15 included £17.5m received to offset the costs of transition to the new PFI hospital.  There are no other material 

amounts within this balance.
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7. (cont). Operating Expenses Trust Group

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits excluding Board members 357,621 344,863 357,621 344,863

Board members 1,677 1,247 1,677 1,247

Total Employee Benefits 359,298 346,110 359,298 346,110

Total Operating Expenses 550,223 547,390 552,991 549,044

8. Operating Leases
The Trust has leased various items of equipment throughout the year to support the provision of healthcare.

8.1. North Bristol NHS Trust as lessee
Total 2014-15

£000s £000s

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 1,481 1,508

Total 1,481 1,508

Payable:

No later than one year 827 1,315

Between one and five years 921 1,564

After five years 0 0

Total 1,748 2,879

8.2. North Bristol NHS Trust as lessor

The Trust acts as a lessor to the University of Bristol, which occupies accommodation within the Trust's Learning and Research Building.  

The University made a financial contribution to the development of the building in the financial year 2009-10. This contribution is recorded as 

deferred income and is released to income over the life of the lease agreement which is 41 years beginning in the final quarter of 2009-10.  

The income recognised in 2015-16 is £72,000 (2014-15 £110,000).

*Services from NHS bodies does not include expenditure which falls into a category below.  A full analysis has occurred in 2015/16, resulting 

in nil balances against Services from NHS bodies.
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9. Employee benefits and staff numbers

9.1. Employee benefits Trust and Group

2015-16

Total

Permanently 

employed Other

£000s £000s £000s

Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure

Salaries and wages 311,962 259,880 52,082 

Social security costs 20,192 20,192 0 

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 33,513 33,513 0 

Termination benefits 127 127 0 

Total employee benefits 365,794 313,712 52,082 

Employee costs capitalised 6,496 2,536 3,960 

359,298 311,176 48,122 

Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure 2014-15 Total

Permanently 

employed Other

£000s £000s £000s

Salaries and wages 295,815 256,621 39,194 

Social security costs 19,459 19,459 0 

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 31,284 31,284 0 

Termination benefits 483 483 0 

Total - including capitalised costs 347,041 307,847 39,194 

Employee costs capitalised 931 435 496 

346,110 307,412 38,698 

9.2. Staff Numbers Trust and Group

2015-16 2014-15

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number

Average Staff Numbers

Medical and dental 927 879 48 853 

Administration and estates 1,851 1,592 259 1,620 

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 1,777 1,330 447 1,630 

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 2,636 2,401 235 2,520 

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 1,470 1,425 45 1,373 

TOTAL 8,661 7,627 1,034 7,996 

Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects 179 78 101 22 

9.3. Staff Sickness absence and ill health retirements
Per calendar year 2015 2014

Number Number

Total Days Lost 78,563 74,040

Total Staff Years 7,498 7,316

Average working Days Lost 10.48 10.12

2015-16 2014-15

Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 8 12 

£000s £000s

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 266 859 

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs
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9.4. Exit Packages agreed in 2015-16

2015-16 Trust and Group

*Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Cost of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other 

departures 

agreed

Cost of other 

departures 

agreed.

Total number of 

exit packages

Total cost of exit 

packages

Number £s Number £s Number £s

Less than £10,000 1 6,172 35 130,542 36 136,714

£10,000-£25,000 1 16,385 0 0 1 16,385

£25,001-£50,000 3 104,021 0 0 3 104,021

£50,001-£100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£150,001 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

>£200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

5 126,578 35 130,542 40 257,120

2014-15 Trust and Group

*Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Cost of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other 

departures 

agreed

Cost of other 

departures 

agreed.

Total number of 

exit packages

Total cost of exit 

packages

Number £s Number £s Number £s

Less than £10,000 2 7,138 0 0 2 7,138

£10,000-£25,000 2 29,188 0 0 2 29,188

£25,001-£50,000 2 69,972 0 0 2 69,972

£50,001-£100,000 5 376,970 0 0 5 376,970

£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£150,001 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

>£200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

11 483,268 0 0 11 483,268

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Scheme.  Where the Trust has agreed early 

retirements, the additional costs are met by the Trust and not by the NHS pensions scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS 

pensions scheme and are not included in the table.

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year.  Note: The expense associated with these departures may 

have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.

Exit package cost 

band (including any 

special payment 

element)

Total

Exit package cost 

band (including any 

special payment 

element)

Total
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9.5. Exit packages - Other Departures analysis Trust and Group

Agreements Total value of 

agreements

Agreements Total value of 

agreements

Number £000s Number £000s

0 0 0 0

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

Contractual payments in lieu of notice 35 131 0 0

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders 0 0 0 0

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval 0 0 0 0

Total 35 131 0 0

9.6. Pension costs

a) Accounting valuation

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

c) Scheme provisions 

2015-16 2014-15

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2012. 

The Scheme Regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent 

of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives as 

deemed appropriate.

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual 

costs

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year.  Note: the expense associated with these departures may 

have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period. As single exit packages can be made up of several components each of which will 

be counted separately in this note, the total number above will not necessarily match the total numbers in Note 9.4 which will be the number of 

individuals.

The Remuneration Report includes disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes.  Details of the benefits payable and 

rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  Both are unfunded defined benefit 

schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England 

and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme 

assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of 

participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be 

determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be 

four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at 

the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated 

membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial 

reporting purposes. The valuation of scheme liability as at 31 March 2016, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2015, updated to 

31 March 2016 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology 

prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS 

Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts.  These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are 

published annually.  Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account 

their recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers.

The Trust's subsidiary charity has no employees and hence incurs no pension costs. Amounts relating to pension costs are recharged 

to the charity to reflect the time spent by Trust staff on the affairs of the charity.

The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not 

intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be 

obtained:
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The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the last 

three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership. 

Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable 

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to 

a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in 

retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year.  From 2011-12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

has been used and replaced the Retail Prices Index (RPI). 

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling 

their duties effectively through illness or infirmity.  A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five 

times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount 

of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s 

approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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10. Better Payment Practice Code

10.1. Measure of compliance
Trust and Group

2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15

Number £000s Number £000s

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 88,551 255,957 102,902 259,030

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 69,170 204,066 88,973 222,224

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 78.11% 79.73% 86.46% 85.79%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 2,209 19,511 2,253 43,031

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 978 7,461 1,218 33,615

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 44.27% 38.24% 54.06% 78.12%

10.2. The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

Trust and Group

2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation 23 0

Total 23 0

11. Investment Revenue

Trust Group
2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Interest revenue

Bank interest 53 76 53 76

Other loans and receivables 0 0 289 327

Total investment revenue 53 76 342 403

12. Other Gains and Losses

Trust Group

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Change in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through the SoCI 0 0 (283) 461

Recycling of gain/(loss) from equity on disposal of financial assets held for sale 0 0 0 55

Total 0 0 (283) 516

13. Finance Costs Trust and Group

2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s

Interest

   Interest on loans and overdrafts 1,933 1,003

Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:

    - main finance cost 26,525 26,809

    - contingent finance cost 6,213 5,051

Interest on late payment of commercial debt 23 0

Total interest expense 34,694 32,863

Provisions - unwinding of discount 19 30

Total  34,713 32,893

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid 

invoice, whichever is later.
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14.1. Property, plant and equipment Trust and Group

2015-16 Land 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings 

Assets 

under 

construction 

& payments 

on account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings
Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2015 42,380 373,284 1,875 33,378 84,069 1,304 43,557 9,381 589,228

Additions of Assets Under Construction 0 0 0 16,976 0 0 0 0 16,976

Additions Purchased 0 1,750 77 0 0 16 575 395 2,813

Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets) 0 0 0 261 96 0 2 36 395

Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations & Government Grants 0 1,240 0 0 465 0 0 0 1,705

Reclassifications 0 3,798 0 (15,230) 49 0 400 62 (10,921)

Reclassifications as Held for Sale and reversals 2,850 0 0 (1,385) 0 0 0 0 1,465

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 1,296 6,721 (68) 0 (2,655) (27) (4) (194) 5,069

Impairment/reversals charged to operating expenses 0 (49) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (49)

At 31 March 2016 46,526 386,744 1,884 34,000 82,024 1,293 44,530 9,680 606,681

Depreciation

At 1 April 2015 0 0 0 0 44,087 1,108 31,403 4,299 80,897

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 1,244 0 0 (1,129) (24) (2) (89) 0

Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 0 (10,654) (103) 0 0 0 0 0 (10,757)

Charged During the Year 0 9,490 103 0 6,864 70 3,259 669 20,455

At 31 March 2016 0 80 0 0 49,822 1,154 34,660 4,879 90,595

Net Book Value at 31 March 2016 46,526 386,664 1,884 34,000 32,202 139 9,870 4,801 516,086

Asset financing:

Owned - Purchased 46,526 76,739 1,884 31,075 22,137 139 9,860 4,761 193,121

Owned - Donated 0 4,899 0 0 2,199 0 10 40 7,148

Held on finance lease 0 0 0 2,925 7,866 0 0 0 10,791

On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 305,026 0 0 0 0 0 0 305,026

Total at 31 March 2016 46,526 386,664 1,884 34,000 32,202 139 9,870 4,801 516,086
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Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Land Buildings Dwellings

Assets 

under 

construction 

& payments 

on account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings
Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

At 1 April 2015 47,839 28,899 2,346 0 326 8 0 75 79,493

Movements (specify) (17,298) 25,254 (812) 0 712 0 1 (28) 7,829

At 31 March 2016 30,541 54,153 1,534 0 1,038 8 1 47 87,322

Additions to Assets Under Construction in 2015-16

Buildings excl Dwellings 0 0 0 16,480 0 0 0 0

Plant & Machinery 0 0 0 496 0 0 0 0

Balance as at YTD 0 0 0 16,976 0 0 0 0
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14.2. Property, plant and equipment prior-year

2014-15 Land 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings 

Assets 

under 

construction 

& payments 

on account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings
Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2014 57,298 359,457 1,919 23,517 96,104 2,746 48,666 9,513 599,220

Additions of Assets Under Construction 0 0 0 41,052 0 0 0 0 41,052

Additions Purchased 0 0 0 0 11,137 0 4,615 2,035 17,787

Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations & Government Grants 0 0 0 950 0 0 0 0 950

Reclassifications 6,432 13,458 0 (29,709) 9,819 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications as Held for Sale and Reversals (30,997) 0 (925) 0 0 0 0 0 (31,922)

Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 (34,307) (1,471) (9,724) (2,317) (47,819)

Revaluation 9,647 369 881 0 1,316 29 0 150 12,392

At 31 March 2015 42,380 373,284 1,875 35,810 84,069 1,304 43,557 9,381 591,660

Depreciation

At 1 April 2014 0 0 0 2,432 70,210 2,460 37,894 5,825 118,821

Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 (34,307) (1,471) (9,724) (2,317) (47,819)

Revaluation 0 (12,897) (108) 0 809 21 0 75 (12,100)

Impairments/negative indexation charged to operating expenses 0 15,250 0 0 1,946 0 0 109 17,305

Reversal of Impairments charged to operating expenses 0 (9,819) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (9,819)

Charged During the Year 0 7,466 108 0 5,429 98 3,233 607 16,941

At 31 March 2015 0 0 0 2,432 44,087 1,108 31,403 4,299 83,329

Net Book Value at 31 March 2015 42,380 373,284 1,875 33,378 39,982 196 12,154 5,082 508,331

Asset financing:

Owned - Purchased 42,380 75,989 1,851 33,378 28,680 196 12,144 5,077 199,695

Owned - Donated 0 3,990 24 0 2,286 0 10 5 6,315

On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 293,305 0 0 9,016 0 0 0 302,321

Total at 31 March 2015 42,380 373,284 1,875 33,378 39,982 196 12,154 5,082 508,331
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14.3. (cont). Property, plant and equipment

Remaining economic lives of non-current assets Max life

Years

Buildings excl dwellings 71

Dwellings 26

Plant & machinery 13

Transport equipment 10

Information technology 10

Furniture & fittings 10

15. Intangible non-current assets

15.1. Intangible non-current assets Trust and Group

2015-16
Computer 

Licenses
Total 

£000's £000's

At 1 April 2015 4,391 4,391

Additions Purchased 1,469 1,469

Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets) 60 60

Reclassifications 10,921 10,921

Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 598 598

At 31 March 2016 17,439 17,439

Amortisation

At 1 April 2015 3,958 3,958

Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 652 652

Charged During the Year 790 790

At 31 March 2016 5,400 5,400

Net Book Value at 31 March 2016 12,039 12,039

Asset Financing: Net book value at 31 March 2016 comprises:

Purchased 8,983 8,983

Finance Leased 3,056 3,056

Total at 31 March 2016 12,039 12,039

Revaluation reserve balance for intangible non-current assets

£000's £000's

At 1 April 2015 0 0

Movements (specify) 0 0

At 31 March 2016 0 0

The Trust's donated assets were donated by the North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds and also by charities external to the Trust, including £950,000 

from Macmillan in 2014/15.

The District Valuer, who is a member of the RICS and is independent of the Trust, undertook a full desktop valuation of the Trust's land and buildings as 

at 31 March 2016. These were previously valued as at 31 March 2015.  The valuations were carried out in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and 

Valuation Manual in so far as these terms are consistent with the agreed requirements of the Department of Health and Treasury.  The valuations were 

undertaken in accordance with the Trust's accounting policy (see note 1) and on a consistent basis with valuations in previous periods.

The valuation has contributed to net upward valuations of £5,069,000 and a net reversal of impairments of £10,708,000 within Property, Plant & 

Equipment.  In year the Trust completed refurbishment works at Elgar House and Somerset House.  On valuation these works were reduced in total by 

£1,260,000.  This is included within the upward valuation of £5,069,000.

As recorded in note 8.2 the Trust acts as lessor in an arrangement with the University of Bristol by which the latter occupies space within the Trust's 

Learning and Research Building. Due to the nature of the arrangement it is not possible to split the value of the building between Trust and University 

elements.
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15.2. Intangible non-current assets prior year Trust and Group

2014-15 Computer 

Licenses
Total 

£000's £000's

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2014 4,391 4,391

At 31 March 2015 4,391 4,391

Amortisation

At 1 April 2014 3,558 3,558
Charged during the year 400 400

At 31 March 2015 3,958 3,958

Net book value at 31 March 2015 433 433

Net book value at 31 March 2015 comprises:

Purchased 412 412

Donated 21 21

Total at 31 March 2015 433 433

16.1 Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2015-16

Trust and Group

2015-16

Total

£000s

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals taken to SoCI

Changes in market price (10,708)

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure (10,708)

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed to SoCI (10,708)

Intangible assets impairments and reversals charged to SoCI

Changes in market price 54 

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 54 

Total Impairments of Intangibles charged to SoCI 54 

Non-current assets held for sale - impairments and reversals charged to SoCI.

Changes in market price 1,835 

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 1,835 

Total impairments of non-current assets held for sale charged to SoCI 1,835 

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - DEL 0 

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - AME (8,819)

Overall Total Impairments (8,819)

16.2 Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2015-16

Trust and Group

Property 

Plant and 

Equipment

Intangible 

Assets

Non-Current 

Assets Held 

for Sale

Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Impairments and reversals taken to SoCI

Changes in market price (10,708) 54 1,835 (8,819)

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure (10,708) 54 1,835 (8,819)

(10,708) 54 1,835 (8,819)Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed to SoCI

Impairment write-backs and impairments have arisen in year due to the District Valuer valuation, resulting in an increase in building values, reversing 

previous years impairment.  For non-current assets held for sale, impairment arose from the District Valuer valuation of Frenchay Hospital, resulting in an 

impairment.
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17. Other investments - charitable Group

31 March 

2016

31 March 

2015

£000s £000s

At fair value 

Balance at 1 April 10,245 9,673

Acquisitions at cost 1,528 1,744

Disposals at carrying value (2,203) (1,709)

Net gain on revaluation (257) 537

Balance at 31 March 9,313 10,245

18. Commitments

18.1. Capital commitments

Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these financial statements: Trust and Group

31 March 

2016

31 March 

2015

£000s £000s

Property, plant and equipment 6,567 15,647

Total 6,567 15,647

18.2. Other financial commitments 

Trust and Group

31 March 

2016

31 March 

2015

£000s £000s

Not later than one year 3,597 2,933

Later than one year and not later than five year 9,892 11,200

Later than five years 0 0

Total 13,489 14,133

The Trust has entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases or PFI contracts or other service concession arrangements), for a managed 

pathology service. The payments to which the Trust is committed are as follows:
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19. Inventories Trust and Group

Drugs Consumables Energy Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2015 2,086 5,630 203 7,919

Additions 47,213 70,403 159 117,775

(46,801) (68,844) (203) (115,848)

0 (151) 0 (151)

Balance at 31 March 2016 2,498 7,038 159 9,695

20.1. Trade and other receivables

31 March 2016
31 March 2015

31 March 

2016

31 March 

2015

£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS receivables - revenue 22,940 18,332 22,940 18,332

Non-NHS receivables - revenue 18,490 13,861 18,322 13,873

Non-NHS receivables - capital 221 217 221 217

Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 7,521 1,829 7,521 1,829

PDC Dividend prepaid to DH 194 0 194 0

Provision for the impairment of receivables (4,075) (3,622) (4,075) (3,622)

VAT 3,343 1,459 3,343 1,459

Other receivables 100 8,979 100 8,979

Total 48,734 41,055 48,566 41,067

Trust and Group

20.2. Receivables past their due date but not impaired
31 March 

2016

31 March 

2015

£000s £000s

By up to three months 4,900 3,449

By three to six months 3,435 957

By more than six months 1,765 2,085

Total 10,100 6,491

20.3. Provision for impairment of receivables Trust and Group

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2015 (3,622) (2,143)

Amount written off during the year 116 0

Amount recovered during the year 1,153 0

(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired (1,722) (1,479)

Balance at 31 March 2016 (4,075) (3,622)

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

31 March 

2016

31 March 

2015

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Opening balance 1,041 43,958 2,122 44,766

Net change in year (28) (42,917) 8 (42,644)

Closing balance 1,013 1,041 2,130 2,122

Made up of

Cash with Government Banking Service 997 1,015 997 1,015

Commercial banks 0 0 1,117 1,081

Cash in hand 16 26 16 26

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 1,013 1,041 2,130 2,122

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows 1,013 1,041 2,130 2,122

Patients' money held by the Trust not included above 16 16 16 16

Third Party Assets - Monies on deposit 16 16

Trust Group

Group

Inventories recognised as an expense in the period

Write-down of inventories (including losses)

The great majority of trade is with NHS commissioners.  As they are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit 

scoring of them is considered necessary.  Other non-impaired debtors are mostly receivable from other Government-funded public sector 

bodies (such as Welsh NHS bodies, universities and local authorities).  As such there are few concerns with regards to their 

creditworthiness.

Trust

Page 28



North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2015-16

22. Non-current assets held for sale
Trust and Group

Land Dwellings Total

£000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2015 30,780 925 31,705

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year 1,105 280 1,385

Less assets sold in the year 0 (605) (605)

Less impairment of assets held for sale (1,835) 0 (1,835)

(2,850) 0 (2,850)

Balance at 31 March 2016 27,200 600 27,800

Balance at 1 April 2014 0 0 0

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year 30,997 925 31,922

Less assets sold in the year (217) 0 (217)

Balance at 31 March 2015 30,780 925 31,705

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for 

reasons other than disposal by sale

Assets held for sale consists of the non-operational Frenchay Hospital site, which has been revalued 

by the District Valuer during 2015/16.
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23. Trade and other payables Trust

31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS payables - revenue 11,589 10,438 0 0

Non-NHS payables - revenue 30,865 11,837 0 0

Non-NHS payables - capital 5,051 13,405 1,989 372

Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 38,592 42,410 4,117 3,329

Social security costs 6,419 59

PDC Dividend payable to DH 0 81

Accrued Interest on DH Loans 194

Tax 6,573 70

Other 598 520 0 0

Total 99,881 78,820 6,106 3,701

Total payables (current and non-current) 105,987 82,521

There are no amounts included above to buy out the liability for early retirements over 5 years.

Group

31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS payables - revenue 11,589 10,438 0 0

Non-NHS payables - revenue 31,128 12,008 0 0

Non-NHS payables - capital 5,051 13,405 1,989 372

Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 38,592 42,410 4,117 3,329

Social security costs 6,419 59 0 0

PDC Dividend payable to DH 0 81 0 0

Accrued Interest on DH Loans 194 0 0 0

Tax 6,573 70 0 0

Other 598 520 0 0

Total 100,144 78,991 6,106 3,701

Total payables (current and non-current) 106,250 82,692

24. Other liabilities Trust and Group

31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

£000s £000s £000s £000s

PFI deferred credit 77 77 2,205 2,281

Total 77 77 2,205 2,281

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 2,282 2,358

25. Borrowings Trust and Group

31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Loans from Department of Health 1,420 1,420 65,162 19,510

PFI main liability 10,048 10,486 406,338 416,082

Finance lease liabilities 820 0 5,108 0

Total 12,288 11,906 476,608 435,592

Total borrowings (current and non-current) 488,896 447,498

Current Non-current

Current Non-current

Current Non-current

Current Non-current
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Borrowings / Loans - repayment of principal falling due in:

31 March 2016

DH Other Total

£000s £000s £000s

0-1 Years 1,420 10,868 12,288

1 - 2 Years 29,210 11,039 40,249

2 - 5 Years 23,542 27,343 50,885

Over 5 Years 12,410 373,064 385,474

TOTAL 66,582 422,314 488,896

The Trust is in receipt of DH borrowing as follows:

26. Deferred income Trust and Group

31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Opening balance at 1 April 2015 3,781 9,144 5,374 1,773

Deferred revenue addition 690 0 1,182 1,540

Transfer of deferred revenue (77) (5,363) (2,444) 2,061

Current deferred Income at 31 March 2016 4,394 3,781 4,112 5,374

Total deferred income (current and non-current) 8,506 9,155

Transfer of 2015/16 deferred income includes allocation of £2,358,000 relating to the PFI deferred credit.

27. Finance lease obligations as lessee

Trust and Group

Amounts payable under finance leases (Other)

31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Within one year 820 0 820 0

Between one and five years 3,282 0 3,282 0

After five years 1,826 0 1,826 0

Less future finance charges        0 0

Minimum Lease Payments / Present value of minimum lease payments 5,928 0 5,928 0

Included in:

  Current borrowings 820 0

  Non-current borrowings 5,108 0

5,928 0

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum 

lease payments

Current Non-current

The Trust has entered in to two Finance Leases during 2015/16, one relating to the Patient Information System (Lorenzo: initially £3.1m) over a 

10 year period, the other for the Pathology Information System (LIMS £2.9m) for a 7 year period.   The LIMS system is a managed service 

although not operational, but lease payments have started. 

- £52m which was drawn down on 22 March 2007. The loan is unsecured and is repayable in instalments over 20 years. A fixed rate of interest of 

5.05% applies to this loan.

- £13m which was drawn down in two tranches on 15 September 2009 and 15 December 2009. The loan is unsecured and is repayable in 

instalments over 25 years. A fixed rate of interest of 4.02% applies to this loan.

- £19.3m Working Capital Facility, drawn down in several tranches during the year.  An interest rate of 3.5% applies to this loan.

- £27.8m revenue loan, drawn down in November 2016.  An interest rate of 1.5% applies to this loan.  An initial repayment date of November 

2017 has been set, though this is likely to be extended
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28. Provisions

Trust and Group

Total

Early 

Departure 

Costs

Legal Claims Restructuring Other

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2015 6,871 1,661 217 130 4,863

Arising during the year 50 50 0 0 0

Utilised during the year (689) (335) 0 (69) (285)

Reversed unused (2,517) (36) 0 0 (2,481)

Unwinding of discount 19 19 0 0 0

Change in discount rate (5) (5) 0 0 0

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trusts on being authorised as FT 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from other public sector bodies under absorption accounting 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2016 3,729 1,354 217 61 2,097

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:

No Later than One Year 2,566 191 217 61 2,097

Later than One Year and not later than Five Years 1,163 1,163 0 0 0

Later than Five Years 0 0 0 0 0

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in Respect of Clinical Negligence Liabilities:

As at 31 March 2016 156,102

As at 31 March 2015 99,929

29. Contingencies Trust and Group

31 March 

2016

31 March 

2015

£000s £000s

Contingent liabilities

NHS Litigation Authority legal claims (65) 0

Other 0 (84)

Net value of contingent liabilities (65) (84)

The legal claims provision relates to insurance excesses on public liability claims against the Trust. The provision is based on standard excess costs per 

claim, unless the NHS Litigation Authoirity has advised the Trust that the excess will be lower.

The early departure costs provision is for the remaining estimated enhanced pension costs due in relation to staff taking early retirements before 6 March 

1995. Actuarial calculations of future pension costs have been provided by the NHS Pensions Agency. Since 1995 all such costs are charged to operating 

expenses in full in the year they arise.

Other provisions relate to disputes with various contractors, the outcome of which is uncertain.
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30. PFI - additional information

Trust and Group

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for inclusion in national statutory accounts

2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s

Total charge to operating expenses in year - Off SoFP PFI 147 149

Service element of on SOFP PFI charged to operating expenses in year 5,566 2,107

Total 5,713 2,256

Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP PFI and the service element of on SOFP PFI

No Later than One Year 5,966 6,138

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 25,574 25,402

Later than Five Years 221,014 232,473

Total 252,554 264,013

Estimated Capital Value of Project - off SOFP PFI 2,800 2,800

Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due

2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s

No Later than One Year 36,308 37,194

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 132,643 136,059

Later than Five Years 751,457 753,119

Subtotal 920,408 926,372

Less: Interest Element (504,022) (499,804)

Total 416,386 426,568

Present Value Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due 2015-16 2014-15

Analysed by when PFI payments are due £000s £000s

No Later than One Year 10,048 10,486

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 35,101 36,252

Later than Five Years 371,237 379,830

Total 416,386 426,568

Number of on SOFP PFI Contracts

Total Number of on PFI contracts 1

Number of on PFI contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m 1

Number of off SOFP PFI Contracts

Total Number of off PFI contracts 1

Number of off PFI contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m 0

PFI schemes deemed to be on Statement of Financial Position

Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of ON and OFF SOFP PFI

The estimated annual payments in future years are not expected to be materially different from those which the Trust is committed to make during 

the next year.  

A contract for the development of the new hospital was signed by the Trust and its PFI partner, The Hospital Company (Southmead) Limited on 25 

February 2010.  The purpose of the scheme was to deliver a modern, state of the art hospital facility on the Southmead site, which the Trust 

moved into on 26 March 2014 and which has been fully operational since May 2014. 

Under IFRIC 12, the PFI scheme is deemed to be on Statement of Financial Position, meaning that the hospital is treated as an asset of the Trust, 

being acquired under a finance lease. In addition to the above the PFI partner constructed a multi-storey car park as part of the PFI contract which 

was completed and has been operating since January 2011.  This is accounted for in the same way as the hospital.

A final phase of the project with a capital value of £6,567,000 is due to complete on 29 July 2016.  This will be reflected in the accounts when the 

assets constructed in this phase are ready for use by the Trust.

The total construction cost recognised in the accounts to date in relation to these two assets is £431,250,000.

An annual unitary payment is payable to our PFI partner. This payment is subject to RPI based indexation in common with most other PFI 

schemes. Under the contract, the PFI partner provides a facilities management service along with associated services including pest control and 

grounds and utilities management.  The contractual service charge for 2014/15 was  £6,648,000.  As well as being subject to movements in RPI, 

this element can change as a result of service or performance variations. During the course of 2014/15 the Trust has utilised the contractual 

mechanisms relating to performance to secure reductions in the payments made to the contractor.
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Burden Institute (Burden)

PFI schemes deemed to be off Statement of Financial Position

Burden Institute (Burden)/Brain Rehabilitation Unit (BIRU)

31. Impact of IFRS treatment - current year

2015-16 2014-15

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for budget reconciliation purposes £000s £000s

Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 (e.g PFI)

Depreciation charges 6,419 4,241

Interest Expense 32,738 31,860

Impairment charge - AME 0 (9,800)

Other Expenditure 5,566 2,107

Total IFRS Expenditure (IFRIC12) 44,723 28,408

Revenue consequences of PFI / LIFT schemes under UK GAAP / ESA95 (net of any sublease revenue) 42,250 37,790

Net IFRS change (IFRIC12) 2,473 (9,382)

Capital Consequences of IFRS : PFI and other items under IFRIC12

UK GAAP capital expenditure 2015-16 (Reversionary Interest) 6,718 6,434

2015-16 2015-16

Income/     

Expenditure 

IFRIC 12      

YTD

Income/     

Expenditure 

ESA 10         

YTD

£000s £000s

Revenue costs of IFRS12 compared with ESA10

Depreciation charges 6,419

Interest Expense 32,738

Other Expenditure

Service Charge 5,566 42,250

Impact on PDC Dividend Payable (5,043)

Total Revenue Cost under IFRIC12 vs ESA10 39,680 42,250

Net Revenue Cost under IDRIC12 vs ESA10 39,680 42,250

32. Financial Instruments

32.1. Financial risk management

Currency risk

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing 

the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.  Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the Trust has with commissioners 

and the way those commissioners are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.  Also financial 

instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting 

standards mainly apply.  The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-

day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities.

The Trust's treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the Trust's 

standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors.  Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust's internal 

auditors.

The Trust and Group are principally domestic organisations with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and 

sterling based.  They have no overseas operations.  Therefore there is low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

Although the financing arrangements of Burden remain off Statement of Financial Position (see below), the building is treated as a non-current 

asset in the Statement of Financial Position as the Trust is expected to purchase the building at the end of the operating contract (currently July 

2022). The Trust does not currently make any payment for the building as the charges are paid by commissioners within the NHS, and the building 

was constructed at the expense of Crestacare.  For this reason there are no items of expense included in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income and the non-current asset is treated as a donated asset.

The estimated capital value of the scheme is £2,000,000 and a further £800,000 was incurred for enabling works to BIRU. Crestacare constructed 

a 25 bed brain injury rehabilitation unit and a separate private nursing home (collectively known as BIRU), as well as constructing accommodation 

for neuro psychiatry services and the Burden Neurological Institute (collectively known as Burden). The Burden operating agreement is with 

Crestacare Properties Ltd and is a 22 year contract ending in July 2022. The BIRU agreement is principally with Crestacare (GB) Ltd (which is a 

subsidiary of Crestacare plc) and this agreement is to end in June 2024. In the case of Burden the head lease is for a period of 90 years, BIRU is 

for 99 years. The Trust's annual commitment to BIRU is currently £149,509.
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Interest rate risk

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

32.2. Financial Assets Trust

Loans and 

receivables
Total

£000s £000s

Receivables - NHS 22,940 22,940

Receivables - non-NHS 14,736 14,736

Cash at bank and in hand 1,013 1,013

Total at 31 March 2016 38,689 38,689

Receivables - NHS 18,332 18,332

Receivables - non-NHS 19,436 19,436

Cash at bank and in hand 1,041 1,041

Total at 31 March 2015 38,809 38,809

Group
Loans and 

receivables
Total

£000s £000s

Receivables - NHS 22,940 22,940

Receivables - non-NHS 14,736 14,736

Cash at bank and in hand 1,013 1,013

Total at 31 March 2016 38,689 38,689

Receivables - NHS 18,332 18,332

Receivables - non-NHS 19,268 19,268

Cash at bank and in hand 1,041 1,041

Total at 31 March 2015 38,641 38,641

32.3. Financial Liabilities Trust

Other Total 

£000s £000s

NHS payables 11,589 11,589

Non-NHS payables 86,594 86,594

Other borrowings 66,582 66,582

PFI & finance lease obligations 422,314 422,314

Total at 31 March 2016 587,079 587,079

NHS payables 10,438 10,438

Non-NHS payables 58,497 58,497

Other borrowings 20,930 20,930

PFI & finance lease obligations 426,568 426,568

Total at 31 March 2015 516,433 516,433

The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability.  The borrowings are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the 

associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan.  The Trust therefore has low exposure to 

interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the Trust's and Group's revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, there is low exposure to credit risk.  

The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2015 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

The Trust's and Group's operating costs are incurred under contracts with primary care commissioners which are financed from resources voted 

annually by Parliament .  The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential borrowing limit.  The Trust and Group are 

not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

The Charity invests funds to maximise investment income, partly in the form of interest and so bears some risk. From a Group perspective this risk 

is insignificant.
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Group

Other Total 

£000s £000s

NHS payables 11,589 11,589

Non-NHS payables 86,857 86,857

Other borrowings 66,582 66,582

PFI & finance lease obligations 422,314 422,314

Total at 31 March 2016 587,342 587,342

NHS payables 10,438 10,438

Non-NHS payables 58,497 58,497

Other borrowings 20,930 20,930

PFI & finance lease obligations 426,568 426,568

Total at 31 March 2015 516,433 516,433

33. Events after the end of the reporting period

There are no events after the reporting period which would affect the figures in these accounts, nor which require disclosure.

34. Related party transactions

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

Director, Interest and Related parties
Expenditure 

in 2015/16, £

Income in 

2015/16, £

Payables at 

31.03.16, £

Receivables 

at 31.03.16, £

Mr Peter Rilett

Chairman

Trustee - St. Monica’s Trust 389,550 0 0 0

Mr Robert Mould

Non-Executive

Member  - Bristol Mediation 1,020 0 1,020 0

Mr Andrew Willis

Non-Executive Director

Associate - King’s Fund 2,943 0 0 0

Non-Executive Director - Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust 0 355,000 136,000 9,000

Professor Nishan Canagarajah

Non-Executive Director

Pro-Vice Chancellor - University of Bristol 3,304,308 2,036,131 958,850 469,554

Mr Ken Guy

Non-Executive Director

Independent member of Audit Committee - Bristol City Council 8,061,914 6,516,299 806,307 675,796

Dr Christopher Burton

Medical Director

Secondary Care Doctor - Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 0 758,000 (4,000) 0
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Net income/ 

(expenditure)

Amounts 

owed to 

related party

Amounts due 

from related 

party

£000 £000 £000

CCG cluster 269,043 3,825 7,243

NHS England 152,196 995 5,318

English NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 8,008 4,600 8,097

NHS Litigation Authority (8,425) Nil Nil

35. Losses and special payments

Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases

£s

Losses 277,975 38

Special payments 503,973 62

Total losses and special payments 781,948 100

Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases

£s

Losses 523 2

Special payments 6,333 28

Total losses and special payments 6,856 30

There were no individual cases greater than £300,0000 in either 2015/16 or 2014/15.

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  During the year North Bristol NHS Trust has had a significant number of material 

transactions with the other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are:

In addition, the Trust has had a number of transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies. Most 

of these transactions have been with H M Revenue and Customs, and the NHS Pensions Agency.

The total number of losses cases in 2015-16 and their total value was as follows:

The total number of losses cases in 2014-15 and their total value was as follows:
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36. Financial performance targets

The figures given for periods prior to 2009-10 are on a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the targets were set for those years.

36.1. Breakeven performance

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Turnover 381,729 420,918 439,624 473,815 492,883 519,430 529,896 541,376 552,911 543,638

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 85 4,008 3,036 (31,879) 1,393 (72,571) (17,851) (159,387) (27,377) (41,405)

Adjustment for:

Timing/non-cash impacting distortions:

Pre FDL(97)24 agreements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2007/08 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2006/07) 0

2008/09 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2007/08) 0 0

Adjustments for impairments 6,182 38,056 6,525 79,545 22,864 163,393 7,486 (8,819)

Adjustments for impact of policy change re donated/government 

grants assets

1,494 1,451 1,599 (267) (1,337)

Consolidated Budgetary Guidance - adjustment for dual accounting 

under IFRIC12*

0 (30) 534 538 0 418 0

Absorption accounting adjustment 0 0 0 0

Other agreed adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Break-even in-year position 85 4,008 9,218 6,177 7,888 9,002 7,002 5,605 (19,740) (51,561)

Break-even cumulative position (44,799) (40,791) (31,573) (25,396) (17,508) (8,506) (1,504) 4,101 (15,639) (67,200)

*

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

% % % % % % % % % %

Break-even in-year position as a percentage of turnover 0.02 0.95 2.10 1.30 1.60 1.73 1.32 1.04 (3.57) (9.48)

Break-even cumulative position as a percentage of turnover (11.74) (9.69) (7.18) (5.36) (3.55) (1.64) (0.28) 0.76 (2.83) (12.36)

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005/06 to 2008/09 inclusive have not been restated to IFRS and remain on a UK GAAP basis.
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Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, the Trust's financial performance measurement needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury 

measuring Departmental expenditure.  Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is 

not chargeable for overall budgeting purposes, is excluded when measuring Breakeven performance.  Other adjustments are made in respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and the removal of the 

donated asset and government grant reserves) to maintain comparability year to year.

IAS 1 requires the Trust to assess, as part of the accounts preparation process, its ability to continue as a going concern. In the context of non-trading entities in the public sector the anticipated continuation of the provision of a 

service in the future is normally sufficient evidence of going concern. The financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless there are plans for, or no realistic alternative other than, the dissolution of the 

Trust without the transfer of its services to another entity within the public sector.  These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

The Trust’s financial forecast for 2016-17 shows a deficit (as measured for break-even duty purposes) of £48m.  This deficit is after assuming delivery of savings of £22m.  The planned deficit in 2016/17 means that the Trust 

has a cash shortfall in April 2016 for which financing through the NHS Trust Development Authority (NHS TDA) has been received.  The Trust has further received assurance from the NHS TDA that the DH will make sufficient 

cash financing available over the next 12 months to fund all essential operational liabilities.

Of the £22m of savings required for 2016/17, £16.3m have been identified to date.   The Trust has a financial sustainability group which will be reviewing the schemes identified and have identified the work streams to develop 

the programme fully.  This will include the development of the Lord Carter recommendations for improved efficiency.      

The Trust Board considers that whilst this represents a significant challenge, it is reasonable to expect that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
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36.2. Capital cost absorption rate

36.3. External financing

The Trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot.

2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s

External financing limit (EFL) 43,880 65,079

Cash flow financing 37,199 64,586

Finance leases taken out in the year 6,059 0

External financing requirement 43,258 64,586

Under spend against EFL 622 493

36.4. Capital resource limit

The Trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not permitted to exceed.

2015-16 2014-15

£000s £000s

Gross capital expenditure 23,418 59,789

Less: book value of assets disposed of (605) (217)

Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets (2,160) (950)

Charge against the capital resource limit 20,653 58,622

Capital resource limit 21,534 61,045

Underspend against the capital resource limit 881 2,423

37. Third party assets

31 March 

2016

31 March 

2015

£000s £000s

Third party assets held by the Trust 16 16

The dividend payable on public dividend capital is based on the actual (rather than forecast) average 

relevant net assets based on the pre audited accounts and therefore the actual capital cost 

absorption rate is automatically 3.5%.

The Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the Trust on behalf of 

patients or other parties.  This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure 

reported in the accounts.
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Our Ref:   CP/CA Finance Directorate 
 Christopher Hancock Building 
 Southmead Hospital  
2nd June 2016 Westbury-on-Trym 
 Bristol    BS10 5NB 
 
 Tel: (0117) 414 3818 
Grant Thornton UK LLP Fax: (0117) 323 6117 
Hartwell House E.mail: Catherine.phillips@nbt.nhs.uk 
55-61 Victoria Street Website: http://www.northbristol.nhs.uk 
Bristol 
BS1 6FT 

 
Dear Sirs 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust 
Group financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the group financial 
statements of North Bristol NHS Trust and its subsidiary undertaking, North Bristol NHS Trust 
Charitable Funds for the year ended 31 March 2016 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as 
to whether the group and parent Trust financial statements give a true and fair view in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the accounting policies 
directed by the Secretary of State with the consent of the Treasury as relevant to the National 
Health Service in England. 
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
 
Group financial statements 
i As Trust Board members we have fulfilled our responsibilities under the National Health 

Services Act 2006 for the preparation of group and parent Trust financial statements in 
accordance with the Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts 2015-16 (Manual for 
Accounts) and International Financial Reporting Standards which give a true and fair view 
in accordance therewith. 

ii We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the group and 
parent Trust and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

iii The Trust has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a 
material effect on the group and parent Trust financial statements in the event of non-
compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of the Care Quality 
Commission or other regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the group 
and parent Trust financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
 



 

v Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 

vi We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the group and 
parent Trust financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Manual for Accounts, and adequately disclosed in 
the financial statements.  There are no other material judgements that need to be 
disclosed. 

vii Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 
a there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 
b  none of the assets of the group or parent Trust has been assigned, pledged or 
mortgaged 
c there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring 

items requiring separate disclosure. 
 

viii Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the Manual for Accounts. 

ix All events subsequent to the date of the group financial statements and for which 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Manual for Accounts requires 
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

x We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures 
changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The group and parent Trust 
financial statements have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and 
disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions. We have 
considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings Report 
and attached. We have not adjusted the group and parent Trust financial statements for 
these misstatements brought to our attention as they are immaterial to the results of the 
group and parent Trust and the financial position of the group and parent Trust at the year-
end 

xi In calculating the amount of income to be recognized in the financial statements from other 
NHS organisations we have applied judgement, where appropriate, to reflect the 
appropriate amount of income expected to be received by the group and parent Trust in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards and the Manual for 
Accounts. 

xii Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
Manual for Accounts. 

xiii We acknowledge our responsibility to participate in the Department of Health's agreement 
of balances exercise and have followed the requisite guidance and directions to do so.  We 

Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
 



 

are satisfied that the balances calculated for the Trust ensure the group and parent Trust 
financial statements and consolidation schedules are free from material misstatement, 
including the impact of any disagreements.   

xiv We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification 
of assets and liabilities reflected in the group and parent Trust financial statements. 

Information Provided 

xv We have provided you with: 
a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation 

of the group and parent Trust financial statements such as records, 
documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your 
audit; and 

c. unrestricted access to persons within the group and parent Trust from whom you 
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 
xvi We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is 

aware. 

xvii All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
group and parent Trust financial statements. 

xviii We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the group and 
parent Trust financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

xix We have disclosed to you all our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the group 
and parent Trust involving: 

a. management; 
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the group financial 

statements. 
 

xx We have disclosed to you all our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the group and parent Trust financial statements communicated by employees, 
former employees, regulators or others. 

xxi We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing 
group and parent Trust financial statements. 

xxii We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 
should be considered when preparing the group and parent Trust financial statements. 

xxiii We have disclosed to you the identity of all of the group’s and the parent Trust's related 
parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
 



 

Annual Report 

xxiv The disclosures within the Annual Report fairly reflect our understanding of the group's and 
the parent Trust’s financial and operating performance over the period covered by the 
group financial statements.  

Annual Governance Statement 

xxv We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Trust’s risk 
assurance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant risks that are 
not disclosed within the AGS.   

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Trust’s Board at its meeting on 
2nd June 2016. 

Yours faithfully 
 

 

 
 
 
Name:     Catherine Phillips 
Position:  Director of Finance 
 
Date:  2nd June 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Name:  Jaki Meekings-Davis 
Position:  Chair of the Audit Committee 
 
Date:  2nd June 2016 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board 
 

Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
 



 
 

Report to: Trust Board (Acting as corporate Trustee) Agenda item:  15 

Date of Meeting: 2nd June 2015 

 
Report Title: Charity Annual Accounts – 2015/16 

Status: Information Discussion Assurance Approval 

   x 

Prepared by: Mark Ross, Head of Financial Services 

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance 

Appendices (list if applicable): Accounts, Representation Letter. 

 
Recommendation:  

Following the Charitable Funds Committee  meeting on the 31st May, the Corporate Trustee are asked to approve the 
accounts and representation  letter. 
 
Executive Summary:  
The accounts and the audit work were discussed in detail at the Charitable Funds Committee on the 31st May. 
 
The External Auditors – Grant Thornton – intend to issue an unqualified audit opinion. 
 
The Charitable Funds Committee  recommended that the Corporate Trustee approve the accounts for 2015/16. 

 



 

   

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST

CHARITABLE FUNDS

Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS  2015/2016



FOREWORD

These accounts have been prepared by the Trustee under section 98(2) of the National Health 

Service Act 1977 (as amended) in the forms which the Secretary of State has, with the approval 

of Treasury, directed.

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

The Trustee has been appointed under s11 of the NHS and Community Care Act 1990.

 

The North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds Held on Trust (the Charity) are registered with the 

Charity Commission and include funds in respect of the North Bristol NHS Trust Hospitals. In 

accordance with guidance from the Department of Health, the Charity also administers Funds 

Held on Trust on behalf of South Gloucestershire CCG.

MAIN PURPOSE OF THE CHARITY

The main purpose of the Charity is to apply income for any charitable purpose relating to the 

National Health Service wholly or mainly for the services provided by the North Bristol NHS 

Trust.
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NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST

CHARITABLE FUNDS



Statement of Trustee's responsibilities

The Trustee is responsible for:

     

   

By Order of the Trustee

Signed and authorised for issue on behalf of the Trustee: 

Andrea Young, Chief Executive Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance

 

Date 
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The Trustee confirms that it has met the responsibilities set out above and complied 

with the requirements for preparing the accounts on a going concern basis. The 

financial statements set out on pages 3 to 16 attached have been compiled from and 

are in accordance with the financial records maintained by the Trustee. 

The Trustee provided the financial statements and information to the auditors who have 

been appointed  under section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and who report in 

accordance with regulations made under section 154 of that Act.

- keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 

time the financial position of the Charity and to enable it to ensure that the accounts 

comply with requirements in the Charities Act 2011 and those outlined in the directions 

issued by the Secretary of  State; 

- establishing and monitoring a system of internal control;  and 

- establishing arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption.

- apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State 

with the approval of the Treasury

- make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent; 

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts. 

The Trustee is required under the Charities Act 2011 and the National Health Service 

Act 1977 to prepare accounts for each financial year.  The Secretary of State, with the 

approval of the Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the 

financial position of the Charity in accordance with the Charities Act 2011.  In preparing 

these accounts, the Trustee is required to:



Audit Opinion
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SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

2014/15

Note Restricted Endowment Total Total

General Designated

Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income and Endowments from :

2 510 606 572 0 1,688 1,499

0 0 0 0 0 0

3 0 7 0 0 7 0

4 222 0 67 0 289 325

8 2 15 132 0 149 2

Total Income and Endowments 734 628 771 0 2,133 1,826

Expenditure on:

5 197 28 2 0 227 181

6 607 674 1,328 0 2,609 1,585

7 140 0 40 0 180 161

Total Expenditure 944 702 1,370 0 3,016 1,927

9 (209) 0 (74) 0 (283) 590

(419) (74) (673) 0 (1,166) 489

 (47) 47 0 0 0 0

Other Recognised Gains/(Losses)

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

Other gains/(losses) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net movement in funds (466) (27) (673) 0 (1,166) 489

Funds brought Forward 3,016 4,401 3,732 31 11,180 10,691

Total Funds Carried Forward 2,550 4,374 3,059 31 10,014 11,180

The notes on pages 6 to 17 form part of the accounts.
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Unrestricted

Other

Investments

Other Trading Activities

Charitable Activities

Donations and legacies

Gains/Losses on 

revaluation of Fixed Assets

Actuarial gains/(losses) on 

defined benefit pensions

Net Income/(Expenditure)

Transfers between funds

Raising Funds

Charitable Activities

Other

Net Gains/(Losses) on 

investments
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2016

2015/2016



SHCG SHCU SHCR

2014/15

Note

General Designated Restricted Endowment Total at Total at 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 31 March 

2016

31 March 

2015

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Current Assets

Stock 0 1 0 0 1 0

BS1 10 25 54 18 0 97 196

BS2 14 2,372 3,977 2,936 28 9,313 10,270

BS3 11 284 477 352 3 1,116 1,082

Total Current Assets 2,681 4,509 3,306 31 10,527 11,548

Liabilities

BS4 12 
(131) (135) (247) 0 (513) (368)

Net  Assets/(Liabilities) 2,550 4,374 3,059 31 10,014 11,180

The Funds of the Charity

BS5 0 0 0 31 31 31

BS6  0 0 3,059 0 3,059 3,732

BS7 2,550 4,374 0 0 6,924 7,417

Total Unrestricted Funds 2,550 4,374 0 0 6,924 7,417

Total Charity Funds 2,550 4,374 3,059 31 10,014 11,180

Approved on behalf of the Trustees

Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance Date
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Endowment Funds

Restricted Income Funds

Unrestricted Funds

Investments

Cash at Bank and in hand

Creditors (Amounts falling 

due within one year)

Debtors
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Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 March 2016

2015/2016

Unrestricted

Stocks



2015/2016 2014/15

Note

Total Total

£000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities:

13 (929) (33)

Cash flows from investing activities:

5 289 325

0 0

14 2,424 1,723 

14 (1,751) (1,744)

962 304

34 271

1,082 811

1,116 1,082

Cash and cash equivalents at the 

beginning of the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end 

of the reporting period

Change in cash and cash equivalents in 

the reporting period
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Dividends, interest and rents from 

investments

Purchase of investments

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant 

and equipment

Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash provided by (used in) 

investing activities
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Cashflow for the year ended 31 March 2016

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 

activities 



Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

1.1 Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention, as modified for the 

revaluation of certain investments, and in accordance with FRS 102 and the Statement of 

Recommended Practice "Accounting and Reporting by Charities" issued by the Charity Commission 

to commence following January 2015.  These accounts have been prepared under all applicable 

charitable law in the charity's country of registration, the UK.

The Statement of Financial Activities and the Balance Sheet have been prepared in a different 

format to make them compliant with FRS 102.  These changes have not impacted the financial 

performance or the surplus/deficit of the Charity in the prior year.

1.2 Incoming resources

a) All incoming resources are included in full in the Statement of Financial Activities as soon as the 

following three factors can be met.

i)     entitlement - arises when a particular resource is receivable or the Charity's right becomes 

legally enforceable;

 

ii)    probability - when there is a reasonable probability that the incoming resource will be received;  

This is a change from the prior year and was introduced in from the 1st April 2015

iii)   measurement - when the monetary value of the incoming resources can be measured with 

sufficient reliability.

b)  Income received from the investment of endowment funds is treated as unrestricted.

c) Legacies are accounted for as incoming resources once the receipt of the legacy becomes probable.  

This will be once confirmation has been received from the representatives of the estate that payment 

of the legacy or transfer of property is likely to be made and once all conditions attached to the 

legacy have been fulfilled.

d) Gifts in kind:

i)   Assets given for distribution by the Charity are included in the Statement of Financial Activities 

only when distributed.

ii)  Assets given for use by the Charity (e.g. property for its own occupation) are included in the 

Statement of Financial Activities as incoming resources when receivable.

iii) Gifts made in kind but on trust for conversion into cash and subsequent application by the Charity 

are included in the accounting period in which the gift is sold.

In all cases the amount at which gifts in kind are brought into account is either a reasonable estimate 

of their value to the Charity or the amount actually realised.

1.3 Fixed assets

No fixed assets are held or owned by the Charity other than investments. However contributions are 

made towards the cost of capital assets in North Bristol NHS Trust as detailed in note 3.1

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS

Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS  2015/2016
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1.4 Resources expended 

a)

b)

c)

1.5 Fixed asset investments
 

1.6 Structure of funds

1.7 Realised and unrealised gains and losses 

1.8 Apportionment
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Where there is a legal restriction on the purposes to which a fund may be put, the fund is 

classified in the accounts as a restricted fund.  Funds where the capital is held to generate 

income for charitable purposes and cannot itself be spent are accounted for as endowment 

funds.  Other funds are classified as unrestricted funds.  Funds which are not legally restricted 

but which the Trustee's representatives have chosen to earmark for set purposes are classified 

as designated funds. Funds which are not legally restricted and not designated have been 

classed as general funds.  The major funds held within these categories are disclosed in note 

22.

All gains and losses are taken to the Statement of Financial Activities as they arise.  Realised 

gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds and 

opening market value (or date of purchase if later). Unrealised gains and losses are calculated 

as the difference between market value at the year end and opening market value (or purchase 

price if acquired during the year).

Dividend, interest and governance costs are apportioned annually to the funds according to the 

monthly fund balances. Realised and unrealised gains and losses held on reserve are 

apportioned to the funds using the same method and in accordance with the reserves policy. 

Central support costs have been allocated to funds on the basis of the average fund balances 

during the year as it is the Trustee's view that this is  equitable and in line with their intention to 

encourage the effective use of funds. 

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS

Charity Registration No. 1055900
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The Charity's accounts are prepared in accordance with the accruals concept.  All expenditure 

is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to make a payment to a third party.

The costs of generating funds are the costs associated with generating income for the 

Charity.  These will include the costs associated with appeals, printing, publicity and 

investment management together with appropriate salary costs.

Activities in the furtherance of the Charity's objectives are accounted for on an accruals 

basis where the conditions for their payment have been met or where a third party has a 

reasonable expectation that they will receive the grant. This includes grants made to NHS 

bodies.  

Governance costs of the Charity include costs incurred by the finance department of North 

Bristol NHS Trust.  These are accounted for on an accruals basis and comprise all costs of 

the Charity and its compliance with regulation and good practice. These costs include costs 

related to statutory audit together with other direct Trustee costs. 

Fixed asset investments are investments listed on the stock exchange included in the balance 

sheet at market value.  These investments are managed by Smith & Williamson, see note 1.9 

for more information.



1.9 Investment policy

1.10 Pooling scheme

An official pooling scheme is operated for investments relating to the following funds:

North Bristol NHS Trust (Expendable Funds) Common Investment Fund

North Bristol NHS Trust (Capital) Common Investment Fund
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Long term balances

Under the Trustee Investment Act 1961 and the Trustee Act 2000, the Charity as a corporate 

body, is empowered to invest in certain categories of investments. The Charity makes 

investments in accordance with this Act.

In order to maximise income potential, the Charity invests monies to generate interest and 

when appropriate, dividends. To ensure that there are monies available to meet different 

demands on expenditure, the balances are held as short term, and long term investments. The 

Charity engages  Smith & Williamson Investment Management as its investments manager. 

The Charity also retains the services of an independent investment advisor who advises the 

Charitable Funds Committee on investment strategy.

Funds are invested by Smith & Williamson acting as Investment Manager for the Charitable 

Funds.  They are instructed to maintain a balanced portfolio of holdings with no holding in 

tobacco related investments being held as part of the portfolio.  Smith & Williamson charge 

investment fees quarterly to the Charity.

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS

Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS  2015/2016

Short term balances

Monies are held in current accounts with The Royal Bank of Scotland and Citibank, until such 

time as they are needed to meet expenditure requirements. As the balances are dependent on 

the income received on a day to day basis, they fluctuate in accordance with the income 

received. In addition to this cash is held with Smith and Willimson to enable them to purchase 

and sell investments in line with the investment policy. 



1.11 Going Concern Policy

 

1.12 Reserves Policy

1.13 Statement of Charitable Purpose

1.14 Staff
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The Charity receives income in the form of donations and bequests/legacies. This income is 

banked as and when it is received. By its very nature, it is difficult to predict in advance the 

amount of income that the Charity is likely to receive, and therefore it is essential that the 

Charity maintains sums of money on reserve, to meet its requirements and to act as a buffer 

against stock market fluctuations.

It is the policy of the Trustee to retain on reserve a minimum of 20% of the value of the 

Charity's investment portfolio in the form of unrealised and realised gains. 

Following the increased level of reserves this year the trustees have implemented a new 

spending plan process to improve monitoring of spend and will be reviewing the Reserves 

Policy during the coming year

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS

These accounts have been prepared on the basis that the charity is a going concern.  At this 

time the trustees have no doubts that the charity holds sufficient funds to meet all it 

obligations for the forseeable future.

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2015/16

Charity Registration No. 1055900

North Bristol NHS Charitable Funds is a charity (charity number 1055900) operating under 

the name Southmead Hospital Charity.  As such it is registered with the Charity Commission 

in the United Kingdom as a charity and is a Public Benefit Entity as defined in FRS 102.  

The Charity's registered office is Southmead Hospital, Southmead Road, Bristol.  This is the 

same as North Bristol NHS Trust which is its parent entity

The Charity is considered a wholly controlled subsidiary of North Bristol NHS Trust as the 

trustees of North Bristol NHS Trust are, as a corporate body, the trustee of North Bristol 

NHS Trust Charitable Funds.  North Bristol NHS Trust's purpose is to improve healthcare in 

the region in which it treats patients.

During the year the charity had 8 staff members.  No staff member was paid £60,000 or 

more during the year.



1.15 Stock

1.16 Debtors

1.17 Cash at bank and in hand

1.18 Creditors and provisions

1.19 Financial Instruments

Page 10

Cash at bank and cash in hand includes cash held in banks only.

Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting 

from a past event that will probably result in the transfer of funds to a third party and the 

amount due to settle the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably. Creditors and 

provisions are normally recognised at their settlement amount after allowing for any trade 

discounts due.

The charity only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 

financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value 

and subsequently measured at their settlement value.  This change to the recognition was 

introduced on 1st April 2015.

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS

Charity Registration No. 1055900
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Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount due after any trade 

discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts 

due.

Stock is included at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Donated items of stock are 

recognised at fair value which is the amount the charity would have been willing to pay for 

the items on the open market.



3 Details of Trading Activities

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

TradingCafé Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sale EventsCommunity Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

4 Details of Return on Investments

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

DividendsDividends 222 0 67 0 289 325

Deposit InterestDeposit Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0

222 0 67 0 289 325

5 Details of Fundraising Costs

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fundraising SalariesSalaries 158 0 0 0 158

Fundraising MaterialsMaterials 3 1 0 0 4

Fundraising EventsEvents 13 26 2 0 41

Fundraising VolunteersVolunteers 0 0 0 0 0

ShopShop Costs 0 0 0 0 0

Fundraising GeneralOther 23 1 0 0 24

197 28 2 0 227 181

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS

Charity Registration No. 1055900
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6 Details of Charitable Spend

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

PatientsPatients 491 212 520 0 1,223 474

Staff Staff Welfare 58 354 310 0 722 467

ResearchResearch 0 64 354 0 418 553

Art Art 30 3 0 0 33 26

28 41 144 0 213 65

607 674 1,328 0 2,609 1,585

7 Details of Other Resources Expended

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Investment CostsInvestment Costs 44 0 13 0 57 64

Bank ChargesBank Charges 2 0 0 0 2 1

SalariesStaff Costs 83 0 25 0 108 85

Computer CostsComputer Costs 1 0 0 0 1 1

External AuditExternal Audit 3 0 1 0 4 4

External AdvisorsExternal Advisors 7 0 1 0 8 4

InsuranceInsurance 0 0 0 0 0 1

140 0 40 0 180 160

7.1 Other Resources Expended by Activity

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS

Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2015/16

Contribution 

to Capital 

Assets
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Other Income

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

InterestBank Interest 2 1 1 0 4 2

TransfersTransfers from 0 14 131 0 145 0

other Charities

2 15 132 0 149 2

Gain/(Loss) on Investments

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Sales of Investments 116 0 41 0 157 536

Unrealised Gains/(Losses) (325) 0 (115) 0 (440) 54

(209) 0 (74) 0 (283) 590

Debtors

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Trade Debtors 0 1 0 0 1 95

Accrued Income 17 53 18 0 88 93

Other Debtors 8 0 0 0 8 8

25 54 18 0 97 196
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Cash

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

RBS 250 419 309 3 980 1,062

Smith & Williamson 35 58 43 0 136 20

284 477 352 3 1,116 1,082

Liabilities

SHCG SHCU SHCR SHCE

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total 14/15

funds funds funds Funds funds Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Other Liabilities 34 71 25 0 130 176

Liability to Trust 97 64 222 0 383 192

131 135 247 0 513 368

Reconciliation of Net Income/(Expenditure)

SHCG 2015/16 SHCR

Net Income/(Expenditure) for (1,166)

the reporting period

No Prior Year Available

Adjustments for :

Depreciation 0

(Gains)/Losses on investments 283

Dividends (289)

Loss/(profit) on the sale of fixed assets 0

(Increase)/Decrease in Stocks (1)

(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 99

Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors 145

Net cash provided by (Used in) (929)

Operating activities
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Investment

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Opening Balance (1st April) 10,270 9,713 

Less Disposals (2,424) (1,723)

Add Acquisitions 1,751 1,744 

Net Gain on revaluation (283) 536 

Closing Market Value 9,313 10,270

Closing Historic Costs @ 31st March 8,121 9,171

Contingencies

At the Year end the following is considered a contingent asset

Legacy (Mr P Chadwick) - Estimated at £104,000

Post balance sheet events

 

Trustee's and connected person's transactions

Trustees representatives' expenses reimbursed

Trustees representatives' remuneration

 

No representative of the Trustee received reimbursements in respect of expenses 

from the Charity.
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17

18

19

No representative of the Trustee received any remuneration paid or payable from the 

Charity.

There are no post balance sheet events relating to the financial year ended 31st 

March 2015.

There are number of additional incomplete legacies are currently ongoing but it is not 

possible at this time to reliably estimate their value to the Charity.
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15

All Investments are held in an investment pool of listed investments managed by 

Smith and Williamson



Related party transactions  

Funds owed to North Bristol Trust at the year end are disclosed in note 12.
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During 15/16 there were no related party transactions with the Directors of the Trust 

Board of North Bristol NHS Trust

Details of the remuneration of Trustees from North Bristol NHS Trust are included in the 

accounts of North Bristol NHS Trust

The Charity has made revenue and capital payments to North Bristol NHS Trust where 

the representatives, as listed earlier,  of the Trustee are also members of the Trust.

21

The Charity has made revenue and capital payments to North Bristol NHS Trust during 

the year where the representatives of the Trustee are also members of the Trust Board. 

During the the year members of the Trust Board have received no remuneration and 

there has been no transactions between them individually and the Charity.  North Bristol 

NHS Trust remuneration to the trustees is disclosed in the North Bristol NHS Trust 

accounts.

Trustee transactions with representatives of the Trustee or connected 

persons

20



Balance B/F Income Expenditure C/F Balance
Unrestricted Funds

# Cossham General Amenities                         154,769£           120£                   5,754£                149,135£          

# BUI Urology *                     120,680£           2,368£                1,316£                121,733£          

# BUI Bladder Physiology Urology * 21,775£             96,014£              54,494£              63,294£             

# Medicine Cardiology 182,693£           5,000£                1,440£                186,253£          

# Medical Postgraduate Centre          93,717£             -£                    1,125£                92,593£             

# Intensive Care Unit 134,553£           18,293£              26,894£              125,951£          

# MRI Scanners 115,167£           -£                    7,000£                108,167£          

# Neurosurgery Department 170,838£           30,861£              56,323£              145,375£          

# Neurology Department                                    49,955£             4,072£                855£                   53,172£             

# Functional Neurosurgery                         352,914£           79,988£              -£                    432,902£          

# Microbiology Academic Fund                 68,464£             -£                    10,072£              58,392£             

# Bacteriology Research                            196,134£           5,604£                44,720£              157,018£          

# Weston Satellite Fund                        322,132£           1,701£                13,212£              310,621£          

# Renal General Fund                                94,409£             14,930£              22,564£              86,775£             

# Stoke Fund                                        67,709£             433£                   3,179£                64,964£             

# Greenland Fund                   100,380£           130£                   14,027£              86,483£             

# PAT Fund Adult Speech & Language Therapy 165,482£           -£                    1,600£                163,882£          

# Trauma                       62,819£             2,585£                3,184£                62,220£             

# BUI Functional Urology * 120,245£           30,714£              44,422£              106,537£          

# Gate 27                                           47,053£             28,136£              7,393£                67,796£             

# Neonatal Intensive Care Unit                                  278,618£           61,593£              30,160£              310,052£          

# Gynaecology Research & Education  2,362£               50,000£              1,550£                50,812£             

# Southmead General Fund                            147,726£           389,634£            118,684£            418,676£          

Unrestricted Funds Total 3,070,594£       822,177£            469,968£            3,422,802£       
Restricted Funds

# Breast Care Centre         74,431£             65,892£              37,303£              103,020£          

# BUI Oncology Urology * 179,245£           18,759£              32,092£              165,911£          

# Dreams And Wishes 55,433£             577£                   1,130£                54,880£             

# Avon Mesothelioma Foundation 49,841£             2,161£                -£                    52,003£             

# Bristol & Avon Multiple Sclerosis Centre                                        721,881£           112,903£            482,434£            352,349£          

# Mums The Word Appeal                           129,092£           3,109£                48£                      132,154£          

# Research Fund                                     273,921£           -£                    62,596£              211,326£          

# Pounsford Research & Travel                       87,110£             -£                    4,284£                82,826£             

# Multiple Sclerosis Clinical Research                              95,702£             109,284£            49,139£              155,847£          

# Vascular Surgery Research                         19,343£             131,559£            990£                   149,911£          

# BUI Biomed Research & Education *         142,106£           800£                   10,231£              132,675£          

# Brain Cancer Research (BCIRP)          530,492£           154,306£            213,827£            470,971£          

# Lung Cancer Fund 75,455£             1,742£                10,330£              66,868£             

Restricted Funds Total 2,434,052£       601,093£            904,405£            2,130,740£       

Other Funds 5,675,032£       709,840£            1,924,120£        4,460,689£       

Total 11,179,678£     2,133,109£        3,298,493£        10,014,231£     

* BUI funds are those held in respect of the Bristol Urological Institute

The Southmead General Fund is held for the benefit of the patients and staff of North Bristol NHS Trust.

The majority of the funds above are held for the specific benefit of the patients and staff  of the listed part of the North Bristol 

NHS Trust.  

The Research Fund is held to provide research into health issues affecting the patients of North Bristol NHS Trust and specific 

research funds are held for research into specific health issues affecting patients of North Bristol NHS Trust.
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Our Ref:   CP/CA Finance Directorate 
 Christopher Hancock Building 
 Southmead Hospital  
31st May 2016 Westbury-on-Trym 
 Bristol    BS10 5NB 
 
 Tel: (0117) 414 3818 
Grant Thornton UK LLP Fax: (0117) 323 6117 
Hartwell House E.mail: Catherine.phillips@nbt.nhs.uk 
55-61 Victoria Street Website: http://www.northbristol.nhs.uk 
Bristol 
BS1 6FT 

31 May 2016 
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds 
Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of 
North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds for the year ended 31 March 2016 for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in 
accordance with  Section 154 of the Charities Act 2011. 
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
 
Financial Statements 
 
i We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement 
letter dated 3 March 2016, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
Charities Act 2011, and the Accounting and reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended 
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland ('Charities SORP (FRS 102)'), 
issued by the Charity Commission for England and Wales and any subsequent amendments or 
variations to this statement., in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in 
accordance therewith. 
 
ii We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control 
to prevent and detect error and fraud. 
 
iii Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 
 
iv Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Charities SORP (FRS 102) and any 
subsequent amendments or variations to this statement. 
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v All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Charities 
SORP (FRS 102) and any subsequent amendments or variations to this statement require 
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
 
vi We have not adjusted the misstatements brought to our attention on the audit differences 

and adjustments summary, attached to this letter, as they are immaterial to the results of the 
charity and financial position at the year-end. The financial statements are free of material 
misstatements, including omissions. 
 
vii We can confirm that: 
 
a. all income has been recorded;  
b. the restricted funds have been properly applied; 
c. constructive obligations for grants have been recognised; and  
d. the trustees consider there to be appropriate controls in place to ensure overseas 
payments are applied for charitable purposes. 
 
viii Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
 
Information Provided 
 
ix We have provided you with: 
a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 
b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and 
c. unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determine it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 
 
x We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 
xi All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial statements. 
 
xii We have disclosed to you our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity 
involving: 
a. management; 
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
xiii We have disclosed to you our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 
regulators or others. 
 
xiv We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing 
financial statements. 
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xv We have disclosed to you the identity of the charity's related parties and all the related 
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
 
xvi We confirm that we have reviewed all correspondence with regulators, which has also 
been made available to you, including, in England and Wales, the serious incident report 
guidelines issued by the Charity Commission (updated in 2010).  We also confirm that no 
serious incident reports have been submitted to the Charity Commission, nor any events 
considered for submission, during the year or in the period to the signing of the balance sheet. 
 
xvii We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose 
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Trustees 
 
 
 
Signed…………………………… 
Position: Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance 
 
Date:  
 
 
 
Signed…………………………… 
Position:  Jacki Meekings-Davis, Chair of Charitable Funds Committee 
 
Date:   



 
 

Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  16 

Date of Meeting: 2 June 2016 

 
Report Title: Quality Account 2015-16  

Status: Information Discussion Assurance Approval 

 X  X 

Prepared by: Paul Cresswell, Associate Director of Quality Governance 

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Sue Jones, Director of Nursing & Quality 

Appendices (list if applicable): Appendix 1 – Final Quality Account 2015-16 

 
Recommendation:  

The Trust Board is requested to approve the Quality Account priorities for 2015/16, subject to any comments from external stakeholders 
 
 
Executive Summary: 

The Trust Board received the draft Quality Account 2015/16 at its meeting in April 2016 and were asked to provide any comments on its 
contents. Since that meeting the consultation with external partners has concluded and comments have been included in the Quality Accounts. 
The Trust’s External Auditors have also completed their review of the Quality Accounts and have provided an unqualified opinion. This was 
considered in detail by the Audit Committee at their meeting on 31 May 2016. 
The Quality Account will be subject to final formatting prior to publication. 
The Trust Board is asked to approve the Quality Account and note that should any major amendment be required to the document, following 
any final comments from stakeholders, then the Board will be consulted prior to the deadline of 30 June 2016. 
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This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
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Statement on the quality of services from the Chief Executive 
Introduction from the Chief Executive  

North Bristol NHS Trust is the largest hospital trust in the South West of England, providing 
hospital and community healthcare to the residents of Bristol, South Gloucestershire and North 
Somerset. We are also a specialist regional centre for a number of services including neurosurgery, 
renal (kidney) medicine, plastics, orthopaedics and major trauma.  

We aim for ‘Exceptional healthcare personally delivered’  by providing services of exemplary quality, 
ensuring no unnecessary waits or delays, providing care in high quality facilities and having well trained 
and caring staff.  

Quality improvement – In 2014, we became one of the first 12 NHS organisations in England to ‘Sign up 
to Safety’ - a government-led campaign that aims to make the NHS the safest healthcare system in the 
world. Five core safety pledges were made and a huge amount of work has been done throughout the 
organisation to support these pledges.   

• Putting safety first – as part of this pledge our dedicated falls lead has trained over 500 staff, and 
environmental changes have been made in clinical areas all targeted towards reducing falls. As a 
result of this focus we have seen a significant decrease in the amount of serious falls. 

• Continually learning – Our trust has always been at the forefront of patient safety initiatives and 
the drive and focus of our staff to continually develop and improve how we do things plays a large 
part in this pledge. We have developed an organisation wide improvement and safety programme 
and in their inspection report the CQC recognised the positive opportunities provided for continued 
learning and improvement, as illustrated through outstanding practice in a number of areas, such as 
dementia care and Major Trauma outcomes.  

• Honesty – A culture of openness and transparency is something I personally feel strongly about 
and we can demonstrate this happening in practice across NBT. The CQC observed an effective 
safety culture with staff taking an honest approach to incident reporting and highlighting that staff 
felt able to raise any concerns they might have about safety. We are also currently evaluating the 
results from a detailed staff safety culture survey, which has generated a fantastic response from 
around 1000 staff. The outcomes will shape further improvements in 2016/17 to support our 
ambition of becoming one of the safest hospitals in the UK. 

• Collaboration – Examples of collaborative working include the SHINE project which was initially 
implemented at University Hospitals Bristol and has since been used to great effect in our 
Emergency Department. This example of safety improvement has led to reduced incidents relating 
to recognition of deteriorating patients or delays in care within the ED. 

• Support - This pledge has seen us focusing on helping staff to understand why things go wrong 
and how to put them right. The implementation of a safety hub is providing staff with support 
through dedicated weekly awareness and training sessions. This is facilitated at locations close to 
clinical teams’ working areas through ‘pop up’ booths that help to make this was widely accessible 
as possible. 

Care Quality Commission inspection – In December 2015, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) carried 
out a focused re-inspection of services previously rated as ‘requires improvement’ or ’inadequate’ in 
November 2014. Whilst our overall rating has remained as ‘requires improvement,’ the CQC has 
recognised significant safety improvements within urgent and emergency care services with the service 
improving to a ‘Good’ rating overall. Important improvements were also recognised within our critical care 
and maternity and gynaecology services, both of which also achieved an overall rating of ‘good.’  
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I am also extremely pleased that the CQC described the care we are providing to our patients with 
dementia as ‘an outstanding example of responsiveness’ as well as praising the passion and continual 
drive for improvement in patient care shown by frontline staff and managers. There is still work to do but I 
am confident that our continued commitment will enable us to provide quality care that achieves the best 
possible outcomes for all our patients.   

Patient experience – One of our priorities was to improve our patient’s overall experience in hospital and 
in 2015-16 we have laid the foundations for achieving this consistently. New trust-wide leadership roles in 
Patient Experience and Quality & Safety Improvement have helped to scope priorities in each area that are 
engaging the whole organisation more effectively.  For example, a new initiative entitled ‘Ask three 
questions’ aims to empower patients and their families and carers to play a more active role in decisions 
about their care. By asking the right questions during consultations with their doctors, nurses and 
therapists, patients can actively consider their options with the support of their healthcare professional  

Trust strategy – The Trust Board approved a new strategy at its March 2016 meeting. This will provide 
clarity of direction over the next five years. It sets out our vision of the future - delivering healthcare, which 
is of exceptional quality, with excellent clinical outcomes and in an environment that provides an 
outstanding experience for our patients and staff.  We will be sharing this broadly internally and externally 
to gain further views on how we can successfully take this forward. 

 

Andrea Young 
Chief Executive  
North Bristol NHS Trust 

  

4 - Account of the Quality of Clinical Services 2015/16 



Review of Services 
 
During 2015/16, the Trust provided a wide range of NHS services. These are listed in Appendix 3.  

The Trust reviews data and information related to the quality of these services through regular reports to 
the Trust Board and the Trust’s governance committees. Each clinical service undergoes monthly 
Executive review in which performance against standards of quality and safety are reviewed.  These 
reviews discuss with clinical teams and managers any areas of concern and also continuous quality 
improvement. The Trust has therefore reviewed 100% of the data available to them on the quality of care in 
all its NHS services.  

During the year a new Patient Administration System (Lorenzo) was implemented, which went live in 
November 2015. As with any large scale system implementation, this has disrupted the collection and 
quality of information available. This primarily has an impact on operational data, for example that relating 
to length of stay, bed days, bed occupancy and performance against national waiting time standards. 
Gradually these issues are being addressed through the post implementation stabilisation process, which is 
overseen through the IM&T Committee and reported at each Trust Board. Progress is also scrutinised by 
commissioners and the Trust Development Authority. 

If there is any doubt as to the quality of data included within this account this is clearly stated within the 
relevant section.  

The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2015/16 represents 100% percent of total income 
generated from the provision of NHS services by the North Bristol NHS Trust for 2015/16. 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
QUALITY ACCOUNT 2015/16 

 
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009, National Health Service (Quality Accounts) 
Regulations 2010 and National Health Service (Quality Account) Amendment Regulation 2011 to 
prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. The Department of Health has issued guidance on 
the form and content of annual Quality Accounts (which incorporate the above legal requirements).  
 
In preparing the Quality Account, directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves that:  
 

• the Quality Account presents a balanced picture of the Trust’s performance over the period covered;  
• the performance information reported in the Quality Account is reliable and accurate;  
• there are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of performance 

included in the Quality Account, and these controls are subject to review to confirm that they are 
working effectively in practice;  

• the data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Account is robust and 
reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed definitions, is subject to 
appropriate scrutiny and review; and  

• the Quality Account has been prepared in accordance with Department of Health guidance.  
 
The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above 
requirements in preparing the Quality Account.  
 
By order of the Board  
 
NB: sign and date in any colour ink except black  
 
Signatures and dates in final published copy 
 
 
Signed............................................................. Date………………………………….. 
 
Peter Rilett  
Chairman  
 
 
Signed............................................................. Date............................................... 
 
Andrea Young 
Chief Executive 
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Section 1 – Priorities for Improvement  
 
Every year the Trust manages a wide range of quality improvement targets and measures set by the 
Trust Board, Commissioners, NHS England and the Department of Health alongside requirements 
of specialist national reviews and recommendations from national NHS organisations including 
NICE, Royal Colleges and Care Quality Commission amongst others.  
 
The targets are included as part of our overall quality strategy under the headings of Patient Safety, Clinical 
Effectiveness and Patient Experience. The connection between good performance and high quality care 
and the range of issues that remain priorities for the board include falls, pressure ulcers, nutrition, 
medicines safety, and infection prevention & control. In addition to all the other quality and safety targets, 
each year Trusts are asked to choose up to 5 priorities for improvement which are chosen in consultation 
with patients, public and staff. 
 
Involving the public in identifying these priorities 
 
We asked our clinical teams to make suggestions for priorities to improve patient care. This list was then 
discussed with the Trust’s Patient Panel and the Patient Experience Group members to obtain their views. 
 
These topics were then compiled into a survey for patient and public consultation which was distributed to 
the Trust’s Foundation Trust members who wish to take part in surveys. Presentations including the 
shortlist were made to Local Authority Health Scrutiny Committees to seek their views. 
 
Over 180 patients and members of the public completed the survey. The results of the survey were 
analysed and ranked according to importance as rated by patients and carers. These were discussed by 
the Trust’s Quality Committee to agree the final priorities prior to final approval by the Trust Board. 
 
Our Priorities for Improvement for 2015/16 

1. Improving care for patients with dementia. 
2. Improve our patients’ overall experience in hospital.  
3. Improving the recognition, diagnosis and treatment of Acute Kidney Injury (AKI). 
4. Improving the quality and timeliness of information provided to GP’s when patients go home to 

ensure there is safe handover to primary care.   
 
How did we get on with these priorities? 
 
Priority 1: Improving care for patients with dementia 
 
Dementia continues as one of the Trust’s priorities led by the dementia team of doctor, 
matron and trainer. Work to improve the care of people with dementia starts on 
admission with staff identifying people with dementia and those who have had a 
decline in their memory. This enables the provision of reasonable adjustments to each 
person’s care using our cognitive impairment care bundle. 

There are national incentives to finding, investigating and referring people with unrecognised cognitive 
decline for diagnosis and as can be seen from chart 1 we have moved forward in this throughout the year 
exceeding compliance with national standards.  

 

  

Future    
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Chart 1 - Dementia Returns 2015/16 

Our Care Bundle for people with cognitive impairment allows an individualised plan to be constructed using 
evidence based interventions to improve care. It covers a wide range of tools including selection of the best 
environment for care, medication reviews, promoting nutrition and hydration and supporting people to 
remain independent. The team are working to make sure that this is embedded as normal care for people 
with dementia.  

The care plan encourages staff to support carers to be involved as much as they wish, in particular to be 
present when the person with dementia is eating and drinking. The Trust was one of the first to sign up to 
“John’s campaign” which also encourages carers/family to remain with the patient as much as they wish. 
This can include remaining overnight to reassure and care for their loved ones. 

Carers are also the focus for the Memory Café which is held every Wednesday in conjunction with the 
Alzheimer’s Society. Here carers can receive more information and support, be linked into external caring 
organisations and enjoy tea and biscuits whilst they find out what they wish to know.  

The dementia team were pleased to be shortlisted for “Dementia Team of the Year” in the BMJ awards. 
Whilst we did not win, we received a highly commended certificate for our development of the memory 
café, now copied in other Trusts. 

More recently we have joined with the new “enhanced care” improvement project, linking with occupational 
therapists to work on providing more meaningful activity for patients on the wards. This has included the 
provision of “digital reminiscence DTRS” computers to each ward. In ED they have found this to be an 
excellent tool in engaging with older people who are distressed. 

“One of the positive experiences I had with the DTRS was when an elderly chap with dementia was in the 
department, it was busy, it was loud, and he was distressed, shouting, grabbing and generally agitated. 

We decided we would try the DTRS, it was still fairly new and we were all slightly scared of this big 
machine on wheels that not many of us had gone near yet! We switched it on, found some jazz music, hit 
the play button and within ten minutes the patient was tapping his feet, wiggling on his bottom and at times 
pretending to blow the trumpet! It was like watching a person transform in front of us.” 

- RL (ED staff member 2016) 

We continue to use twiddlemuffs knitted by numerous groups for us to help calm agitated people and there 
are activity boxes available to support staff in providing simple activities. 
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We are not complacent as we still have lots to do to maximise care for people with dementia. Each patient 
bedroom is now equipped with a clock and whiteboard for communication, and during the year the Elgar 
wards were refurbished with improved colour and signage to aid way-finding.  

Fresh Arts have helped with planning murals to go on the walls and storage for activity equipment. This is 
still a work in progress with improvement continually being added. Other projects for the coming year 
include continuing to improve the environment, increasing the breadth of training and improving the 
identification of people with delirium – another under-recognised group.   

Priority 2: Improve our patients’ overall experience in hospital 

The experience of our patients and carers is at the heart of our work. What patients and carers tell us 
makes a difference to the services we provide.  To help with this work this year we have appointed a Head 
of Patient Experience to lead this aspect of work.  

The experience and satisfaction of our patients is monitored and measured in a range of ways. This 
includes complaints, concerns and compliments, national surveys, local surveys, the Friends and Family 
Test, social media and online patient feedback. 

Inpatient survey (general)  

The national patient survey is part of a national survey program. It is run by Picker Europe Ltd on our behalf 
every year. A random sample of 850 patients who have stayed in our Trust in July 2015 are invited to take 
part. There was a response rate of 49.9%.  

Patients were asked 62 questions about different aspects of their experience. The overall outcomes are 
summarised below in chart 2 showing that we are the 2nd most improved trust of the 81 who also used 
Picker Europe Ltd to undertake their survey. In terms of overall outcomes we will continue working hard to 
move our overall achievement towards the best performers during 2016 (see chart 3). 
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Chart 2 - The orange line indicates north Bristol Trust position in relation to improved scores in the National Inpatient Survey 
compared with 81 other Trusts   

 
Chart 3 - the orange line indicates North Bristol Trust position in relation to the 81 trust we were compared with. 

The more detailed information shows that we scored significantly worse than last year for 3 questions 
(below), significantly better in 19 and there was no significant change in 40.  
Areas where we scored worse than last year:  

• Hospital: patients staying in more than 1 ward shared sleeping accommodation with opposite sex. 
• Hospital: patients using bath or shower shared it with the opposite sex. 
• Discharge: Staff did not discuss need for further health or social care. 

 
Aspects of care that improved significantly include: 

• Patients feeling of being well looked after by staff. 
• Having privacy when being examined or treated in the emergency department. 
• Involvement in decisions about care and treatment  
• Quality and choice of food 
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Focus for improvement: 
 
The Trust’s inpatient areas are comprised of 75% single rooms to maximise privacy and dignity, including 
ensuring single sex accommodation. The challenges experienced are relatively small scale in overall terms 
and primarily related to extreme pressures within the emergency zone where the concentration of patients 
within the department meant this was unavoidable. All options to minimise this are being considered and 
we have already eliminated particular issues identified within interventional radiology.    
 
The following aspects of the reported experience of patients have been agreed by Patient Experience 
Group as the focus for improvement:  

• Discharged patients 
– Being told of any danger signals to look for. 
– Family being given enough information. 
– Being involved in decisions about discharge from hospital. 
– Being given enough information to help care after discharge. 
– Consideration being given to the family or home. 
– Information on medications. 
– Discussion of the need for health and social care services. 

• Allowing the patient to be more involved  in decisions about care & treatment where they wish to - 
this will link with our progress on empowering patients in shared decision making  through  ‘Ask 3 
Questions’   

• Finding someone to discuss concerns with. 
• Receiving enough emotional support from staff. 
• Being told how they would feel after operation or procedure.  

 
These aspects have the highest problem scores and are supported by evidence from other feedback such 
as complaints and feedback from Healthwatch. We look forward to working with our partners as well as 
patients and carers to improve these aspects of the patient experience.  

Priority 3: Improving the recognition, diagnosis and treatment of Acute Kidney Injury (AKI) 

Acute Kidney Injury (AKI) is a sudden and recent reduction in a person’s kidney function. In the UK up to 
100,000 deaths each year in hospital are associated with AKI and up to 30% could be prevented with the 
right care and treatment. It is estimated that up to one in five people admitted to hospital as an emergency 
has AKI and 65% of these start in the community. This year by focusing on ‘kidney attack’, NBT seeks to 
reduce harm associated with AKI by 50%. An AKI working group was established in April 2015 to develop 
and implement an AKI improvement strategy for the trust in line with the national ‘Think Kidneys’ 
programme set up by NHS England (www.thinkkidneys.nhs.uk). We are also working in collaboration with 
clinical teams in other trusts (UHB, Weston, and RUH) to develop a unified strategy in tackling AKI in the 
area. 

Kidneys for Life: Stop Acute Kidney Injury 
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What we achieved last year (2015/16) 

1. Early detection of AKI:  
Early diagnosis of AKI enables clinical teams to take appropriate measures to stop the kidney 
function getting worse and thereby improve patient outcomes. A diagnosis of AKI is made if the 
patient’s kidney function has worsened by more than 50% compared to previous results. As of 
September 2015, we had implemented an electronic alert in the hospital’s laboratory systems to 
facilitate the early diagnosis. The Laboratory Information Management System (LIMS) will 
automatically compare patient’s kidney function tests during the current admission to previous blood 
test results and generate a laboratory report on the system if the patient has met the criteria. The 
alerts are colour coded ‘yellow’, ‘amber’ and ‘red’ to represent the increasing severity of AKI. 
 
Data on the number of patients who had AKI each month will be sent to UK Renal Registry, 
commissioned by NHS England to collect and report incidence of AKI across the UK for 
benchmarking and quality improvement.  
 

2. AKI training programme: 
A structured education and training programme on prevention and management of AKI has been 
rolled out for pharmacists and junior doctors during their induction training. We are in the process of 
implementing similar sessions for registered nurses and developing an e-learning module to 
facilitate broader uptake of training. 
 
 

3. AKI patient information: 
There is an urgent need to raise public awareness of AKI. We have developed a patient information 
leaflet to help patients, their carers and the public understand what kidneys do, how important they 
are, what they can do to keep their kidneys healthy and reduce their chances of AKI. This will be 
handed out to patients who have been diagnosed during the hospital admission and to those who 
are at risk due to their other health problems. 
 

4. AKI CQUIN: 
It is important that GPs are informed at the time of discharge if their patients had developed AKI 
during their recent hospital admission and what follow up is required in the community to monitor 
their kidney function. NHS England had established a national CQUIN around this for 2015/16. Our 
target was to achieve 80% for the 3rd quarter and 90% for the fourth quarter of this year. Our 
performance for the 3rd quarter has been well above the target at 95% and we are on track to 
maintain this for the fourth quarter, as set out below within chart 4. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Chart 4 - AKI Discharge Information to GPs 
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Ongoing work (2016/17) 

1. AKI Care bundles: 
We have developed a care bundle that will be piloted in the Medical Admissions Unit (MAU) with 
plans to roll it out across the trust. The care bundles incorporate a minimum set of standards of care 
to be implemented in those who have been diagnosed with AKI. The aim is that these care bundles 
will raise awareness and understanding of the risk of AKI, improve the care and treatment of 
patients with AKI and enhance their recovery. 
 

2. AKI Risk assessment tool: 
Some patients are predisposed and at a higher risk of developing AKI due to their underlying health 
problems and the medications they are currently on. We have developed a risk assessment tool and 
this will be tested in one of the wards. This tool, once finalised, will enable clinical teams to identify 
patients who are at increased risk of developing AKI so that appropriate interventions can be put in 
place to minimise the chances. 

 
Future Work includes 
 

1. Mini RCA:  
It is estimated that 20-30% of AKI is avoidable. We hope to develop a system to undertake root cause 
analyses for at least the severe forms. This will help us understand the reasons for the AKI and if this 
could have been prevented and what measures need to be put in place to prevent this happening 
again. 

 
2. Engagement with primary care: 
It is estimated that 65% of the AKI starts in the community and therefore further work needs done to 
raise awareness amongst health care professionals in the community on prevention and management. 

 
Priority 4: Improving the quality and timeliness of information provided to GP’s when patients go 
home to ensure there is safe handover to primary care 
 
A Discharge Summary or Transfer of Care document is a letter written by the doctors and the multi-
professional teams caring for a person in hospital. It contains important information about that persons 
hospital stay including why they came in, what diagnosis was made, what tests they had, what medications 
they were being discharged on and what changes had been made during their stay. Follow up 
arrangements and future planning are also documented. 

A working group was set up in July 2015 to improve the information included in the discharge summary. 
Feedback from GP’s, patients and relatives, junior doctors completing the form, senior doctors, 
pharmacists, nursing staff,  patient safety representatives and audit results all contributed to this work. A 
meeting was also held with the University Hospitals Bristol discharge summary lead to ensure consistency 
across the local health system. 

Key changes made include; 

1) Moving medications to the bottom of the discharge summary keeping diagnosis at the top (more 
clinically coherent) 

2) Include treatment escalation decision discussions  
3) Bring together the delirium diagnosis and cognitive problems 
4) Clarity around responsible consultant and team details in case of query 
5) Elective or emergency admission 
6) Advice section for patient-encourage patient responsibility for making appointments with GP 
7) Adding whether the patient had been septic during their stay 
8) Infection risks 
9) Clarifying reasons for medication additions and changes and stoppages 
10)  Follow-up arrangements clearly stated 
11)  Increase the proportion of discharge summaries sent electronically 
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Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) standards for completion were audited for Quarter 2 
and 3 through a joint audit with a local GP and we were pleased to exceed targets for accurate completion 
at rates above 75% in both cases. 

Building on this success, we will be progressing further work in 2016-2017, such as; 

1) Deceased patient summary for GP to help support relatives 
2) Aiming for electronic summary for all GP’s 
3) Medication education information for discharge 
4) Pharmacy to check reconciliation system on discharge (aiming for 100% of summaries.) 
5) Customising discharge summaries for specialities  

Our Priorities for Improvement for 2016/17 

We will continue to improve the quality of care for patients as set out in our contract across a wide range of 
areas. For example - prevention of deterioration, continuing reduction of pressure ulcers, reducing the 
number of falls, infection prevention and control, improving nutrition, improve the identification and care for 
patients with Acute Kidney Injury and the management of catheters or other similar items (e.g. tubes or 
drains).  In addition, through our consultation we have agreed with patients, staff and local Healthwatch 
organisations to address the following priorities within the Quality Account: 

1. Involving patients, family and carers in decisions about care and treatment. 
2. Improving the identification and management of sepsis. 
3. Improving care for patients with Dementia or delirium. 
4. Improving the consistent delivery of care for patients who are nearing their end of life. 

 
How we will measure progress with these priorities 

A clinical lead and supporting reference group will be identified for each priority to drive it forward. 
Improvement measures will be set and the data will be collected and analysed to track progress.   

In addition to the ongoing review at the relevant group, overall progress will be monitored closely by the 
Trust’s Quality Committee chaired by the Medical Director. Its membership includes the Director of Nursing 
and Director of Operations as well as Clinical Directors, chairs of quality and safety committees and other 
key staff involved in monitoring or progressing quality and safety priorities. 

Reporting on a wide range of quality measures is presented to the Board every month as part of an 
Integrated Board Report and includes measurements of progress against improvement measures set, 
shown on a quality dashboard. This report is included in the public session of the Trust Board and is 
published on the Trust’s external website as part of the papers.  

In addition, quality measures are reviewed at the Quality Sub Group to South Gloucestershire, Bristol and 
North Somerset CCGs, the main local commissioners for the Trust’s services, plus NHS England who 
commission specialised services. 
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‘Sign up to Safety’ & NBT Quality Faculty 
 
The Trust Quality and Safety Improvement Team  

The Quality and Safety Improvement Team was set up in June 2015. We lead the Safety Programme for 
North Bristol Trust. The function of the team is to provide direction for safety projects within the programme, 
ensure they align with patient needs and the overall Trust strategy, and generate commitment from 
members of staff involved in the safety work. The team consists of a consultant physician who is the 
associate medical director for safe care, a senior nurse who is the quality and safety improvement lead and 
a radiographer who is a quality improvement practitioner. The team has the medical director as the 
executive lead and report to the Trust’s quality committee.    

What are our aims? 

Our aim is to make North Bristol NHS Trust a high-reliability organisation with safety at the heart of its 
culture. We want our staff to be delivering the right care to patients at the right time, even when no-one is 
looking.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Building improvement capability in our workforce 

The Trust is seeking to build upon previous success in delivering quality improvement projects that deliver 
real benefits for our patients. Although a number of staff members are engaged in improvement work 
across the hospital, this work is not always visible to others. 

The team have the opportunity to introduce themselves to all new staff at the staff induction days and are 
able to explain why safety and continuous improvement is so important to patients, carers and families. In 
2016 the team have set up quality improvement workshops for all members for staff to attend, (including 
porters, managers, nurses, doctors, and physiotherapists) with a plan to continue these workshops to build 
capability in improvement skills and maintain momentum.       

Keeping patients safe whilst having a positive experience of care are also the underpinning foundations for 
the NHS Outcomes Framework and reflect the approaches and measures recommended by the 
aforementioned resources.  
www.health.org.uk/publications/the-measurement-and-monitoring-of-safety/. 
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The measurement & monitoring of safety; 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Safety Hub 

A physical Safety Hub has been launched in the Brunel Building to enable staff to learn about improvement 
science, problem-solve issues with current projects and keep up to date with the ongoing safety work in the 
Trust. The Hub will also have a portable function so that it can make use of different locations e.g. use of 
the staff restaurant and the hospital atrium for staff and patients (recognising that staff will not always have 
the time to be released from clinical areas). The Safety Hub days are advertised and on occasions will 
include speakers. The Safety Hub captures current projects and will include events, workshops, and 
conferences. It will act as an informal support unit for any member of staff wanting to learn about 
improvement science or start up their own project.             

2015/16 Sign up to Safety Priorities for the Trust and team; 

The Quality and Safety Improvement Team support a number of work streams within the Trust and these 
include:           

• Reducing Patient Falls  
• Preventing Pressure Ulcers  
• Sepsis Management  
• Acute Kidney injury (AKI) Management 
• Safe Medicines 
• Prevention of Patient Deterioration  
• Continence 
• Dementia and Delirium 
• Safe Emergency Care 
• Discharge of Patient and the Safe Handover of Care 
• Safe Operating Theatre 
 

  

Fig.1 – Health Foundation: The Measuring and Monitoring of Safety. Drawing together 
academic evidence and practical experience to produce a framework for safety measurement 

and monitoring. – Professor Charles Vincent, Susan Burnett, Jane Carthey – April 2013 
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Organisational Safety Culture 

Organisational culture is difficult to define but is vital to address if the ambition to be the ‘best in class’ is to 
be achieved. Organisational culture can be defined as the assumed understandings between the staff of an 
organisation. It means that they share views on the way staff should work together and treat each other and 
their patients. We have an ambition to be an organisation with a strong safety culture. At the core of this 
plan is improving patient care and bringing about a step change in ‘how we improve and manage the 
quality agenda’. The aim is to make quality everyone’s business to increase the profile of the work staff 
currently do in relation to this agenda, bring about a system of total quality management that creates a 
culture of team working, efficient working practices based on the newest technology, systems based 
thinking, best evidence and a culture of continuous improvement.  This year we will start work in key areas 
such as Theatres and the Emergency Zone by undertaking a safety survey with staff and developing 
improvement work streams through the feedback received. 

 
Emergency Department Improvement Work 

When inspectors from the Care Quality Commission (CQC) first visited the department in November 2014 – 
six months after the move from outdated facilities at Frenchay Hospital to the new hospital at Southmead – 
they had significant concerns around overcrowding, primarily due to issues associated with flow and 
patients accessing beds in a timely manner.  

The Emergency Department was rated as “inadequate” overall; therefore a warning notice was placed on 
the department when the report was published in February 2015.  

Since then there has been a relentless focus on making improvements – so much so that in its latest report, 
published on 6th April 2016, the CQC has rated the service as “good” overall. The requirements of the 
warning notice were fully met following a subsequent inspection in October last year. 

This reflected a number of positive changes, such as; 

• An additional triage nurse on duty for every shift, day and night. This has halved the time people are 
waiting to be triaged. 

• Creating more space by moving the seated assessment area into the Acute Medical Unit next door. 
• Consolidating patient documentation so that the patient record from ambulance to admission to the 

Emergency Department is all in one place and therefore safer for patients and more efficient for 
staff. 

• Changing shift patterns for doctors and consultants – meaning that an additional consultant is on 
duty in the department during the middle of the day. 

 
As Matron Juliette Hughes says; “What we have proved is that during busy times we can continue to 
provide safe, excellent care and high quality treatment to patients – even though waiting times may be 
longer than we would like. It is fantastic for us and our patients to have this recognised by the CQC.” 
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What other Organisations say about the Trust 

Care Quality Commission (CQC)  
By law all Trusts must be registered with the CQC under section 10 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 
- to show they are meeting essential quality standards. NHS Trusts have to be registered for each of the 
regulated activities they provide at each location from which they provide them. As at 31/03/16, the Trust is 
registered for all of its regulated activities, without conditions. Without this registration, we would not be 
allowed to operate.  
 
The Trust has not taken part in any special reviews or investigations by the CQC under section 48 of the 
Health and Social Care Act 2008 during the reporting period.  
 
The Trust was first inspected by the CQC under its new regime in November 2014. A further inspection was 
undertaken in December 2015, covering services and domains not rated as either ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ 
originally.  
 
Following publication of the Care Quality Commission’s (CQC) latest reports on 6th April 2016, the CQC 
Quality Summit was held on 11th April. The first half was chaired by the CQC with a presentation from the 
Head of Hospitals Inspection, followed by NBT’s response. The CQC’s comments about the Trust’s 
progress were glowing; the overall improvement at NBT over the last 12 months was described as 
“remarkable”. In particular the passionate commitment of our frontline staff and managers in delivering high 
quality care was considered to be “outstanding”.  

The overall sense was of an organisation that is improving but needs to persist with the challenging issues 
reflected in the ‘must do actions’ within the report – namely patient flow and medical records. There is an 
expectation from CQC and NHS Improvement that our health and social care partners will also contribute to 
delivering better flow which needs to be incorporated into the final CQC action plan. 

The current ratings across NBT services are shown below as at the end of the financial year 2015/16 and 
the Trust will be submitting an action plan to the CQC by 17th May setting out measures to address those 
issues, aiming for an overall rating of ‘good’ within the next 12-18 months.  

Overall Trust Rating 

 Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led 

Overall trust  Requires 
improvement 

Requires 
Improvement 

Good * 
 

Requires 
Improvement Good 

Table 1 - Trust Rating        *Rating from November 2014 

Southmead Hospital Rating 

 Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well led Overall 
rating 

Urgent & 
Emergency Services Good Good Good * Requires 

improvement Good Good 

Medical Care 
Requires 

improvement 
Requires 

improvement Good * 
Requires 

improvement Good Requires 
improvement 

Surgery Requires 
improvement 

Requires 
improvement Good * Requires 

improvement 
Requires 

improvement 
Requires 

improvement 

Critical care Good Good * Good * Requires 
improvement Good * Good 

Maternity & 
Gynaecology Good Good * Good * Good Good * Good 
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 Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well led Overall 
rating 

Services for 
Children & Young 
People 

Good* Good* Good * Good* Good* Good* 

End of life care Requires 
improvement 

Requires 
improvement Good * Requires 

improvement 
Requires 

improvement 
Requires 

improvement 

Outpatients & 
Diagnostic Imaging 

Requires 
improvement N/A Good * Requires 

improvement Good * Requires 
improvement 

Overall location Requires 
improvement 

Requires 
improvement Good * Requires 

improvement 
Requires 

improvement 
Requires 

improvement 

Table 2 - Southmead Rating      *Ratings from November 2014 

Frenchay Hospital Rating 

 Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall 

Outpatients  Requires 
improvement Not rated Good * Requires 

improvement Good * Requires 
improvement 

Table 3 - Frenchay Rating       *Ratings from November 2014 

Cossham Hospital 

 Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall 

Maternity & 
Gynaecology 

Good* Good* Outstanding* Outstanding* Good* Outstanding* 

Outpatients Good* Not rated Good* Good* Good* Good* 

Table 4 - Cossham Rating       *Ratings from November 2014 
 
Community CAMHS Rating 

 Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall 

Community 
CAMHS  

Requires 
improvement 

Good * Good * Good * Requires 
improvement 

Requires 
improvement 

Table 5 - CAMHS Rating        *Ratings from November 2014 
 
Child and adolescent mental health wards (Riverside) 

 Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall 

CAMHS wards  
Riverside 

Good * Good * Good * Good * Good * Good * 

Table 6 - Riverside Rating        *Ratings from November 2014 

Community health services for children, young people and families 

 Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall 

Community health 
services  

Good * Outstanding* Outstanding* Good* Outstanding* Outstanding* 

Table 7 - CYPF Rating        *Ratings from November 2014 
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Copies of the full reports for the Trust and each location inspected by the CQC in 2015 are available at; 
Trust-wide Quality Report; 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAE8140.pdf 

Southmead Hospital 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAE8141.pdf 

Specialist Community Mental Health Services (Children & young People) 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAE8142.pdf 
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Section 2 – Patient Safety 
Reducing Patient Falls 

Falls in hospitals are the most common patient safety incidents reported in hospital trusts in England. The 
National Patient Safety Agency (2011) report ‘Essential Care After an Inpatient Fall’ states that each year 
around 282,000 patient falls are reported to the NHS England's Patient Safety division from hospitals and 
mental health units. A significant minority of these falls result in death or in severe or moderate injury. 

The human cost of falling includes distress, pain, injury, loss of confidence, loss of independence and 
mortality. Falling also affects the family members and carers of people who fall. Falls are estimated to cost 
the NHS more than £2.3 billion per year, therefore falling has an impact on quality of life, health and 
healthcare costs. 

Falls Prevention Steering Group 

The Trust has a Falls Prevention steering group which meets monthly. Membership includes ward nursing 
representatives, therapists, pharmacy, the training department, dementia and safeguarding teams and the 
Deputy Director of Nursing.  

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The total number of falls has reduced over the last 5 years. The number of falls resulting in serious injuries 
rose in 2014/15 following the move into the new hospital at Southmead but has since reduced.  

What we achieved 

Given the majority of Falls resulting in serious injury are in patients with dementia, delirium and cognitive 
impairment, we started working very closely with the Trust’s Enhanced Care Project team, Dementia Team 
and the Health Education Southwest funded Improving Patient Enablement & Continuity of Care (IPECC) 
Reablement project.  

Preventative Care 

• Daily falls map to ensure patients are cared for in the right location on the ward and can be 
observed. 

• 9am Safety Briefing with doctors, nurses and physiotherapists to highlight who is at risk of falling. 
• Project to improve medication review by doctors. 
• New Falls Care plan with a focus on delirium, blood pressure, medication and vision. 
• New bed rail magnets to ensure bed rails are used for the right patients. 
• Falls sensors to alert staff if a patient has moved from the bed or chair. 
• Improved tools to enable staff to manage patients’ safety after a fall. 
• Meaningful Activity Occupational Therapist working with wards to improve the experience of patients 

with dementia in hospital and reduce falls. 
 
 

Chart 5 - Total Falls Chart 6 - Serious Incident Falls 
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Environment 

• Work due to start to improve all inpatient bathrooms to reduce falls risk. 
• Delirium Friendly Acute Medical and Complex Care Assessment Units with dementia-friendly 

signage, coloured bathroom suite, and clocks. 
• Digital Reminiscence equipment now in use on 20 gates including the Emergency Department to 

help improve experience for patients with cognitive problems. 
• Activity boxes for people with dementia (including old photos, colourful materials, etc.).  

 
Training 

A Lead Nurse for falls prevention was employed in September 2015 using NHS England Sign Up to Safety 
funding. The Lead Nurse has provided face-to-face training for 817 nursing staff in falls prevention over 6 
months. Training at Induction has been improved to include training for healthcare assistants and scenario 
training has been developed. Equipment has been purchased to enable simulation training in falls for junior 
doctors and multi-professional teams.  

Current Outcomes 

There were 2257 falls this year compared to 2391 the previous year (a reduction of 134 falls). The current 
falls rate is 6.44 per 1000 bed days (compared to a national acute hospital rate of 6.63), which represents a 
6% reduction compared to last year. Serious Incident falls have reduced by 20% with 26 serious injury falls 
(compared to 33 last year). 

Reducing Pressure Ulcers 

All people are potentially at risk of developing a pressure ulcer. If these occur they can be debilitating, 
increase complications to health and can have a serious impact on a person’s quality of life. There are 
national frameworks (NICE) in place requiring healthcare establishments have systems in place to prevent 
and monitor incidence of pressure ulcers.  
 
At North Bristol the prevention of pressure ulcers is a key priority ensuring the safety and quality of care to 
all those receiving treatment in our hospital.  2015/16 sees the completion of the Trust’s first of three years 
of sign up to safety for which the reduction of pressure ulcers is one of the objectives with a target to 
reduce incidence of grades 2-4 by 50% by the end of year 3 (2017/18).  

2015/16 has seen a significant improvement on the incidence of pressure ulcers grades 2-4, as shown in 
the table below, which is a result of continuous focus from work started in 2014/15 and robust review of all 
grade 3 and 4 pressure ulcers. Key themes are established from each case, which informs the tissue 
viability team of the educational and training needs for clinical staff.  This year’s success culminated with a 
regional study day with presentations by nationally recognised experts, attended by over 150 staff from 
both the hospital and community settings and the launch of a Pan Avon Dressings Formulary. 
 
The Trust remains focused on continuous reduction to avoidable health care acquired pressure ulcers. 
Broader work has already commenced with a hospital and quality improvement collaboration to reduce 
pressure ulcers within the Bristol, North Somerset & South Gloucester health system. 
 

Year Pressure Ulcer Grade 
Grade 4 Grade 3 Grade 2 

2014/15 6 
  14 378 

2015/16 0 
  7 326 

Total % 
reduction 100% 50% 14% 

Table 8 - Pressure Ulcer Guide 
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Chart 7 - Funnel plot for pressure ulcer incidence – indicates NBT remains within safe limit 

Intravenous Fluids Management 

In August 2014, NICE published a clinical guideline and quality standard for intravenous (IV) fluid therapy in 
hospital. This was in response to a number of reports highlighting poor or unsafe care of patients with a 
requirement for IV fluids. Errors in assessment and management of patients’ IV fluid requirements are 
common (around 20% of patients have complications). The task of assessing and managing patients’ IV 
fluid needs can be left to the most junior and inexperienced staff with little knowledge of patient daily 
requirements or the composition of common IV fluids. 

We developed a Fluids working group with doctors, nurses, pharmacists, dieticians and education staff to 
review and improve practice. 

What we achieved 

• We have developed three levels of e-learning training and competency assessment to target all 
healthcare professionals including doctors, nurses, dieticians, pharmacists, healthcare assistants 
and physiotherapists.  

• In addition, we have delivered practical and simulation sessions in IV fluid management for junior 
doctors.  

• We have modified the hospital clinical incident reporting tool to enable easier reporting of incidents 
related to poor fluid management. A monthly report is reviewed and actioned by the IV fluids lead.  

• The IV fluids working group is working closely with other working groups in the hospital, particularly 
Acute Kidney Injury and Sepsis.  

• A new intravenous fluid prescription chart was implemented. 
• A new hydration chart has been developed and piloted with a view to improving the documentation 

of hydration in patients without complex fluid needs. 
• An advanced fluid management tool has been developed for use in patients with complex IV fluid 

needs and has shown improvement in fluid recording. We will now be working on the spread of 
these tools and also test a new hydration risk assessment tool. 

 

Catheters and Continence Management 

It is estimated that 1 in 5 people in the UK have trouble with bladder control, and 1 in 10 have trouble with 
bowel control. Within our hospital between 15 and 20% of our patients will have a catheter inserted in their 
bladder to drain their urine. Some patients come into the hospital with a catheter and others will have one 
for a short time as part of their hospital treatment. It is important that catheters are kept very clean and well 
cared for, to reduce the risk of patients getting infections in their bladders or kidneys.   

North Bristol NHS Trust has a good record for catheter care with less than 0.5% of our patients with 
catheters being diagnosed with a urine infection in 2015/16; however we need to ensure that catheters are 
only used when necessary and that they are removed as soon as they are no longer needed. 

NBT 
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What we did in 2015/16: 

Catheter Care Plan 

In 2015 we designed, tested and implemented a new Catheter Care Plan to ensure that all patients receive 
the care that they need to reduce the risk of infection. The care plan includes a new section which reminds 
the nursing staff to check every shift whether the patient still needs a urinary catheter or whether it can be 
taken out. The design also helps the nurses to keep track of when the catheter bag is due for changing. 

Catheter Care Re-launch Week 

In April 2015 we held a special week-long event focusing on Catheter Care, with key messages about 
reducing the risk of infection going to all clinical staff via email and computer reminders. All the Matrons and 
Ward sisters used their regular walk-rounds to talk to staff about Catheter Care and check that all patients 
with catheters were receiving safe care. 

On-going Work in 2016/17 

World Continence Week  

Our next focus on continence and catheter care will be during World Continence Week, 20th to 26th June 
2016, when we will be sharing the latest developments in continence with our teams through publications 
and special events. 

Policy review 

During 2016 we will be reviewing our policies for Bowel Management and Catheter Care as well as 
developing a new policy for supporting patients to maintain or regain Continence. 

Improving practice 

We are working with our colleagues in the community, and with the companies that supply continence 
equipment to ensure that we select good quality, cost effective products which our patients can use in 
hospital and in their homes. 

Preventing Deterioration prior to Cardiac Arrest 

Cardiac arrests in hospital are rarely a sudden event. There is evidence to show that patients will often 
present with signs of deterioration prior to suffering a cardiac arrest. 

Patients who are deteriorating often show signs and symptoms indicating their worsening state. Early 
Warning Scores (EWS) calculates a score based on the patient’s key physiological measurements and 
provides an indicator of how sick a patient is, thus enabling the recognition and escalation of care of 
patients whose condition is worsening. 

All inpatients within the Trust have their physiological observations (respiratory rate, levels of oxygen, 
pulse, blood pressure, level of consciousness and temperature) measured and recorded in accordance with 
the Trust Observations Policy. 

This early recognition and management of patient observations may prevent avoidable patient admissions 
to the Intensive Care Unit (ICU) and help prevent avoidable cardiac arrests and the need for 
Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR). 

In December the Trust changed the Observation chart to incorporate the nationally validated National Early 
Warning Score (NEWS), this was undertaken in conjunction with other healthcare providers within the 
Southwest to support the use of common terminology and help support the patient journey.  

As illustrated in chart 8, since the implementation of the NEWS chart there has been a significant increase 
in the number of patients who have triggered and as a result been escalated for medical review. This is a 
positive sign, reflecting the successful implementation of the NEWS chart which helps to ensure we identify 
and act upon patients who are showing signs of deterioration.  
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Cardiac Arrest rates 

The Trust’s cardiac arrest rate continues to reduce. Chart 9 shows that the Trust median rate is 0.6 per 
1000 discharges, which shows NBT to be much better than the National Average of approximately 1.5 per 
1000. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 
The reduction in the number of cardiac arrests in the Trust over the past 5 years is shown below. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015 / 2016 
215 163 148 125 103 

Table 9 - Reduction in number of cardiac arrests 

 
 
 

Chart 9 - Crash Calls Rate per 1000 Discharges (Live and Dead) June 14 – Jan 16 

Chart # - EWS Trigger Calls Rate per 1000 Discharges (Live and Dead) June 14 – Jan 16 
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Achievements 

• Successful implementation of the NEWS chart across the organisation – currently working with the 
Emergency Department and Neurosciences. 

• Successful implementation of a funded project looking at the benefits of In Situ simulation training of 
our Acute Medical Admissions units in identifying and treating confirmed or suspected sepsis. 

• Increased training and awareness of the deteriorating patient through practical assessment, 
simulation and focused debriefing for all Foundation Doctors and Nursing staff. 

• Combined working with the Sepsis Group to integrate sepsis screening with NEWS. 
• Continued improvement in the reduction of cardiac arrests. 
• Clearer communication from the wards via our switchboard operators to the medical teams. 
• Work with GPs and community services to use the NEWS for acutely unwell patients to enable clear 

handover of patients to the Ambulance Service and Emergency Department. 
• Ongoing development and implementation of a structured assessment tool for reviewing unwell 

patients to improve their management; encourage escalation to senior teams and improve 
communication to nursing staff. 

• Implementation of a joint educational programme for junior doctors and nurses seeing acutely 
unwell patients using simulation training scenarios. 

 

Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) 

This condition encompasses Deep Venous Thrombosis (DVT), where a blood 
clot (thrombus) forms in a vein - often the deep veins of the legs - and 
Pulmonary Embolism (PE) - a blood clot in the lungs. 

Providing information to both patients and staff on recognising and reducing the 
risks of VTE is an important factor in our quest to reduce the incidence of VTE. 
Information leaflets are widely available for patients and carers. 

There are many risk factors for the formation of blood clots including advancing 
age, obesity, previous episodes of VTE, certain co-existing conditions (e.g. 
cancer) and even long haul flights. VTE can also occur during or after a stay in 
hospital. Risk factors in this case include the condition and/or procedure for 
which the patient is admitted.  

The national target is to assess at least 95% of patients on admission for their 
risks of developing VTE and, following this, provide appropriate 
thrombopropylaxis (measures to reduce the risk of VTE) to at least 90%. 

  

Since 2013 VTE training has been mandatory for all clinical staff. We are making good progress in 
delivering this (see graph below) with more than 75% of clinical staff having received it. 
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In the first half of 2015/16 (April – September), 
for which we have reliable data, the average rate 
of VTE risk assessment was 95.14%. 

In the preparation for and post ‘Go Live’ period 
since the implementation of our new Patient 
Administration System, the reliability of data has 
reduced. For this measure the main impact has 
arisen from backlogs in the clinical coding of 
patient notes, including for VTE.   

This is being closely managed internally and 
scrutinised by the Trust’s commissioners to 
ensure coding backlogs are cleared and a true 
picture obtained of the continued delivery of this 
standard  
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In order to improve the safety and quality of our practice, we currently perform a root-cause analysis review 
of the care provided to approximately 50% of patients who develop VTE during or after their stay in 
hospital. We will to increase this to 100% during the 2016-17 financial year. 

We will also be introducing risk assessment and thromboprophylaxis (where appropriate) for patients with 
lower leg fractures who require a plaster cast and can be managed as outpatients.  
 
Management of Sepsis 

Sepsis is a life-threatening condition that arises when the body’s response to an infection injures its own 
tissues and organs. Infections which can give rise to sepsis are common, and include lung infections, urine 
infections, and infections in wounds or the joints. Sepsis can lead to shock, multiple organ failure and 
death, especially if not recognised early and treated promptly.  
Sepsis accounts for 44,000 deaths annually in the UK and is a medical emergency. Patients with the most 
severe forms of sepsis are up to five times more likely to die than patients with a heart attack or stroke. 
Caught early, the outlook is good for the vast majority of patients. Treatment should be started within one 
hour of sepsis being suspected. 

NBT has a sepsis working group who meet monthly to work on improvements in identification and 
management.  

What we achieved 

• We screened 100% of patients who presented to the Emergency Department who needed 
screening using our electronic patient triage form. 

• We improved our antibiotic delivery within 1 hour of entering the emergency department from 50% 
at the end of September 2015 to 83% at the end of December 2015. 

• We are testing a new tool to improve sepsis identification on our surgical and medical wards. 
• We have delivered sepsis training to staff in the Acute Medical Unit. 
• All patients who are admitted with or develop sepsis whilst in hospital have this information included 

on their Handover of Care Discharge Summary to improve communication to the GP Practice when 
they leave hospital. 

 
Medicines Management 

The Trust has an excellent reputation nationally as being at the forefront of improving safety in medicines 
management. 

This commitment to safety and quality improvement is no better illustrated than by the recognition we’ve 
received in 2015: 

• We have been shortlisted for 3 national awards: 
- “Patient Safety Congress” – Patient Safety Awards (July 2015: Birmingham) 
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- “Pharmaceutical Care Awards” (June 2015: London) 
- “I Love My Pharmacist Award” (November 2015) 

• We have presented at 2 National and 3 European conferences. 
• Our work has been published in: 

- NICE’s Local Practice Collection (March 2015)    
www.nice.org.uk/savingsandproductivityandlocalpracticeresource 

Since 2007 we have made ongoing improvements and as part of our Medicines Quality and Improvement 
work we continue to remain focused on the following 3 areas; 

• Medicines Reconciliation 
• Missed doses 
• Warfarin 

 
Medicines Reconciliation  

Why is this important? 

Ensuring an accurate record of medications on admission to hospital is important for safe treatment. 
Reconciliation is a process of confirming the medication that a patient is taking with at least two 
independent sources of information.  

Prescribing errors can result in harm to patients and the aim of this process is to ensure when patients are 
admitted to hospital that important medicines aren’t stopped and that new medicines are prescribed, with a 
complete knowledge of what a patient is already taking. NBT set a target of 95% for patients admitted to 
have their medicines reconciled within 24 hours. 

Progress to Date 
 
QIPP Benchmarking Data: 2010 – 2016 

In 2012 our data was submitted to the national “Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention” (QIPP) 
benchmarking and still shows that NBT is the best performing Trust in England and Wales. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Key: ------ NBT    ------- Other Acute Trusts in England and Wales 

Chart 11 - Percentages Medicines Reconciliation on Admission 2010 – Jan 2016 

Future work  

Now that the team has achieved and maintained our target, we are continuing to monitor and review results 
but are now starting to focus on Medicines Reconciliation on discharge and have several discharge work 
streams. 

Missed Doses   
 
Why is this important? 
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Avoiding missed doses is important to ensure a patient’s care is not compromised. Missed doses were 
highlighted as an issue at the Trust following a review of incident forms.  

 
Chart 12 - Percentage of patients with one or more missed doses across NBT 

Progress to Date 
 
Progress on reducing “missed doses” has generally been shown since 2010. Pharmacists continue to 
measure missed doses on a daily basis and wards also collect data.  Medicines Management Technicians 
and Pharmacists contribute to investigating incidents and look to remove underlying causes. 

Results deteriorated after the move to the new hospital but this is now starting to improve. We are now 
targeting wards breaching the target on the monthly reports. The team are working closely together to 
ensure improvements are being made and a new Safety Briefing is being finalised together with an updated 
flow diagram on how to access drugs and avoid missed doses. 

Future work  

We also undertook work on patients with Parkinson’s disease in association with the “Get It on Time” 
campaign to ensure that these patients do not miss crucial medication. This is now being reviewed to re-
highlight to those wards linking in with the testing of the new prescription chart.  
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Warfarin Control 
 

Why is this important?  

Warfarin is an anticoagulant and is a high risk medicine that can cause increased risk of bleeding when 
there is poor control of Warfarin management.  

Progress to Date  
 
Since 2011 we have worked on improvements by monitoring causes of high International Normalised Ratio 
(INR) levels. We identified that interacting drugs and inappropriate prescribing were the main causes. We 
have therefore updated our anticoagulation chart to allow prescribers and pharmacists to more prominently 
display interacting medications, and made a change to the low dose loading regimen for Warfarin. Key 
important themes have also been included in a doctors and nurses e-learning package launched in 2014 
and 2015 respectively.  

INR greater than 6 for inpatient having INR tests for Warfarin control 

 

Chart 13 - INR Greater than 6 for inpatient having INR tests for Warfarin control 

The run chart shows the reduction in the number of NBT inpatients having an INR greater than 6. A 
medication safety alert for Warfarin was circulated in November 2014 to all clinical staff. 

The newer oral anticoagulants Apixaban, Rivaroxaban and Dabigatran are now widely prescribed and 
constitute a bleeding risk. Patient safety work with these medicines has included a patient information 
leaflet, Anticoagulation Alert Cards, patient counselling checklists and a Medication Safety Alert in March 
2015.  

Future work  

We plan to feedback findings of mini root cause analysis for inpatient INRs greater than 6 to directorate 
Clinical Governance leads quarterly. 
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Reducing Harm from Infection  

A healthcare-associated infection can occur in any patient receiving care in a healthcare setting, with the 
potential to delay recovery and affect quality of life. At North Bristol the prevention of healthcare-associated 
infections remains one of our key priorities ensuring the safety and quality of care to all those receiving 
treatment in our hospital.   

The Trust’s compliance with infection prevention and control standards and rates of infection is monitored 
against nationally recognised frameworks which include the Hygiene Code (DH, 2008) and the National 
Institute of Clinical Excellence (NICE). The Trust’s Medical Director holds the position of Director of 
Infection, Prevention and Control (DIPC) supported by an established infection prevention and control team 
who are responsible for ensuring the implementation and facilitation of best practice and investigating 
cases relating to healthcare associated infection, the emphasis that the prevention of infection is the 
responsibility of every member of staff employed by the Trust with the message that IPC is “everyone’s 
business”. 

Having had zero incidence of hospital acquired MRSA bacteraemia since September 2013; it was 
disappointing to report 3 MRSA Bacteraemia for 2015/16, with the first case occurring in August followed by 
one each in September and January. Each case was individually investigated to establish the root cause, 
with actions in place from those lessons learnt. The key areas for improvement were the embedding of 
recommendations for MRSA patient screening, and the care and management of indwelling devices. 

C. Difficile infection (CDI) remains an unpleasant and potentially severe infection that occurs within 
healthcare especially to those who have had antibiotic treatment. The Trust continues to work very hard at 
reducing the number of patients acquiring C Difficile whilst in our care. Each year the Trust is set a national 
target which for 2015/16 was 43 cases. This was significant reduction on the trajectory from the previous 
year (2014/15) of 79 cases. In addition to the target of 43 cases there has also been national recognition 
that some cases of CDI are outside the control of the healthcare setting that detected the infection.  

 
An individual investigation takes place to understand if there have been any lapses in the quality of care 
provided in each case. This process has been in place for several years at NBT, which has had a positive 
impact in the reduction of incidence. Key themes and actions have centred on the cleanliness of the 
environment and point of care equipment and early detection through prompt sampling. 

In 2015/16, 51 cases of CDI were reported against a target of 43, however only 32 of these were as a result 
of a lapse in care at the Trust, therefore below the national target.  

The Trust will continuously strive for reductions of infection acquired by patients cared for by the Trust.  

Chart 14 - Quarterly C-Difficile case rates per 100k bed days Chart 15 - Quarterly MRSA case rates per 100k bed days 
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Chart 16 - Infection control Cdiff, MRSA, MSSA   

 
Screening for and treating alcohol related conditions 
 
Alcohol dependence affects 4% of the adult population in the UK. Nearly 1 in 4 of adults drinks alcohol at a 
harmful or potentially harmful level. It costs the NHS around £3.5 billion a year.  

Alcohol related liver disease is a disease of the young. The average age of death is 59 years. The mortality 
from liver disease continues to rise whilst deaths from conditions such as heart disease, diabetes and 
cancer is falling year on year.  

There was a national and confidential enquiry into patients with alcohol related liver disease in 2013 which 
came up with a number of key recommendations. A working group was created to address these 
recommendations.  

What we achieved: 

We implemented an expansion of the alcohol specialist nurse (ASN) service from 1 nurse to 2.8 WTE 
nurses. A review of attendances related to alcohol in North Bristol showed that when a patient attended 
hospital for an alcohol related issue and they were seen by an ASN, the chance of them coming back to 
hospital was 5% compared to 15% when they didn’t see an ASN. The ASN also attends the weekly liver 
clinic which provides opportunistic intervention for patients who may not wish to engage with community 
support services.  

A Bristol-wide strategy was created in 2015 to improve medical assessment of alcohol related harm. This 
includes formally screening more patients attending hospital for alcohol misuse with an evidence based tool 
and using different detoxification regimes to what were used previously, which are shown to reduce the 
length of stay and be safer.  
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Currently 10 of the wards are using the new system and the screening tool has been incorporated into the 
admissions proforma for people admitted into the directorate of Medicine. Since the new proforma has 
been introduced, the percentage of people being screened for alcohol misuse has increased from 35% to 
65% in 6 months. A deficiency has been noted in screening patients over the age of 65 and this will be a 
focus of improvement in the upcoming months by positively improving the culture of asking everyone about 
their alcohol use.  

A ‘liver care bundle’ has been created to standardise the approach to patients attending the hospital with 
liver cirrhosis. This ensures timely investigation and management of this condition with early identification 
of infections and kidney failure which can be fatal if not identified early in this group of patients.  

The management of patients with alcohol related liver disease has been incorporated into a number of 
teaching programmes for various levels of junior doctors and the identification of alcohol misuse and 
management has been included into the Trust induction programme which occurs monthly for all new 
clinical staff.  

Improving Theatre Safety – 5 Steps to Safer Surgery and World Health Organisation (WHO) 
Checklist 

During 2015/16 Team Theatres have been focussed on continuing the work related to Improving Theatre 
Safety which was identified as a priority in 2014/15. 

The 5 steps to Safer Surgery continue to be used for all patients undergoing an invasive procedure in the 
Operating Theatres and the Interventional Radiology Rooms. 

These are listed as: 

• STEP 1: TEAM BRIEF 
• STEP 2: SIGN IN 
• STEP 3: TIME OUT 
• STEP 4: SIGN OUT 
• STEP 5: TEAM DE-BRIEF 

Every member of the team is involved with these 5 steps and is encouraged to speak up if they have any 
concerns or questions related to the patient and the procedure which is taking place. 

This ensures that through effective communication the safety of the patient is maintained - the correct 
patient is having the correct operation supported by staff with the appropriate experience and skills and that 
the right equipment is available. 

Compliance with the 5 Steps to Safer Surgery and WHO Checklist is measured against a target of 100% 
with 2015/16 performance achieving 92.6% for WHO and 84.8% for Safer Surgery. This shows a decrease 
in compliance from 2014/15. This information is taken from an electronic Theatre Information System. In 
addition, a paper WHO checklist is completed and retained in the patient’s notes. In order to improve this 
position, a daily review of operations where a WHO checklist has not taken place is being completed. This 
allows for a review of the patient’s notes and checking for a checklist. If present this can then be inputted 
on to the electronic system retrospectively. 

Work has commenced to change the way that patients are booked for emergency operations moving from 
a paper based system to using an electronic system which is already used for the booking of x-rays and 
laboratory tests. The benefits of this are that will improve safety as patients are booked in using their 
dedicated hospital number with specific operation details, it will allow for auditing of efficiency of the 
emergency operating lists to ensure that patients are getting their procedures within an appropriate time 
scale and that the resource is being used efficiently.  

To guarantee that staff have the appropriate skills and experience a formal system for measuring skills and 
gaps in skills has been introduced within Team Theatres – the ‘Skills Matrix’. Alongside this set 
supernumerary periods have been agreed to support new staff into the Theatre environment allowing them 
to gain the basic skills required and on which to build. 
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Additional instruments have been purchased and introduced into the system to make certain that the 
correct instruments are available, and there has been reduction in the non-conformance with 
decontamination standards which assures that instruments are safe for use. 

A new role is being introduced for the development and delivery of a multi-professional simulation based 
education projects focussing on human factors training including simulation of emergency situations so that 
all involved know their roles and are prepared. 

Improving Emergency Laparotomy Care at NBT  

NBT has been participating in the National Emergency Laparotomy Audit since 2013, which aims to 
improve care in this high risk patient group. We collect information on all patients having this emergency 
surgery including preoperative risk assessment, treatment of sepsis, time to theatre, consultant supervision 
in theatre, postoperative care, mortality and lengths of stay. 

Since September 2015, NBT is one of 30 Trusts in England participating in the Emergency Laparotomy 
Collaborative (ELC). The ELC is a two-year quality improvement project aimed at improving standards of 
care and outcomes for patients undergoing emergency laparotomy. We aim to save 1000 lives over the 
next 2 years. 

We have introduced a six-step care bundle to standardise patient care from admission to postoperative 
stay. This includes: 

1. Use of National Early Warning Score (NEWS) and measurement of lactate to identify patients most 
at risk, and the delivery of prompt resuscitation. 

2. Use of a sepsis screening tool to identify septic patients and treatment with Sepsis Six. 
3. Surgery within 6 hours of decision to operate. 
4. Appropriate goal directed fluid resuscitation in theatre. 
5. Postoperative critical care for all patients. 
6. Consultant led care throughout. 

We have introduced a new theatre booking system for emergency laparotomy cases to ensure the 
preoperative steps are being completed. We are monitoring our compliance with the introduction of these 
improvements and give timely feedback on our progress to all the theatre team. We meet regularly with 
other Trusts to share data and ideas on best practice.  

Managing Patient Safety Incidents & Implementing the Duty of Candour 

The Trust is committed to minimising the risk of harm to patients in the course of their treatment and care. 
However, incidents do occur and we aim to adopt a pro-active approach to prevent incidents and learn 
lessons to improve patient safety. An open and learning culture operates within the Trust and all patient 
safety incidents are reported to the National Reporting & Learning System (NRLS) and the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC).  

The Trust adheres to the principles of Being Open and Duty of Candour as defined by National Health 
Service England (NHSE). The Duty of Candour ensures incidents resulting in harm of moderate levels or 
worse are investigated and a structured process followed to ensure the patient, patients’ families or other 
involved persons are informed throughout the investigation and provided with explanations of the 
investigation findings.  

We have actively promoted staff awareness of the Duty of Candour process since its introduction in April 
2015 and guidance is available to all staff on the intranet. Further changes have been introduced with the 
revised Serious Incident Framework and the Never Event Framework published by NHSE for the 2015/16 
financial year which has been reflected in the Root Cause Analysis (RCA) process for Serious Incidents 
(SI’s). 

RCA training is delivered on a monthly basis to senior staff to enable ongoing improvements in the quality 
of SI investigations. Further e-learning packages are being introduced to ensure staff know when and how 
to report and manage incidents.  
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All new staff attend an induction programme where patient safety is part of the curriculum, thus introducing 
them to the principles of a good patient safety culture from the outset. 

Organisational feedback reports from the NRLS indicated a reduction in the level of reporting from NBT at 
the lower end of the mid-range of national reporting figures last year. In response to this, an improvement 
plan is now in progress to address the issues. This has had a positive effect on the number of incidents 
reported since September (chart 17). 

 

 

A high proportion of incidents resulted in either no harm or low harm to patients, which demonstrates a 
positive approach to incident reporting and a pro-active safety culture (chart 18).  

 

 

There were 56 SI’s investigated from April 2015 to March 2016 (compared to 87 in 2014/15). All of these 
incidents were thoroughly investigated and an action plan for each incident was implemented. All Root 
Cause Analysis reports and the implementation of action plans are agreed and monitored by the Trust’s 
Clinical Risk Committee.  

Types of Serious incidents reported to STEIS April 2015 to March 2016  

The rate of Serious Incidents reported per bed day across the Trust has varied per month over the past 
year (chart 19). Of these, the Trust has seen a positive decrease in the number of pressure ulcers 
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occurring in hospital. However, serious falls incidents remain an issue and the Trusts falls group are 
working hard to address the problem (chart 20). 

 

 

 

 

Never Events 

‘Never events’ are a particular type of serious incident that are wholly preventable and have the potential to 
cause serious patient harm. NHS England reference these types of incidents as there is evidence that they 
have occurred in the past and barriers are now in place to ensure they should not occur in Health Care. 
These types of incidents are easily recognised and clearly defined as such in the Never Event Policy 
Framework (NHS England 2015). There were three confirmed never events reported by the Trust in 
2015/16, details of which are as follows; 

1) Retained Foreign Object 

A patient was admitted to Southmead Hospital for an elective High Anterior Resection. During the 
operation a Wound Protector/Retractor was used. 
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Three days later the patient became unwell. A CT scan was requested and carried out. This was 
reported – ‘there appears to be a circular prosthesis underlying the ileostomy site’. Later the same 
day the patient returned to theatre, the wound was reopened and a wound protector/retractor was 
removed. 

At completion of the operation, Consultant surgeon contacted the patient’s wife and informed her 
there was a foreign body which she had removed and the patient was recovering. 

The main points identified in the investigation were; 

Root Cause: 

• The wound protector/retractor was not included in the count and therefore not identified as 
“missing”. 

• Although the Swab, Instrument and Needle Count policy states disposable items to be included 
in the counts, there are a number of items that are not routinely counted. This includes wound 
protector/retractors as the visual size, including the outer rigid ring and how it was used, meant it 
would not be able to “slip” into the abdomen. 

 
The following learning points have been taken forward: 

• At all times Scrub Practitioners must be aware of the location of all swabs, needles, sharps, 
disposable items, instruments and medical devices. 

• All items entering the sterile field to be part of the swab, instrument and needle counts. 
• Theatre senior staff to observe swab and instrument counts carried out, to ensure the quality of 

these counts. 
• When enlarging an incision after the wound protector has been placed, surgeons to consider 

using a larger wound protector. 
 

2) Wrong Site Surgery 

A patient with progressive myelopathy due to cervical spinal cord compression at C4/5 was admitted 
for a C4/5 Anterior Cervical Discectomy + fusion + plate. 

During the operation the level was checked with the image intensifier and C5/6 was misinterpreted 
as C4/5. The patient had a fusion at C5/6. This error was recognised when further x-rays were taken 
before plating. Plating of C5/6 was completed. The correct level, C4/5, was identified and 
discectomy with fusion and plating was carried out. 

The patient and her husband were informed soon after the operation. 

Post op x-ray and scans carried out prior to discharge were satisfactory. On discharge, the patient 
stated her left thumb symptoms are now better, and was discharged the same day having recovered 
well from the surgery. 

It was identified that the radiopaque retractor blade was misinterpreted as the marker for C4/5. 

The surgeon confused the intraoperative level marker with the radio opaque blade of the cervical 
retractor which looks very similar. 

The following learning points have been taken forward: 

• There is no nationally agreed technique or protocol for confirming the level of surgery. 
• There is a risk of confusing artery clips used as surgical level markers with radio opaque retractor 

blades on an X-ray. 
• Further work is underway to monitor current practice and identify the occurrence of this type of 

incident as a National concern.  
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3) Wrong Route Medication 

A 41 year old gentleman admitted to the Emergency Department with decreased conscious level 
following illicit drug use. 

The patient received a wrong route administration of oral medication via an intravenous cannula. 
There was no adverse effect on the patient as a result of the incident. 

It was identified that a lack of oral syringes within the isolation suite resulted in a breach of oral 
medication administration policy. 

Also, internal escalation status in the hospital resulted in the member of staff lone working in an 
isolation area whilst night staff supported the Acute Medical Admissions Unit. 

The recommendations identified from the investigation were: 

• Enteral syringes must be used for oral liquid medication administration. 
• Medication should not be left unattended. 
• Distractions should be avoided whilst administering medication. 
• Safe staffing levels should be maintained at all times within the isolation unit and lone working 

should be avoided. 
• Housekeepers to ensure enteral syringes are stocked at all times within the isolation suite. This is 

included in their daily working schedule. 
• Review staffing within isolation suite, recommend no further lone working. 
• Purchase mobile phone to enable easy access to nurse in charge on 27b. 
• Registered nurse not to administer medications until reassessed as competent. 
• Registered nurse to complete Managed Learning Environment medicines management online. 
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Section 3 – Patient Experience 
National Maternity Survey  
 
The national survey of maternity services was published by the Care Quality Commission in December 
2015. This survey is undertaken every 2 years. The overall response rate for North Bristol Trust was 53% 
(the overall national response rate being 41%). Both Cossham Maternity Hospital & Southmead Maternity 
Hospital were included in the survey. 
 
The survey data was reviewed with other information from patient complaints and the Friends and Family 
Recommender Test. Whilst there are many compliments and positive comments from our mothers the need 
to improve communication was noted and action has been taken which includes a training session within a 
regular study day for midwives, doctors and maternity care assistants on communication, customer care 
and scenarios of poor communication. 
 
Other areas for improvement from the survey area are as follows:    
 
• Labour and Birth:  

o Ensuring our patients are involved as much as they want to be in decisions about care.                
• Postnatal Care:  

o Ensuring mothers have enough information about emotional changes that may be experienced.    
o Ensuring all mothers are always treated with kindness and understanding. 
o Ensuring mothers are able to get help from a member of staff within a reasonable time.   
o Enabling anyone close to the patient to be able to stay as long as possible. N.B. Recliner chairs are 

now by all postnatal and antenatal beds to enable partners to stay. 
• Postnatal carer at home  

o  To seek to improve access to breast feeding advice during evenings, nights and at weekends.   
• Feeding:  

o Antenatal  
 Full discussion of infant feeding during pregnancy.  

o Post Natal  
 Receiving consistent advice.  
 Receive support and encouragement.                             
 Full discussion on infant feeding (where not fully discussed during pregnancy).   

Involving our Board in reviewing the quality of Patient Experience  

In 2015-16 considerable work was undertaken to improve the existing connections between frontline clinical 
teams and the Executive and Non-Executive Directors who make up the Trust Board. 

Executive Safety Walkrounds have been a long-standing activity at the Trust, viewed as crucial in 
connecting the most senior-level managers with staff involved in the frontline delivery of care – enabling 
them to observe, enquire, speak to patients, and make time to learn about local issues, success stories and 
innovations, and in doing so take forward key actions and ideas to improve the experience of our patients 
and staff. 

A new walkround programme was initiated this year, which involves an improved feedback form for the 
wards, an enhanced schedule which now sees each Executive complete at least 6 walkrounds per year 
across more locations, (this includes our mortuary, discharge lounge, dialysis units and other off-site 
locations), a ‘Summary of Learning’ report to the Trust’s Quality & Risk Management Committee and - for 
the first time - a new Non-Executive Director (NED) walkround based on the national 15-Steps Challenge. 

The 15-Steps Challenge is a national toolkit produced by patients to help trusts on 
their continuous improvement journey.  It focuses on the patient/relative perspective 
on first entering a ward or clinical area and the various factors which instil 
confidence in the quality of care that they will receive. Given the success of this tool 
among Boards at other Trusts, we decided the 15 Steps to be a good framework to 
base our new NED walkrounds on – observing areas with a more holistic view, 
particularly suited to role of the NED within an NHS Trust. 
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A total of 32 walkrounds have been undertaken 2015-16, producing lots of rich descriptive information and 
intelligence on both staff and patient experience to be looked at and taken forward as a whole at executive 
level.  These walkrounds have taken place across a range of services including maternity services, our 
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit, theatres, our Riverside Inpatient Mental Health Unit, Interventional 
Radiology, Medical Day Care and many more specialties and inpatient areas. 

 
Chart 21 - Risk/Compliance – Executive Walkrounds and External Review 

Each of our 7 NEDs, including the Trust Chairman, have completed at least one 15-Steps style walkround 
this year and, due to their success, are now scheduled to complete a further 2 each during 2016-17.  The 
informal format of “coffee and chat” with the Matron and Sister for the ward before the walkround, followed 
by debrief and discussion of actions at the conclusion of the walkround have been felt positively by both our 
NEDs and nurse managers. 

Our target for 2016-17 is for 62 walkrounds to take place, covering all of our main services and locations, 
and allowing greater staff contact with our Executive and Non-Executive Team.  We aim to continually 
improve the feedback loop between ward and board, and the sharing of - and ultimately ability to act on - 
information in both directions. 

Friends and Family Test – Patients 

What is FFT?  

The Friends and Family Test (FFT) is an important feedback tool that supports the fundamental principle 
that people who use NHS services should have the opportunity to provide feedback on their experience. 

It asks people if they would recommend the service they have used to their family and friends if they ever 
needed to use it. There are a range of responses available including the opportunity to explain why they 
have given that response. This commentary is vital to help us make improvements and celebrate that we 
are doing well. 

The opportunity to give feedback should be provide to all patients attending outpatient clinics; those who 
are inpatients and those attending the emergency department. Maternity services offer the opportunity to 
their mothers and mums to be at 4 points of their care.    
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Response rates:  

The overall response rate against the required target by these services is provided in table 10 below, as 
well as the percentage of patients that would recommend the service to their family and friends. This shows 
that we have not been able to achieve the required national targets during the year on a consistent basis.  
Achieving increases in response rates is a key area of focus for 2016/17. 

Area 

Response Rate % Recommend 

Target NBT  Mths 
ach. 

NBT National 
avge. 

Inpatients 30% 22% 3  96.2% 95.0% 

ED 20% 9% 5  92.9% 87.0% 

Outpatients 5% 2% 0  92.9% 92.0% 

Maternity 15% 13% 4  95.3% 95.3% 
 

Table 10:  Overall % response rates against required levels and % of respondents recommending the service 

What did our patients tell us? 

The overwhelming feedback is of a really positive experience by patients, emphasising the importance of 
good communication, kindness, compassion and respect. 

Themes from the inpatient comments analysis from the year 2015-16 for both positive and negative 
aspects are set out in table 11 below. 

Positive experience themes     
 

Number of 
comments Negative experience themes  Number of 

comments  
Staff + 7030 Waiting / Delays:  - 210 
General Quality of Care: + 3830 Food / Catering:  - 185 
Food / Catering:  + 738 Staff:  - 165 
Facilities:  + 604 Facilities:  - 135 
Cleanliness:  + 589 TV:  - 126 
Information:  + 358 Noise:  - 90 
Environment:  + 286 General Quality of Care: - 72 
Comfortable: + 157 Staffing levels:  - 59 
Nursing Care: + 75 Information:  - 55 
Waiting / Delays:  + 72 Environment:  - 47 
Communication between staff + 51 Communication between staff - 37 
Involving family/carers + 26 Parking:  - 28 
Privacy:  + 25 Moving Wards etc:  - 25 
TV:  + 19 Discharge:  - 22 

Table 11 - Feedback from Inpatient FFT 

What changed?  
 
The benefit of FFT is that the feedback is about that immediate experience. Whilst it is anonymous, actions 
can be taken to help improve matters for all patients. Below are some comments that patients gave us and 
the action that took place.  
 

• “Highly specialist neurological team worked their magic and got us the best present for 
Christmas, my mother’s speech back. Areas for improvement, shelf in shower, so soap, 
shampoo and conditioner does not drop. Some patients cannot reach the floor.” 
 
- Action taken: shelving put into shower facilities. 
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• “My experience towards the end of my stay was very good, but at the beginning it was very 
confusing and not easy to feel confident in their care because I kept being told something 
different and a lot of the nurses and doctors didn't seem to know what was wrong with me. It 
was much better when I had the same nurse for more than 1 day and 1 night. Communication 
between the different teams was very bad and clear communication with me was not often very 
good, which left me nervous and unsure.”  
 
- Action taken: staff reminded of the need to ensure staff are clear what is happening with the 
patient and any changes are shared with the patients whilst ensuring the patient has 
understood.  

• “This hospital and staff have provided an amazing and comforting experience. The building 
and equipment are state-of-the-art and the dedication and team spirit of the staff is self-
evident. It is a massive yes from me!” 

Other actions that have taken place across the Trust: 

• TVs are now in place across ward areas in the Brunel building. Further work is required to 
establish TVs across the wards in maternity.  

• The quality and choice of food and availability throughout the day.  
 
 

Feedback from Healthwatch  

During 2015-16 we have worked hard to build a positive and responsive relationship with Healthwatch as 
this provides valuable insight to us. We continue to receive feedback through Healthwatch of Bristol, South 
Gloucestershire and North Somerset of the experience of members of the public who have used our 
services. We respond and link this to our patient experience improvement actions, with formal reporting into 
our Patient Experience Group.    

In August and November 2015 Healthwatch Bristol visited our Hospital and sought the views and 
experiences of those coming to the Brunel Building and from inpatients on a number of wards. The full 
report of this feedback and the recommendations & actions being taken can be found through the following 
link to the report  

http://healthwatchbristol.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/Healthwatch-Bristol-visit-to-Southmead-
Hospital-November-2015-summary-reportCL.pdf 

The key aspects of the report are as follows:  

• Parking and transport – this remains a challenging issue but will greatly improve with the opening 
of Brunel Phase 2 and the increased patient and staff car parking this will bring in July 2016. 

• The positive attitude of staff and volunteers. 
• Information provision and understanding treatment. 
• Getting in contact with the right department and people. 
• Getting around the hospital – the Atrium ‘buggy’ was greatly valued; signage and way finding could 

be improved in certain areas. 
• Single rooms- enjoyed by some but some older people found them lonely. The TVs have helped 

considerably.  
• Food – quality and choice had improved, more choice for those on special diets was requested 

and the feedback is greatly valued by the Trust and has strengthened our relationship with 
Healthwatch. 

Examples of patient comments through Healthwatch 

• “The commentator said that they thought the entrance to the Brunel Building of Southmead Hospital 
is impressive and they like the internal shuttle buggy service which takes patients to their gate” 
 

• “Even the consultant pushed me in my wheelchair. I cannot fault the service at Southmead." 
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• “The commentator said that they are not happy with the procedure involved with moving patients 
from different rooms or departments in the middle of the night, without any prior notice or the 
patient’s family being informed.” 

 
NHS Staff Survey and Staff Friends & Family Test 

2015 National Staff Attitude Survey – Recommendation to Friends and Family 

The National Staff Attitude Survey is an annual survey that takes place during Quarter 3 of the financial 
year.  This helps to ensure that the views of staff working in the NHS inform local improvements and 
provide input into local and national assessments of quality, safety and delivery of the NHS Constitution. All 
eligible staff in the Trust were invited to complete the survey during September to December 2015.  2636 
staff responded, giving a response rate of 30% (compared to 25% the previous year).   

Overall some improvements were made in the 2015 survey but we have further to go.  We are building on 
the work we did in 2015 to improve by: 

• Identifying the three Trust-wide changes that will make the most difference. 
• Engaging staff in the Directorates in identifying the key actions that will make the most difference 

locally. 
 
The score below corresponds to the survey questions relating specifically to staff recommendation of the 
Trust as a place to work or receive treatment. It is correlated from the following questions: 

• Care of patients/service users is my organisation’s top priority. 
• I would recommend my organisation as a place to work. 
• If a friend or relative needed treatment I would be happy with the standard of care provided by this 

organisation. 
 

The score is from 1 to 5. 1 represents staff unlikely to recommend the Trust and 5 represents those likely to 
recommend the Trust. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The table below shows the scores for staff experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse in the last 12 
months and staff believing the organisation provides equal opportunities for career progression or 
promotion. 

NHS Staff Survey 2015 NBT 
2014 

NB T 
2015 

National 
Average 
(combined 
Acute & 
Community 
Trusts) 

KF19 - % staff experiencing harassment, 
bullying or abuse from staff in previous 12 
months 

 
26% 

 
26% 

 
24% 

KF27 - % staff believing the organisation 
provides equal opportunities for career 
progression or promotion for the Workforce 
Race Equality Standard 

 
86% 

 
85% 

 
87% 

Table 13 - NHS Staff Survey 2015 

NHS Staff Survey 2015  NBT 
2014 

NBT 
2015 

National 
Average 
(combined 
Acute & 
Community 
Trusts) 

 Score out of 5 
Staff recommendation of NBT as a place to 
work or receive treatment 

 
3.32 

 
3.64 

 
3.71 

Table 12 - NHS Staff Survey 2015 

43 - Account of the Quality of Clinical Services 2015/16 



These figures do not provide any significant conclusions in themselves; however we are undertaking work 
in both areas.  

With respect to harassment and bullying, it is notable call volumes for the Harassment & Bullying helpline 
have been declining over the past three years, which may indicate a reduction in concerns. We are not 
complacent and are currently evaluating options for promoting the Trust’s zero tolerance policy more 
actively.  

With respect to equal opportunities, our Trust Equality & Diversity Manager is working closely with our 
Director of Operations Kate Hanham in her capacity as ‘Gender Champion’ to promote the Trust’s Respect 
and Dignity Statement. This has been widely distributed, it is on the HR portal on the equality page and is 
included on the patient information screens in the Brunel and on the equality notice boards.  

 
Staff Friends & Family Test 

In addition to the National Staff Attitude Survey, the Trust runs the Staff Friends and Family Test in 
Quarters 1, 2 and 4 of the financial year.  The two mandatory questions the Trust is required to ask are: 

• How likely are you to recommend North Bristol NHS Trust to friends and family if they needed care 
or treatment? 

• How likely are you to recommend North Bristol NHS Trust to friends and family as a place to work? 
 
The results from Quarters 1 and 2 of 2015-16 are shown below.  The survey was conducted electronically 
and sent to all eligible staff.  The results from Quarter 4 have not yet been received. 

 Extremely 
Likely 

Likely Neither 
Likely 
nor 
Unlikely 

Unlikely Extremely 
Unlikely 

Don’t  
Know 

Response  
Rate  

Q1 18% 51% 21% 7% 2% 1% 17% 
Q2 20% 51% 20% 5% 3% 1% 15% 
Table 14 - How likely are you to recommend North Bristol Trust for care or treatment? 

 

 Extremely 
Likely 

Likely Neither 
Likely 
nor 
Unlikely 

Unlikely Extremely 
Unlikely 

Don’t  
Know 

Response  
Rate  

Q1 10% 37% 24% 17% 11% 1% 17% 
Q2 11% 37% 24% 16% 11% 1% 15% 
Table 15 - How likely are you to recommend North Bristol Trust as a place to work? 

We are proud that 71% of our staff would recommend us for care or treatment but aim to improve on this, 
building on the good outcomes that we achieve for patients.   

There are two aspects to this: 

• Continuing to improve the experience of patients in our Trust as well as the outcomes. 
• Ensuring that all our staff, including those who work in non-patient facing roles, understand the 

progress we are making in achieving those improvements. 
 
In a busy hospital it’s easy to lose track of the great care delivered every day, so one of the ways we are 
addressing this is through celebrating and spreading good practice, for example, through staff induction, 
iCARE moments awards and the NBT Heroes awards.  
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‘Ask 3 Questions’ – developing shared decision making 

What is ‘Ask 3 Questions’ about? 

As part of a local CQUIN (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation) initiative with 
Bristol CCG, NBT is trialling an initiative called ‘Ask 3 questions’ in three 
Outpatient specialities (Rheumatology, Colorectal and Vascular Surgery) from 29 
February 2016. Patients attending outpatient appointments in these areas were  
given ‘Ask 3 Questions’ leaflets and postcards to encourage them to become more 
involved in understanding their treatment options and making choices that are 
right for them. Asking the 3 questions helped start the conversation. 

The three questions are: 
1. What are my options? 
2. What are the possible benefits and risks of those options? 
3. What help do I need to make my decision? 

What did we do? 

Two short videos were played in the outpatient area to help patients understand the ‘Ask 3 Questions’ 
approach and they were also given a postcard that offered more information. This also had additional 
space for writing any other questions they may have. The clinical lead for this work within the specialities 
discussed the approach with staff to enable the opportunity for patients to ask questions to be explicit in the 
consultation.  
 
Before and during the implementation of ‘Ask 3 Questions’, we asked patients several questions relating to 
their involvement in decision making, its impact on them and whether staff focused on what was important 
to them. 

What difference did it make? 

The survey results proved that the doctors were discussing with patients what was important to them in 
managing their illness, and as a result of this approach there was strong indication that patients felt better 
able to manage their condition or illness after using the ‘Ask 3 Questions’ approach.  

What next? 

We are excited by the results and we will continue to roll this out to other outpatient areas over the coming 
year and monitor its impact. We will also use the principle of ‘Ask 3 Questions’ to support and empower 
patients to ask questions whilst they are attending appointments at the hospital. 

Managing Complaints and Sharing Compliments 

Complaints  

Each and every complaint or concern received is important to the Trust as they provide an important 
feedback opportunity, allowing us to reflect on where things have fallen below our expected standards and 
in turn generating sustained improvements to our service across all aspects for the future. To ensure 
overall visibility of this important information at the highest level, the Chief Executive takes a ‘hands on’ 
interest by reading and signing off all formal complaints.  
 
The overriding complaints challenge for the Trust this year was addressing the backlog of complaints 
associated with significant environmental and practice changes in moving to the new Brunel Building in 
May 2014.  Common themes of these complaints included concerns about; 

o Shortage of parking 
o Crowded and un-coordinated drop-off access to Brunel Building 
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o Single patient rooms – lack of TV 
o Move to system of centralised outpatient administration, and knock-on effect on patient 

appointments and letters 
 
The graph below clearly illustrates the success the Trust has had this year in reducing the backlog of 
overdue complaints and in addressing the root of these complaints long term through taking the following 
actions; 

o “Pay on exit parking” introduced. 
o The drop-off area in front of the main hospital will continue to be manually policed until all Phase 

2 construction is completed in the late spring, which will provided new access roads and more 
and improved visitor parking with direct access to the Brunel Building. 

o TVs provided for patients’ in all wards to supplement the improved entertainment options 
provided by free Wi-Fi.   

o Out-patient booking services have continued to be reviewed to ensure a more responsive 
service.  

o Departmental and outpatient clinic letters continue to be revised to improve clarity and ensure the 
correct contact details are included. This limited any adverse impact of the move to the new 
Patient Record System. 

o New staff parking facilities provided as the Phase 2 construction progressed. 
 
The increase observed in the latter part of the year can be explained in part by the transition to the Trust’s 
new Patient Information System, which went live in December 2015.  While the system is now embedding 
well within the Trust, this proves to be the next challenge in terms of addressing complaints associated with 
bookings made during, and immediately-post, the changeover of systems. 

 
Chart 22 - Complaint Responses Overdue 2015/16 

The relatively high number of complaints received during 2014/15 were due to the challenges associated 
with closing the Frenchay site and moving both hospitals into new accommodation. This has fallen by 
approximately 17% during 2015/16.  
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Chart 23 -Total Complaints Received 2015/16 

Prior Years’ Comparison 

Year 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
Number of complaints 832 757 1006 821 
Rate of Complaints per 1000 patient episodes 2.26 1.3 3.4 4.19 

Table 16 - Complaints 

The overall total of cases received by the Trust increased reflecting the pattern of increased complaints 
across the whole of the NHS and the Trust’s particular circumstances of another year of huge change.  

Enquiries & Informal Concerns 

The Advice and Complaints Team (ACT) also successfully managed many low level concerns and 
enquiries outside of the formal complaints process, through a telephone helpline or by meeting patients in 
person. While these are generally going up in-line with increases experienced across the NHS as a whole, 
the variation in the numbers broadly reflect the expected seasonal trends.

 
Chart 24 - Total Enquiries Answered 2015/16 
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Complaint Themes: The graph below shows a breakdown of the top 6 categories of complaint. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monitoring and Feedback 

In order to continue to take advantage of the learning opportunities for the Trust, robust monitoring has 
been undertaken within the Complaints Team to provide information and analysis of complaint data. This 
includes:   

• Risk rated Action Plans are created for all complaints to facilitate tracking and recording the lessons 
learned to help improve services and patient experience. 

• Monthly feedback to directorates on details of complaint numbers, types, specialties, and graphical 
analysis of the data. Response times and action plans are also closely monitored along with returned 
complaints and the reason for the return.  

• A dashboard of key information is also produced monthly for Trust Board Meetings. 

• In our iCARE programme, real complaints and compliments are used in training for all existing staff as 
well as new staff on induction, this helps staff look at care issues from the patient's perspective. 

• Information about complaints is included in medical staff appraisals. 

 
Complaints Action Plans 

Risk rated Action Plans are created for, and supplied to, all complaints by the Complaints Department to 
facilitate tracking and recording the lessons learned to help improve services and patient experience. 

Parliamentary Health Service Ombudsman (PHSO) Reviews 

The Trust’s Complaints service and performance was reviewed this year by the Parliamentary Health 
Service Ombudsman to ensure that good principles of complaints handling are being consistently met.  
Following completion of their investigations the Ombudsman upheld 2 and partially upheld a further 4 
complaints. 8 were found to be not justified. These cases proved a valuable source of information to help 
further improve the complaints process. Additionally the Patient’s Association (which assisted the NHS 
following the Francis Report) will continue to work with the Trust to advise on improving the complaints 
process and wider patient experience monitoring.  

Chart 25 - Complaint Themes 
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Responses following resolved complaints 

“I just wanted to say thank you to everyone for really investigating (my complaint) and that I am very 
impressed by the thought that went into it and the changes that were implemented.” 

Re a telephone problem resolved… 

“I had my surgery last week- it’s just a short email to say thank you for all you did for me and to say that all 
the staff at Southmead were amazing I couldn’t have been taken care of any better. I thought I would let 
you know as I expect all your emails are complaints.” 

Compliments 

Over 4,300 compliments were recorded during 2015/16. These were received in many forms, from 
telephone messages to thank you cards and emails. Positive feedback is shared with staff and patients to 
promote and celebrate good practice as well as to boost staff morale. As the strategy of improving patients’ 
experience continues we will be looking at closer links between Patient Experience and ACT involving more 
systematic ways of inviting, collecting and learning from positive feedback, which is easily overlooked when 
focusing on the more challenging issues. 

A selection of the compliments received (where permission to share was granted) is included below: 

Gate/Ward/Department: 33a. Hospital: Southmead – “many thanks to all the hard working staff who looked 
after me on ward 33a. You all made me feel like I got the treatment I needed.” 
 
Gate/Ward/Department: Cossham birth centre. Team/Name of staff: Jill, Vanessa, Kathy, and the whole 
team!! – “My misses was worried as the date drew nearer. Her first birth wasn't amazing - she had an 
epidural and a 9 hour labour - but this was so much nicer. Rooms with a view, en suite bathrooms, double 
bed and first class care! Our baby was born within 16 minutes of being there and was all done on gas and 
air. The excellent advice and support from the Cossham team and Jill who we caught a little off guard with 
the quick birth, but she didn't let us down in anyway. Couldn't fault it and was well worth it, if only all birthing 
units had the care, time and staff that Cossham could give. We would all be a lot happier. All birthing units 
could learn a good lesson from Cossham and should. A massive thank to you all at Cossham. 
 
Gate/Ward/Department: 27 - Cardiology. Team/Name of staff: Consultant Dr Walker. Hospital: Southmead 
– “I was admitted via A&E and underwent tests for Unstable Chest pain. I was recommended for a heart 
bypass and transferred to the Heart Institute in Bristol. Without the skill and ability of the team at 
Southmead I may well have suffered a further heart attack. I am now 5 weeks post op and feeling 
wonderful. They without doubt saved my life and gave me a new much healthier life to boot. I cannot thank 
them enough. As a patient you can trust them with your life what can one say. THANK YOU.”  

Gate/Ward/Department: 35 A&E Team/Name of staff: Receptionist that booked me in & Ann triage nurse 
Hospital: Southmead  -  “I would like to thank the receptionist who booked me in around 15:30 on Friday 
14/8/2015 & Ann the triage nurse who was lovely to me when I got upset during my consultation she made 
me feel so at ease.”  

Team/Name of staff: To all the staff Hospital: Southmead. – “To all the nursing staff on 25A, thank you for 
looking after me you are all wonderful. It was nice to have staff who care so much about the patients. 
Thank you again.” 

Gate/Ward/Department: Cotswold Clinic. Team/Name of staff: Hysteroscopy Team on 16th July 2015 
Hospital: Southmead – “Just wanted to say a big thank you to the doctor and nurses who made the 
experience as pleasant as it possibly could have been. Also to the very kind lady on the phone (Gail?) who 
tried hard to give me an earlier appointment. Everyone was very kind and supportive. Thank you.” 
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Improving Cancer Patient Experience 

The National Cancer Patient Experience Survey was sent out to patients earlier in the year by Quality 
Health. We expect to have the results published in the next few months. The survey did not take place last 
year.  

North Bristol Trust continues to lead nationally on the Living With and Beyond Cancer programme also 
known nationally as the Recovery Package. This programme is endorsed in Achieving world-class cancer 
outcomes - A strategy for England 2015-2020. The strategy sets out a proposed new five-year Cancer 
Strategy for England which recommends accelerating the roll-out of stratified follow up pathways and the 
“Recovery Package”. It states the aim should be that by 2020 every person with cancer will have access to 
elements of the Recovery Package, and stratified pathways of follow up care.  At NBT we have 
successfully implemented risk stratification and remote monitoring for follow-up in breast, colorectal & 
prostate services and are redesigning pathways in other cancer sites.  We have an active “Living-well” 
programme supporting cancer patients and their families following treatment. All cancer teams are 
delivering regular education and information events with the 4 main teams also providing self-management 
courses. In 2015 we held 30 events with a total of 700 patients attending. In 2016 we have at least 36 
Living Well days and 11 courses planned. 

Patients are receiving documented holistic assessments and individualised care plans and we are 
improving the information sent to the GP’s in the form of a treatment summary helping primary care support 
their patients following treatment. We have been successful in achieving a CQUIN for 2015-2016 in 
providing treatment summaries for over 40% of patients. 

In September 2014 we opened our NGS Macmillan Wellbeing Centre on the Southmead site delivering a 
wide range of activities and providing information, support and advice for cancer patients, families and 
professionals. The centre has been a huge success and we have had over 1500 people through the doors 
in the past year. We expect numbers to greatly increase when we become more visible to the public in May 
2016. In September 2015 we introduced free complementary therapies for cancer patients supported by 
therapist volunteers and we now run a regular cancer workshop for qualified therapists following a 
successful application to the Health Education South West for funding.  

The cancer teams continue to work hard in delivering a high standard of patient care whilst looking for 
innovative ways of making improvements.  

End of Life Care 

At North Bristol NHS Trust, we provide end of life care for approximately 1800 people each year. End of life 
care is delivered in all areas of the hospital including the medical, surgical and orthopaedic wards, the 
emergency department and the intensive care unit. End of life care is given by doctors, nurses and other 
health care professionals in each area, often with help from the specialist palliative care team, ward based 
link nurses, chaplaincy team, pharmacists, Macmillan Wellbeing Centre staff, psychologists, mortuary staff 
and bereavement services.  

At NBT, we aim to give high quality individualised care and support to people who are nearing the end of 
their life and also to those close to them. We do this by planning care and services in line with national 
recommendations. 
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We focus on how we can deliver care with compassion and kindness and maintain dignity and comfort as 
best we can. In the report issued by the CQC after the last inspection, staff were praised for being caring 
and the report emphasised that end of life care at NBT was delivered with the aim of meeting the individual 
needs of people.  

At NBT we have an End of Life Strategy Group made up of staff working in all areas of the hospital who are 
involved with caring for people at the end of life. This group plans the priorities for developing and 
improving end of life care. These are based on gaps identified by audits and national standards, outcomes 
of complaints and other feedback from patients and carers and areas of concern highlighted by staff.  
These are reported quarterly to the Quality and Risk Management Committee and actions are identified for 
the coming year to address the issues. 

Recent developments in end of life care at NBT include; 

• The introduction of a new way of recording care at the end of life called “Caring for Patients at End 
of Life”, following the national withdrawal of the Liverpool Care pathway. The new NBT paperwork 
prompts staff to think about all aspects of good end of life care and to make individual care plans for 
each person and ensure that comfort and symptom control are monitored closely and addressed 
quickly. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

• The development of new forms to help guide doctors and nurses in discussing treatment aims with 
people when they are very unwell. This is helping to make sure that people understand what is 
wrong with them and this allows them and their carers to be more involved in planning their 
treatment and where they would like to be cared for. We have achieved local quality improvement 
targets for some of this work. 

• Since January 2016, we have been delivering introductory end of life training to all staff at NBT.   
 
There are many aspects of end of life care where we can work to improve the quality of patient care, patient 
experience, staff skills, knowledge and attitudes and coordination of services.  

Our priorities for the coming year are; 

1) Planning for how we can provide face to face access to specialist palliative care services seven 
days per week. 

51 - Account of the Quality of Clinical Services 2015/16 



2) Continuing with delivery of introductory end of life training for all staff and planning how we can 
deliver the right level of further training to over 8,000 staff. 

3) Improving our communication with people about their illness, what to expect, what their preferences 
are about their treatment and where they would like to be cared for. 

4) Improving how we communicate information to GPs and other community staff when people leave 
hospital. 

5) Improving how we collect and act on feedback from people and their carers about end of life at 
NBT. 

6) Reviewing how we make arrangements for collection of death certificates. 
7) Improving our documentation of the end of life care that we deliver at NBT. 
8) Improving our documentation of decisions about resuscitation. 

 
Carers 

Understandably, Patient Carers need dignity and respect during a loved one’s hospital stay. Many carers 
are likely to be relatives of very sick patients and therefore every bit of assistance should be provided in 
making access to support as easy as possible.  

As part of the NBT Carer Support Scheme, Carers providing support while a patient is in hospital are 
entitled to: 

• a complimentary parking permit 
• an access card permitting access to the ward as well as access to the staff restaurant on level 5 
• Carers conversation 
• Referral to Carers liaison Service 

As a Trust we have signed up to John’s Campaign http://johnscampaign.org.uk/ (and further work related to 
engagement with carers will be progressed through the newly formed carer’s strategy group that will report 
to the Patient Experience group. 

We have re launched the carers scheme and updated information related to this on the extranet and 
internet. (There was a picture on twitter to support this yesterday). 

 

iCARE 

It stands for: 

I take responsibility for: 
Communication that’s effective 
Attitude that’s positive 
Respect for patients, carers and colleagues 
Environment that’s conducive to care. 

The Trust uses iCARE to embed our values and provide a vehicle for improved patient and staff 
experience. Staff are engaged in a practical expression of our values of Putting Patients First, Working Well 
Together, Recognising the Person and Striving for Excellence.  It also embraces other ways of making 
clear and personal commitments, such as our ‘Don’t Walk By,’ campaign, our ‘Patient Experience 
Improvement Plan’, and how to respond when things don’t go well, and in  maintaining one’s own 
professional and personal standards.  
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The iCARE sessions are highly participative using real patient feedback and staff experience to gain an 
understanding of how our values and behaviours can affect the quality of patient and staff experience.  

In 2015/16 we have continued to champion iCARE, and to celebrate and  raise awareness of good practice 
through the iCARE Moments awards campaign. iCARE also became part of the NBT Welcome and 
induction, and Health Care Support Worker Care Certificate programmes.  This means that all new staff on 
their very first day, are given the insight into the importance of our NBT Values and how we want to work 
together to support our service users in NBT.  

Safeguarding Vulnerable People 

Safeguarding Children 

Children and young people are seen in a range of settings throughout North Bristol NHS Trust such as the 
Maternity services, Emergency Department, Outpatient clinics and the Nursery. Young people aged 
between 16 and up to 18 years can be admitted as inpatients and we work closely with other providers as 
young people transition from children’s services to adult health services. Children and young people are 
also seen indirectly through our contact with parents.  

North Bristol NHS Trust has a duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and young people who 
are under 18 years of age. This is achieved in several ways by; 

• Ensuring all staff are appropriately trained. 
• Having robust governance arrangements. 
• Having specialist staff to guide the Trust. 
• Maintaining expected standards and responding to inspections. 

Training  

North Bristol NHS Trust staff are trained to recognise, understand and report any safeguarding concerns for 
children. Throughout 2015-2016 the Trust’s in-house Safeguarding Children Training Programme offered 
training at three levels for all staff employed within the organisation and training compliance figures are 
reported to the Commissioner quarterly. The training is in-line with the requirements of Safeguarding 
Children and Young people: roles and competences for healthcare staff; Intercollegiate Document (2014) 
and the Trust’s Safeguarding Children Training Policy. High levels of compliance have been evident for the 
last 4 years. A collaborative approach to delivering level 1 and 2 training for adults and children has been 
developed.  

The Trust aims to achieve 90% compliance with all levels of training.  

The Quarter 3 for figure 2015/16 has shown a drop in compliance from Acute Services. This has been 
identified during the separation of Acute Hospital Staff from Children’s Community Health Partnership 
(CCHP) staff. 

The percentage of staff trained at level 1 89 

The percentage of staff trained at level 2 80 

The percentage of staff trained at level 3 core  80 
Table 17 - Quarter 3 figure for Acute Staff 

A recovery plan is in place and will be monitored by the Safeguarding Committee.  

Governance 

2015/16 has seen a strengthening and improvement of the arrangements in place within the Trust to 
safeguard all patients and the development of a “Think Family” culture. The Trust’s Safeguarding 
Committee arrangements were reviewed in 2015 and are now established with a focus on providing 
challenge and assurance with regard to the safeguarding arrangements within the Trust for both Adults and 
Children at the same committee.  

Our commissioners receive quarterly reports monitoring the Trust against agreed standards. These 
standards are assured internally by the Children’s Operational Group and the Safeguarding Committee. 
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Specialist Staff 

We have a team of individuals who are specialist in Children’s Safeguarding to provide advice and support 
to all Staff. The vacancy created by the impending departure of the Children’s services for a Named Doctor 
has been filled. The Named Nurse’s post for Safeguarding Children will be vacant in March 2016. A 
succession plan has been developed with the Director of Nursing to ensure continuity of the service until a 
substantive post holder can be recruited.  

Inspections 

A recent inspection by the CQC was very positive,  

“We saw good evidence of the specialist [Safeguarding Midwives] midwives role in both internal and multi-
agency liaison.” 

“Without the Family Nurse Partnership we wouldn’t have been as good parents as we are now.” 

“Once ‘in service’ (then) young people in South Gloucestershire are supported well by CAMH practitioners.”  

“Children and young people who attend ED at Southmead hospital following self-harm, overdose or other 
risk taking behaviours are safeguarded well.” 

Whilst the overall inspection was positive North Bristol NHS Trust had a number of specific actions 
assigned to it and these have been identified and collated into an action plan, implementation of which is 
being monitored by the Trust Wide Safeguarding committee and our Commissioners. 

Moving to Pastures New… 

The Community Child Health Partnership (CCHP) for Bristol and South Gloucestershire services (including 
community paediatrics, health visitors, school health nursing and allied health professionals) which has 
worked within a valued partnership with NBT for the past six years is leaving. In April 2016 NBT will say 
goodbye to our colleagues in CCHP and welcome three new providers of care.  

Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults 

The Safeguarding of vulnerable adults remains a high priority for the Trust. This area of practice requires 
collaborative working with other health providers, health and social care commissioners and the local 
authority and the police. The Trust’s Safeguarding Adult Team is made of an Adult Safeguarding Lead (full 
time) and Specialist Safeguarding Practitioner (part time) supported by a full time administrator. The Team 
is led by the Head of Patient Experience. The Director of Nursing is the Executive Lead for Adult 
Safeguarding and chairs the Trust Safeguarding Committee. Adult Safeguarding has its own subcommittee 
which is chaired by the Head of Patient Experience. 

The Trust has maintained its focus on Safeguarding Adults, Mental Capacity Act (including Deprivation of 
Liberty) training which now includes PREVENT awareness, Domestic Abuse and Violence and Female 
Gentile Mutilation, as well as Human Trafficking awareness. Training is supplied to every member of NBT 
staff at various levels and is delivered face to face with frontline professionals. This training is refreshed 
every three years. 

April 2015 saw the introduction of the Care Act. Under that Adult Safeguarding moves on to a statutory 
footing from a policy basis. The Act increased those people who can be classified “as an adult at risk of 
harm” (this replaces the phrase vulnerable adult) so increases volume and lowers the threshold from 
significant harm to harm. 

The table below shows the growth of referrals from the Trust into the team.  

Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 
2013/14 22 12 42 34 100 
2014/15 54 57 105 98 214 
2015/16 212 241 163 160* 776 

*Quarter 4 figures compiled before quarter end. 
Table 18 – Growth of referrals 

The growth in referrals is explained by the following factors; 
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• Change in definition and threshold as required by national requirements 
• The effect of training – generating greater awareness and therefore more referrals 
• Adult Safeguarding Team improved availability for support  
• The adding of additional strands to the Adult Safeguarding Agenda i.e. Domestic Abuse and 

Violence, FGM, Modern Slavery 
• Greater need to support practitioners with Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation compliance. 

 
Safeguarding Adults Boards are now a statutory partnership for North Bristol NHS Trust. The Head of 
Patient Experience sits on the Boards for both Bristol and South Gloucestershire. The Adult Safeguarding 
Lead sits on sub groups of both boards. 

 
Chart 26 - Safeguarding Adults
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Section 4 – Clinical Effectiveness 

Mortality Outcomes - HSMR/SHMI 

Mortality  
 
The Trust has an excellent record on patient mortality and both internal and external assessments by the 
CQC and TDA of its performance indicate that it is consistently performing at or better than the national 
expected levels on a range of measures that are used to monitor and assess mortality. 

Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio - HSMR  

HSMR is a measurement which compares a hospital’s actual number of deaths with their predicted number 
of deaths, taking into account factors such as the age and sex of patients, their diagnosis and whether their 
admission was planned or an emergency. If a Trust has an HSMR of 100, this means that the number of 
patient deaths is as expected, based on the seriousness of their condition. If the HSMR is above 100 this 
means that more people have died than would be expected. In contrast an HSMR below 100 means that 
fewer die than expected. Chart # below shows that mortality is below expected levels for almost all of the 
year. There was a rise in December 2014 and February 2015 but it is important to note that the mortality 
levels still remained within the ‘expected range’.  

Standardised Hospital Mortality Indicator - SHMI  

SHMI is the preferred method used to measure and compare patient mortality but is more recently 
introduced than HSMR. The SHMI includes post-discharge deaths (30 days). The Trust SHMI is also below 
the Trust national average of 100, which indicates that NBT is performing better than would be expected. 
The key differences in methodology between HSMR and SHMI indicators are; 

• HSMR is a sample of 56 diagnoses where around 85% of hospital deaths occur. HSMR is 
adjusted for more factors than SHMI, most significantly palliative care, but also other sub 
groups, such as social deprivation, past history of admissions and source of admission. 

• SHMI includes all deaths, regardless of whether they were attributable to the hospital. So, for 
example, if 30 days after being in hospital someone dies (of any cause), it would still be 
included in SHMI. 

 
Chart 27 - HSMR to November 2015. (Source: Dr. Foster) 
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Chart 28 - SHMI trend for all activity across the last available 3 years of data. (Source: Dr. Foster) 

 
    Chart 29  - Mortality review & QI reporting 

 
Safety Review of every patient death  

Whilst the published and independently assessed NBT data outlined in Charts 27, 28 and 29 is reassuring, 
we are not complacent and continuous improvement is the goal for our longer term quality and safety 
improvement work. In April 2014 a new system was introduced to support the formal screening and review 
of all in-patient deaths, and underpin our objectives to prevent avoidable harm and death. This is 
undertaken to provide an objective review. To date (Feb 2016) there have been approximately 517 patient 
deaths which have been reviewed in this way. It is reassuring to note that no cases of avoidable death have 
been found during these reviews. The information from this Mortality Screening and Review work is 
compared with other data from the Trust to look for potential learning and improvement opportunities by the 
Trust’s Quality Surveillance Group. 
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Quality of Cancer Services 

Within North Bristol Trust there are 11 specific cancer clinical teams who provide support to cancer patients 
and are additionally supported by a palliative care team and an acute oncology service. Each of these 
teams has an identified Lead Clinician who works closely with Clinical Nurse Specialists and other 
supporting staff to deliver services for cancer patients. All cancer clinical teams are monitored against 
national standards as part of the National Peer Review Programme. Each team’s compliance with these 
“national quality standards” is monitored through a programme that utilises self-assessment and external 
validation processes. The self-assessment process at North Bristol Trust is either conducted by the clinical 
lead as a desk-top exercise or via an internal validation panel (where teams are reviewed and validated by 
peers within the organisation).  Teams are also selected for an external review where professional peers 
are invited to visit and review teams against their compliance with these standards. In 2015 the following 
reviews were undertaken and the compliance is noted below: 

Assessment type Disease Site/Peer 
Review Area Measures  

2015                    
(% 
compliance) 

Action areas 
identified 

External Validation 
Visit 

Haematology 18 SA – 89% 
EV - 83% 

Serious concern - 
Inadequate CNS 
support 

SIHMDS 5 SA – 80% 
EV - 60% 

Serious concern – 
Regional integrated 
reporting system 

Compulsory 
National Self-
Assessment & 
Internal Validation 

Acute Oncology 
- Gen 
- Inpatient   

5 
10 
4 

IV - 60% 
IV – 80% 
IV – 50% 

Administrative support 
for service needs 
review 

CUP Hospital  3 SA – 66% 
Pathway agreed but 
needs Bristol wide sign 
off 

Breast 16 IV – 87.5% 

Patient information was 
not up-to-date  
Pathways were locally 
developed and not 
networked 

Skin - Specialist  
Skin – Immuno  

20  
1 

Desk top – 
67% 
Desk top – 
100% 

Gloucester patients 
pathways and 
procedure numbers to 
be reviewed 

Urology - Specialist 21 IV - 81% 

MDT attendance issues  
RUH radical 
prostatectomy review 
required 

Urology - Penile 17 Desk top - 
65% 

Serious concern - 
Inadequate clinical 
support for service 

Nationally Optional 
Assessment – 
team assessed via 
Internal Validation 

Brain & CNS – 
Trust  
Brain – 
Rehabilitation  
Brain – 
Neuroscience MDT 

6 
18 
18 

IV – 100% 
IV – 80% 
IV – 80% 

Serious concern - 
Neuro-psychology 
support to the MDT 

Colorectal  
Colorectal 
Diagnostic 

18 
1 

IV – 95.5% 
IV – 100% 

No issues identified - 
letter to confirm 
attendance measure 
requested. 

Lung 15 IV – 80% 
Waiting times for 
endoscopy and 
outpatients highlighted  

Sarcoma Trust 
Sarcoma MDT 

8 
20 

IV – 87.5% 
IV – 70% 

Shared care and 
network pathways need 
updating 

Nationally Optional 
Assessment – 

Gynaecology 
Diagnostic 2 SA – 100%  
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Assessment type Disease Site/Peer 
Review Area Measures  

2015                    
(% 
compliance) 

Action areas 
identified 

team assessed via 
self-
assessment/desk 
top 

Palliative Care 25 SA – 95% 

National measures 
pose challenges as no 
network group at 
present 

Chemotherapy 36 SA – 75%  

Nationally Optional 
Assessment – 
team chose not to 
assess 

Brain - Skull Base   
Brain - Pituitary 

18 
18 

SA – Not 
provided 

None expected but self-
assessment not 
completed 

Onc. Pharm 
Service 5 SA – Not 

provided 
Self-assessment not 
completed 

Table 19 - Cancer Services 

(Note SA – self-assessment, IV – Internal Validation and EV – External Validation). 

All issues or concerns raised as part of the Peer Review Programme of reviews were included in the clinical 
teams Work Programme for the year and these were reviewed at the bi-monthly Cancer Committee 
meeting to monitor progress against actions and escalate issues identified. 

Cancer Performance 

As outlined in the national cancer waiting time guidance document the Trust is tasked with delivery national 
cancer waiting times targets.  These targets can be summarised as follows:  
Maximum two weeks from:  

• Urgent GP (GMP, GDP or Optometrist) referral for suspected cancer to first outpatient attendance 
[Operational Standard of 93%]. 

• Referral of any patient with breast symptoms (where cancer not suspected) to first hospital 
assessment [Operational Standard of 93%].  

 
Maximum one month (31 days) from:  

• Decision to treat to first definitive treatment [Operational Standard of 96%]. 
• Decision to treat/earliest clinically appropriate date to start of second or subsequent treatment(s) for 

all cancer patients including those diagnosed with a recurrence where the subsequent treatment is  
- Surgery [Operational Standard of 94%]  
- Drug treatment [Operational Standard of 98%]  
- Radiotherapy [Operational Standard of 94%]  

 
Maximum two months (62 days) from:  

• Urgent GP (GMP, GDP or Optometrist) referral for suspected cancer to first treatment (62 day 
classic) [Operational Standard of 85%]. 

• Urgent referral from a NHS Cancer Screening Programme (breast, cervical or bowel) for suspected 
cancer to first treatment [Operational Standard of 90%]. 

• Consultant upgrade of urgency of a referral to first treatment [No Operational Standard as yet]. 
• Maximum one month (31 days) from urgent GP (GMP,GDP or Optometrist) referral to first treatment 

for acute leukaemia, testicular cancer and children’s cancers [No separate Operational Standard – 
Monitored within 62 day classic]. 

The Trust has not been able to meet all these targets consistently over the past year and the performance 
against the key targets that North Bristol is measured against can be summarised below: 

Standard Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 YTD Total # 
Patients  

Patients seen within 2 weeks of 
an urgent GP referral (93% 
target) 

92.4% 93.5% 94.7% 93.8% 93.6% 20,214 

Patients with breast symptoms 
seen by specialist within 2 weeks 
(93% target) 

99.1% 96.9% 92.8% 94.5% 95.5% 1,166 
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Patients receiving first treatment 
within 31 days of cancer 
diagnosis (96% target)  

92.0% 91.5% 93.1% 92.9% 92.3% 3,132 

Patients waiting less than 31 days 
for subsequent surgery (94% 
target) 

91.4% 94.4% 95.3% 94.8% 94.1% 905 

Patients waiting less than 31 days 
for subsequent drug treatment 
(98% target) 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 122 

Patients receiving first treatment 
within 62 days of urgent GP 
referral (85% target) 

78.4% 81.7% 80.8% 75.2% 79.4% 1,558 

Patients treated 62 days of 
screening (90% target) 93% 86.5% 91.5% 90.8% 90.5% 393 

Patients treated within 62 days of 
consultant upgrades (90% target) 87.8% 98.4% 98.9% 93.5% 95.4% 296 

Table 20 - Standards 

In order to ensure that the impact of failing to meet these measures is fully understood and actioned the 
Trust undertakes a review of all patients who are not treated within 62 days of their GP referral (patients 
who breach this national standard). 

Cancer patients who breach cancer waiting times targets are reviewed firstly by the core cancer services 
team to identify potential reasons for the breach and then, as appropriate, by the clinical teams to review 
reasons, actions and to attempt to ascertain risks for the patients of the breach.   

1. The core cancer services team conduct an initial review of the breach and provides a summary of 
findings and initial reason notes on the cancer register.  

2. Breaches are then reviewed by the clinical teams, as appropriate, to clarify and confirm appropriate 
actions and potential risks to a patient.   

The review of risk is based on the clinical judgement of the team reviewing the breach and the primary 
question posed is whether, based on the final diagnosis of the patient, the delay represented a clinical risk 
to the patient.  

If there is any clinical concern, the directorate teams must conduct an appropriate formal review and follow 
incident and risk reporting processes of the Trust.  For shared pathways the review of the breach focuses 
on the part of the pathway that sits within the control of NBT and if appropriate timescales were followed in 
respect of this.  

These reviews are essential in informing actions required to improve patient pathways. 

In order to facilitate swifter cancer pathways the cancer teams within NBT have worked on reviewing their 
clinical pathways to identify and attempt to map ‘time points’ when certain key steps in their pathways 
should occur.  These timed pathways have been developed across the majority of cancer teams within the 
Trust and support capacity review and ensuring clear expectations across the Trust.  The pathways are not 
expected to be met for all patients as allowance must be made for medical conditions that would alter 
standard pathways and for pathway delays due to informed patient choice.   The Trust continues to monitor 
its delivery of cancer performance and look at key aspects of the timed pathway to assist in identifying 
areas for improvement. 

Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs) 

All NHS patients having hip or knee replacements, varicose vein surgery, or groin hernia surgery are invited 
to fill in PROMs questionnaires. When patients go into hospital, they are asked to fill in a short 
questionnaire before their operation. The NHS asks patients about their health and quality of life before 
they have an operation, and about their health and the effectiveness of the operation afterwards. This helps 
the NHS to measure and improve the quality of its care. NBT is working on new approaches to seek to 
improve rate of completion by patients of PROMs questionnaire and methods to act upon results.  
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Eligible 
hospital 
procedures 

Pre-operative 
questionnaires 
completed 

Participation 
Rate 

Pre-operative 
questionnaires 
linked 

All Procedures 1960 350 17.9% 272 
Groin Hernia 398 22 5.5% 15 
Hip Replacement 742 152 20.5% 120 
Knee Replacement 738 176 23.8% 137 
Varicose Vein 82 0 0.0% 0 
Table 21 - Indicates the participation response rates by patients to the questionnaire 

Participation in Clinical Audits 

National Clinical Audits Listed for the Quality Account 2015/2016 

The National Clinical Audits and National Confidential Enquiries that North Bristol NHS Trust participated in 
during April 2015 – March 2016 (stated in the DoH list of audits for inclusion in the Quality Account) are as 
follows: 

• 59 National Clinical Audits were listed to be reported in the Quality Account for 2015/2016. This did 
not include the National Confidential Enquiries. 

• During April 2015 – March 2016, 44 of the 59 (75%) national clinical audits covered NHS services 
that North Bristol NHS Trust provides. 

• During April 2015 – March 2016 North Bristol NHS Trust participated in 41 of the 44 (93%) relevant 
national clinical audits. 

The table below details the national clinical audits listed on the quality account for 2015/2016. It indicates 
NBT’s eligibility for participation, whether NBT did participate and the case ascertainment figures and 
percentages for each audit in which NBT participated. 

National Clinical Audit Title Eligible to 
Participate? 

Participating? Case Ascertainment 
No Submitted No Expected % 

Acute Coronary Syndrome or Acute 
Myocardial Infarction (MINAP) 

Yes Yes 456 456 100% 

National Adult Bronchiectasis Audit Yes Yes 01 5  
Bowel cancer (NBOCAP) Yes Yes 2502 241 103% 
Cardiac Rhythm Management (CRM)3 Yes Yes    
Case Mix Programme (CMP) Yes Yes 9324 932 100% 
Child health clinical outcome review 
programme 

No N/A    

Chronic Kidney Disease in primary care No N/A    
Congenital Heart Disease (Paediatric 
cardiac surgery) (CHD) 

No N/A    

Coronary Angioplasty/National Audit of 
PCI 

Yes Yes 214 214 100% 

Diabetes (Adult) Yes Yes    
- Diabetes Foot Care Audit Yes Yes Data not submitted5 
- Diabetes in Pregnancy Yes Yes 216 21 100% 
- National Diabetes Audit Yes Yes    

o Case note review   121 121 100% 
o Patient experience   92 N/A N/A 

Diabetes (Paediatric) (NPDA) No N/A    
Elective surgery (National PROMs 
Programme) 

Yes     

1 Data collection does not close until 30 September 2016 
2 2015 report (2013/2014 data) 
3 Latest report 2013/2014 (published 19th December 2014) 
4 As of Quarter 2 2015 (latest quarterly DAR published) 
5 Data not submitted as NBT was not made aware by the National Body that the database was open 
6 2014 data submitted for report published November 2015. 21 pregnancies captured – may have been more but women did not 
consent. 
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Emergency Use of Oxygen Yes Yes 1 Institution 
23 

Submissions 

1 Institution 
Avg. 13 

Submissions 

100% 

End of Life Care Audit: Care of the Dying Yes Yes 52   
Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit 
Programme (FFFAP) 

Yes Yes    

- National Hip Fracture Database Yes Yes 440 484 91% 
- 1st National Audit of Inpatient 

Falls7 
Yes Yes All falls All falls 100% 

Familial Hypercholesterolaemia No N/A    
Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD) 
programme (Round 5) 

Yes Yes Reporting 
Sep 16 

  

Intra-thoracic transplantation (NHSBT UK 
Transplant Registry) 

No N/A    

Liver transplantation (NHSBT UK 
Transplant Registry) 

No N/A    

Lung cancer (NLCA) Yes Yes 2538 253 100% 
Major Trauma: The Trauma Audit & 
Research Network (TARN) 

Yes Yes 1339 1241 108% 

National Adult Cardiac Surgery Audit No N/A    
National Audit of Intermediate Care No N/A    
National Cardiac Arrest Audit (NCAA) Yes Yes 1159 115 100% 
National Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary 
Disease (COPD) Audit Programme – 
pulmonary rehabilitation audit 

Yes Yes    

National Comparative Audit of Blood 
Transfusion programme 

Yes Yes    

- Patient Blood Management in 
Adults Undergoing Elective, 
Scheduled Surgery 

Yes Yes 32   

- The Use of Blood in Lower GI 
Bleeding10 

Yes Yes    

National Complicated Diverticulitis Audit 
(CAD) 

Yes No    

National Emergency Laparotomy Audit 
(NELA) 

Yes Yes 156 233 67% 

National Heart Failure Audit Yes Yes 453 461 98%11 
National Joint Registry (NJR) Yes Yes 1625 1625 100% 
National Ophthalmology Audit No N/A    
National Prostate Cancer Audit Yes Yes 9612 186 52% 
National Vascular Registry Yes Yes    

- AAA Repair13 Yes Yes 37 45 82% 
- Carotid Endarterectomy14 Yes Yes 51 48 106% 

Neonatal Intensive and Special Care 
(NNAP) 

Yes Yes 282815 2828 100% 

Oesophago-gastric cancer (NAOGC) Yes Yes 13616 151-200 81-
90% 

Paediatric Asthma No N/A    
Paediatric Intensive Care Audit Network 
(PICANet) 

No N/A    

Prescribing Observatory for Mental Health 
(POMH) 

No N/A    

7 Round 1 figures 
8 2015 report on 2014 data 
9 2014/2015 data from report published April 2015 
10 Report to be published end of May 2016 
11 Figures as of 17/05/2016 – Data collection to end 1st June 2016 
12 Data from 2014 (2015 report) 
13 Data from patients diagnosed between 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2014 (2015 report) 
14 Procedures done between January and December 2014 (2015 report) 
15 2015 report on 2014 data 
16 Patients diagnosed between 1st April 2012 and 31st March 2014 (2015 report) 
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- Will possibly be involved in the 
element - Prescribing for ADHD in 
Children 

Renal replacement therapy (Renal 
Registry) 

Yes Yes 148 (all) All 100% 

RCEM Procedural Sedation in Adults Yes Yes 29 50 58% 
Pulmonary Hypertension (Pulmonary 
Hypertension Audit) 

No N/A    

Rheumatoid and Early Inflammatory 
Arthritis 

Yes Yes 11417   

Sentinel Stroke National Audit 
Programme (SSNAP) 

Yes Yes Not reported Not reported 90%+18 

UK Cystic Fibrosis Registry No N/A    
UK Parkinson’s Audit (previously known 
as National Parkinson's Audit) 
 

Yes Yes    

- Speech and Language Therapy Yes Yes 20 20 100% 
- Patient Management Yes Yes 25 25 100% 

RCEM Vital signs in Children Yes Yes 50 50 100% 
RCEM VTE risk in lower limb 
immobilisation 

Yes Yes 50 50 100% 

 

Table 22 - National Clinical Audits 

 

Local Clinical Audits 

The Clinical Audit Committee (CAC) uses the results from local and national audit to inform the Trust 
Quality and Safety Strategy and annual quality objectives. The CAC monitors action plan progression as a 
result of local and national clinical audit activity and highlights to the Trust Quality Committee lack of 
progression or specific actions which require their intervention. CAC reviews one local audit every 2 
months, which equates to 6 over the 12 month period. 
 

  

17 1st Annual Report 2015 (Data: 1 February 2014 – 30 April 2015) 
18 As of Quarter 3 2015/2016 
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National Clinical Audit Outcomes 2015/2016 

Introduction 

During 2015/2016 the Clinical Audit Committee reviewed and approved reports and initial action plans for 
25 National Clinical Audits. 21 out of 25 national clinical audits reviewed were listed on the Quality Account. 

Once action plans are approved by the Clinical Audit Committee they are monitored to ensure that progress 
is being made at 6 month intervals until completion. 29 6, 12 and 18 month action plan updates were 
reviewed and approved by the Clinical Audit Committee during 2015/2016, 21 of these were National 
Clinical Audits listed on the Quality Account. 

Audits are closed if all actions are completed, or a re-audit report is published and outstanding actions are 
carried over to the new action plan. In 2015/2016 9 audits were closed.  

Below are 3 examples of National Clinical Audits that have had an action plan approved and implemented 
during 2015/2016 and a subsequent re-audit report has been published. The summaries below outline the 
outcomes of the earlier reports and the actions implemented to improve results at the re-audit stage. The 
comparative tables and graphs show areas where improvements have been realised and also those areas 
that need further work in order to improve outcomes. Action plans will be developed for the re-audit reports 
and will be appraised by CAC early in 2016/2017. 

National Neonatal Audit Programme (NNAP) 2014 and 2015 
(Quality Account) 

 

2014 Report Summary 

The 2014 audit report indicated several areas of low compliance, however these were broadly in-line with 
the national average.  

Action Plan and Changes in Practice 

A comprehensive action plan was developed carrying over any outstanding elements from the previous 
report. Work has been carried out to improve data management for NNAP including appointing a new NICU 
Data Manager. Data migration to more up-to-date systems and data sharing with other departments, 
training specialists to enter their own data regularly as well as the production of monthly reports and 
dashboards gives a more current overview of care. It is noted on the action plan that there are exceptions 
to NNAP standards and this is where NBT’s non-compliance usually falls, however actions are specified to 
endeavour to improve compliance in all areas. 

2015 Report Summary 

Following implementation of the action plan the 2015 audit report was released. It noted areas of improved 
compliance with regards to antenatal steroids being given and screening times. Compliance fell on one 
metric, and this element will be addressed in the new action plan. 
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Compliance and Improvement Table NBT vs National 
Measure Report  

Year 
Site +/- 5%  

Improvement No Name NBT National 

1 Temperature taken within 
an hour of birth 

2014 90% 93% 
 2015 88% 94% 

2 Percentage with any 
antenatal steroids given 

2014 82% 83% 
 2015 96% 85% 

3 Babies with ROP 
screening 

2014 100% 94% 
 2015 96% 97% 

4 Screened on time 2014 80% 87%  
2015 93% 93% 

5 Feeding with Mother’s milk 
only 

2014 49% 36% 
 2015 46% 35% 

6 Feeding with any Mother’s 
milk 

2014 32% 23% 
 2015 32% 25% 

7 
Consultation with parents 
within 24 hours of 
admission 

2014 95% 84% 

 2015 83% 89% 

8 
Eligible babies receiving 
neurodevelopment follow-
up 

2014 100% 99% 

 2015 100% 98% 

9 Blood cultures with results 
entered <32 weeks 

2014 100% 87% 

 2015 97% Not 
recorded 

10 
Blood cultures with results 
and clinical signs entered 
≥32 weeks 

2014 99% 79% 

 2015 95% Not 
recorded 

Table 23 - NNAP NBT vs National 

 

National Lung Cancer Audit (NLCA) 2014 and 2015 
(Quality Account)  

 

2014 Report Summary 

North Bristol supports a good MDT approach to the diagnosis of lung cancer, patients are seen by a 
specialist nurse who is present at time of diagnosis, receive CT before bronchoscopy and patients are 
discussed at MDT at a comparably good level when compared to other Trusts in the region. There are 
potential areas of concern with regards to patients having active treatment, patients with non-small cell lung 
cancer having surgery and the percentage of patients with small cell cancers receiving chemotherapy.  

 

+5% Improvement 
 

No change +/- 5% 
 

-5% Improvement 
 

+5% on National Average  

-5% on National Average  
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Action Plan and Changes in Practice 

The action plan concentrated on the four main areas of concern. Data validation was implemented to 
ensure data accuracy. Rates of histological confirmation, surgical resection, and chemotherapy were to be 
reviewed on publication of the 2015 report. Monthly reviews of data uploaded to the NLCA will help to direct 
changes to improve results. It was highlighted that the crude resection rate should be reviewed only in the 
context of the early stage lung cancer resection rate which is a more accurate marker of appropriate case 
resection (NBT - 66.7% which is the 7th highest rate of all Trusts). The shortfall in the chemotherapy rate is 
arguably not clinically significant and could be representative of performance status and patient preference. 
If the chemotherapy rate is lower than the benchmark 70% for the 2015 report further investigation will be 
carried out. 

2015 Report Summary 

The 2015 report demonstrates improvement in the percentage of NSCLC patients having surgery, and NBT 
is now above the national average for this metric. Unfortunately this is somewhat marred by a lower 
percentage being reported for patients seen by a nurse specialist and patients having a histological 
diagnosis. The action plan for the 2015 report will focus on these areas. Out of the 9 metrics reported in 
2015 NBT was above or comparable to the national average on 7 of these. 

Compliance and Improvement Table NBT vs National 
Measure Year 

 
Site +/- 5%  

Improvement No Name NBT National 

1 Discussed at MDT 2014 99% 95% 
 2015 98% 94% 

2 Pathological diagnosis 2014 Not 
recorded 

Not 
recorded N/A 

2015 66% 69% 

3 NSCLC specified rate 2014 87% 88% 
 2015 88% 88% 

4 Patients seen by nurse 
specialist 

2014 86% 84% 
 2015 59% 78% 

5 Anticancer treatment 2014 Not 
recorded 

Not 
recorded N/A 

2015 51% 58% 

6 NSCLC having surgery 2014 14% 17% 
 2015 23% 15% 

7 NSCLC stage IIIB/IV and PS 
0-1 having chemotherapy 

2014 Not 
recorded 

Not 
recorded N/A 

2015 53% 57% 

8 SCLC patients having 
chemotherapy 

2014 Not 
recorded 

Not 
recorded N/A 

2015 69% 68% 

9 Patients receiving CT before 
bronchoscopy 

2014 97% 91% 
N/A 2015 Not 

recorded 
Not 
recorded 

10 Nurse specialist present at 
diagnosis 

2014 80% 65% 
N/A 2015 Not 

recorded 
Not 
recorded 

11 Histological diagnosis 2014 75% 75% 
 2015 66% 69% 

12 Having active treatment 
2014 59% 60% 

N/A 2015 Not 
recorded 

Not 
recorded 

13 Receiving surgery (all cases) 
2014 15% 15% 

N/A 2015 Not 
recorded 

Not 
recorded 

14 Receiving radiotherapy 
2014 29% 28% 

N/A 2015 Not 
recorded 

Not 
recorded 

15 
NSCLC Stage IA, IB, IIA or 
IIB having surgery (patients 
first seen 2011-2013) 

2014 67% 52% 
N/A 2015 Not 

recorded 
Not 
recorded 

Table 24 - Lung cancer  NBT vs National 

 

+5% Improvement 
 

No change +/- 5% 
 

-5% Improvement 
 

+5% on National Average  

-5% on National Average  
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National Clinical Audit of Rheumatoid and Early Inflammatory Arthritis 2014 (EIA) 
(Quality Account) 

 

Interim Report Summary 

NBT did not reach the expected standard for a number of the quality indicators reported by the National 
Audit. Areas to be targeted for improvement included referral times and patients being seen within 3 weeks. 
There was a short fall in the number of patients receiving educational support and the treatment target set 
for Rheumatoid Arthritis at base line was also falling short of the national average. There were areas where 
NBT was better than the national average such as patients having access to urgent advice, and 100% of 
patients had their treatment target agreed at base line. 

Action Plan and Changes in Practice 

The referral times (only 5% referred within 3 days) were highlighted by the national clinical audit body 
(British Society for Rheumatology) and a response was returned in December 2015 confirming the data 
and outlining the action plans in place to address the issue. A new referral guideline is being developed in 
conjunction with the referral booking team and consultants, it is hoped that more stringent referral 
guidelines can be added for GPs in order to ensure that EIA patients are seen promptly.  Actions that have 
already been implemented include education of GPs as to the national standards for referral, meetings and 
education with coding to ensure errors do not skew the data, and education sessions are in place with OTs 
and Physios for people with EIA and patients are now offered this session on day of diagnosis.  

Full Report Summary 

The full report has since been published for this audit and it shows improvement or no significant change in 
all comparable areas. NBT has work to do to improve compliance to the standard and the action plan will 
be developed in response to this to ensure continued improvement and will be reviewed at Clinical Audit 
Committee by July 2016. 
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+5% Improvement  
No change +/- 5%  
-5% Improvement  
+5% on National 
Average  

-5% on National Average  
 

  

Compliance and Improvement Table NBT vs National 

Measure Report 
 

Site +/- 5%  
Improvement No Name NBT National 

1 
Patients 
referred within 
3 days 

Interim 5% 14% 

 Final 8% 17% 

2 Patients seen 
within 3 weeks 

Interim 20% 41% 
 Final 19% 38% 

3 

Patients 
commencing 
SMARD <6 
weeks 

Interim Not 
recorded Not recorded 

N/A 
Final 31% 53% 

4 

Treated with 
steroids at 
working 
diagnosis 

Interim Not 
recorded Not recorded 

N/A 
Final 77% 76% 

5 

Patient 
received 
educational 
support 

Interim 10% 59% 

 Final 30% 59% 

6 
Treatment 
target set for 
RA at BL 

Interim 57% 69% 

 Final 89% 91% 

7 

Treatment 
target agreed 
with the 
patient for RA 
at BL 

Interim 100% 91% 

 Final 100% 90% 

8 
Treatment 
target set at 
FU 

Interim Not 
recorded Not recorded N/A 

Final 68% 69% 

9 

Treatment 
target 
achieved at 
FU 

Interim Not 
recorded Not recorded 

N/A 
Final 61% 49% 

10 
Patients have 
access to 
urgent advice 

Interim 88% 78% 

 Final 100% 99% 

11 Remission 
Interim Not 

recorded Not recorded 
N/A 

Final 13% 24% 

12 Low disease 
activity 

Interim Not 
recorded Not recorded 

N/A 
Final 13% 10% 

13 
Reduction in 
DAS score by 
at least 1.2 

Interim Not 
recorded Not recorded 

N/A 
Final 53% 62% 

 
  

    
 

  
 

   
 

 

   
 

 

 

Table 25 – Compliance and improvement 
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The table below details the national confidential enquiries listed on the quality account for 2015/2016. It 
indicates NBT’s eligibility for participation, whether NBT did participate and the case ascertainment figures 
and percentages for each audit in which NBT participated. 

National Confidential Enquiry Title Eligible to 
Participate? Participating? 

Case Ascertainment 
No 

Submitted 
No 

Expected % 

Maternal, Newborn and Infant Clinical Outcome 
Review Programme (MBRRACE-UK) Yes Yes 626119 6261 100% 

Medical and Surgical Clinical Outcome Review 
Programme, National Confidential Enquiry into 
Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) 

Yes Yes    

- Acute Pancreatitis Yes Yes 10 10 100% 
- Mental Health in General Hospitals 

Study20 Yes Yes 5 5 100% 

- Sepsis Yes Yes 5 5 100% 
- Gastrointestinal Haemorrhage Yes Yes 6 6 100% 

National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and 
Homicide for  people with Mental Illness (NCISH) No N/A    

 

Table 26 - National Confidential Enquiries 

NICE Quality Standards 

NICE quality standards are concise sets of prioritised statements designed to drive measurable quality 
improvements within a particular area of health of care. They are derived from the best available evidence 
such as NICE guidance and other evidence sources accredited by NICE. They are developed 
independently by NICE, in collaboration with health and social care professionals, their partners and 
service users. 

Quality standards cover a broad range of topics (healthcare, social care and public health) and are relevant 
to a variety of different audiences, which will vary across the topics. Audiences will include commissioners 
of health, public health and social care; staff working in primary care and local authorities; social care 
provider organisations; public health staff; people working in hospitals; people working in the community 
and the users of services and their carers. 

NICE quality standards enable: 

1. Health, public health and social care practitioners to make decisions about care based on the 
latest evidence and best practice. 

2. People receiving health and social care services, their families and carers and the public to find 
information about the quality of services and care they should expect from their health and social 
care provider. 

3. Service providers to quickly and easily examine the performance of their organisation and assess 
improvement in standards of care they provide. 

4. Commissioners to be confident that the services they are purchasing are high quality and cost 
effective and focused on driving up quality.  

Quality standards consider all areas of care, from public health to healthcare and social care. Evidence 
relating to effectiveness and cost effectiveness, people's experience of using services, safety issues, 
equality and cost impact are considered during development. 

Although some standards are area-specific, there will often be significant overlap across areas and this is 
considered during development of the standard. Where appropriate, complementary referrals are combined 
and developed as a fully integrated quality standard. 

19 Report published May 2016 (2014 data) 
20 Study still open and not all figures are finalised 
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How quality standards are managed 

Within NBT all Quality Standards are assessed for their applicability to NBT and its services and patients. A 
‘Gap Analysis’ is completed by the NBT Lead for the Standard and the Clinical Team or Teams linked to 
the Standards. As an outcome of the Gap Analysis an Action plan is developed to address any possible 
gaps that may exist. The whole system and process is managed by the Quality Improvement & Clinical 
Audit Team on behalf of the Clinical Effectiveness Committee. 

To date 116 Quality Standards have been released by NICE and of these some 94 apply the Trust with 
more than 61 Gap analyses’ completed during 2015/16. 

Research 

We are committed to research and innovation that improves our patients health outcomes and their 
experience of our services 

We had 531 active research studies this year with 3617 patients recruited and a further 4190 patients seen 
as part of ongoing research projects. Recruitment was 29% higher than last year and demonstrates North 
Bristol NHS Trust’s commitment to improving the quality of care we offer and to making our contribution to 
wider health improvement. This year we have carried out research in more clinical areas than ever before 
with 44 departments across all clinical directorates running research studies. 30% of patients recruited to 
research in 2015/16 are from the Trusts 6 major specialities. 

Strong internal relationships and a commitment to delivering research have made us one of the fastest 
Trusts in the country to set up new research studies. Patients have had the opportunity to participate in 
89% of studies within 70 days of us receiving a request to open a new study. 

This year has been notable for new partnerships in research. NBT is leading the way for research to be 
delivered at all the major maternity units in the west of England by building new relationships and sharing 
new ways of working together. 778 women have participated in the IMOX maternity trial at NBT with a total 
of 1386 participating across the region. NBT is also working with a number of leading life science 
companies to improve health and answer key questions about dementia, diabetes, Musculoskeletal and 
cancer. 

NBT remains a leader in health research that aims to answer important clinical questions. We are currently 
managing £24.5 million grants awarded to deliver new programmes of research. NBT has attained 
significant success with our musculoskeletal, urology and microbiological grant development and delivery.  

Patients and members of the public are a key part of shaping how we do research. They have helped make 
decisions on what research to fund through our charitable fund scheme Springboard and have sat on our 
panels reviewing tender bids for services we use. This year we have created a patient magazine that has 
been distributed across the whole region to showcase the research we do and the experience of patients 
who take part. 

In December 2015 NBT announced that we had partnered with University Hospitals Bristol, RUH and 
Gloucester to become one of 13 NHS Genomic Medicine Centres (GMC), in a major national initiative (the 
100,000 Genome Project) that aims to transform diagnosis and treatment for patients with cancer and rare 
diseases. NBT will contribute approximately 600 genomes to the project annually which should enable the 
development of new and better predictive and diagnostic tests for diseases, and allow drugs and other 
treatments to be tailored precisely to the individual patient. 

The Trust is working collaboratively across the geographical area with primary and secondary care 
providers to ensure all patients have equal access to research, highlighting research as a treatment option 
and empowering patients to request and require access to research studies.  
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Section 5 – Operational Standards and Data Quality 

 
Emergency Department  

North Bristol NHS Trust’s Board has a commitment to sustain a performance of 95% of patients not waiting 
longer than four hours in its A&E departments from arrival to admission, transfer or discharge. 

NBT has not been able to sustain the 4 hour A&E performance target but did achieve of this standard 
during Jun-15, Jul-15 and Aug-15. Over the last year patient safety, privacy and dignity have been the 
focus of significant change and improvement in the emergency zone, ensuring consistent safe practice. 

Bed occupancy within the Trust is high, resulting in restricted flow of patients through and out of the 
hospital; and the Bristol and North Somerset system has agreed to an action plan aimed to improve and 
sustain the performance in 2016/17. Key actions include; 

• Early discharge preparation and documentation within NBT; 
• Stronger board-rounds with a pivotal role for the integrated discharge member; 
• Simple common referral pathways for discharge; 
• Clarity of capacity and flow for discharge; and 
• Production of and use of a trusted leaving hospital patient database. 

 

Chart 30 - Urgent Care – Waits in Under 4 Hours vs. Total Attendance 

 

Referral to Treatment 

As part of the NHS Constitution NBT recognises the patient’s legal right to start a non-emergency NHS 
consultant-led treatment within a maximum of 18 weeks from referral, unless they choose to wait longer or 
it is clinically appropriate that they wait longer. 

Throughout the year NBT has seen a steadily improving position against this performance standard, and 
continues to have agreed improvement profiles in place with the system to remove all long waiters (waits in 
excess of 52 weeks) and then move towards sustainable delivery of this target.  
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Chart 31 - Percentage of Incomplete Pathways 

Long waiting specialties 

The Trust Board for North Bristol NHS Trust is absolutely committed to the zero tolerance of >52 week 
waiters on an RTT incompletes pathway. These long waiters are seen in the orthopaedic and 
neurosciences service for spinal related patients, as well as those on a specialised epilepsy care pathway. 
NBT is partaking in the South West Network Spinal Transformation Project to look at the spinal pathway 
across the local health system to ensure that the service will have an achievable and deliverable capacity 
and demand for all providers and parts of the pathway prior to reopening.  

Clinical Review whilst on waiting list 
During the year the Trust’s Quality Committee has reviewed and signed off an approach to ensuring that all 
patients waiting for a longer than the ideally identified time for treatment undergo a clinical review. This 
clinical review varies in nature depending upon the specialty in question but the common requirement is 
that senior clinicians ensure that patients do not experience additional harm due to their waiting time. 
During 2016/17 this approach will be enhanced through more formalised assurance measurement and 
reporting both internally and externally to commissioners. 

Improving the discharge of patients from hospital 

We discharge many patients each day to a variety of settings. Whilst for many patients this is a positive 
experience, we recognised that for some the experience could be improved. We also wanted to reduce the 
numbers of patients who no longer needed acute hospital care but were still delayed in hospital waiting for 
ongoing care services.  

Many staff also feedback that the systems and processes for discharge were complicated to follow and 
difficult to understand. We have therefore spent time developing and implementing a series of changes and 
improvements: 

Discharge to assess – We worked with external health and social care partners to establish three different 
pathways (home with support, community rehabilitation, and long term care), aimed at discharging patients 
once they no longer need acute hospital care – right care, right place, right time. 

Integrated Discharge Service – We have built a service comprising health and social care partners, all 
working from the same location to support and deliver safe and timely discharge for patients with complex 
needs. This expert team works with patients and families from the earliest possible stage in their hospital 
stay to determine their ongoing care needs and the most appropriate discharge pathway. This service is 
still in its early stages so there will be further review and development.  
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Discharge Lounge – We have opened an area on the ground floor overlooking pleasant gardens, 
designed to house patients who are waiting to go home that day. This enables their bed to be vacated early 
to enable any new admissions to have prompt access to a hospital bed at a time when they are acutely ill. 

Care Home CQUIN – This has been agreed with commissioners and the care home sector as a set of 
standards designed to improve the experience of care home residents who are admitted to hospital, as well 
as improving the discharge of this vulnerable patient group into the care home sector. We have changed 
our discharge checklist to reflect the new standards and have also implemented an audit programme to 
measure how we are doing. 

There have been many other related developments during the course of year, and this has resulted in 
reducing length of hospital stay for many patients, an increase in community support for both health and 
social care, and improved patient satisfaction with the care around discharge planning and their actual 
hospital discharge. Some of the above work is being nationally recognised as good practice, and we will 
continue to improve patient experience around discharge and drive efforts to discharge patients in a timely 
way to improve bed availability for acutely ill patients. 

 
Data Quality 

Hospital Episode Statistics  

The Trust submits a wealth of information and monitoring data centrally to our commissioners and the 
Department of Health. The accuracy of this data is of vital importance to the Trust and the NHS to ensure 
high quality clinical care and accurate financial reimbursement. 

Our data quality reporting, controls and feedback mechanisms are routinely audited and help us monitor 
and maintain high quality data. 

We submitted records during 2015/16 to the Secondary Users’ Service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode 
Statistics (HES) which are included in the latest published data. Within this data we are expected to include 
a valid NHS number and the General Medical Practice (GMP) Code and report this within each year’s 
quality account. This information is presented below. 

M9 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
NHS 
no. 

GMP 
code 

NHS 
No. 

GMP 
code 

NHS 
No. 

GMP 
code 

Admitted Patient Care 99.4% 100.00% 99.5% 100.00% 99.5% 98.20% 

Out Patients 98.6% 99.90% 98.4% 99.80% 98.7% 99.80% 

A&E 97.8% 100.00% 97.4% 100.00% 97.4% 100.00% 

Table 27 - HES 

The percentage of records in the published data which included patient’s valid NHS number remains 
consistent in each of the three domains. 

The completeness for inclusion of the GMP within Admitted Patient Care has suffered since the Lorenzo 
go-live which occurred in mid-November 2015. Prior to that, in October 2015, we were reporting 100% for 
the year to date. The issue within Lorenzo is being resolved but won’t be complete in time for our ‘closure’ 
of 2015/16 data as the national HES refresh will be made ahead of this.  

The fix will prevent under reporting of this in 16/17 and we will also retrospectively fix our own Admitted 
Patient Care dataset for 2015/16. 

Clinical coding error rate 

Accurate clinical coding is now widely recognised by the NHS as being an essential element for 
benchmarking Trusts performance against peers nationally, recouping accurate income from 
commissioners through Payment by Results (PbR), and it provides the ability to understand the Trusts own 
clinical activity in areas such as mortality statistics, audit and many other crucial areas. 
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During 2015-16 the clinical coding department participated in the Trusts Monitor reference Cost audit, 
although this did not involve an audit of the actual coded data. 

As part of the Trusts internal rolling clinical coding plan of audit the department did conduct several audits 
throughout the financial year, including the mandatory Information Governance (IG) audit, which examines 
general coding accuracy in the departments selected areas. 

The approved auditors examined 200 FCE’s (Finished Consultant Episodes) in total. The focus of the audit 
was 100FCE’s for Vascular Surgery and 100 FCE’s for Endoscopy, the results were as follows: 

Correct primary 
diagnosis % 

Correct secondary 
diagnosis % 

Correct primary 
procedure % 

Correct secondary 
procedure % 

91 91 91 64 
Table 74 – FCE’s 

The Trust achieved Information Governance Level 2 standards in all but secondary procedure coding. 

Below is a comparison of the Trusts results against Information Governance 505 level 2 attainment 
standards.  

 

Chart 32 - Comparison of Trust results against IG 505 Level 2 Standards 

There was a noted increase in errors in secondary procedure coding in part due to omission of or incorrect 
site codes being recorded. A change in national standards now means that site codes can be consistently 
audited, which was not the case for many years.  Feedback and any necessary training have and will 
continue to be given to the coding team. 

All other areas examined met or exceeded requirements showing continued high standards of coded data 
that compares well nationally with our peers 

The department has conducted other audits throughout the financial year, an example of one such audit 
was the Haematology/Oncology audit, in this audit all four examined areas achieved over 93 per cent, and 
this again reflects the high standards to which the department operates. 

Throughout the financial year the department has continued to encourage closer working relations with 
clinicians and directorates, including work with the Neuropsychiatry team, Orthopaedic consultants- 
specifically in relation to pelvic work, the Plastic Surgery team, the Women and Children’s team and many 
others. 
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Clinicians have also continued to be widely involved and engaged in the Clinical Coding Validation service, 
with a number of new consultants asking to be registered for the service. This demonstrates the services 
continued value. 

The department have had a number of new staff join them throughout the financial year and been 
committed to developing the individual’s skills, as well as the team as whole. The new starters have been 
supported throughout this process by the Deputy Head of Coding, the Clinical Coding Trainer/Auditor and 
the Clinical Coding Team Managers. 

The department introduced new data quality reports that helped improve the recording and capture of 
clinical information in a coded format. They also continued with the use of data quality reports already in 
place which had proved themselves in prior years as essential to continue to monitor and improve data 
quality. 

The department’s internal programme of audit, clinical coding validation service, clinician engagement and 
variety of data quality reports continue to ensure the coding department has a robust internal programme of 
audit to guarantee accurately coded clinical data. 
 
Information Governance Toolkit attainment levels 

The IG Toolkit is now in its 13th year (v13). Evidence is required to be uploaded to support the self-
assessment across 45 requirements.   

There are two possible grades: 

• Satisfactory (green); level 2 achieved on all 45 requirements 
• Not Satisfactory (red); level 2 not achieved on all requirements 

 
The purpose of the IG toolkit is to drive improvement.  All organisations are expected to achieve level 2 in 
all requirements in accordance with the NHS Operating Framework (informatics planning 2011/2012). 

North Bristol NHS Trust IG Toolkit assessment report overall score for 2015/2016 (v13) is 65%, graded red. 

There are improvement plans in place detailing the evidence needed for each requirement, which will allow 
the Trust to clearly identify where improvement has been made and or there are gaps in compliance. The 
improvement plans will be reviewed through the Trust governance processes throughout the 2016/17 
financial year. 

The Trust has recently received the final report for an internal audit, which concluded that the overall 
system for compiling the IG evidence and score is sound and this includes effective ongoing governance 
arrangements.
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Section 6 – Engagement and Consultation 
Quality Priorities  

To find out which topics matter the most to the Trust’s stakeholders when selecting the Quality Priorities for 
2016-17, the Trust undertook a programme of engagement with its members, staff, Local Authority Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees, the Trust’s own Patient Panel and others. This has included the 
following schedule of meetings, targeted discussions and specific presentations about the Quality Account; 

• Review with Trust Patient Panel – February 2016 
• Review with Patient Experience Group – February 2016 
• Discussion with Healthwatch – February 2016 
• Presentation/Discussion at Quality Committee – March 2016 
• Presentation to Bristol City Council People Scrutiny Commission – April 2016 
• Presentation to North Somerset Council Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel – April 2016 
• Supply of presentation for South Gloucestershire Public Health and Health Scrutiny Committee – 

April 2016 
 
The Trust also undertook an on-line survey of the Trust’s members and clinical leads and management 
teams to ascertain views on the priority topics for the year ahead, which received 198 responses and 
identified the four priorities for 2016-17. 

The draft Quality Account was circulated for comment in the period 29th April 2016 – 28th May 2016. 

A list of the organisations who were sent the document as part of the consultation is shown below. 

External Comments  

The following organisations were invited to comment on the draft of the Quality Account: 

• South Gloucestershire - Public Health Scrutiny Committee 
• Bristol - People Scrutiny Commission 
• North Somerset - Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
• NHS South Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
• NHS Bristol Clinical Commissioning Group 
• NHS North Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group 
• North Bristol Trust - Patient Panel 
• Bristol Healthwatch 
• South Gloucestershire Healthwatch 
• North Somerset Healthwatch 

 
Commentary from the South Gloucestershire Public Health Scrutiny Committee 

Comments to be added from consultation to be undertaken 3 May 2016 – 2 June 2016 

Commentary from the Bristol People Scrutiny Commission 

Comments to be added from consultation to be undertaken 3 May 2016 – 2 June 2016 

Commentary from the North Somerset Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

Comments to be added from consultation to be undertaken 3 May 2016 – 2 June 2016 

Commentary from NHS South Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group, Commentary from 
NHS Bristol Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS North Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group 

Comments to be added from consultation to be undertaken 3 May 2016 – 2 June 2016 

Commentary from North Bristol NHS Trust’s Patient Panel 
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The Patient Panel continues to be consulted on numerous topics and priorities within the Trust and also 
continues to attend and participate in a wide range of committees and groups within the Trusts structures. 

The Panel has welcomed the priorities and improvement made over the last year with more and more 
patient care issues being recognised, as a result of asking patients views and reviewing the workings of the 
Trust. 

With regards to Dementia Care the improvements already implemented and the proposal for further action 
is welcomed and evidence of these are seen in the wards, however more still needs to be achieved 
throughout the Trust. 

More and more improvements surrounding patient care have been seen throughout the Trust, e.g. Cardiac 
Care, missed doses ,Sepsis, AKI, which is to be commended. 

The areas for discharge of patients has been seen by the panel as something that needed to be improved , 
with the action taken from patient experience comments and the new initiatives that are being put in place it 
is hopefully going to be a much improved patient experience. 

The patient experience is a most important issue and a huge amount has been done already as mentioned 
in the document, however there is still more to be done to ensure the best possible experience for the 
patients of the Trust. 

Once again the Patient Panel feels as though their views and input into policy and decision making is 
valued and thank the management for allowing our views and comments to be part of the decision making 
process. 

Julie Francis 

Chair, Patient Panel 

 

Commentary from Bristol Healthwatch & South Gloucestershire Healthwatch 

 

Healthwatch Bristol and Healthwatch South Gloucestershire reply to the North Bristol NHS 
Trust (NBT) Account of the Quality of Clinical Services 2015/16 

Healthwatch Bristol and Healthwatch South Gloucestershire acknowledge that following the Care 
Quality Commission inspection in December 2015 has trust remains as ‘requires improvement’ but 
were pleased to note that within urgent and emergency care services the rating acknowledged the 
improvement in service and is now rated ‘good’. Healthwatch wonders whether the implementation 
of the Patient Administration system (Lorenzo) the disruption in the collection and quality of 
information has impacted on patients. Healthwatch has continually heard that data is not always 
available at their appointments. Healthwatch welcomes the work of the trust on dementia and were 
pleased to hear that this work is acknowledged in being shortlisted for ‘Dementia Team of the 
Year’. 

Healthwatch have been disappointed to read that areas that scored worse than last year included 
patients staying on a ward with shared sleeping accommodation, with bath and shower facilities  
with the opposite sex. It was also unacceptable for staff not to have discussed the need for further 
health or social care around discharge, all patients need a discharge plan and Healthwatch would 
like to see this as a trust priority that is acted on to make improvements during the year. 
Healthwatch recognise the aspects of care that have significantly improved as patients tell us that 
they are well cared for by staff. Healthwatch wonders whether the quality improvement workshops 
as part of building improvement capability in the workforce are mandatory? 
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Healthwatch read with interest the outcomes on the rate of falls, and the reduction can be 
attributed to the face to face training for 817 nursing staff. Healthwatch would like all staff to be 
aware of falls and hope that following the Sign up to Safety funding from NHS England this training 
by Lead nurses can continue.  

NBT set a target of 95% for patients admitted to have their medicines reconciled within 24 hours, 
Healthwatch believe this should be 100% and also encourage the trust to look at the prescription 
of medicines, making sure the patient and / or their carer/family have written information of what 
has been prescribed and how medicines should be taken. Some patients tells us they are not 
given enough information about prescribed medicines on discharge. 

Healthwatch were disappointed to read that there were 51 cases of C. Difficile infection (CDI) and 
with almost a third bought in from outside the hospital. Healthwatch would like to work with NBT to 
raise awareness with the public about this unpleasant and potentially severe infection. 
Healthwatch accept the reduction of safety incidents this year, and how staff awareness has been 
actively promoted but Healthwatch feels all staff need to be aware of their Duty of Candour this 
should be mandatory as not all staff will read the guidance on the intranet. 

Healthwatch read with interest the themes patient tell NBT and we recognise that a lot of this 
mirrors what Healthwatch hear from children, young people and adults. There were only 28 
negative experience themes on parking and Healthwatch hear a great deal more about the issues 
of car parking at Southmead hospital and the concern people have over the proposed car parking 
charges at Cossham hospital. 

Healthwatch read the staff survey feedback and were saddened to read that there has been no 
change in the 26% of staff experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse from staff. Healthwatch 
would like to hear in the coming year what the trust intends to do to address this. 

The fall in complaints this year, Healthwatch would like to know the breakdown of low level 
concern themes and whether these match the complaints themes? Healthwatch would also like to 
see the comparison to compliments received last year and the breakdown of compliment themes 
in future quality accounts. Healthwatch were disappointed to read that the Trust has not been able 
to meet all the targets in cancer performance and in trying to fully understand the delays the trust 
is reviewing all patients who are not treated within the 62 days of their GP referral. Healthwatch 
look forward to hearing if the trust can identify ways to address this in the coming year. 
Healthwatch read with concern that the trust has been unable to meet the 95% target of 4 hours 
for patients in A&E and read with interest the key actions for 2016/17. Healthwatch would like 
some clarification on who the integrated discharge member will be as they appear to be key in 
addressing the issue. 

As part of the CQUINS where income is conditional on achieving quality improvement Healthwatch 
look forward to hearing the outcomes particularly for CAMHS as Healthwatch is looking at the 
transformation of children and young people’s mental health services. 

Healthwatch noted that the quality account as a public document has no information printed about 
how people can access the document in other accessible formats, with the introduction of the 
Accessible Information Standard coming in this year Healthwatch recommend that this is 
something to be considered for the next quality account. 

Commentary from North Somerset Healthwatch 

Comments to be added from consultation to be undertaken 3 May 2016 – 2 June 2016 
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Section 7 – Appendices 
Appendix 1 Mandatory Indicators Table  - Data provided by the Health and Social Care Information Centre  

Mandatory indicator NBT 
2015/16 

National 
average 
2015/16 

National 
best 
2015/16 

National 
worst 
2015/16 

NBT 
2014/15 Comment 

Venous thromboembolism risk 
assessment 

93.5% 
Apr 15 - 
Dec15 

95.7% 
Apr-
Dec15 

100% 
Apr-
Dec15 

80.6% 
Apr-
Dec14 

97% 

The Trust considers that this data is as described as there 
is a close focus on VTE risk assessment performance due 
to challenges raised around the operational delays in 
coding of clinical notes that are causing this to fall below 
the national standard of 95%. This issue has been 
exacerbated by the stabilisation required following the 
new Patient Administration system ‘go live’ in November 
2015. From clinical audits it is clear that actual clinical 
practice does achieve the required 95% standard but the 
coding lag means this is not reported in time for national 
data collection. 
 
The Trust will continue to ensure our patients are risk 
assessed for VTE on admission and is working on 
improving VTE prevention as detailed in the report. Work 
to improve the operational factors that will improve the 
reported percentage is being managed through an agreed 
Action Plan with commissioners, which is overseen 
internally through the Quality Committee and externally 
through the CCG Quality Sub Group. 

Clostridium difficile rate per 
100,000 bed days (patients aged 2 
or over) 

14.95 
Apr 15 – 
Mar 16 

15.3 
Apr15-
Jan16 

0 
Apr15-
Jan16 

63.4 
Apr15-
Jan16 

14.2 
Apr14 – 
Mar 15 

The Trust considers that this data is as described for the 
following reasons: rate is as described as the latest 
available on the HSCIC website and is validated closely 
on a case by case basis by the Trust’s Infection Control 
Team.  
 
The Trust will act to improve this percentage, and so the 
quality of its services by continuing to focus on a range of 
improvement actions to reduce C.Difficile infection 
through as outlined in this report. 

Rate of patient safety incidents 
reported per 1,000 bed days 

28.95 
Apr15-
Sep15 

38.23 
Apr15-
Sep15 

117[1] 
Apr15-
Sep15 

15.90 
Apr15-
Sep15 

30.9 
Apr14-
Sep14 

The Trust considers that this data is as described as it is 
supplied by the National Reporting & Learning System 
(NRLS) and is consistent with internal data reviewed on a 
monthly basis during the year. 

[1] High levels of reporting are indicative of a positive patient safety culture: the aim is to achieve high levels of reporting accompanied by low levels of incidents resulting in severe harm or death (the goal being 
zero) 
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Mandatory indicator NBT 
2015/16 

National 
average 
2015/16 

National 
best 
2015/16 

National 
worst 
2015/16 

NBT 
2014/15 Comment 

 
The Trust will act to improve this rate, and so the quality 
of its services by continuing to review incident data to 
encourage open and transparent reporting and to identify 
improvements to practice and learning. 
 

Percentage of patient safety 
incidents resulting in severe harm 
or death 

0.53% 
Apr15-
Sep15 

0.42% 
Apr15-
Sep15 

0% 
Apr15-
Sep15 

2.92% 
Apr15-
Sep15 

0.40% 
Apr 14- 
Sep 14 

The Trust considers that this data is as described as it is 
supplied by the National Reporting & Learning System 
(NRLS) and is consistent with internal data reviewed on a 
monthly basis during the year. 
 
The Trust will act to improve this percentage, and so the 
quality of its services by continuing to review all Serious 
Incidents through Root Cause Analysis investigation and 
actions  to identify lessons and improvements to practice. 

Responsiveness to inpatients’ 
personal needs 

Comparative data for 2014/15 (2013/14 in brackets):  
NBT score 63.8 (76.5); England overall 68.9 (68.7); low 59.1 
(54.4); high 86.1 (84.2). 
 
Comparative data for 2015/16 will not be available from the 
Health & Social Care Information Centre until August 2016. 
 

The Trust considers that this data is as described for the 
following reasons as this rate is as described as is the 
latest as available on the HSCIC website.  
 
The Trust will act to improve this percentage, and so the 
quality of its services by continuing to collect feedback 
from patients, carers and relatives through a range of 
different sources co-ordinated by the Head of Patient 
Experience and utilising the Patient Panel and Experience 
Group as outlined in this report. 

Percentage of staff who would be 
happy with standard of care 
provided if a friend or relative 
needed treatment 

69% 
2015 Staff 
Survey 

75.0% 
2015 
Staff 
Survey 

86.1% 
2015 
Staff 
Survey 

55.4% 
2015 
Staff 
Survey 

51.9% 
2014 Staff 
Survey 

The Trust considers that this data is as described as it is 
directly extracted from National Survey data and the trend 
variation from previous year is consistent with internal 
surveys intended to inform ongoing improvement actions. 
 
The Trust will act to improve this percentage, and so the 
quality of its services by revitalising the approach taken to 
patient feedback to broaden its range and target 
improvement actions rapidly to address themes. This 
includes improvements in relation to the management of 
incidents and feedback on actions taken. 

Summary Hospital-level Mortality 
Indicator (SHMI) value and banding 

90.2  
Oct 14 – 
Sep 15  

100 
Oct 14 – 
Sep 15 

73.78 
Oct 14 – 
Sep 15 

114.72 
Oct 14 – 
Sep 15 

91.89 
Apr 14 – 
Mar 15 

The Trust considers that this data is as described as it is 
directly extracted from the Dr Foster system and analysed 
through the Trust’s Quality Surveillance Group, the 
medical Director and within specialties. The rate is also 
consistent with historic trends. Percentage of patient deaths with 26.14%  26.6% 0.2% 53.5% 29.04%  
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Mandatory indicator NBT 
2015/16 

National 
average 
2015/16 

National 
best 
2015/16 

National 
worst 
2015/16 

NBT 
2014/15 Comment 

specialty code of ‘Palliative 
medicine’ or diagnosis code of 
‘Palliative care’ 

Oct 14 – 
Sep15 
(latest 
available) 

Jul13 – 
Jun14 

 
The Trust will act to improve this percentage, and so the 
quality of its services by continuing with the approach 
detailed in this account to improve quality and safety. The 
Trust does not specifically target a reduction in mortality 
but has more robust processes in place for monitoring 
mortality including the ongoing review of all Hospital 
deaths. It is important to note that palliative care coding 
has no effect on SHMI. 

Patient Reported Outcome Measures – No. of patients reporting an improved score; These figures are all taken from the HSCIC website, 
however the sample size is too small to be published 
nationally. 
 
The Trust considers that this data is as described as it is 
obtained directly from the national PROMs information 
site.  The Trust will act to improve this percentage, and so 
the quality of its services by analysing the outcome scores 
and continuing to focus on participation rates for the 
preoperative questionnaires. 
 

Hip Replacement Primary EQ-VAS  Apr-Sep 2015 NBT score 87% (national average 76.81%) 

Hip Replacement Primary EQ 5D Apr- Sep 2015 NBT score 81.22% (national average 
80.52%) 

Knee Replacement Primary EQ-
VAS  Apr- Sep 2015 NBT score 81% (national average 73.04%) 

Knee Replacement Primary EQ 5D Apr- Sep 2015 NBT score 71.26% (national average 
75.22%) 

Varicose Veins, Groin Hernia and 
Hip Replacement Revision No information available for 2015/16 

Emergency readmissions within 28 
days of discharge: age 0-15 

Comparative data for 2011/12: NBT 10.2%; England 
average 10.0%; low 0%; high 47.6%.  
 
Comparative data is not currently available for 2012/13, 
2013/14 or 2014/15 from the Health & Social Care 
Information Centre. 
 

The Trust considers that this data is as described as it is 
obtained directly from the national Information Centre site.  
 
Nationally comparative data is not available. The Trust will 
act to improve this percentage in relation to its bi- monthly 
review with clinical directorates of its own monitoring data 
within the Performance Assurance Framework. This will 
identify adverse trends and agree actions to reduce 
unplanned readmissions. 
 
 

Emergency readmissions within 28 
days of discharge: age 16 or over 

Comparative data for 2011/12: NBT score 10.9%; England 
average 11.4%; low 0%; high 17.1%.  
 
Comparative data is not currently available for 2012/13, 
2013/14 or 2014/15 from the Health & Social Care 
Information Centre. 
 

Table 29 – Mandatory Indicators Table
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Appendix 2 2015/16 CQUINS 

A proportion of North Bristol NHS Trust’s income in 2015-16 was conditional 

on achieving quality improvement and innovation goals agreed between North Bristol NHS Trust and local 
Clinical Commissioning Groups or NHS England for the provision of NHS services, through the 
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework. 

Further details of the agreed goals for 2015-16 and for the following 12 month period are available 
electronically at https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/9-cquin-guid-2015-16.pdf 

Title National & Local CQUINs (CCG contracted) Outcome 

Acute Kidney Injury  Acute Kidney Injury - Discharge information   

Sepsis 
Sepsis Screening at admission   
Sepsis Antibiotic Administration   

Dementia Care 
Find, Assess/Investigate, Refer/Inform (FAIRI)   
Staff Training   
Supporting Carers   

Urgent Care 
Reducing Avoidable Admissions   
Reduction in alcohol dependence & related emergency admissions   

Patient Discharge 
Discharge summaries - timeliness and completion   
Care homes - Prevention of admission and timely discharge    
Discharge to assess pathways and Integrated Discharge Hub’ (IDH)   

Cancer Care 
Reducing late inter-provider cancer referrals   
Cancer survivorship   

End of Life Care End of Life - prognostic indicators & training   
Patient Experience Patient Self-care -ask 3 questions   
Patient Safety Organisational safety culture review   
Safeguarding Adults Making safeguarding personal for people with Learning Disabilities   

   Title Specialised CQUINs (NHS England contracted)   
Clinical Utilisation Implementing Clinical Utilisation review   
HIV monitoring Reducing unnecessary CD4 monitoring   
Vascular Surgery Improving outcomes for major lower limb amputation   

Critical Care 
Rehabilitation assessment before critical care discharge   
Reduce delayed discharges from Intensive Care Unit to wards   

Neurology Emergency care plans for patients with a long term neurological 
condition   

CAMHS CAMHS Tier 4 - Carer and family engagement   
NICU Hypothermia   
Orthopaedics Orthopaedics - Developing network   

   
 Good Achievement - 80%+    

 Partial achievement - 40%-79%   

 Poor achievement- <40%   
 Table 30 - CQUINS 
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Appendix 3 List of Services provided by NBT as at 31st March 2016 

Directorate Specialities Directorate Specialities 
 

Medical Directorate A&E 
Care of the Elderly 
Medical Day Care 
General (Acute) 
Medicine 
Cardiology 
Dermatology 
Clinical Haematology 
Respiratory Medicine 
Palliative Care 
Clinical Immunology 
HIV/AIDS Service 
Oncology 
Clinical Psychology 
GI Services (Medicine) 
Diabetes & 
Endocrinology 
Mental Health Liaison 
 

Renal & Outpatients 
Directorate 

Hospital Services 
Renal Medicine 
Renal Surgery 
Transplantation Surgery 
Hospital Haemodialysis 
Community Renal Services 
Home Haemodialysis 
Peritoneal Dialysis 
Satellite Haemodialysis 
Renal Technical, Diagnostic 
& Treatment Services 
Outpatient Clinics 
Day Case Suite 
Minor Operations and 
Procedures Theatre 

Musculoskeletal 
Directorate 

Orthopaedics 
Trauma Services 
Rheumatology 
Paediatric 
Rheumatology 
Orthotics 
Disablement Services 
 

Women’s and 
Children’s 
Directorate 

Gynaecology 
Fertility Services 
Integrated Maternity Services 
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit 
(NICU) 
General Paediatrics incl. 
Outpatients 
Peri-operative Acute Care 
Unit 
School Nurses 
Community Paediatrics 
Children’s Speech Therapy 
Child & Adolescent Mental 
Health 
Family Therapy 
Psychotherapy 
Children’s Occupational 
Therapy 
Child Psychology 
Riverside Unit 

Surgical Directorate  
 

General (Acute) 
Surgery 
Vascular Surgery 
Breast Services 
Urology 
Plastics and Burns 
Surgery 
GI Services Surgery 
Endoscopy 
Pigmented Lesion 
Clinic 
Audiology 
Orthodontics 
 

Neurosciences 
Directorate 

Neurology 
Neurosurgery 
Neurophysiology 
Neuropathology 
Neuropsychiatry 
Neuropsychology 
Frenchay Centre for Brain 
Injury Rehabilitation (FCBIR) 
Head Injury Therapy Unit 
(HITU) 
Ophthalmology 
Stroke Service 

Core Clinical 
Services Directorate 

Anaesthetics 
ITU 
HDU 
Theatres 
Clinical Equipment 
Services 
Pain Management 
Back Pain Services 
Resuscitation Training 

Cellular Pathology 
Haematology 
Immunology 
Microbiology 
Pharmaceutical Services 
Radiology 
Medical/Radiation Physics 
Regional Quality Control Lab 
Infection Control 
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Directorate Specialities Directorate Specialities 
 

Day Case Unit 
Pathology 
Genetics 
Clinical Biochemistry 
Dietetics 
Outpatient Facilities 
Management 
 

Phlebotomy 
Medical Illustration 
Adult Speech Therapy 
Occupational Therapy 
Physiotherapy and associated 
Musculo-skeletal rehabilitation 
 

Table 31 - List of Services provided by NBT at 31/03/2016 
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Appendix 4 Auditor’s Opinion 

External Auditors opinion to be added from Grant Thornton LLP 
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Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  17 

Date of Meeting: 2 June 2016 

 
Report Title: Non-Executive Director Committee Allocations 

Status: Information Discussion Assurance Approval 

   X 

Prepared by: Eric Sanders, Trust Secretary 

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Peter Rilett, Trust Chairman 

Appendices (list if applicable): Appendix 1 - Non-Executive Director Committee Membership and Allocations 

 
Recommendation:  

The Trust Board are asked to approve the Non-Executive Director membership and Committee allocations. 

 
 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1 To present the proposed Non-Executive Director 
committee allocations for approval. 

2.0 Background 

2.1 The Trust Board has convened seven committees, of 
which six have Non-Executive Director chairs and 
membership. 

2.2 Following recent appointments, the membership of 
the committees has been reviewed and a number of 
changes agreed with individuals. The Trust Board are 
required to approve any changes to membership. 

3.0 Proposed Changes 

3.1 The proposed changes are described below. The 
main changes are: 

3.2 Jaki Meekings Davis will Chair the Audit Committee 
and Charitable Funds Committee, taking over the role 
from Ken Guy who left the Trust on 31 March 2016. 

3.3 John Everitt will join the Audit Committee and 
Finance & Performance Committee to replace Mark 
Lawton who left the Trust on 31 August 2015. 

3.4 The full membership breakdown is presented in 
Appendix 1. 

4.0 Recommendations 

4.1 The Trust Board are asked to approve the Non-
Executive Director membership and Committee 
allocations. 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

Appendix 1 - Non-Executive Director Committee Membership and Allocations 
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Peter Rilett Trust Chairman   X   X 
Robert Mould Non-Executive Director  Chair  X  X 
Jaki Meekings-Davis Non-Executive Director Chair    Chair X 
Professor Nishan Canagarajah Non-Executive Director X     X 
Andy Willis Non-Executive Director   Chair X  X 
Liz Redfern Non-Executive Director  X  Chair  X 
John Everitt Non-Executive Director X  X   Chair 
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Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  18 

Date of Meeting: 2 June 2016 

 
Report Title: Trust Management Team Update 

Status: Information Discussion Assurance Approval 

X    

Prepared by: Eric Sanders, Trust Secretary 

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Andrea Young, Chief Executive 

Appendices (list if applicable): None 

 
Recommendation:  

The Trust Board is asked to note the content of this report. 

 
 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

1. Purpose 
1.1. To present an update on the business transacted 

by the Trust Management Team (TMT) at its 
meeting held on 17 May 2016. 

2. Background 

2.1. The Trust Management Team is the key delivery 
group in the Trust and consists of the Executive 
Directors, Clinical Directors and General 
Managers.  

2.2. It is good practice that all Committees which 
report to the Trust Board should report after each 
meeting. 

3. Business Undertaken 
3.1. The TMT focused its attention on the following 

areas: 
Business Plan & Executive Dashboard 

3.2. The Director of Finance presented the corporate 
objectives from the business plan and agreed 
with TMT the priority actions for delivery in 
Quarter 1 2016/17 (Q1). 

3.3. The priority actions were designed to support the 
refresh of the business plan, being undertaken 
during Q1and provide confidence in the overall 
delivery of the business plan for the year. 

3.4. Supporting delivery of the actions, the Executive 
Dashboard was discussed to get the views of the 
Clinical Directors and General Managers, that the 
indicators being monitored would provide a good 

summary of the position and allow early warning 
of any deterioration. This was agreed, but further 
work was required to ensure timely and accurate 
provision of information to the directorates to 
manage their business. 
Financial Performance 

3.5. The month 1 position was considered and it was 
noted that whilst there was improvement in the 
overall pay bill, income remained behind plan. 
The reasons for this were debated and it was 
noted that the income was based on an average 
tariff by specialty, due to data availability, and the 
position was affected by two junior doctor strikes 
in month, as well as reduced income from RTAs 
and other sources. 
Quality 

3.6. The Director of Nursing presented the national 
patient survey results and prioritised actions to 
improve performance next year. The TMT were 
encouraged by significant improvement seen year 
on year, but recognised that operational 
pressures were impacting on the experience of 
patients and this needed to be addressed. 

3.7. The TMT considered and approved the CQC 
Action Plan and committed to delivering the 
actions, and recommitted to achieving a self-
assessment of “Good” by the end of the financial 
year. 
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Workforce 
3.8. The Deputy Medical Director attended the 

meeting to outline the eight work streams to drive 
improvement in the medical workforce. These 
work streams included: 
• Managing medical workforce absence 
• Extra (non-contractual) clinical activity 

payments 
• Consultant and SAS doctors job planning 
• Junior doctor contract implementation 
• Locum usage v vacancies, including 

o Trust doctor/SAS development 
programme 

o Review agency usage – action 
planning HR Business Partners 
(HRBPs) 

• Performance framework 
• Fixed term contracts 
• Retire and return policy 

3.9. The TMT supported the work and Clinical 
Directors confirmed that they were engaged in the 
programmes. 

Policy for the Development and Management 
of Trust Procedural Documents 

3.10. The TMT considered changes to the policy and 
recommended its approval by the Chief 
Executive. The TMT also considered the current 
position of the Trust policy portfolio and asked the 
Workforce Group and Quality Committee to 

undertake a risk based prioritisation of the 
policies in their area, with a view to reviewing all 
policies outside of their review dates. A further 
update was considered by the Quality & Risk 
Management Committee at its meeting on 26 May 
2016. 

4. Key Risks Identified and Impact 
4.1. The TMT recognised and discussed risks relating 

to: 

• the availability of high quality, timely data to 
support business decision making 

• the potential impact of a closure of the 
Emergency Department at Weston Area Health 
NHS Trust and knock on impact to activity 
levels across Bristol and in particular at 
Southmead Hospital. 

5. Key Decisions 
5.1. The TMT agreed: 

5.1.1. Following a review of the TMT’s effectiveness 
during the past year against the duties within 
the Terms of Reference (ToR), the TMT 
approved a roll forward of the ToR without 
amendment. The Terms of Reference are 
available on the Trust internet pages1. 

5.1.2. The TMT considered changes to the Trust 
Policy for the Development and Management 
of Trust Procedural Documents, and 

1 https://www.nbt.nhs.uk/about-us/trust-board/committee-terms-reference  
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recommended its approval by the Chief 
Executive.  

6. Exceptions and Challenges 
6.1. Data availability is restricting the operational 

performance information presented to the TMT. 
The TMT has currently delegated performance 
reviews to the Directorate Performance Review 
process, which occur later in the month, with 
outcomes reported to the Trust Board through the 
Integrated Performance Report. 

7. Governance and Other Business 
7.1. The TMT considered its effectiveness against the 

duties as described within the Terms of 
Reference. The TMT agreed with the review 
undertaken by the Trust secretary which 
demonstrated that seven of the 13 duties had 
been delivered fully and six had been partially 
delivered.  

7.2. Actions were agreed to progress towards full 
delivery, but the TMT recognised further work 
was required to ensure that operational targets 
were delivered. 

8. Future Business 
8.1. The TMT will be focusing on the following areas 

over the next three months: 

• Cost Improvement Plan identification and 
delivery 

• Q1 refresh and outcomes 
 

9. Recommendations 
9.1. The Trust Board is asked to note the update 

provided on the work of the TMT and approve the 
roll forward of the Terms of Reference without 
change. 
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1. Purpose 
1.1. This report outlines the business discussed at the 

Finance & Performance Committee meeting held 
on 21 April 2016 and 26 May 2016. 

2. Background 

2.1. The Finance and Performance Committee meets 
monthly and was established to provide assurance to 
the Trust Board that there are robust and integrated 
systems in place overseeing the Trust’s finance and 
performance and that they are in line with the 
organisation’s objectives. 

3. Business Undertaken 
Operational Performance 

3.1. The Committee considered the Trust’s operational 
performance and noted the improving position 
relating to RTT and cancer, although unvalidated, 
and that a sustainable positon was not expected to 
be achieved until the Autumn of 2016 for the 
cancer targets. This primarily related to planned 
improvements in urology 

3.2. The new national guidance on the sharing of 
cancer breaches between hospitals was 
considered and the impact, although thought to be 
favourable, needed to be reviewed in detail. 

3.3. The sustainability of the demand and capacity for 
the Trust’s orthopaedic services was considered. 
This included information on current requirements 
and forecasting supported by IMAS. Given the 
challenges to the service it was agreed that a 

longer term strategy for managing this needed to 
be developed in conjunction with local and 
specialised commissioners. 

3.4. The management of theatres was scrutinised with 
a focus on recent management changes and 
approaches to improve productivity and efficiency. 
The Committee noted the move to review whole 
patient pathways to try and mitigate some of the 
current issues impact theatres, such as bed 
pressures, and turnaround times. 

3.5. The initial cut of data from the bed model was 
reviewed, including the assumptions underpinning 
the calculations. It was noted that the model 
needed further refining to include seasonal 
variations in length of stay, and modelling to sub-
specialty level to provide a more accurate picture 
of bed requirements across the year. The 
Committee requested that the model allow for 
sensitivity analysis of the assumptions and this 
would be provided in future iterations. 

3.6. The performance of the local system was noted in 
the form of the Alamac data. 
Financial Performance 

3.7. The month 12 2015/16 and month 1 2016/17 
positons were considered. 

3.8. In relation to month 1, it was noted that there was 
a favourable position in relation to pay 
expenditure, but income had been impacted by the 
junior doctor industrial action and lower than 
forecast income from cancer drugs and road traffic 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 

2 
 
 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

accidents. The Committee were concerned about 
the position and noted the actions being taken to 
bring the Trust back on trajectory, which included 
work to fully identify savings plans for the year and 
improvements in elective delivery. 

3.9. The Committee requested that the Trust Board be 
provided with a verbal update as to progress on 
fully developed cost improvement plans at the 2 
June 2016 meeting, due to its concerns over 
progress. 
Benchmarking – Soft Facilities Management 

3.10. The Committee considered the report from Green 
& Kassab who had been commissioned to review 
soft facilities management provided by the Trust. It 
was noted that the majority of the services 
benchmarked well, especially patient food and 
portering.  

3.11. The Committee agreed to look at two areas more 
closely in June 2016 to support decision making 
on future provision. These areas were domestics 
and estates maintenance. 
Flow Improvement 

3.12. The plan to improve flow both within the Trust and 
in the wider health and social care system was 
considered and noted as a key part of the CQC 
action plan. The Committee requested an 
assessment of the impact of the actions on the 
improvement trajectory, but noted that the Trust 
was unlikely to achieve the 95% A&E target in 
2016/17. 

4. Key Risks Identified and Impact 
4.1. The Committee identified the following key risks: 

4.1.1. The risk from not having clean, accurate and 
timely data was considered and a paper outlining 
the systems and processes to manage data 
quality was requested to be presented at the 
next meeting in June 2016. 

4.1.2. The sustainability of the orthopaedic service 
given the current imbalance in demand and 
capacity. Medium to longer term plans were 
being developed and would be presented to the 
Committee in quarter 2. 

4.1.3. The significant risk of non-identification and 
delivery of cost improvement plans. 

5. Key Decisions 
5.1. The Committee approved the Bath Renal Dialysis 

Unit Outline Business Case subject to agreement 
of the funding options and recommended its 
approval by the Trust Board. 

6. Exceptions and Challenges 
6.1. There were no exceptions or challenges which 

prevented the Committee from undertaking its work 
other than the previously identified availability of 
validated data. 

7. Governance and Other Business 
7.1. The Committee considered its Terms of Reference 

and approved a number of amendments including 
adding the Director of Informatics to the membership. 
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8. Future Business 
8.1. The Committee will be considering  

• Systems and process to manage data quality 

• Specific areas of underperformance against 
key operational targets 

• Revised bed model 

• Identification and delivery of cost 
improvement plans 

9. Recommendations 
9.1. The Trust Board is asked to note the report from 

the meetings held on 21 April 2016 and 26 May 
2016 and approved the changes to the Terms of 
Reference. 
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Committee Terms of Reference 
 

 

Finance and Performance Committee 
Terms of Reference 
  
Purpose  -  The Committee is established to provide the Trust 
Board with assurance that there are robust and integrated 
mechanisms in place to ensure detailed consideration and 
oversight of the Trust’s finance and performance in the context 
of delivering the Trust’s strategy, the underpinning Long Term 
Financial Model (LTFM) and associated clinical activity data and 
workforce metrics. 
  

Date Adopted TBC 

Review Frequency Annual 

 

Core Accountabilities 

Terms of reference drafting Trust Secretary 

Review and approval Finance and Performance 
Committee 

Adoption and ratification  Trust Board 

  

 
 
 

 

1. Authority 
1.1. The Trust Board hereby resolves to establish a Committee of 

the Board to be known as the Finance & Performance 
Committee (the Committee). 

1.2. The Committee is a standing committee of the Trust’s Board 
(the Board).  Its constitution and terms of reference shall be as 
set out below, subject to amendment at future Board meetings. 

1.3. The Committee is authorised by the Board to act and 
investigate any activity within its terms of reference.  All 
members of staff are directed to co-operate with any request 
made by the Committee. 

1.4. The Committee is authorised by the Board to instruct 
professional advisers and request the attendance of individuals 
and authorities from outside the Trust with relevant experience 
and expertise if it considers this necessary or expedient to the 
exercise of its functions. 

 

2. Membership and attendance at meetings 
Membership 

2.1. The Committee shall be appointed by the Trust Board and 
shall consist of: 
• Chairman of the Trust 
• Chief Executive  
• two non-executive directors (one of whom will chair the 

Committee)  
• Director of Operations (sharing ownership of the agenda) 
• Director of Finance and Information (sharing ownership 

of the agenda) 
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• Director of Informatics 

 

2.2. Deputies may attend by exception but must be fully briefed and 
will not count towards quorum. 

 

Quorum 
2.3. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business will be 

two Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director.  
Attendance will be reported in the Annual Report of the 
committee and the Annual Report of the Trust.  

 

Attendance 
2.4. Meetings of the Committee shall normally be attended by:  

• Director of Operational Finance 
• Associate Director of Programme Management Office 

(PMOPerformance) 
• Senior finance staff, as required  
• The Head of Performance  

 
or a nominated deputy  

 

2.5. The Committee may invite other persons to attend a meeting 
so as to assist in deliberations. The Chairman shall be notified 
of this prior to the meeting. 

2.6. Executive directors may be invited to attend for specific 
agenda items. Non-Executive Directors and Executive 
Directors can attend as desired but will not form part of the 
permanent membership of this committee. 

 

3. Roles and responsibilities 
Receipt of reports 

3.1. The Committee will routinely consider three key reports in 
detail: 
• The monthly finance report 
• The LTFM 
• The integrated monthly performance report (with 

particular reference to underpinning systems and 
processes). The Trust Board will retain oversight of 
overall performance. 
 

Duties 
3.2. The duties of the Committee can be categorised as follows: 

 
Financial and Performance Management 
• Consider reports on the financial position of the Trust 

that highlight significant trends and risks for Board 
attention; 

• Monitor the delivery of the Sustainability Programme. 
• Review the LTFM of the Trust at the start of each year to 

seek assurance that annual budgets are consistent with 
that plan prior to recommendation of those budgets; and 
review the Long Term Financial Plan at Quarter 3 of 
each year to seek assurance that the plan is used to 
inform the annual business planning cycle of the Trust; 

• Ensure consistency between the LTFM and annual plans 
ensuring these are consistent and coherent;  

• Consider forecast positions reported by the Trust and 
risks to achievement of forecast; 

• Review the preparation of the annual budget of the Trust 
and recommend adoption to the Board where 
appropriate; 
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• Maintain an overview of the activity and workforce 

models to ensure consistency and to provide assurance 
on critical assumptions. 

• Review financial performance of the Trust against 
strategic objectives and supporting key performance 
indicators to seek assurance or otherwise as to 
successful delivery of those objectives; 

• Review progress against delivery of cost improvement 
plans for the forward three year period and within the 
current period; 

• Review income line reporting and service line reporting 
at the same frequency and time as the LTFM; 

• To consider changes to the Trust reporting requirements 
under new regulatory arrangements, for example Monitor 
consultations. 

 
Performance 
• To oversee the ongoing development of the Integrated 

Performance Report.. 
• To seek assurance that the measures incorporated in the 

Board report meet the requirements of external 
stakeholders and provide assurance to the Board that 
the Trust Strategy is being delivered. 

• To seek assurance that the underpinning systems and 
processes for data collection and management are 
robust and provide relevant, timely and accurate 
information to support operational management of the 
organisation 

• To review in detail any major performance variations, in 
order to obtain assurance on behalf of the Board as to 
the effectiveness of corrective actions and associated 
governance arrangements.  

 

 
Procurement 
• Review and approve the Trust Procurement Strategy. 

 
Capital Management 
• Review the strategic five year capital programme and the 

annual capital budgets and recommend as appropriate to 
the Trust Board; 

• Review capital business cases identified within the 
annual capital budget to ensure that each business case 
is within the resources approved by the Trust Board and 
that the business cases comply with the business case 
standards set by the Trust and outside regulators. 

• Approve capital business cases in accordance with the 
Trust’s Detailed Scheme of Delegation (DSoD)  

 
Treasury Management 
• To review the cash position of the Trust and the related 

treasury management policies of the Trust; and where 
changes are required to approve that policy; 

• To review the Trust’s Investment Strategy. 
• Review Trust finance applications including loan 

applications. 
 

Investment Appraisal 
• To review and approve revenue business cases in 

accordance with limits in the Trust’s DSoD and to make 
recommendations to the Trust Board on those cases 
outside of its authority. 

• Review the benefits realisation of business cases and 
post implementation reviews to ensure that the standard 
of business case preparation is consistently high. 
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• Work in partnership with the Development Committee to 

maintain a comprehensive overview of the investment 
process and specific cases. 

 
Policy approval 
• To review and approve all financial policies that are not 

reserved to Board decision by the Standing Orders of the 
Trust. 

 
 Assurance 

• The Committee shall ensure that the Trust Board is 
adequately assured in relation to all financial and 
operational performance matters which will include, but 
is not limited to: 
• Data Quality 
• Medical Records Management 
• Capital Planning 
• Bed Capacity and Management 
• Budget Setting 
• Business Planning 
• Commercial Development 
• External Stakeholder Engagement 
• Service Line Reporting 
• Performance Reporting and Management 
• Managing internal and external communications 

 

Risk Management 
• The Committee shall ensure the Trust has robust financial 

and operational risk management systems and processes 
in place.  

Other 
• To review any matter referred to this committee by the 

Trust Board; 
• To make arrangements as necessary to ensure that all 

Board of DirectorsTrust Board members maintain an 
appropriate level of knowledge and understanding of key 
financial issues affecting the Trust. 

• To notify the Audit Committee of any statutory reporting 
concerns or system weaknesses identified. 

 

4. Conduct of business 
4.1. The Committee shall be supported administratively by the 

Trust Secretary’s office, whose duties in this respect will 
include: 

• Agreement of agendas with the Chairman and 
attendees; and collation of papers 

• Taking the minutes 

• Keeping a record of matters arising and issues to be 
carried forward within an action log. 

• Advising the Committee on pertinent issues/areas 

• Provision of a highlight report of the key business 
undertaken to the Trust Board following each meeting, in 
the public session where possible.  

Elements of this support function may be delegated to relevant 
directorate officers.  

 

Frequency 
4.2. Meetings will normally be held every month, in advance of the 

Trust Board meeting 
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4.3. Meetings will normally last no longer than 2½ hours. 

 

Notice of meetings  
4.4.4.3. An agenda of items to be discussed will be forwarded 

to each member of the Committee and any other person 
required to attend, no later than two working days before the 
date of the meeting.  Supporting papers will be sent to 
Committee members and to other attendees as appropriate, at 
the same time 

4.5.4.4. In normal circumstances, a minimum notice period of 
two weeks must be given for any other meetings of the 
Committee.  Emergency meetings can be arranged, at shorter 
notice, if this is approved and evidenced as such, by the 
majority of the members of the Committee.  

 

5. Reporting 
5.1. Formal minutes of Committee meetings will be recorded; and 

will normally be confirmed as accurate at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 

5.2. The Chairman of the Committee shall draw to the attention of 
the Board any issues that require disclosure to the full Board.  
The Committee shall also raise any significant concerns in 
relation to the business undertaken directly with the Board 
within the monthly integrated performance report. 

5.3. The Committee will report to the Board annually on the 
performance of its duties as reflected within these Terms of 
Reference.  The Audit Committee will also review the 
Committee’s Annual Report to the Board in order to inform its 
overall scrutiny of the Trust’s draft Annual Governance 
Statement prior to recommending it for Board approval. 

6. Review of Committee effectiveness 
6.1. The Committee shall conduct an annual self-assessment on 

the performance of its duties as reflected within these Terms of 
Reference and report any conclusions and recommendations 
for change to the Board. 

6.2. As part of this assessment, the Committee shall consider 
whether or not it receives adequate and appropriate support in 
fulfilment of its role and whether or not its current workload is 
manageable. 
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1. Purpose 
1.1. To present an update to the Board following the 

meeting of the Committee on 28 April 2016. 
2. Background 

2.1. The Remuneration & Nominations Committee, as a 
mandatory committee of the Board, is required to 
report to the Board after each meeting. 

2.2. The Committee is also required to review their Terms 
of Reference on an annual basis and present the 
proposed changes to the Board for approval 

3. Business Undertaken 
3.1. The Committee considered the following issues: 

3.1.1. An update on the secondment of the Director 
of Strategy to the Nuffield Trust was received 
and it was noted that he was due to attend the 
Trust Board meeting that day to present on the 
work he had been undertaking and to share 
learning with NBT.  

3.1.2. The Committee considered a report on the 
benchmarking information for the remuneration 
of the Executive Directors. The Committee 
noted that the majority of the directors were 
paid within the normal range for comparator 
organisations, but the Medical Director was an 
outlier against all comparators, and the 
Medical Director had recently taken on 
additional responsibilities. 

3.1.3. The Committee agreed to commission a 
remuneration strategy for Executive Directors 

once the substantive Director of HR and OD 
was appointed. 

3.1.4. The Chief Executive confirmed that all 
Executive Director appraisals had been 
completed and a short summary would be 
provided to the next meeting. 

3.1.5. The Chief Executive, with Robert Mould, Non-
Executive Director, had interviewed two interim 
candidates to cover the Director of Workforce 
role and following a review of references had 
agreed to appoint Jacolyn Fergusson for an 
initial period of four months, with the option to 
extend for two further months. 

3.1.6. The Committee considered the recruitment 
plan for the Executive Director of Workforce 
and the job description. It was noted that an 
executive search firm would be appointed, 
subject to confirmation of the procurement 
process, to support identification of a strong 
field of candidates. 

3.1.7. An update on the external Fit and Proper 
Persons checks, commissioned from Experian, 
was received and it was noted that all but one 
of the checks had been completed and no 
issues had been identified. 

4. Key Risks Identified and Impact 
4.1. There were no key risks identified. 
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5. Key Decisions 
5.1. The Committee approved the salary increase for the 

Medical Director, subject to agreement from NHS 
Improvement. 

5.2. The Committee approved the changes to the Terms 
of Reference for the Committee. 

 
 
6. Exceptions and Challenges 

6.1. There were no exceptions or challenges to the 
Committee conducting its business. 

7. Governance and Other Business 
7.1. The Committee considered one change to the Terms 

of Reference.  
7.2. It was proposed that the Trust Board be asked to 

delegate authority to the Committee to approve any 
matters relating to the continuation in office of any 
executive director at any time including the 
suspension or termination of service of an executive 
director as an employee of the Trust subject to the 
provisions of the law and their service contract. The 
Committee would then agree on a case by case 
basis as to whether this would be further delegated 
to a sub-group or panel convened of its members. 

8. Future Business 
8.1. The Committee will be focusing its attention on the 

following issues: 

8.1.1. Summary of Executive Director appraisals 
8.1.2. Review the Board’s skills and capability 

9. Recommendations 
9.1. The Trust Board is asked to note the update from the 

meeting held on 28 April 2016 and approve the 
revised Terms of Reference including the delegation 
of authority as described in para 7.2.  
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Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee Terms of Reference 
  

Purpose - The Committee is established to advise on the 
appointment of the chief executive and executive directors; 
and to determine the remuneration and terms of service for the 
Trust’s chief executive and executive directors.  It will also 
advise the Board on the size, structure and membership of the 
Trust Board and executive directors. 

  

Date Adopted TBC 

Review Frequency Annual 

 
Core Accountabilities 

Terms of reference drafting Trust Secretary 

Review and approval Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee 

Adoption and ratification  Trust Board 
Trust Chairman 

 

1. Authority 
1.1. In accordance with the requirements of the National Health 

Service Trusts (Membership and Procedure) Regulations 
1990 (as amended) (“The Regulations”) the Board hereby 

resolves to establish a committee of the Board to be known as 
the Remuneration and Nominations Committee (“the 
Committee”).   

1.2. The Committee is constituted as a standing committee of the 
Trust Board.  Its constitution and terms of reference shall be 
as set out below; and will be subject to amendments 
approved by the Trust Board. 

1.3. The Committee is authorised to seek information it requires 
from any employee of the Trust. All members of staff are 
directed to co-operate with any request made by the 
Committee.   The Committee is authorised to obtain legal or 
other independent professional advice and to secure the 
attendance of such outsiders with relevant experience and 
expertise that it considers necessary. 

1.4. The Committee is authorised by the Board to make decisions 
within its terms of reference, including matters specifically 
referred to it by the Board. 

 

2. Membership and attendance at meetings 
Membership 

2.1. In accordance with the Regulations, the membership of the 
Committee will consist of all of the Non-Executive Directors of 
the Trust.  No deputies can be appointed. 

2.2. The Trust Chairman will chair the meetings of the Committee.  
In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman will chair 
the meeting.  In the absence of both, a Non-Executive 
Director will be appointed by the Committee to chair the 
meeting. 

Page 1 of 5  

 



Remuneration and Nominations Committee Terms of Reference Approved by the Trust Board 
TBC 

 
Quorum 

2.3. Quorum will be achieved through the presence of three 
members of the Committee.  Quorum must include the Trust 
Chairman, for decisions relating to the appointment and 
position of the Chief Executive. 

 Attendance 
2.4. On invitation from the Chairman of the Committee, meetings 

may be attended by: 

• the Trust Chief Executive 

• the Director of People and Organisational Health, (or 
equivalent executive lead for the Trust with 
responsibility for the human resources functions of the 
Trust) 

• any other person who has been invited to attend the 
meeting by the Committee Chairman 

 
 

3. Roles and responsibilities 
         Remuneration and terms of service 
3.1. The Committee will operate within the Trust’s approved 

scheme of delegations, to: 

• approve the remuneration and terms of service of the 
Chief Executive and executive directors (and if applicable 
senior managers on locally-determined pay outside of 
Agenda for Change rules) during the recruitment 
process; and on appointment. 

• recommend and monitor the level and structure of 
remuneration and any compensation payments, and to 

note pension entitlements, for the Chief Executive and 
executive directors (and if applicable senior managers on 
locally-determined pay outside of Agenda for Change 
rules) 

• advise upon and oversee contractual arrangements for 
the Chief Executive and executive directors (and if 
applicable senior managers on locally-determined pay 
outside of Agenda for Change rules) 

• approve the submission, to the NHS Trust Development 
Authority (NTDA), of proposed severance and 
termination payments for the Chief Executive and 
executive directors (and if applicable senior managers on 
locally-determined pay outside of Agenda for Change 
rules) 

• to ensure that a robust and effective process is in place 
to meet the requirements of the Fit and Proper Persons 
Test for all existing and future director (Executive and 
Non-Executive) appointments  

 

3.2. The Committee will consider: 

• key contractual terms of appointment, such as length of 
contract and arrangements for termination 

• all aspects of remuneration including pension and other 
emoluments, including performance related pay 

• provision of other benefits, including cars and 
allowances, including relocation allowances  

 
3.3. When setting remuneration, the Committee will take account of 

the need to seek to attract and retain individuals of the 
necessary calibre, having regard to the needs of the Trust, and 
any relevant national and local benchmarking information. 
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         Nominations 
3.4. The Committee will: 

• review annually the effectiveness of the Trust Board, 
including its structure, size and composition (including 
the skills, knowledge and experience) required of the 
Board and make recommendations to the Board with 
regard to any changes consider the likely future needs of 
the Trust 

• make plans for preparing the succession for all Board 
member roles including the Chairman, Non-Executive 
Directors, Chief Executive, and other executive directors 

• approve the process for identifying and nominating 
candidates for appointment to posts at executive director 
level 

• approve the process for identifying and nominating a 
candidate, to fill the position of Chief Executive 

• consider any matter relating to the continuation in office 
of any executive director, including their suspension or 
termination of service as an employee of the Trust 
 

3.5. The Committee will consider the performance of the Trust 
Board and will receive and review the results of the annual 
appraisal of the Chief Executive, carried out by the Chairman; 
and the annual appraisals of the executive directors, carried 
out by the Chief Executive. 

3.6. The Committee will report the results of the annual assessment 
of the performance of the Chief Executive to the NTDA, in 
accordance with the Authority’s instructions: specifically, the 
Committee will agree the performance category that the Chief 

Executive is assessed to have achieved (outstanding; exceeds 
expectations; satisfactory; or not satisfactory); and report this 
to the NTDA within the timescales set (for 2012/13 this was 
before 30 June 2013). 

3.7. The Committee will review the extent to which directors have 
achieved their objectives for the past year and advise on the 
objectives set for the Chief Executive and executive directors 
for the forthcoming year, taking into account its assessment of 
the effectiveness of the Board and its strengths and 
weaknesses. 

3.8. Before an appointment is made, the Committee will evaluate 
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board 
and in the light of this evaluation, prepare a description of the 
role and capabilities required for a particular appointment.   

3.9. The Committee will ensure that the appointment process is 
designed to attract the best candidates, through use of a range 
of open advertising or the services of external advisers to 
facilitate the search.  The Committee will seek to consider 
candidates from a wide range of backgrounds and will consider 
candidates on merit against objective criteria. 

3.10. The Committee will approve any temporary or interim 
arrangements for appointing the Chief Executive and executive 
directors.  It will ensure that the appointment of acting directors 
for absent executive directors, or vacant posts complies with 
constitutional requirements. 

3.11. The Committee will make recommendations to the boardratify : 

3.12. on any matters relating to the continuation in office of any 
executive director at any time including the suspension or 
termination of service of an executive director as an employee 
of the Trust subject to the provisions of the law and their 
service contract 
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3.13.3.11.  

3.14. The Committee will make any recommendations to the Board 
on any Board restructuring proposals 

3.15.3.12.  
 

4. Conduct of business 
4.1. The Trust Secretary will provide the administrative support to 

the Committee and will be the secretary to the Committee.  
The Trust Secretary will: 

• provide timely notice of meetings 

• forward agendas and supporting documents to 
members and attendees in advance of the meetings 

4.2. In exceptional circumstances, the Chairman of the Committee 
may make other arrangements for secretarial support in 
instances where the confidentiality of information and 
discussion dictates.  As a minimum, the record of these 
meetings must be sent to the Trust’s external auditor. 

        Frequency 
4.3. The Committee shall meet every six months at least.  Further 

meetings can be called at the request of the Committee 
Chairman, or on the advice of the Director of People and 
Organisational Health 

4.4. Meetings will be held whenever a board appointment, removal 
of a director, or a board restructuring is proposed. 

        Notice of meetings 
4.5. The annual meeting of the Committee will be set in advance 

as part of the planning of the Trust Board and Committee 
meetings annual calendar. 

4.6. An agenda of items to be discussed will be forwarded to each 
member of the Committee and any other person required to 
attend, no later than five working days before the date of the 
meeting.  Supporting papers will be sent to Committee 
members and to other attendees as appropriate, at the same 
time. 

4.7. In normal circumstances, a minimum notice period of two 
weeks must be given for any other meetings of the 
Committee.  Emergency meetings can be arranged, at shorter 
notice, if this is approved and evidenced as such, by the 
majority of the members of the Committee.  

4.8.4.7.  
 

5. Decisions of the Committee 
5.1. Decisions may be taken by written resolution upon the 

agreement of the majority of members of the Committee in 
attendance, subject to the rules on quorum stated earlier. 

 

6. Reporting 
6.1. Formal minutes of Committee meetings will be recorded. 

6.2. Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee will be sent in 
confidence to all members of the Committee, regardless of 
whether they attended.  These shall also be made available, 
on request, to the NHS Trust Development Authority and the 
Trust’s internal and external auditors. 

6.3. The Trust Secretary will prepare a report of the decisions of 
the Remuneration Committee which will be presented to the 
Trust Board following each meeting.  The report will address 
the main items discussed and decisions made by the 
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Committee.  The report will confirm that the Committee has 
discharged its responsibilities, as set out in these terms of 
reference. The report will not include specific detail relating to 
individuals or the deliberations of the Committee. 

6.4. The Committee will ensure that board of directors’ 
emoluments are accurately reported in the required format in 
the Trust's annual reports. 

6.5. The Committee will produce an annual report of the Trust’s 
remuneration policy and practices which will form part of the 
Trust’s annual report. 

6.5.  
 

7. Review 
7.1. The Committee will review these terms of reference annually.  

This review will include a self-assessment of its effectiveness 
in discharging its responsibilities as set out; and in delivering 
against the needs of the Trust. Its conclusions and 
recommendations for change will be reported for approval to 
the Board. 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

1. Purpose 
1.1. To present an update to the Board following the 

meeting of the Committee on 21 April 2016. 
2. Background 

2.1. The Workforce Committee, as sub-committee of the 
Board, is required to report to the Board after each 
meeting. 

2.2. This was the first meeting of the Committee 
3. Business Undertaken 

3.1. The Committee considered the following issues: 
3.1.1. A suite of workforce Key Performance 

Indicators (KPIs), in the form of a workforce 
dashboard, were considered and discussed. In 
addition to those proposed, the Committee 
also asked that KPIs which indicated how well 
the actions to improve staff survey were 
identified and included in the dashboard. 

3.1.2. A deep dive into sickness absence was 
received and reviewed. This included 
consideration of the fact that 613 staff had a 
Bradford Factor1 of over 500, which ranged 
from 501 to 61,000, that the Trust was in the 
bottom quartile for sickness absence 
performance in the NHS, and during the last 
year absence had cost the business an 
estimated £13 million, which was equivalent to 
an additional 325 registered nurses. 

1 The Bradford Factor is a measure of work absenteeism. 

3.1.3. The Committee noted the workstreams in 
place to address the high levels of 
absenteeism which included annual leave 
management, use of temporary staff and 
appropriate granting of special leave. 

3.1.4. The results of the annual national staff survey 
were considered and the Committee noted that 
the Trust was no longer in the worst 25% for 
any measure within the survey, with scores on 
or about the average for all measures. 

3.1.5. The timetable for developing directorate level 
action plans was considered and noted that an 
update on progress would be provided to the 
Committee in October 2016. 

3.1.6. The implementation of the junior doctor 
contract was considered and the Committee 
were advised that a steering committee had 
been convened to oversee the implementation. 
This included ensuring that rotas could be 
delivered under the new contract. The Deputy 
Medical Director was asked to attend the next 
meeting to provide assurance on the 
implementation plan. 

4. Key Risks Identified and Impact 
4.1. The key workforce risks were considered which 

included: 

• Not maintaining safe nursing or medical 
staffing levels 

• Loss of key leadership talent 
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• Failure to effectively manage employee 
relations cases 

• Failure to deliver required workforce 
capacity and capability 

• Loss of long serving employees due to 
changes in tax treatment of pension 
contributions 

• Lack of HR capacity and capability to deliver 
scale of change 

• Lack of adequate control of labour costs 
5. Key Decisions 

5.1. The Committee approved the changes to the Terms 
of Reference for the Committee. 

6. Exceptions and Challenges 
6.1. The Committee considered the current capacity 

within HR to deliver the workforce plan and provide 
information to the Committee. It was noted that a 
new Interim Director of HR and OD was due to start, 
alongside a new Interim Director of Operational HR. 
This would provide some capacity to support 
delivery. 

7. Governance and Other Business 
7.1. The Committee reviewed its Terms of Reference and 

made a recommendation to the Trust Board that the 
Director of Operations be invited to become a 
member. 

7.2. In reviewing the Terms of Reference, the Committee 
considered how representatives from the 
directorates would be engaged to understand 

workforce issues at a ward/directorate level. It was 
noted that members of staff could be co-opted and 
invited to attend to talk about specific items. 

8. Future Business 
8.1. The Committee will be focusing its attention on the 

following issues: 
8.1.1. Delivery of the workforce workstreams 
8.1.2. Implementation of the Junior Doctor contract 
8.1.3. Monitoring of workforce KPIs 

9. Recommendations 
9.1. The Trust Board is asked to note the update from the 

meeting held on 21 April 2016 and approve the 
revised Terms of Reference to include the Director of 
Operations within the membership of the Committee. 
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